### **CONTRACT DOCUMENTS FOR**

#### **CITY OF FLAGLER BEACH**

#### SOUTH CENTRAL WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT

**CITY PROJECT NO: 570** 

**CITY INVITATION TO BID NO: 24-1021** 



**OCTOBER 2024** 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK





#### **SECTION 00 01 01**

# CONTRACT DOCUMENTS FOR CITY OF FLAGLER BEACH SOUTH CENTRAL WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT

CITY PROJECT NO: 570

**CITY INVITATION TO BID NO: 24-1021** 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



#### **DIVISION 00**

#### **BIDDING REQUIREMENTS, CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, AND FORMS**

## CITY OF FLAGLER BEACH SOUTH CENTRAL WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT CITY PROJECT NO: 570 TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION	TITLE
DIVISION 00	BIDDING DOCUMENTS, CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND FORMS
00 01 01	PROJECT TITLE PAGE
00 01 07	CERTIFICATIONS PAGE
00 01 50	FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT
00 11 13	ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS
00 11 53	REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION FORMS
00 21 13	INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
00 22 13	STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
00 22 15	SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS
00 41 13	BID FORM
00 43 25	PERFORMANCE BOND
00 51 00	NOTICE OF AWARD
00 51 20	NOTICE TO PROCEED
00 61 10	WORK CHANGE DIRECTIVE FORM
00 62 50	NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK
00 64 25	CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
00 91 13	ISSUED ADDENDA
<b>ATTACHMENTS</b>	
ATTACHMENT A	CERTIFICATE OF CORPORATION
ATTACHMENT B	CONTRACTOR QUESTIONNAIRE
ATTACHMENT C	REQUIRED DISCLOSURE
ATTACHMENT D	BIDDER INFORMATION
ATTACHMENT E	EXPERIENCE OF BIDDER
ATTACHMENT F	SWORN STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 287.133(3) (A), FLORIDA STATUTES, ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES
ATTACHMENT G	AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION
ATTACHMENT H	CERTIFICATION OF NON-SEGREGATED FACILITIES
ATTACHMENT I	DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE
ATTACHMENT J	CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT
ATTACHMENT K	COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAW
ATTACHMENT L	AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT AFFIDAVIT
ATTACHMENT M	ADDITIONAL PURCHASING LANGUAGE
ATTACHMENT N	LIST OF LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS
ATTACHMENT O	LIST OF PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS/SUPPLIERS



<b>DIVISION 1 - GENERA</b>	L REQUIREMENTS
01 00 00	GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
01 11 00	SUMMARY OF WORK
01 20 00	PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES
01 29 76	PROGRESSIVE PAYMENT PROCEDURES
01 30 00	ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS
01 31 19	PROJECT MEETINGS
01 32 16	CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDULES
01 32 33	PHOTOGRAPHIC DOCUMENTATIONS
01 33 23	SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA, AND SAMPLES
01 35 13	SPECIAL PROJECT PROCEDURES
01 45 29	TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES
01 50 00	TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS
01 57 13	TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROLS
01 71 13	MOBILIZATIONS
01 77 00	CLOSE OUT PROCEDURES
01 78 33	BONDS
01 78 36	WARRANTIES

PROJECT RECORD DRAWINGS

#### **DIVISION 2 - SITE CONSTRUCTION**

02 41 13.23 UTILITY LINE REMOVAL

#### **DIVISION 3 – CONCRETE**

01 78 39

03 30 00 CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE

#### **DIVISION 31 – EARTHWORK**

31 23 19 DEW	'ATERING
--------------	----------

31 23 33 TRENCHING, BACKFILLING, AND COMPACTING

#### **DIVISION 32 – EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS**

32 10 00 BASES, BALLASTS, AND PAVING

#### **DIVISION 33 – UTILITIES**

33 01 00	OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES
33 01 12	INSPECTION AND TESTING OF WATER UTILITIES
33 14 00	WATER UTILITY TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION

#### **END OF SECTION**

DIVISION 00 TABLE OF CONTENTS Page 3 of 3



## SECTION 00 01 07 CERTIFICATIONS PAGE

## CITY OF FLAGLER BEACH SOUTH CENTRAL WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT CITY PROJECT NO: 2423044 CITY INVITATION TO BID NO: 24-1021

The Technical Specifications are certified as follows:

**Civil Engineer** 

Divisions 1,2,31,32, and 33 Mead & Hunt 4401 Eastport Parkway Port Orange, Florida 32127 Ph. 386-761-6810



The above certification(s) apply to the technical specifications referenced in the preceding technical specifications index only, as listed under each Division indicated above. Additional information provided within the Appendix may contain information prepared by other professionals. These items are not covered under the above registered professionals' signature and seal.

**END OF SECTION** 



## SECTION 00 31 32 GEOTECHNICAL DATA

#### **PART 1 GENERAL**

#### 1.01 Description

The Contractor shall examine the project area and contact the City should it feel site soils and subsurface investigations are necessary to construct the proposed improvements as required by the contract documents.

PART 2 PRODUCTS - Not Used

**PART 3 EXECUTION - Not Used** 

**END OF SECTION** 

DIVISION 00 32 32 GEOTECHNICAL DATA Page 1 of 1



## SECTION 00 01 50 FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT

Bidder acknowledges that he is solely responsible for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act (ACT) and Occupational Safety and Health Administrations excavation safety standard 29 CFR 1926.650.

Bidder further acknowledges that included in the various items of the proposal and in the Total Bid Price are costs for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act (90-96, Laws of Florida) effective October 1, 1990, and the Occupational Safety and Health Administrations excavation safety standard.

Name:	
Authorized Signature:	
Date:	
Title:	

**END OF SECTION** 

**DIVISION 00 01 50** 

FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT



#### CITY OF FLAGLER BEACH



#### ADVERTISEMENT FOR BID NO. 24-1021 CITY OF FLAGLER BEACH SOUTH CENTRAL WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT City Project No. 570

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY OF FLAGER BEACH IS ISSUING THIS INVITATION TO BID (ITB) TO SOLICIT COMPETITIVE SEALED BIDS FROM LICENSED AND INSURED CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF FLAGLER BEACH SOUTH CENTRAL WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT ACCORDING TO THE SCOPE OF WORK SPECIFICATIONS. BIDS WILL BE RECEIVED FOR A SINGLE PRIME CONTRACT. BIDS SHALL BE ON A LUMP SUM AS INDICATED IN THE BID FORM.

IT IS THE INTENT AND PURPOSE OF THE CITY OF FLAGER BEACH THAT THIS INVITATION TO BID (ITB) PROMOTES COMPETITIVE SELECTION. IT IS THE BIDDER'S RESPONSIBILITY TO ADVISE THE FINANCE DIRECTOR IF ANY LANGUAGE, REQUIREMENTS, ETC., OR ANY COMBINATION THEREOF, INADVERTENTLY RESTRICTS OR LIMITS THE REQUIREMENTS STATED IN THIS ITB.

All applicants must be properly licensed and show proof of insurance, licenses, and certificates as required by all local, State of Florida, and Federal agencies. Successful applicants will obtain all required permitting as previously stated.

Interested contractors may secure the, bid forms and other pertinent information by visiting the city website bid page: <a href="http://www.cityofflaglerbeach.com/Bids.aspx.or">http://www.cityofflaglerbeach.com/Bids.aspx.or</a> the website <a href="www.demandstar.com">www.demandstar.com</a> Bid packages also may be obtained by contacting the City Clerk, Penny Overstreet at 386-517-2000 ext. 233 or <a href="mailto:poverstreet@cityofflaglerbeach.com">poverstreet@cityofflaglerbeach.com</a>

For further information, contact: Penny Overstreet, City Clerk

Preferred method of contact email: <a href="mailto:poverstreet@cityofflaglerbeach.com">poverstreet@cityofflaglerbeach.com</a> (386) 517-2000, ext. 233

Sealed Bids must be addressed to the attention of **Penny Overstreet, City Clerk**. Sealed Bids must be received on or before **2:00 pm Thursday, November 14, 2024**.

No bids will be accepted after this deadline.

**DIVISION 00 31 32** 

**ADVERTISEMENT FOR BID** 



Sealed Bids must have the project title and bid number on outside of package. The City of Flagler Beach reserves the right to reject any and all Bids, to award all or segments of the project, and to waive any informality in Bids received, as may be in the best interest of the City.

MAILING ADDRESS: WALK-IN DELIVERY ADDRESS:

105 S 2nd Street 105 S 2<sup>nd</sup> Street

Flagler Beach, FL 32136 Flagler Beach, FL 32136

Date of Distribution: Monday October 21, 2024

Non-Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting: Monday October 28, 2024 @ 10:00 am EST

Last Date of Inquiries: Tuesday November 5, 2024 @ 5:00 pm EST

Last Date for Addenda if Needed: Friday November 8, 2024

BIDS DUE BY: Thursday November 14, 2024 @ 2:00 pm EST, after which time they will

be publicly opened and read aloud.

**END INVITATION TO BID** 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

**DIVISION 00 31 32** 

**ADVERTISEMENT FOR BID** 

Page 2 of 2



Project Name: CITY OF FLAGLER BEACH SOUTH CENTRAL WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT

•	
City Project No.: 570	
Company Name:	
Contact Name:	
E-mail Address:	
Mailing Address:	
Phone Number:	
Fax Number:	
Contractor License Number:	
www.demandstar.com. For technical assistance of the Convia fixed to verify information regarding Addunresponsive. Bidders shall sign, date, an Bidder to ensure he/she obtains information will be without legal effect.	stance with this website, please contact Onvia Services at 1-800-711-DemandStar website at least seven (7) calendar days before the date denda. Failure to do so could result in rejection of the submittal as d return all addenda with their bid. It is the sole responsibility of the on related to Addenda. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications
The following Addenda were received:	
Addendum No	_ Date Received

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

**REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION FORMS** 



The Bidder acknowledges the receipt, execution, and return of the following attachments:

•	Attachment A:	Certificate of Corporation
•	Attachment B:	Contractor Questionnaire
_		
•	Attachment C:	Required Disclosure
•	Attachment D:	Bidder Information
•	Attachment E:	Experience of Bidder
•	Attachment F:	Sworn Statement Under section 287.133(3) (a), Florida Statutes, on Public Entity Crime
•	Attachment G:	Affidavit of Non-Collusion
•	Attachment H:	Certification of Non-Segregated Facilities
•	Attachment I:	Drug-Free Workplace
•	Attachment J:	Conflict of Interest Statement
•	Attachment K:	Compliance with Public Records Law
•	Attachment L:	Americans with Disabilities Act Affidavit
•	Attachment M:	List of Licenses and Certifications
•	Attachment N:	List of Proposed Subcontractors/Suppliers
•	Attachment O:	List of Proposed Equipment
Name:		
Author	ized Signature:	
Date: _		
	·	

#### **ACKNOWLEDGEMENT**

COUNTY OF	
	Signature of Notary Public Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public below:
Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by means of	below.
online notarization OR physical presence	
this day of, 20	
Personally Known OR Produced identification	

**END OF SECTION** 

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

**REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION FORMS** 

Page 2 of 2



#### **REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION FORMS**

#### **ATTACHMENT A**

#### **CERTIFICATE OF CORPORATION**

Please include a copy of your Certificate of Corporation from the State of Florida with this attachment.

STATE OF FLORIDA	
COUNTY OF	
I HEREBY CERTIFY that a meeting of the Board of Directors of a corporation under the laws	
"RESOLVED, thatasPres	ident of the
corporation is hereby authorized to execute the Contract dated, 20	, between The
City of Flagler Beach, a municipal corporation and this corporation, and that execution thereof,	attested by the
Secretary of the corporation and with corporate seal affixed, shall be the official act and deed of th	is corporation."
I further certify that said resolution is now in full force and effect.	
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the corporation	
This day of , 20	
Corporate Secretary	_

#### **END OF ATTACHMENT A**

DIVISION 00 11 53 ATTACHMENT A Page 1 of 1



#### **ATTACHMENT B**

#### **CONTRACTOR QUESTIONNAIRE**

	DATE:		
	NAME OF BIDDER:		
	BUSINESS ADDRESS:		
	PHONE NUMBER:		
	CONTRACTOR'S FL LICENSE #:		
	EXPIRATION DATE:		
	The undersigned warrants the truth and a additional sheets as necessary.	occuracy of all statements and answers herein contained. Inclu	de
1.	1. How many years has your organization been i	n business as a General Contractor?	
	-		
	2. How many years has your organization	n been in business as a Subcontractor?	
	3. Name of Superintendent and length of	f time with your company?	

DIVISION 00 11 53 ATTACHMENT B Page 1 of 3



4. Describe in detail and give the date and owner, including phone numbers and contact person(s), of the last five (5) projects that you have completed similar in type, size, and nature as the project proposed?
5. Have you ever failed, or been alleged to have failed, to complete work awarded to you? If so, please list the project and explain the reasons why?
6. Have you ever failed, or been alleged to have failed, to complete work within the Contract Time? If so, please list the project and explain the reasons why?
7. Have you ever been assessed liquidated damages, or had liquidated damages assessed against you? If so, please list the project and explain the reasons why?
8. Have you ever had a bond or letter of credit called by the owner of a project? If so, when?

DIVISION 00 11 53 ATTACHMENT B Page 2 of 3



9. Have you personally inspected the site of the proposed Work? Describe, in full, any anticipated problems with the site and your proposed solutions?
Bidder Name:
Signature:
Title:
Attach the corporate information sheet from the Florida Department of State, Division of Corporation's web site.
web site.
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF
Signature of Notary Public Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public below:
Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by means of
online notarization OR physical presence
this day of, 20
Personally Known OR Produced identification
Type of Identification Produced:

#### **END OF ATTACHMENT B**

DIVISION 00 11 53 ATTACHMENT B Page 3 of 3



#### **ATTACHMENT C**

#### **REQUIRED DISCLOSURE**

The following disclosure is of all material facts pertaining to any felony conviction or charges in the last three (3) years in this State or any other state of the United States ag (2) any business entity related to or affiliated with the Bidder or (3) any present or f Bidder or of any such related or affiliated entity. This disclosure shall not apply to a which is only a stockholder, which person or entity owns twenty percent (20%) or less shares of the Bidder whose stock is publicly owned and traded:	ainst (1) the Bidder, ormer owner of the any person or entity
Bidder Name:	
Signature:	
Title:	
Date:	

DIVISION 00 11 53 ATTACHMENT C Page 1 of 1

**END OF ATTACHMENT C** 



#### ATTACHMENT D BIDDER INFORMATION

List the full legal name of each officer of the Corporation.

President:	
Signature:	_Date:
Vice-President:	
Signature:	_Date:
Secretary:	
Signature:	_Date:
Treasurer:	
Signature:	_Date:
List the Corporate Officer that will sign the contract: _	

**END OF ATTACHMENT D** 

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

**BIDDERS' INFORMATION** 



## ATTACHMENT E EXPERIENCE OF BIDDER

Bidder Name:	
Authorized Signature:	_Date:
Is your company currently involved in any active litigation?Yes	No
If Yes, explain:	
Has your company ever been sued?YesNo	
If Yes, explain and/or submit court decision or judgment, as applicable	e:
	-

The Bidder must demonstrate the successful completion of three (3) projects of similar complexity, nature, size, and dollar amount of lift stations rehabilitations or new installations. Any material misrepresentation, as determined by the City of Flagler Beach, shall result in disqualification.

On the following pages, provide the requested information regarding experience within the past five (5) years on three (3) projects as listed above. These projects must include replacement of potable water main via open cut installation method with corresponding abandonments of the existing water main.

DIVISION 00 11 53 BIDDERS' EXPERIENCE Page 1 of 4



REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

DIVISION 00 11 53 BIDDERS' EXPERIENCE Page 2 of 4



Project #2:
Contract Date:
Contract Amount: \$
Project Name:
Project Location:
General Scope of Work:
Client Name and Address:
Client Contact Phone:
Client Contact Email:
Was the project completed on schedule?YesNo
Total Amount of Change Orders: \$
Reasons for Change Orders:

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

DIVISION 00 11 53 BIDDERS' EXPERIENCE Page 3 of 4



Project #3:
Contract Date:
Contract Amount: \$
Project Name:
Project Location:
General Scope of Work:
Client Name and Address:
Client Contact Phone:
Client Contact Email:
Was the project completed on schedule?YesNo
Total Amount of Change Orders: \$
Reasons for Change Orders:

#### **END OF ATTACHMENT E**

DIVISION 00 11 53 BIDDERS' EXPERIENCE Page 4 of 4



#### SWORN STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 287.133(3) (a), FLORIDA STATUTES, ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.

This sworn statement is submitted to: **The City of Flagler Beach** (Public entity)

Ву:
(Individual's name and title)
For:
(Name of entity submitting sworn statement)
Whose business address is:
writiose business address is.
Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN):
(If the entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the individual signing this sworn
statement)

- 1. I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Section 287.133(1)(g), Florida Statutes, means a violation of any State or Federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any other state or with the United States, including, but not limited to, any bid or contract for goods or services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States and involving antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.
- 2. I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1) (b), Florida Statutes, means a finding of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crimes, with or without an adjudication of guilt, in any Federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, non-jury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.

DIVISION 00 11 53 SWORN STATEMENT Page 1 of 3



- I understand that an "affiliate" as defined in Section 287.133(1)(a), Florida Statutes, means: A 3. predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime: or an entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and how has been convicted of a public entity crime. The term "affiliate" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of an affiliate. The ownership by one (1) person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value under an arm's length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one person controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the preceding thirty-six (36) months shall be considered an affiliate.
  - 4. I understand that a "person" as defined in Section 287.133(1) (e), Florida Statutes, means any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity. The term "person" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in management of an entity.

Based on information and belief, the statement which I have marked below is true in relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. (Indicate which statement applies.)

ng this sworn statement, nor any officers, direc	ctors,
embers, or agent who is active in management c	of the
charged with and convicted of a public entity of	crime
sworn statement, or one or more of the offi	icers,
mployees, members, or agents who are activ	ve in
ntity, has been charged with and convicted of a p	ublic
sworn statement, or one or more of the offi	icers,
mployees, members, or agents who are activ	ve in
ntity, has been charged with and convicted of a p	ublic
•	embers, or agent who is active in management of charged with and convicted of a public entity of sworn statement, or one or more of the offi mployees, members, or agents who are activately, has been charged with and convicted of a public entity, has been charged with and convicted of a public entity, has been charged with and convicted of a public entity, has been charged with and convicted of a public entity of the offi mployees, members, or agents who are activated to the charged with an activate entity of the offi mployees, members, or agents who are activated to the charged with an activate entity of the offi mployees, members, or agents who are activated to the charged with an activate entity of the offi mployees, members, or agents who are activated to the charged with an activate entity of the offi mployees, members, or agents who are activated to the charged with an activated entity of the offi mployees, members, or agents who are activated to the charged with an activated entity of the offi mployees, members, or agents who are activated entity of the offi mployees, members, or agents who are activated entity of the offi mployees, members, or agents who are activated entity of the offi mployees.

Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Administrative Law Jury **BIDDERS' EXPERIENCE** 

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

However, there has been a subsequent proceeding before an Administrative Law Jury of the State of

Page 2 of 3



determined that it was not in the public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn statement on the convicted vendor list. (Attach a copy of the final order.)

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CITY OF FLAGLER IS FOR THE CITY ONLY AND, THAT THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31, OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED. I ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE CITY PRIOR TO ENTERING IN TO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017, FLORIDA STATUES, FOR CATEGORY TWO OF ANY CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS FORM.

Signature:

Date:	
State of:	
County of:	
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	
STATE OF FLORIDA	
COUNTY OF	
	Signature of Notary Public Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public below:
Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by means of	200
online notarization OR physical presence	
this day of, 20	
Personally Known OR Produced identification	
Type of Identification Produced:	

**END OF ATTACHMENT F** 

DIVISION 00 11 53 BIDDERS' EXPERIENCE Page 3 of 3



#### ATTACHMENT G AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION

The undersigned bidder or agent, being duly sworn on oath, says that he/she has not, nor has any other member, representative, or agent of the firm, company, corporation or partnership represented by him, entered into any combination, collusion or agreement with any person relative to the price to be bid by anyone at such letting nor to prevent any person from bidding nor to include anyone to refrain from bidding, and that this bid is made without reference to any other bid and without any agreement, understanding or combination with any other person in reference to such bidding. He/She further says that no person or persons, firms, or corporation has, have, or will receive directly or indirectly, any rebate, free gift, commission, or thing of value on account of such sale.

#### **OATH AND AFFIRMATION**

I HEREBY AFFIRM UNDER THE PENALTIES FOR PERJURY CONTAINED IN THE FOREGOING BID FOR PUBLIC WORK	
Dated thisday of	, 20
(Bidder Name)	
(Title)	
(Signature)	
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	
STATE OF FLORIDA	
COUNTY OF	
	Signature of Notary Public Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public below:
Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by means of	20011.
online notarization OR physical presence	
this, 20	
Personally Known OR Produced identification	
Type of Identification Produced:	

**END OF ATTACHMENT G** 

DIVISION 00 11 53 NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT



## ATTACHMENT H CERTIFICATION OF NON-SEGREGATED FACILITIES

The Bidder certifies that they do not maintain or provide for their employees any segregated facilities at any of his establishments, and that they do not permit their employees to perform their services at any location, under their control, where segregated facilities are maintained. The Bidder certifies further that they will not maintain or provide for their employees any segregated facilities at any location under their control where segregated facilities are maintained. The Bidder agrees that a breach of this certification will be a violation of the Equal Opportunity clause in any contract resulting from acceptance of this Bid. As used in this certification, the term "segregated facilities" means any waiting rooms, work areas, restrooms and washrooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage and dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment area, transportation and housing facilities provided for employees which are segregated by explicit directive, or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, color, religious disability or national origin, because of habit, local custom, or otherwise. The Bidder agrees that (except where they have obtained identical certifications from proposed subcontractors for specific time periods) they will obtain identical certifications from proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts exceeding \$10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity clause, and that he will retain such certifications in his files.

The nondiscriminatory guidelines as promulgated in Section 202, Executive Order 11246, and as amended by Executive Order 11375 and as amended, relative to Equal Opportunity for all persons and implementations of rules and regulations prescribed by the United States Secretary of Labor are incorporated herein.

	END OF ATTACHMENT H	
Title:		
Date:		
Signature:		
Name:		

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

NON-SEGREGATED FACILITIES CERTIFICATE



#### ATTACHMENT I DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

Tha	undersigned	vendor in a	ccordance with	Florida St	tatuta 287	087 harahy	cartifies that
me	unuersigneu	venuoi iii a	ccordance with	riui iua si	latute 207.	uo/ nereby	cerunes mai

does hereby: (Name of **Business**) 1. Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition. 2. Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations. 3. Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are proposed a copy of the statement specified in subsection (1). 4. In the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employees that, as a condition of working on the commodities or contractual services that are under proposal, the employee will propose by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contender to, any violation of Chapter 893, Florida Statutes, or of any controlled substance law of the United States or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction. 5. Impose a sanction on or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee's community, by any employee who is so convicted. 6. Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of the matters set forth above. As the person authorized to sign the statement, I certify that this firm complies fully with the above requirements.

**END OF ATTACHMENT I** 

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Title: \_\_\_\_\_

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

**DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE** 



#### ATTACHMENT J CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT

•	m the of with a lo
	fice in and principal office in
	ne above-named entity is submitting an Expression of Interest for the City of Flagler Beach projections as bid number
	ne Affiant has made diligent inquiry and provides the information contained in this Affidavit ba oon his own knowledge.
	ne Affiant states that only one submittal for the above project is being submitted and that the pove-named entity has no financial interest in other entities submitting proposals for the same oject.
	either the Affiant nor the above-named entity has directly or indirectly entered into a greement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of from peritive pricing in connection with the entity's submittal for the above project. This statement is the discussion of pricing data until the completion of negotiations and execution of the greement for this project.
	either the entity nor its affiliates, nor anyone associated with them, is presently suspended or herwise ineligible from participating in contract lettings by any local, state, or federal agency.
	either the entity, nor its affiliates, nor anyone associated with them have any potential conflic terest due to any other clients, contracts, or property interests for this project.
١.	ertify that no member of the entity's ownership, management, or staff has a vested interest in pect of or Department of the City of Flagler Beach.
	ertify that no member of the entity's ownership or management is presently applying for an applying the second sec
0.	the event that a conflict of interest is identified in the provision of services, I, on behalf of the pove-named entity, will immediately notify the City of Flagler Beach in writing.

Section continued on next page

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

**CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT** 



#### **ACKNOWLEDGEMENT**

COUNTY OF	
	Signature of Notary Public Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public below:
Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by means of	
online notarization OR physical presence	
this, 20	
Personally Known OR Produced identification	

#### **END OF ATTACHMENT J**

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

**CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT** 

Page 2 of 2



## ATTACHMENT K COMPLIANCE WITH THE PUBLIC RECORDS LAW

Upon award recommendation or thirty (30) days after receiving submittals, they become "public records" and shall be subject to public disclosure consistent with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. Proposers must invoke the exemptions to disclosure provided by law in the response to the solicitation and must identify the data or other materials to be protected and must state the reasons why such exclusion from public disclosure is necessary.

If the company submits information exempt from public disclosure, the company must identify with specificity which pages/paragraphs of their bid/proposal package are exempt from the Public Records Act, identifying the specific exemption section that applies to each. The protected information must be submitted to the City of Flagler Beach in a separate envelope marked accordingly.

Company Name:
Authorized representative Printed Name:
Authorized Representative Signature:
Authorized Representative Signature.
Data
Date:

**END OF ATTACHMENT K** 

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

PUBLIC RECORD COMPLIANCE



## ATTACHMENT L AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT AFFIDAVIT

The undersigned CONTRACTOR swears that the information herein contained is true and correct and that none of the information supplied was for the purpose of defrauding the CITY.

The CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of physical or mental handicap in regard to any position for which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified. The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with the rules, regulations and relevant orders issued pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 42 USC s. 12101 et seq. It is understood that in no event shall the CITY be held liable for the actions or omissions of the CONTRACTOR or any other party or parties to the Agreement for failure to comply with the ADA. The CONTRACTOR agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the CITY, its agents, officers, or employees from any and all claims, demands, debts, liabilities or causes of action of every kind or character, whether in law or equity, resulting from the CONTRACTOR's acts or omissions in connection with the ADA.

Authorized Signature:		
Date:		
Title:		
Affix Corporate Seal:		
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT		
STATE OF FLORIDA  COUNTY OF  Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by means of online notarization OR physical presence  this day of	Signature of Notary Public Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned below:	d Name of Notary Public

**END OF ATTACHMENT L** 

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

Name:

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT AFFIDAVIT



#### **REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION FORMS**

## ATTACHMENT M ADDITIONAL PROCUREMENT CLAUSES

#### **TERMINATION FOR CAUSE AND CONVENIENCE**

- 1. Contractor shall be considered in material default of the Agreement and such default shall be considered cause for the City to terminate the Agreement, in whole or in part, as further set forth in this Section 17, if Contractor: (i) fails to begin the Work under the Contract Documents within the time specified herein; (ii) fails to properly and timely perform the Work as directed by the City or as provided for in the approved Progress Schedule; (iii) performs the Work unsuitably or neglects or refuses to remove materials or to correct or replace such Work as may be rejected as unacceptable or unsuitable; (iv) discontinues the prosecution of the Work; (v) fails to resume Work which has been suspended within a reasonable time after being notified to resume Work; (vi) becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt, or commits any act of bankruptcy; (vii) allows any final judgment to stand against it unsatisfied for more than ten (10) days; (viii) makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (ix) fails to obey any applicable codes, laws, ordinances, rules or regulations with respect to the Work; and/or (x) materially breaches any other provision of the Contract Documents.
- 2. City shall notify Contractor in writing of Contractor's default(s). If the City determines that Contractor has not remedied and cured the default(s) within seven (7) calendar days following receipt by Contractor of said written notice, then the City, at its option, without releasing or waiving its rights and remedies against the Contractor's sureties and without prejudice to any other right or remedy it may be entitled to hereunder or by law, may terminate all or any portion of the Work and any materials, tools, equipment, and appliances of Contractor, take assignments of any of Contractor's subcontracts and purchase orders, and complete all or any portion of Contractor's Work by whatever means, method or agency which the City, in its sole discretion, may choose.
- 3. If the City deems any of the foregoing remedies necessary, Contractor agrees that it shall not be entitled to receive any further payments hereunder until after the Project is completed. All monies expended and all of the costs, losses, damages, and extra expenses, including all management, administrative and other overhead and other direct and indirect expenses (including attorneys' fees) or damages incurred by the City incident to such completion, shall be deducted from the Contract Amount, and if such expenditures exceed the unpaid balance of the Contract Amount, Contractor agrees to pay promptly to City, on demand, the full amount of such excess, including costs of collection, attorneys' fee (including appeals) and interest thereon at the maximum legal rate of interest until paid. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Amount exceeds all such costs, expenditures and damages incurred by the City to complete the Work, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. The amount to be paid to the Contractor or the City, as the case may be, and this obligation for payment shall survive termination of the Agreement.
- 4. The liability of Contractor hereunder shall extend to and include the full amount of any and all sums paid, expenses and losses incurred, damages sustained, and obligations assumed by the City in good faith under the belief that such payments or assumptions were necessary or required, in completing the Work and providing labor, materials, equipment, supplies, and other items therefore or re-letting the Work, in settlement, discharge or compromise of any claims, demands, suits and judgments pertaining to or arising out of the Work hereunder.

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

**ADDITIONAL PROCUREMENT CLAUSES** 



5. If, after notice of termination of Contractor's right to proceed pursuant to this Section 17, it is determined for any reason that Contractor was not in default, or that its default was excusable, or that the City is not entitled to the remedies against Contractor provided herein, then Contractor's remedies against the City shall be the same as and

limited to those afforded Contractor below under Subsection 18.1, below, regarding termination of the Agreement for convenience.

#### **BUILD AMERICA BUY AMERICA ACT (BABAA)**

The Office of Management and Budget (OMB) has revised its guidance in Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations (2 CFR) to add a new part 184 and revise 2 CFR § 200.322. The new part 184 provides guidance to federal agencies on how to apply the domestic content procurement preference as set forth in the Build America, Buy America Act (BABAA) to federal financial assistance for infrastructure projects.

The revised provision in 2 CFR § 200.322 specifies that federal agencies providing federal financial assistance for infrastructure projects must implement the BABAA requirements set forth in <u>2 CFR part 184</u>. This link's URL is <a href="https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-l/part-184">https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-l/part-184</a>.

#### **DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION**

- 1. The City shall have the right to terminate the Agreement without cause upon seven (7) calendar days written notice to Contractor. In the event of such termination for convenience, Contractor's recovery against City shall be limited to (i) that portion of the Contract Amount earned through the date of termination; (ii) any retainage withheld up to the date of termination, and (iii) actual out-of-pocket costs arising directly and solely from termination of this Agreement not to exceed under any circumstance five percent (5%) of that portion of the Contract Amount earned through the date of termination. Contractor shall not be entitled to any other or further recovery against the City, including, but not limited to, damages or any anticipated profit on portions of the Work not performed.
- 2. The City shall have the right to suspend all or any portions of the Work upon giving Contractor two (2) calendar days' prior written notice of such suspension. If all or any portion of the Work is so suspended, Contractor's sole and exclusive remedy shall be to seek an extension of time to its schedule in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Contract Documents. In no event shall the Contractor be entitled to any additional compensation or damages. Provided, however, if the ordered suspension exceeds three (3) months, the Contractor shall have the right to terminate the Agreement with respect to that portion of the Work which is subject to the ordered suspension.

#### BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of more than \$100,000 shall file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used federally appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the certification(s) to the federal awarding agency."

#### **CERTIFICATION**

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or



employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, Title 31, U.S.C. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure."

"The Contractor, CPH, LLC, certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38, Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements, apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

# **Prohibition on Contracting for Covered Telecommunications Equipment or Services**

(a) *Definitions*. As used in this clause, the terms backhaul; covered foreign country; covered telecommunications equipment or services; interconnection arrangements; roaming; substantial or essential component; and telecommunications equipment or services have the meaning as defined in FEMA Policy 405-143-1, Prohibitions on Expending FEMA Award Funds for Covered Telecommunications Equipment or Services (Interim), as used in this clause—

# (b) Prohibitions.

- (1) Section 889(b) of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2019, Pub. L. No. 115-232, and 2 C.F.R. § 200.216 prohibit the head of an executive agency on or after Aug.13, 2020, from obligating or expending grant, cooperative agreement, loan, or loan guarantee funds on certain telecommunications products or from certain entities for national security reasons.
- (2) Unless an exception in paragraph (c) of this clause applies, the contractor and its subcontractors may not use grant, cooperative agreement, loan, or loan guarantee funds from the Federal Emergency Management Agency to:
- (i) Procure or obtain any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology of any system;

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

**ADDITIONAL PROCUREMENT CLAUSES** 

Page 2 of 5



- (ii) Enter into, extend, or renew a contract to procure or obtain any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology of any system;
- (iii) Enter into, extend, or renew contracts with entities that use covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system; or
- (iv) Provide, as part of its performance of this contract, subcontract, or other contractual instrument, any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.
- (c) Exceptions.
- (1) This clause does not prohibit contractors from providing—
- (i) A service that connects to the facilities of a third-party, such as backhaul, roaming, or interconnection arrangements; or
- (ii) Telecommunications equipment that cannot route or redirect user data traffic or permit visibility into any user data or packets that such equipment transmits or otherwise handles.
- (2) By necessary implication and regulation, the prohibitions also do not apply to:
- (i) Covered telecommunications equipment or services that: i. Are *not used* as a substantial or essential component of any system; *and*
- (ii). Are *not used* as critical technology of any system.
- (lii) Other telecommunications equipment or services that are not considered covered telecommunications equipment or services.
- (d) Reporting requirement.
- (1) In the event the contractor identifies covered telecommunications equipment or services used as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system, during contract performance, or the contractor is notified of such by a subcontractor at any tier or by any other source, the contractor shall report the information in paragraph (d)(2) of this clause to the recipient or subrecipient, unless elsewhere in this contract are established procedures for reporting the information.
- (2) The Contractor shall report the following information pursuant to paragraph (d)(1) of this clause: (i) Within one business day from the date of such identification or notification: The contract number; the order number(s), if applicable; supplier name; supplier unique entity identifier (if known); supplier Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) code (if known); brand; model number (original equipment manufacturer number, manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number); item description; and any readily available information about mitigation actions undertaken or recommended.

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

Page 3 of 5



(ii) Within 10 business days of submitting the information in paragraph (d)(2)(i) of this clause: Any further available information about mitigation actions undertaken or recommended. In addition, the contractor shall describe the efforts it undertook to prevent use or submission of covered telecommunications equipment or services, and any additional efforts that will be incorporated to prevent future use or submission of covered telecommunications equipment or services.

## (e) Subcontracts.

The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (e), in all subcontracts and other contractual instruments."

#### **Domestic Preferences for Procurements**

As appropriate, and to the extent consistent with law, the contractor should, to the greatest extent practicable, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States. This includes, but is not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products.

## For purposes of this clause:

*Produced in the United States* means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States.

Manufactured products mean items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber."

Copyright and Data Rights

The Contractor grants to the City of Flagler Beach, a paid-up, royalty-free, nonexclusive, irrevocable, worldwide license in data first produced in the performance of this contract to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, including prepare derivative works, distribute copies to the public, and perform publicly and display publicly such data. For data required by the contract but not first produced in the performance of this contract, the Contractor will identify such data and grant to the City of Flagler Beach or acquires on its behalf a license of the same scope as for data first produced in the performance of this contract. Data, as used herein, shall include any work subject to copyright under 17 U.S.C. § 102, for example, any written reports or literary works, software and/or source code, music, choreography, pictures or images, graphics, sculptures, videos, motion pictures or other audiovisual works, sound and/or video recordings, and architectural works. Upon or before the completion of this contract, the Contractor will deliver to the City of Flagler Beach data first produced in the performance of this contract and data required by the contract but not first produced in the performance of this contract in formats acceptable by the City of Flagler Beach.

#### **END OF ATTACHMENT M**

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

ADDITIONAL PROCUREMENT CLAUSES

Page 5 of 5



# **REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION FORMS**

# ATTACHMENT N LIST OF PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS/SUPPLIERS

All subcontractors and major materials suppliers are subject to approval of Owner. In the table below, list all subcontractors and manufacturers of materials and/or equipment that are proposed to be utilized by the Contractor in the performance of this work. Use additional sheets as necessary.

Company Name	Description	Contact Name, Phone, and Email

**END OF ATTACHMENT N** 

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

**SUBCONTRACTORS & SUPPLIERS LIST** 

Page 1 of 1



# SECTION 00 11 53 REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION FORMS ATTACHMENT O LIST OF LICENSES and CERTIFICATIONS

License/Cert. Name	Number	Issuing Authority	Expiration Date

**END OF ATTACHMENT O** 

**DIVISION 00 11 53** 

**LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS LIST** 

Page 1 of 1



# SECTION 00 21 13 I INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page	
Article 1 – Defined Terms	1
Article 2 – Copies of Bidding Documents	1
Article 3 – Qualifications of Bidders	1
Article 4 – Site and Other Areas; Existing Site Conditions; Examination of Site; Owner's Safety Program; Other Work at the Site	2
Article 5 – Bidder's Representations	4
Article 6 – Pre-Bid Conference	5
Article 7 – Interpretations and Addenda	5
Article 8 – Bid Security	5
Article 9 – Contract Times	6
Article 10 – Liquidated Damages	6
Article 11 – Substitute and "Or-Equal" Items	6
Article 12 – Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others	6
Article 13 – Preparation of Bid	7
Article 14 – Basis of Bid	8
Article 15 – Submittal of Bid	8
Article 16 – Modification and Withdrawal of Bid	8
Article 17 – Opening of Bids	9
Article 18 – Bids to Remain Subject to Acceptance	9
Article 19 – Evaluation of Bids and Award of Contract	9
Article 20 – Bonds and Insurance	10
Article 21 – Signing of Agreement	10
Article 22 – Alien Workers	11

**DIVISION 00 21 13** 

**INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS** 

Page i of i



#### **ARTICLE 1 – DEFINED TERMS**

- 1.01 Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions and Supplementary Conditions. Additional terms used in these Instructions to Bidders have the meanings indicated below:
  - A. Issuing Office The office from which the Bidding Documents are to be issued.

#### NOTE(S) TO USER:

- 1. In addition to terms specifically defined, terms with initial capital letters in the Bidding Requirements include references to identified articles and paragraphs, and the titles of other documents or forms.
- 2. Additional defined terms applicable to the Bidding Requirements should be included here and should be used uniformly throughout the Bidding Requirements with initial capitals. Additional defined terms applicable to the Contract Documents should be included in the Supplementary Conditions. Note the difference in the meanings of the terms "Bidding Requirements" and "Bidding Documents," as defined in the General Conditions, Paragraph 1.01.A.
- 3. It is strongly recommended that the Issuing Office be identified in the invitation to bid or advertisement. See EJCDC® C-111, Suggested Advertisement for Bids for Construction Contracts. If not, it should be identified in these Instructions.

#### ARTICLE 2 - COPIES OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS

- 2.01 Complete sets of the Bidding Documents may be obtained from the Issuing Office as stated in the advertisement or invitation to bid.
- 2.02 Complete sets of Bidding Documents shall be used in preparing Bids; neither Owner nor Engineer assumes any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete sets of Bidding Documents.
- 2.03 Owner and Engineer, in making copies of Bidding Documents available on the above terms, do so only for the purpose of obtaining Bids for the Work and do not authorize or confer a license for any other use.

# ARTICLE 3 – QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS

- 3.01 To demonstrate Bidder's qualifications to perform the Work, Bidder shall submit all qualification forms listed below which are included in the bid documents:
  - A. Attachment A Certificate of Corporation
  - B. Attachment B Contractor Questionnaire
  - C. Attachment C Required Disclosure
  - D. Attachment D Bidder Information

Section 00 21 13

**INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS** 

Page 1 of 11



- E. Attachment E Experience of Bidder
- F. Attachment F Sworn Statement Under Section 287.133(3) (A), Florida Statutes, on Public Entity Crimes
- G. Attachment G Affidavit of Non-Collusion
- H. Attachment H Certification of Non-Segregated Facilities
- I. Attachment I Drug-Free Workplace
- J. Attachment J Conflict of Interest Statement
- K. Attachment K Compliance with Public Records Law
- L. Attachment L Americans with Disabilities Act Affidavit
- M. Attachment M List of Licenses and Certifications
- N. Attachment N List of Proposed Subcontractors/Suppliers
- O. Attachment O List of Proposed Equipment
- 3.02 A Bidder's failure to submit required qualification information shall disqualify Bidder from receiving an award of the Contract.
- 3.03 No requirement in this Article 3 to submit information will prejudice the right of Owner to seek additional pertinent information regarding Bidder's qualifications.
- 3.04 Bidder is advised to carefully review those portions of the Bid Form requiring Bidder's representations and certifications.

# ARTICLE 4 – SITE AND OTHER AREAS; EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS; EXAMINATION OF SITE; OWNER'S SAFETY PROGRAM: OTHER WORK AT THE SITE

- 4.01 Site and Other Areas
  - A. The Site is identified in the Bidding Documents. By definition, the Site includes rights-of-way, easements, and other lands furnished by Owner for the use of the Contractor. Any additional lands required for temporary construction facilities, construction equipment, or storage of materials and equipment, and any access needed for such additional lands, are to be obtained and paid for by Contractor.
- 4.02 Existing Site Conditions
  - A. Subsurface and Physical Conditions; Hazardous Environmental Conditions
    - 1. The Supplementary Conditions identify:
      - a. those reports known to Owner of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site.
      - b. those drawings known to Owner of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities).
      - c. reports and drawings known to Owner relating to Hazardous Environmental



Conditions that have been identified at or adjacent to the Site.

- d. Technical Data contained in such reports and drawings.
- 2. The Technical Data contained therein upon whose accuracy Bidder is entitled to rely, as provided in the General Conditions, has been identified and established in the Supplementary Conditions. Bidder is responsible for any interpretation or conclusion Bidder draws from any Technical Data or any other data, interpretations, opinions, or information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings. If the Supplementary Conditions do not identify Technical Data, the default definition Technical Data set forth in Article 1 of the General Conditions will apply.
- 3. Geotechnical Baseline Report: The Bidding Documents contain a Geotechnical Baseline Report (GBR). The GBR describes certain select subsurface conditions that are anticipated to be encountered by Contractor during construction in specified locations ("Baseline Conditions"). The GBR is a Contract Document.

The Baseline Conditions in the GBR are intended to reduce uncertainty and the degree of contingency in submitted Bids. However, Bidders cannot rely solely on the Baseline Conditions. Bids should be based on a comprehensive approach that includes an independent review and analysis of the GBR, all other Contract Documents, Technical Data, other available information, and observable surface conditions. Not all potential subsurface conditions are baselined.

Nothing in the GBR is intended to relieve Bidders of the responsibility to make their own determinations regarding construction costs, bidding strategies, and Bid prices, nor of the responsibility to select and be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, and for safety precautions and programs incident thereto.

- B. Underground Facilities: Information and data shown or indicated in the Bidding Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or adjacent to the Site are set forth in the Contract Documents and are based upon information and data furnished to Owner and Engineer by owners of such Underground Facilities, including Owner, or others.
- C. Adequacy of Data: Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data furnished to prospective Bidders with respect to subsurface conditions, other physical conditions, and Underground Facilities, and possible changes in the Bidding Documents due to differing or unanticipated subsurface or physical conditions appear in Paragraphs 5.03, 5.04, and 5.05 of the General Conditions. Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data furnished to prospective Bidders with respect to a Hazardous Environmental Condition at the Site, if any, and possible changes in the Contract Documents due to any Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site which was not shown or indicated in the Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract Documents to be within the scope of the Work, appear in Paragraph 5.06 of the General Conditions.
- 4.03 Site Visit and Testing by Bidders
  - A. Bidder shall conduct the required Site visit during normal working hours and shall not disturb any ongoing operations at the Site.



- B. Bidder is not required to conduct any subsurface testing, or exhaustive investigations of Site conditions.
- C. On request, and to the extent Owner has control over the Site, and schedule permitting, the Owner will provide Bidder access to the Site to conduct such additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, and studies as Bidder deems necessary for preparing and submitting a successful Bid. Owner will not have any obligation to grant such access if doing so is not practical because of existing operations, security or safety concerns, or restraints on Owner's authority regarding the Site.
- D. Bidder shall comply with all applicable Laws and Regulations regarding excavation and location of utilities, obtain all permits, and comply with all terms and conditions established by Owner or by property owners or other entities controlling the Site with respect to schedule, access, existing operations, security, liability insurance, and applicable safety programs.
- E. Bidder shall fill all holes, clean up, and restore the Site to its former condition upon completion of such explorations, investigations, tests, and studies.

# 4.04 Owner's Safety Program

A. Site visits and work at the Site may be governed by an Owner safety program. As the General Conditions indicate, if an Owner safety program exists, it will be noted in the Supplementary Conditions.

#### 4.05 Other Work at the Site

A. Reference is made to Article 8 of the Supplementary Conditions for the identification of the general nature of other work of which Owner is aware (if any) that is to be performed at the Site by Owner or others (such as utilities and other prime contractors) and relates to the Work contemplated by these Bidding Documents. If Owner is party to a written contract for such other work, then on request, Owner will provide to each Bidder access to examine such contracts (other than portions thereof related to price and other confidential matters), if any.

#### ARTICLE 5 – BIDDER'S REPRESENTATIONS

- 5.01 It is the responsibility of each Bidder before submitting a Bid to:
  - A. examine and carefully study the Bidding Documents, and any data and reference items identified in the Bidding Documents;
  - B. visit the Site, conduct a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and satisfy itself as to the general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work;
  - C. become familiar with and satisfy itself as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work;
  - D. carefully study all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings, and (2) reports and drawings

Section 00 21 13



relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings;

E. consider the information known to Bidder itself; information commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Bidding Documents; and the Site-related reports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the effect of such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder; and (3) Bidder's safety precautions and programs;

agree, based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, that at the time of submitting its Bid no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the determination of its Bid for performance of the Work at the price bid and within the times required, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents;

- F. become aware of the general nature of the work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents;
- G. promptly give Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Bidder discovers in the Bidding Documents and confirm that the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder;
- H. determine that the Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for the performance and furnishing of the Work; and
- agree that the submission of a Bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that Bidder has complied with every requirement of this Article, that without exception the Bid and all prices in the Bid are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Bidding Documents.

#### **ARTICLE 6 – PRE-BID CONFERENCE**

6.01 There will be a Non-Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting on Monday October 28, 2024 at 10:00 am eastern standard time. Meeting to be held at City Hall Commission Chambers

105 S. Second Street Flagler Beach, FL 32136

#### ARTICLE 7 – INTERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA

7.01 All questions about the meaning or intent of the Bidding Documents are to be submitted to the City Clerk's office in writing (via email):

**Penny Overstreet** 

Email: <a href="mailto:poverstreet@cityofflaglerbeach.com">poverstreet@cityofflaglerbeach.com</a>

Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary in response to such questions will be issued by



Addenda delivered to all parties recorded as having received the Bidding Documents. The last day to submit questions is **Tuesday November 5**, **2024 by 5:00 pm EST**. Questions received after that date and time may not be answered. Only questions answered by Addenda will be binding. Oral, emailed, and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect.

7.02 Addenda may be issued to clarify, correct, supplement, or change the Bidding Documents.

#### **ARTICLE 8 – BID SECURITY**

- A Bid must be accompanied by Bid security made payable to Owner in an amount of five (5) percent of Bidder's maximum Bid price (determined by adding the base bid and all alternates) and in the form of a certified check, bank money order, or a Bid bond (on the form included in the Bidding Documents) issued by a surety meeting the requirements of Paragraphs 6.01 and 6.02 of the General Conditions.
- 8.02 The Bid security of the apparent Successful Bidder will be retained until Owner awards the contract to such Bidder, and such Bidder has executed the Contract Documents, furnished the required contract security and met the other conditions of the Notice of Award, whereupon the Bid security will be released. If the Successful Bidder fails to execute and deliver the Contract Documents and furnish the required contract security within 15 days after the Notice of Award, Owner may consider Bidder to be in default, annul the Notice of Award, and the Bid security of that Bidder will be forfeited. Such forfeiture shall be Owner's exclusive remedy if Bidder defaults.
- 8.03 The Bid security of other Bidders that Owner believes to have a reasonable chance of receiving the award may be retained by Owner until the earlier of seven days after the Effective Date of the Contract or 61 days after the Bid opening, whereupon Bid security furnished by such Bidders will be released.
- 8.04 Bid security of other Bidders that Owner believes do not have a reasonable chance of receiving the award will be released within seven days after the Bid opening.

# **ARTICLE 9 – CONTRACT TIMES**

9.01 The number of days within which, or the dates by which the Work is to be substantially completed, and completed and ready for final payment, are set forth in the Agreement.

#### **ARTICLE 10 – LIQUIDATED DAMAGES**

10.01 Provisions for liquidated damages, if any, for failure to timely attain a Milestone, Substantial Completion, or completion of the Work in readiness for final payment, are set forth in the Agreement.

# ARTICLE 11 – SUBSTITUTE AND "OR-EQUAL" ITEMS

11.01 The Contract for the Work, as awarded, will be on the basis of materials and equipment specified or described in the Bidding Documents without consideration during the bidding and Contract award process of possible substitute or "or-equal" items. In cases in which the Contract allows the Contractor to request that Engineer authorize the use of a substitute or "or-equal" item of material or equipment, application for such acceptance may not be made to and will not be considered by

Section 00 21 13

**INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS** 

Page 6 of 11



- Engineer until after the Effective Date of the Contract.
- 11.02 All prices that Bidder sets forth in its Bid shall be based on the presumption that the Contractor will furnish the materials and equipment specified or described in the Bidding Documents, as supplemented by Addenda. Any assumptions regarding the possibility of post-Bid approvals of "orequal" or substitution requests are made at Bidder's sole risk.

#### ARTICLE 12 – SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS, AND OTHERS

- 12.01 A Bidder shall be prepared to retain specific Subcontractors, Suppliers, or other individuals or entities for the performance of the Work if required by the Bidding Documents (most commonly in the Specifications) to do so. If a prospective Bidder objects to retaining any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, and the concern is not relieved by an Addendum, then the prospective Bidder should refrain from submitting a Bid.
- 12.02 Subsequent to the submittal of the Bid, Owner may not require the Successful Bidder or Contractor to retain any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity against which Contractor has reasonable objection.
- 12.03 The apparent Successful Bidder, and any other Bidder so requested, shall within five days after Bid opening, submit to Owner a list of the Subcontractors or Suppliers proposed. If requested by Owner, such list shall be accompanied by an experience statement with pertinent information regarding similar projects and other evidence of qualification for each such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity. If Owner or Engineer, after due investigation, has reasonable objection to any proposed Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or entity, Owner may, before the Notice of Award is given, request apparent Successful Bidder to submit an acceptable substitute, in which case apparent Successful Bidder shall submit a substitute, Bidder's Bid price will be increased (or decreased) by the difference in cost occasioned by such substitution, and Owner may consider such price adjustment in evaluating Bids and making the Contract award.
- 12.04 If apparent Successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution, Owner may award the Contract to the next lowest Bidder that proposes to use acceptable Subcontractors, Suppliers, or other individuals or entities. Declining to make requested substitutions will constitute grounds for forfeiture of the Bid security of any Bidder. Any Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or entity so listed and against which Owner or Engineer makes no written objection prior to the giving of the Notice of Award will be deemed acceptable to Owner and Engineer subject to subsequent revocation of such acceptance as provided in Paragraph 7.06 of the General Conditions.

#### **ARTICLE 13 – PREPARATION OF BID**

- 13.01 The Bid Form is included with the Bidding Documents.
  - A. All blanks on the Bid Form shall be completed in ink and the Bid Form signed in ink. Erasures or alterations shall be initialed in ink by the person signing the Bid Form. A Bid price shall be indicated for each section, Bid item, alternate, adjustment unit price item, and unit price item listed therein.
  - B. If the Bid Form expressly indicates that submitting pricing on a specific alternate item is optional, and Bidder elects to not furnish pricing for such optional alternate item, then Bidder may enter the words "No Bid" or "Not Applicable."

Section 00 21 13

**INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS** 

Page 7 of 11



- 13.02 A Bid by a corporation shall be executed in the corporate name by a corporate officer (whose title must appear under the signature), accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The corporate address and state of incorporation shall be shown.
- 13.03 A Bid by a partnership shall be executed in the partnership name and signed by a partner (whose title must appear under the signature), accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The partnership's address for receiving notices shall be shown.
- 13.04 A Bid by a limited liability company shall be executed in the name of the firm by a member or other authorized person and accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The state of formation of the firm and the firm's address for receiving notices shall be shown.
- 13.05 A Bid by an individual shall show the Bidder's name and address for receiving notices.
- 13.06 A Bid by a joint venture shall be executed by an authorized representative of each joint venture in the manner indicated on the Bid Form. The joint venture's address for receiving notices shall be shown.
- 13.07 All names shall be printed in ink below the signatures.
- 13.08 The Bid shall contain an acknowledgment of receipt of all Addenda, the numbers of which shall be filled in on the Bid Form.
- 13.09 Postal and e-mail addresses and telephone number for communications regarding the Bid shall be shown.
- 13.10 The Bid shall contain evidence of Bidder's authority and qualification to do business in the state where the Project is located, or Bidder shall covenant in writing to obtain such authority and qualification prior to award of the Contract and attach such covenant to the Bid. Bidder's state contractor license number, if any, shall also be shown on the Bid Form.

#### **ARTICLE 14 – BASIS OF BID**

#### 14.01 *Lump Sum*

A. Bidders shall submit a Bid on a lump sum for portions not specifically listed in the unit price section of the Bid Form.

#### 14.02 Unit Price

- A. Bidders shall submit a Bid on a unit price basis for each item of Work listed in the unit price section of the Bid Form.
- B. The "Bid Price" (sometimes referred to as the extended price) for each unit price Bid item will be the product of the "Estimated Quantity" (which Owner or its representative has set forth in the Bid Form) for the item and the corresponding "Bid Unit Price" offered by the Bidder. The total of all unit price Bid items will be the sum of these "Bid Prices;" such total will be used by Owner for Bid comparison purposes. The final quantities and Contract Price will be determined in accordance with Paragraph 13.03 of the General Conditions.
- C. Discrepancies between the multiplication of units of Work and unit prices will be resolved in favor of the unit prices. Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of figures and the correct sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum.

Section 00 21 13

**INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS** 

Page 8 of 11



#### **ARTICLE 15 – SUBMITTAL OF BID**

- 15.01 A Bid shall be received no later than the date and time prescribed and at the place indicated in the advertisement or invitation to bid and shall be enclosed in a plainly marked package with the Project title (and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Project for which the Bid is submitted), the name and address of Bidder, and shall be accompanied by the Bid security and other required documents. If a Bid is sent by mail or other delivery system, the sealed envelope containing the Bid shall be enclosed in a separate package plainly marked on the outside with the notation "BID ENCLOSED."
- 15.02 Bids received after the date and time prescribed for the opening of bids, or not submitted at the correct location or in the designated manner, will not be accepted and will be returned to the Bidder unopened.
- 15.03 A Bid shall be received no later than the date and time prescribed and at the place indicated in the advertisement or invitation to bid and shall be enclosed in a plainly marked package with the Project title (and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Project for which the Bid is submitted), the name and address of Bidder, and shall be accompanied by the Bid security and other required documents. If a Bid is sent by mail or other delivery system, the sealed envelope containing the Bid shall be enclosed in a separate package plainly marked on the outside with the notation "BID ENCLOSED."
- 15.04 Bids received after the date and time prescribed for the opening of bids, or not submitted at the correct location or in the designated manner, will not be accepted and will be returned to the Bidder unopened.

#### ARTICLE 16 - MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BID

- 16.01 A Bid may be withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed in the same manner that a Bid must be executed and delivered to the place where Bids are to be submitted prior to the date and time for the opening of Bids. Upon receipt of such notice, the unopened Bid will be returned to the Bidder
- 16.02 If a Bidder wishes to modify its Bid prior to Bid opening, Bidder must withdraw its initial Bid in the manner specified in Paragraph 16.01 and submit a new Bid prior to the date and time for the opening of Bids.
- 16.03 If within 24 hours after Bids are opened any Bidder files a duly signed written notice with Owner and promptly thereafter demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of Owner that there was a material and substantial mistake in the preparation of its Bid, that Bidder may withdraw its Bid, and the Bid security will be returned. Thereafter, if the Work is rebid, that Bidder will be disqualified from further bidding on the Work.

#### **ARTICLE 17 – OPENING OF BIDS**

17.01 Bids will be opened at the time and place indicated in the advertisement or invitation to bid and, unless obviously non-responsive, read aloud publicly. An abstract of the amounts of the base Bids and major alternates, if any, will be made available to Bidders after the opening of Bids.

Section 00 21 13

**INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS** 

Page 9 of 11



#### ARTICLE 18 – BIDS TO REMAIN SUBJECT TO ACCEPTANCE

18.01 All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for the period of time stated in the Bid Form, but Owner may, in its sole discretion, release any Bid and return the Bid security prior to the end of this period.

#### ARTICLE 19 – EVALUATION OF BIDS AND AWARD OF CONTRACT

- 19.01 Owner reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, including without limitation, nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional Bids. Owner will reject the Bid of any Bidder that Owner finds, after reasonable inquiry and evaluation, to not be responsible. If Bidder purports to add terms or conditions to its Bid, takes exception to any provision of the Bidding Documents, or attempts to alter the contents of the Contract Documents for purposes of the Bid, then the Owner will reject the Bid as nonresponsive; provided that Owner also reserves the right to waive all minor informalities not involving price, time, or changes in the Work.
- 19.02 If Owner awards the contract for the Work, such award shall be to the responsible Bidder submitting the lowest responsive Bid.

#### 19.03 Evaluation of Bids

- A. In evaluating Bids, Owner will consider whether or not the Bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such alternates, unit prices, and other data, as may be requested in the Bid Form or prior to the Notice of Award.
- B. For the determination of the apparent low Bidder when unit price bids are submitted, Bids will be compared on the basis of the total of the products of the estimated quantity of each item and unit price Bid for that item, together with any lump sum items.
- 19.04 In evaluating whether a Bidder is responsible, Owner will consider the qualifications of the Bidder and may consider the qualifications and experience of Subcontractors and Suppliers proposed for those portions of the Work for which the identity of Subcontractors and Suppliers must be submitted as provided in the Bidding Documents.
- 19.05 Owner may conduct such investigations as Owner deems necessary to establish the responsibility, qualifications, and financial ability of Bidders and any proposed Subcontractors or Suppliers.

#### **ARTICLE 20 – BONDS AND INSURANCE**

20.01 Article 6 of the General Conditions, as may be modified by the Supplementary Conditions, sets forth Owner's requirements as to performance and payment bonds and insurance. When the Successful Bidder delivers the Agreement (executed by Successful Bidder) to Owner, it shall be accompanied by required bonds and insurance documentation.

#### **ARTICLE 21 – SIGNING OF AGREEMENT**

21.01 When Owner issues a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it shall be accompanied by the unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement along with the other Contract Documents as identified in the Agreement. Within 15 days thereafter, Successful Bidder shall execute and deliver the



required number of counterparts of the Agreement (and any bonds and insurance documentation required to be delivered by the Contract Documents) to Owner. Within ten days thereafter, Owner shall deliver one fully executed counterpart of the Agreement to Successful Bidder, together with printed and electronic copies of the Contract Documents as stated in Paragraph 2.02 of the General Conditions.

#### **ARTICLE 22 – ALIEN WORKERS**

22.01 The City of Flagler Beach does not award publicly funded Contracts to those who knowingly employ unauthorized alien workers in violation of section 274A of the Immigration and Naturalization Act. 8 United States Code §132a. Such employment deprives legal workers of job opportunities. Violation of section 274A shall be grounds for unilateral cancellation of the Contract, Agreement, Bid or Quote for purchase of services and goods by the City of Flagler Beach.

#### **ARTICLE 23 - E-VERIFY**

23.01 The Contractor shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system, in accordance with the terms governing use of the system, to confirm the employment eligibility of all persons employed by the Contractor during the term of the Contract to perform employment duties within Florida and all persons, including subcontractors, assigned by the Contractor to perform work pursuant to the Contract with the Department.

**END OF SECTION** 



# SECTION 00 22 13 STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Page		
	Article 1 – Definitions and Terminology	1
1.01	Defined Terms	1
1.02	Terminology	5
	Article 2 – Preliminary Matters	6
2.01	Delivery of Bonds and Evidence of Insurance	6
2.02	Copies of Documents	6
2.03	Before Starting Construction	7
2.04	Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives	7
2.05	Initial Acceptance of Schedules	7
2.06	Electronic Transmittals	8
	Article 3 – Documents: Intent, Requirements, Reuse	8
3.01	Intent	8
3.02	Reference Standards	8
3.03	Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies	9
3.04	Requirements of the Contract Documents	9
3.05	Reuse of Documents	10
	Article 4 – Commencement and Progress of the Work	10
4.01	Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to Proceed	10
4.02	Starting the Work	10
4.03	Reference Points	11
4.04	Progress Schedule	11
4.05	Delays in Contractor's Progress	11
	Article 5 – Availability of Lands; Subsurface and Physical Conditions; Hazardous Environm Conditions	
5.01	Availability of Lands	12
5.02	Use of Site and Other Areas	12
5.03	Subsurface and Physical Conditions	13



	5.04	DITTERING Subsurface or Physical Conditions	. 14
	5.05	Underground Facilities	
	5.06	Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site	. 17
Artic	le 6 – B	onds and Insurance	.19
	6.01	Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds	. 19
	6.02	Insurance—General Provisions	. 20
	6.03	Contractor's Insurance	. 21
	6.04	Owner's Liability Insurance	. 23
	6.05	Property Insurance	. 23
	6.06	Waiver of Rights	. 25
	6.07	Receipt and Application of Property Insurance Proceeds	. 26
Artic	le 7 – C	ontractor's Responsibilities	.27
	7.01	Supervision and Superintendence	. 27
	7.02	Labor; Working Hours	. 27
	7.03	Services, Materials, and Equipment	. 27
	7.04	"Or Equals"	. 27
	7.05	Substitutes	. 29
	7.06	Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others	. 30
	7.07	Patent Fees and Royalties	. 32
	7.08	Permits	. 32
	7.09	Taxes	. 32
	7.10	Laws and Regulations	. 33
	7.11	Record Documents	. 33
	7.12	Safety and Protection	. 33
	7.13	Safety Representative	. 34
	7.14	Hazard Communication Programs	. 34
	7.15	Emergencies	. 35
	7.16	Shop Drawings, Samples, and Other Submittals	. 35
	7.17	Contractor's General Warranty and Guarantee	. 37
	7.18	Indemnification	. 38
	7.19	Delegation of Professional Design Services	. 38

Section 00 22 13 TABLE OF CONTENTS Page ii of v



Article 8 – 0	Other Work at the Site	39
8.01	Other Work	39
8.02	Coordination	40
8.03	Legal Relationships	40
Article 9 – Owner's Responsibilities		
9.01	Communications to Contractor	41
9.02	Replacement of Engineer	41
9.03	Furnish Data	41
9.04	Pay When Due	41
9.05	Lands and Easements; Reports, Tests, and Drawings	41
9.06	Insurance	42
9.07	Change Orders	42
9.08	Inspections, Tests, and Approvals	42
9.09	Limitations on Owner's Responsibilities	42
9.10	Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition	42
9.11	Evidence of Financial Arrangements	42
9.12	Safety Programs	42
Article 10 – Engineer's Status During Construction		
10.01	Owner's Representative	42
10.02	Visits to Site	42
10.03	Project Representative	43
10.04	Rejecting Defective Work	43
10.05	Shop Drawings, Change Orders and Payments	43
10.06	Determinations for Unit Price Work	43
10.07	Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work	44
10.08	Limitations on Engineer's Authority and Responsibilities	44
10.09	Compliance with Safety Program	44
Article 11 –	Amending the Contract Documents; Changes in the Work	44
11.01	Amending and Supplementing Contract Documents	44
11.02	Owner-Authorized Changes in the Work	45
11.03	Unauthorized Changes in the Work	46



	11.04	Change of Contract Price	. 46
	11.05	Change of Contract Times	. 47
	11.06	Change Proposals	. 47
	11.07	Execution of Change Orders	. 48
	11.08	Notification to Surety	. 48
Artic	le 12 –	Claims	48
	12.01	Claims	. 48
Artic	le 13 –	Cost of the Work; Allowances; Unit Price Work	50
	13.01	Cost of the Work	. 50
	13.02	Allowances	. 52
	13.03	Unit Price Work	. 53
Artic	le 14 –	Tests and Inspections; Correction, Removal or Acceptance of Defective Work	53
	14.01	Access to Work	. 53
	14.02	Tests, Inspections, and Approvals	. 54
	14.03	Defective Work	. 54
	14.04	Acceptance of Defective Work	. 55
	14.05	Uncovering Work	. 55
	14.06	Owner May Stop the Work	. 56
	14.07	Owner May Correct Defective Work	. 56
Artic	le 15 –	Payments to Contractor; Setoffs; Completion; Correction Period	57
	15.01	Progress Payments	. 57
	15.02	Contractor's Warranty of Title	. 60
	15.03	Substantial Completion	. 60
	15.04	Partial Use or Occupancy	. 61
	15.05	Final Inspection	. 61
	15.06	Final Payment	. 62
	15.07	Waiver of Claims	. 63
	15.08	Correction Period	. 63
Artic	le 16 – :	Suspension of Work and Termination	64
	16.01	Owner May Suspend Work	. 64
	16.02	Owner May Terminate for Cause	. 64

Section 00 22 13 TABLE OF CONTENTS Page iv of v



16.03	Owner May Terminate For Convenience	65
16.04	Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate	65
Article 17 –	Final Resolution of Disputes	66
17.01	Methods and Procedures	66
Article 18 –	Miscellaneous	66
18.01	Giving Notice	66
18.02	Computation of Times	67
18.03	Cumulative Remedies	
18.04	Limitation of Damages	67
18.05	No Waiver	67
18.06	Survival of Obligations	67
18.07	Controlling Law	67
18.08	Headings	68

**END OF TABLE OF CONTENTS** REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



#### **ARTICLE 1 – DEFINITIONS AND TERMINOLOGY**

# 1.01 Defined Terms

- A. Wherever used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents, a term printed with initial capital letters, including the term's singular and plural forms, will have the meaning indicated in the definitions below. In addition to terms specifically defined, terms with initial capital letters in the Contract Documents include references to identified articles and paragraphs, and the titles of other documents or forms.
  - Addenda—Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of Bids which clarify, correct, or change the Bidding Requirements or the proposed Contract Documents.
  - 2. Agreement—The written instrument, executed by Owner and Contractor, that sets forth the Contract Price and Contract Times, identifies the parties and the Engineer, and designates the specific items that are Contract Documents.
  - 3. Application for Payment—The form acceptable to Engineer which is to be used by Contractor during the course of the Work in requesting progress or final payments and which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.
  - 4. *Bid*—The offer of a Bidder submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for the Work to be performed.
  - 5. *Bidder*—An individual or entity that submits a Bid to Owner.
  - 6. Bidding Documents—The Bidding Requirements, the proposed Contract Documents, and all Addenda.
  - 7. Bidding Requirements—The advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Bond, or other Bid security, if any, the Bid Form, and the Bid with any attachments.
  - 8. Change Order—A document which is signed by Contractor and Owner and authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, or other revision to the Contract, issued on or after the Effective Date of the Contract.
  - 9. Change Proposal—A written request by Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with the procedural requirements set forth herein, seeking an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, or both; contesting an initial decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents or the acceptability of Work under the Contract Documents; challenging a set-off against payments due; or seeking other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract.
  - 10. Claim—(a) A demand or assertion by Owner directly to Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with the procedural requirements set forth herein: seeking an adjustment of Contract Price or Contract Times, or both; contesting an initial decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents or the acceptability of Work under the Contract Documents; contesting Engineer's decision regarding a Change Proposal; seeking resolution of a contractual issue that Engineer has declined to



- 11. address; or seeking other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract; or (b) a demand or assertion by Contractor directly to Owner, duly submitted in compliance with the procedural requirements set forth herein, contesting Engineer's decision regarding a Change Proposal; or seeking resolution of a contractual issue that Engineer has declined to address. A demand for money or services by a third party is not a Claim.
- 12. Constituent of Concern—Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive materials, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), hazardous waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material of any nature whatsoever that is or becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to (a) the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§9601 et seq. ("CERCLA"); (b) the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §§5101 et seq.; (c) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§6901 et seq. ("RCRA"); (d) the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§2601 et seq.; (e) the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et seq.; (f) the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.; or (g) any other federal, state, or local statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance, resolution, code, order, or decree regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste, substance, or material.
- 13. *Contract*—The entire and integrated written contract between the Owner and Contractor concerning the Work.
- 14. *Contract Documents*—Those items so designated in the Agreement, and which together comprise the Contract.
- 15. *Contract Price*—The money that Owner has agreed to pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 16. *Contract Times*—The number of days or the dates by which Contractor shall: (a) achieve Milestones, if any; (b) achieve Substantial Completion; and (c) complete the Work.
- 17. *Contractor*—The individual or entity with which Owner has contracted for performance of the Work.
- 18. Cost of the Work—See Paragraph 13.01 for definition.
- 19. *Drawings*—The part of the Contract that graphically shows the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by Contractor.
- 20. *Effective Date of the Contract*—The date, indicated in the Agreement, on which the Contract becomes effective.
- 21. Engineer—The individual or entity named as such in the Agreement.
- 22. Field Order—A written order issued by Engineer which requires minor changes in the Work but does not change the Contract Price or the Contract Times.
- 23. Hazardous Environmental Condition—The presence at the Site of Constituents of Concern in such quantities or circumstances that may present a danger to persons or property exposed thereto. The presence at the Site of materials that are necessary for the execution of the Work, or that are to be incorporated in the Work, and that are controlled and contained pursuant to industry practices, Laws and Regulations, and the requirements of the Contract, does not establish a Hazardous Environmental Condition.



- 24. Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations—Any and all applicable laws, statutes, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities, and courts having jurisdiction.
- 25. *Liens*—Charges, security interests, or encumbrances upon Contract-related funds, real property, or personal property.
- 26. *Milestone*—A principal event in the performance of the Work that the Contract requires Contractor to achieve by an intermediate completion date or by a time prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work.
- 27. *Notice of Award*—The written notice by Owner to a Bidder of Owner's acceptance of the Bid.
- 28. *Notice to Proceed*—A written notice by Owner to Contractor fixing the date on which the Contract Times will commence to run and on which Contractor shall start to perform the Work.
- 29. *Owner*—The individual or entity with which Contractor has contracted regarding the Work, and which has agreed to pay Contractor for the performance of the Work, pursuant to the terms of the Contract.
- 30. *Progress Schedule*—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, describing the sequence and duration of the activities comprising the Contractor's plan to accomplish the Work within the Contract Times.
- 31. *Project*—The total undertaking to be accomplished for Owner by engineers, contractors, and others, including planning, study, design, construction, testing, commissioning, and start-up, and of which the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents is a part.
- 32. Project Manual—The written documents prepared for, or made available for, procuring and constructing the Work, including but not limited to the Bidding Documents or other construction procurement documents, geotechnical and existing conditions information, the Agreement, bond forms, General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and Specifications. The contents of the Project Manual may be bound in one or more volumes.
- 33. Resident Project Representative—The authorized representative of Engineer assigned to assist Engineer at the Site. As used herein, the term Resident Project Representative or "RPR" includes any assistants or field staff of Resident Project Representative.
- 34. Samples—Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are representative of some portion of the Work and that establish the standards by which such portion of the Work will be judged.
- 35. Schedule of Submittals—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, of required submittals and the time requirements for Engineer's review of the submittals and the performance of related construction activities.
- 36. Schedule of Values—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, allocating portions of the Contract Price to various portions of the Work, and used as the basis for reviewing Contractor's Applications for Payment.

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 3 of 68



- 37. Shop Drawings—All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or information that are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and submitted by Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work. Shop Drawings, whether approved or not, are not Drawings and are not Contract Documents.
- 38. Site—Lands or areas indicated in the Contract Documents as being furnished by Owner upon which the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way and easements, and such other lands furnished by Owner which are designated for the use of Contractor.
- 39. *Specifications*—The part of the Contract that consists of written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the Work, and certain administrative requirements and procedural matters applicable to the Work.
- 40. *Subcontractor*—An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor or with any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work.
- 41. Substantial Completion—The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified part thereof) is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. The terms "substantially complete" and "substantially completed" as applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof.
- 42. *Successful Bidder*—The Bidder whose Bid the Owner accepts, and to which the Owner makes an award of contract, subject to stated conditions.
- 43. *Supplementary Conditions*—The part of the Contract that amends or supplements these General Conditions.
- 44. Supplier—A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor having a direct contract with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work by Contractor or a Subcontractor.
- 45. Technical Data—Those items expressly identified as Technical Data in the Supplementary Conditions, with respect to either (a) subsurface conditions at the Site, or physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities) or (b) Hazardous Environmental Conditions at the Site. If no such express identifications of Technical Data have been made with respect to conditions at the Site, then the data contained in boring logs, recorded measurements of subsurface water levels, laboratory test results, and other factual, objective information regarding conditions at the Site that are set forth in any geotechnical or environmental report prepared for the Project and made available to Contractor are hereby defined as Technical Data with respect to conditions at the Site under Paragraphs 5.03, 5.04, and 5.06.
- 46. Underground Facilities—All underground pipelines, conduits, ducts, cables, wires, manholes, vaults, tanks, tunnels, or other such facilities or attachments, and any encasements containing such facilities, including but not limited to those that convey electricity, gases, steam, liquid petroleum products, telephone or other communications, fiber optic transmissions, cable television, water, wastewater, storm

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 4 of 68



- 47. water, other liquids or chemicals, or traffic or other control systems.
- 48. Unit Price Work—Work to be paid for on the basis of unit prices.
- 49. Work—The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be provided under the Contract Documents. Work includes and is the result of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation necessary to produce such construction; furnishing, installing, and incorporating all materials and equipment into such construction; and may include related services such as testing, start-up, and commissioning, all as required by the Contract Documents.
- 50. Work Change Directive—A written directive to Contractor issued on or after the Effective Date of the Contract, signed by Owner and recommended by Engineer, ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work.

# 1.02 Terminology

- A. The words and terms discussed in the following paragraphs are not defined but, when used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents, have the indicated meaning.
- B. Intent of Certain Terms or Adjectives:
  - 1. The Contract Documents include the terms "as allowed," "as approved," "as ordered," "as directed" or terms of like effect or import to authorize an exercise of professional judgment by Engineer. In addition, the adjectives "reasonable," "suitable," "acceptable," "proper," "satisfactory," or adjectives of like effect or import are used to describe an action or determination of Engineer as to the Work. It is intended that such exercise of professional judgment, action, or determination will be solely to evaluate, in general, the Work for compliance with the information in the Contract Documents and with the design concept of the Project as a functioning whole as shown or indicated in the Contract Documents (unless there is a specific statement indicating otherwise). The use of any such term or adjective is not intended to and shall not be effective to assign to Engineer any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work, or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of Article 10 or any other provision of the Contract Documents.

# C. Day:

1. The word "day" means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next midnight.

# D. Defective:

- 1. The word "defective," when modifying the word "Work," refers to Work that is unsatisfactory, faulty, or deficient in that it:
  - a. does not conform to the Contract Documents; or
  - b. does not meet the requirements of any applicable inspection, reference standard, test, or approval referred to in the Contract Documents; or
  - has been damaged prior to Engineer's recommendation of final payment (unless responsibility for the protection thereof has been assumed by Owner at Substantial Completion in accordance with Paragraph 15.03 or 15.04).

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 5 of 68



# E. Furnish, Install, Perform, Provide:

- The word "furnish," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to supply and deliver said services, materials, or equipment to the Site (or some other specified location) ready for use or installation and in usable or operable condition.
- 2. The word "install," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to put into use or place in final position said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- 3. The words "perform" or "provide," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- 4. If the Contract Documents establish an obligation of Contractor with respect to specific services, materials, or equipment, but do not expressly use any of the four words "furnish," "install," "perform," or "provide," then Contractor shall furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- F. Unless stated otherwise in the Contract Documents, words or phrases that have a well-known technical or construction industry or trade meaning are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meaning.

# **ARTICLE 2 – PRELIMINARY MATTERS**

# 2.01 Delivery of Bonds and Evidence of Insurance

- A. *Bonds*: When Contractor delivers the executed counterparts of the Agreement to Owner, Contractor shall also deliver to Owner such bonds as Contractor may be required to furnish.
- B. Evidence of Contractor's Insurance: When Contractor delivers the executed counterparts of the Agreement to Owner, Contractor shall also deliver to Owner, with copies to each named insured and additional insured (as identified in the Supplementary Conditions or elsewhere in the Contract), the certificates and other evidence of insurance required to be provided by Contractor in accordance with Article 6.
- C. Evidence of Owner's Insurance: After receipt of the executed counterparts of the Agreement and all required bonds and insurance documentation, Owner shall promptly deliver to Contractor, with copies to each named insured and additional insured (as identified in the Supplementary Conditions or otherwise), the certificates and other evidence of insurance required to be provided by Owner under Article 6.

#### 2.02 Copies of Documents

- A. Owner shall furnish to Contractor four printed copies of the Contract (including one fully executed counterpart of the Agreement), and one copy in electronic portable document format (PDF). Additional printed copies will be furnished upon request at the cost of reproduction.
- Owner shall maintain and safeguard at least one original printed record version of the

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 6 of 68



C. Contract, including Drawings and Specifications signed and sealed by Engineer and other design professionals. Owner shall make such original printed record version of the Contract available to Contractor for review. Owner may delegate the responsibilities under this provision to Engineer.

# 2.03 Before Starting Construction

- A. *Preliminary Schedules*: Within 10 days after the Effective Date of the Contract (or as otherwise specifically required by the Contract Documents), Contractor shall submit to Engineer for timely review:
  - a preliminary Progress Schedule indicating the times (numbers of days or dates) for starting and completing the various stages of the Work, including any Milestones specified in the Contract;
  - 2. a preliminary Schedule of Submittals; and
  - 3. a preliminary Schedule of Values for all of the Work which includes quantities and prices of items which when added together equal the Contract Price and subdivides the Work into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during performance of the Work. Such prices will include an appropriate amount of overhead and profit applicable to each item of Work.

# 2.04 Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives

- A. Before any Work at the Site is started, a conference attended by Owner, Contractor, Engineer, and others as appropriate will be held to establish a working understanding among the parties as to the Work and to discuss the schedules referred to in Paragraph 2.03.A, procedures for handling Shop Drawings, Samples, and other submittals, processing Applications for Payment, electronic or digital transmittals, and maintaining required records.
- B. At this conference Owner and Contractor each shall designate, in writing, a specific individual to act as its authorized representative with respect to the services and responsibilities under the Contract. Such individuals shall have the authority to transmit and receive information, render decisions relative to the Contract, and otherwise act on behalf of each respective party.

# 2.05 Initial Acceptance of Schedules

- A. At least 10 days before submission of the first Application for Payment a conference, attended by Contractor, Engineer, and others as appropriate, will be held to review for acceptability to Engineer as provided below the schedules submitted in accordance with Paragraph 2.03.A. Contractor shall have an additional 10 days to make corrections and adjustments and to complete and resubmit the schedules. No progress payment shall be made to Contractor until acceptable schedules are submitted to Engineer.
  - The Progress Schedule will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides an orderly progression of the Work to completion within the Contract Times. Such acceptance will not impose on Engineer responsibility for the Progress Schedule, for sequencing,

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 7 of 68



- scheduling, or progress of the Work, nor interfere with or relieve Contractor from Contractor's full responsibility therefor.
- 2. Contractor's Schedule of Submittals will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides a workable arrangement for reviewing and processing the required submittals.
- Contractor's Schedule of Values will be acceptable to Engineer as to form and substance if it provides a reasonable allocation of the Contract Price to the component parts of the Work.

#### 2.06 *Electronic Transmittals*

- A. Except as otherwise stated elsewhere in the Contract, the Owner, Engineer, and Contractor may transmit, and shall accept, Project-related correspondence, text, data, documents, drawings, information, and graphics, including but not limited to Shop Drawings and other submittals, in electronic media or digital format, either directly, or through access to a secure Project website.
- B. If the Contract does not establish protocols for electronic or digital transmittals, then Owner, Engineer, and Contractor shall jointly develop such protocols.
- C. When transmitting items in electronic media or digital format, the transmitting party makes no representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of the items resulting from the recipient's use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware differing from those used in the drafting or transmittal of the items, or from those established in applicable transmittal protocols.

# ARTICLE 3 – DOCUMENTS: INTENT, REQUIREMENTS, REUSE

# 3.01 Intent

- A. The Contract Documents are complementary; what is required by one is as binding as if required by all.
- B. It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete project (or part thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- C. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, if there is a discrepancy between the electronic or digital versions of the Contract Documents (including any printed copies derived from such electronic or digital versions) and the printed record version, the printed record version shall govern.
- D. The Contract supersedes prior negotiations, representations, and agreements, whether written or oral.
- E. Engineer will issue clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents as provided herein.

#### 3.02 Reference Standards

- A. Standards Specifications, Codes, Laws and Regulations
  - 1. Reference in the Contract Documents to standard specifications, manuals, reference standards, or codes of any technical society, organization, or association, or to Laws or

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 8 of 68



Regulations, whether such reference be specific or by implication, shall mean the standard specification, manual, reference standard, code, or Laws or Regulations in effect at the time of opening of Bids (or on the Effective Date of the Contract if there

- 2. were no Bids), except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents.
- 3. No provision of any such standard specification, manual, reference standard, or code, or any instruction of a Supplier, shall be effective to change the duties or responsibilities of Owner, Contractor, or Engineer, or any of their subcontractors, consultants, agents, or employees, from those set forth in the part of the Contract Documents prepared by or for Engineer. No such provision or instruction shall be effective to assign to Owner, Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility inconsistent with the provisions of the part of the Contract Documents prepared by or for Engineer.

# 3.03 Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies

# A. Reporting Discrepancies:

- 1. Contractor's Verification of Figures and Field Measurements: Before undertaking each part of the Work, Contractor shall carefully study the Contract Documents, and check and verify pertinent figures and dimensions therein, particularly with respect to applicable field measurements. Contractor shall promptly report in writing to Engineer any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy that Contractor discovers, or has actual knowledge of, and shall not proceed with any Work affected thereby until the conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy is resolved, by a clarification or interpretation by Engineer, or by an amendment or supplement to the Contract Documents issued pursuant to Paragraph 11.01.
- 2. Contractor's Review of Contract Documents: If, before or during the performance of the Work, Contractor discovers any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy within the Contract Documents, or between the Contract Documents and (a) any applicable Law or Regulation, (b) actual field conditions, (c) any standard specification, manual, reference standard, or code, or (d) any instruction of any Supplier, then Contractor shall promptly report it to Engineer in writing. Contractor shall not proceed with the Work affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15) until the conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy is resolved, by a clarification or interpretation by Engineer, or by an amendment or supplement to the Contract Documents issued pursuant to Paragraph 11.01.
- 3. Contractor shall not be liable to Owner or Engineer for failure to report any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents unless Contractor had actual knowledge thereof.

# B. Resolving Discrepancies:

1. Except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, the provisions of the part of the Contract Documents prepared by or for Engineer shall take

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 9 of 68



precedence in resolving any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy between such provisions of the Contract Documents and:

- a. the provisions of any standard specification, manual, reference standard, or code,
- b. or the instruction of any Supplier (whether or not specifically incorporated by reference as a Contract Document); or
- c. the provisions of any Laws or Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work (unless such an interpretation of the provisions of the Contract Documents would result in violation of such Law or Regulation).

# 3.04 Requirements of the Contract Documents

- A. During the performance of the Work and until final payment, Contractor and Owner shall submit to the Engineer all matters in question concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents (sometimes referred to as requests for information or interpretation—RFIs) or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the Contract Documents, as soon as possible after such matters arise. Engineer will be the initial interpreter of the requirements of the Contract Documents, and judge of the acceptability of the Work thereunder.
- B. Engineer will, with reasonable promptness, render a written clarification, interpretation, or decision on the issue submitted, or initiate an amendment or supplement to the Contract Documents. Engineer's written clarification, interpretation, or decision will be final and binding on Contractor, unless it appeals by submitting a Change Proposal, and on Owner, unless it appeals by filing a Claim.
- C. If a submitted matter in question concerns terms and conditions of the Contract Documents that do not involve (1) the performance or acceptability of the Work under the Contract Documents, (2) the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (3) other engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will promptly give written notice to Owner and Contractor that Engineer is unable to provide a decision or interpretation. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on resolution of such a matter in question, either party may pursue resolution as provided in Article 12.

#### 3.05 Reuse of Documents

- A. Contractor and its Subcontractors and Suppliers shall not:
  - have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Drawings, Specifications, or other documents (or copies of any thereof) prepared by or bearing the seal of Engineer or its consultants, including electronic media editions, or reuse any such Drawings, Specifications, other documents, or copies thereof on extensions of the Project or any other project without written consent of Owner and Engineer and specific written verification or adaptation by Engineer; or
  - 2. have or acquire any title or ownership rights in any other Contract Documents, reuse any such Contract Documents for any purpose without Owner's express written consent, or violate any copyrights pertaining to such Contract Documents.
- 3. The prohibitions of this Paragraph 3.05 will survive final payment, or termination of the Contract. Nothing herein shall preclude Contractor from retaining copies of the Contract Documents for record purposes.

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 10 of 68



#### ARTICLE 4 – COMMENCEMENT AND PROGRESS OF THE WORK

# 4.01 Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to Proceed

A. The Contract Times will commence to run on the day indicated in the Notice to Proceed. A Notice to Proceed may be given at any time within 30 days after the Effective Date of the Contract. In no event will the Contract Times commence to run later than the sixtieth day after the day of Bid opening or the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Contract, whichever date is earlier.

# 4.02 Starting the Work

A. Contractor shall start to perform the Work on the date when the Contract Times commence to run. No Work shall be done at the Site prior to such date.

# 4.03 Reference Points

A. Owner shall provide engineering surveys to establish reference points for construction which in Engineer's judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to proceed with the Work. Contractor shall be responsible for laying out the Work, shall protect and preserve the established reference points and property monuments, and shall make no changes or relocations without the prior written approval of Owner. Contractor shall report to Engineer whenever any reference point or property monument is lost or destroyed or requires relocation because of necessary changes in grades or locations and shall be responsible for the accurate replacement or relocation of such reference points or property monuments by professionally qualified personnel.

# 4.04 Progress Schedule

- A. Contractor shall adhere to the Progress Schedule established in accordance with Paragraph 2.05 as it may be adjusted from time to time as provided below.
  - Contractor shall submit to Engineer for acceptance (to the extent indicated in Paragraph 2.05) proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will not result in changing the Contract Times.
  - 2. Proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will change the Contract Times shall be submitted in accordance with the requirements of Article 11.
- B. Contractor shall carry on the Work and adhere to the Progress Schedule during all disputes or disagreements with Owner. No Work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or disagreements, or during any appeal process, except as permitted by Paragraph 16.04, or as Owner and Contractor may otherwise agree in writing.

#### 4.05 Delays in Contractor's Progress

- A. If Owner, Engineer, or anyone for whom Owner is responsible, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the performance or progress of the Work, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Times and Contract Price. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times.
- B. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times for

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 11 of 68



delay, disruption, or interference caused by or within the control of Contractor. Delay, disruption, and interference attributable to and within the control of a Subcontractor or Supplier shall be deemed to be within the control of Contractor.

- C. If Contractor's performance or progress is delayed, disrupted, or interfered with by unanticipated causes not the fault of and beyond the control of Owner, Contractor, and those for which they are responsible, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Times. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times. Such an adjustment shall be Contractor's sole and exclusive remedy for the delays, disruption, and interference described in this paragraph. Causes of delay, disruption, or interference that may give rise to an adjustment in Contract Times under this paragraph include but are not limited to the following:
  - 1. severe and unavoidable natural catastrophes such as fires, floods, epidemics, and earthquakes;
  - 2. abnormal weather conditions;
  - 3. acts or failures to act of utility owners (other than those performing other work at or adjacent to the Site by arrangement with the Owner, as contemplated in Article 8); and
  - 4. acts of war or terrorism.
- D. Delays, disruption, and interference to the performance or progress of the Work resulting from the existence of a differing subsurface or physical condition, an Underground Facility that was not shown or indicated by the Contract Documents, or not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy, and those resulting from Hazardous Environmental Conditions, are governed by Article 5.
- E. Paragraph 8.03 governs delays, disruption, and interference to the performance or progress of the Work resulting from the performance of certain other work at or adjacent to the Site.
- F. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times for any delay, disruption, or interference if such delay is concurrent with a delay, disruption, or interference caused by or within the control of Contractor.
- G. Contractor must submit any Change Proposal seeking an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times under this paragraph within 30 days of the commencement of the delaying, disrupting, or interfering event.

# ARTICLE 5 – AVAILABILITY OF LANDS; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS; HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

# 5.01 Availability of Lands

- A. Owner shall furnish the Site. Owner shall notify Contractor of any encumbrances or restrictions not of general application but specifically related to use of the Site with which Contractor must comply in performing the Work.
- B. Upon reasonable written request, Owner shall furnish Contractor with a current statement of record legal title and legal description of the lands upon which permanent improvements

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 12 of 68



are to be made and Owner's interest therein as necessary for giving notice of or filing a mechanic's or construction lien against such lands in accordance with applicable Laws and Regulations.

C. Contractor shall provide for all additional lands and access thereto that may be required for temporary construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment.

# 5.02 Use of Site and Other Areas

- A. Limitation on Use of Site and Other Areas:
  - L. Contractor shall confine construction equipment, temporary construction facilities, the storage of materials and equipment, and the operations of workers to the Site, adjacent areas that Contractor has arranged to use through construction easements or otherwise, and other adjacent areas permitted by Laws and Regulations, and shall not unreasonably encumber the Site and such other adjacent areas with construction equipment or other materials or equipment. Contractor shall assume full responsibility for (a) damage to the Site; (b) damage to any such other adjacent areas used for Contractor's operations; (c) damage to any other adjacent land or areas; and (d) for injuries and losses sustained by the owners or occupants of any such land or areas; provided that such damage or injuries result from the performance of the Work or from other actions or conduct of the Contractor or those for which Contractor is responsible.
  - If a damage or injury claim is made by the owner or occupant of any such land or area because of the performance of the Work, or because of other actions or conduct of the Contractor or those for which Contractor is responsible, Contractor shall (a) take immediate corrective or remedial action as required by Paragraph 7.12, or otherwise; (b) promptly attempt to settle the claim as to all parties through negotiations with such owner or occupant, or otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding, or at law; and (c) to the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against any such claim, and against all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any claim or action, legal or equitable, brought by any such owner or occupant against Owner, Engineer, or any other party indemnified hereunder to the extent caused directly or indirectly, in whole or in part by, or based upon, Contractor's performance of the Work, or because of other actions or conduct of the Contractor or those for which Contractor is responsible.
- B. Removal of Debris During Performance of the Work: During the progress of the Work the Contractor shall keep the Site and other adjacent areas free from accumulations of waste materials, rubbish, and other debris. Removal and disposal of such waste materials, rubbish, and other debris shall conform to applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. Cleaning: Prior to Substantial Completion of the Work Contractor shall clean the Site and the Work and make it ready for utilization by Owner. At the completion of the Work Contractor shall remove from the Site and adjacent areas all tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery, and surplus materials and shall restore to original condition all property not

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 13 of 68



- designated for alteration by the Contract Documents.
- D. Loading of Structures: Contractor shall not load nor permit any part of any structure to be loaded in any manner that will endanger the structure, nor shall Contractor subject any part of the Work or adjacent structures or land to stresses or pressures that will endanger them.
- 5.03 Subsurface and Physical Conditions
  - A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary Conditions identify:
    - those reports known to Owner of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site;
    - 2. those drawings known to Owner of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities); and
    - 3. Technical Data contained in such reports and drawings.
  - B. Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data Authorized: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the Technical Data expressly identified in the Supplementary Conditions with respect to such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. If no such express identification has been made, then Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the Technical Data (as defined in Article 1) contained in any geotechnical or environmental report prepared for the Project and made available to Contractor. Except for such reliance on Technical Data, Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, with respect to:
    - the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor's purposes, including, but not limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto; or
    - 2. other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings; or
    - 3. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any Technical Data or any such other data, interpretations, opinions, or information.
- 5.04 Differing Subsurface or Physical Conditions
  - A. *Notice by Contractor*: If Contractor believes that any subsurface or physical condition that is uncovered or revealed at the Site either:
    - 1. is of such a nature as to establish that any Technical Data on which Contractor is entitled to rely as provided in Paragraph 5.03 is materially inaccurate; or
    - 2. is of such a nature as to require a change in the Drawings or Specifications; or
    - 3. differs materially from that shown or indicated in the Contract Documents; or
    - is of an unusual nature, and differs materially from conditions ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in the Contract Documents;

then Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 14 of 68



the subsurface or physical conditions or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15), notify Owner and Engineer in writing about such condition. Contractor shall not further disturb such condition or perform any Work in connection therewith (except with respect to an emergency) until receipt of a written statement permitting Contractor to do so.

- B. Engineer's Review: After receipt of written notice as required by the preceding paragraph, Engineer will promptly review the subsurface or physical condition in question; determine the necessity of Owner's obtaining additional exploration or tests with respect to the condition; conclude whether the condition falls within any one or more of the differing site condition categories in Paragraph 5.04.A above; obtain any pertinent cost or schedule information from Contractor; prepare recommendations to Owner regarding the Contractor's resumption of Work in connection with the subsurface or physical condition in question and the need for any change in the Drawings or Specifications; and advise Owner in writing of Engineer's findings, conclusions, and recommendations.
- C. Owner's Statement to Contractor Regarding Site Condition: After receipt of Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations, Owner shall issue a written statement to Contractor (with a copy to Engineer) regarding the subsurface or physical condition in question, addressing the resumption of Work in connection with such condition, indicating whether any change in the Drawings or Specifications will be made, and adopting or rejecting Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations, in whole or in part.
- D. Possible Price and Times Adjustments:
  - Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Price or Contract
    Times, or both, to the extent that the existence of a differing subsurface or physical
    condition, or any related delay, disruption, or interference, causes an increase or
    decrease in Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of the Work; subject,
    however, to the following:
    - a. such condition must fall within any one or more of the categories described in Paragraph 5.04.A;
    - b. with respect to Work that is paid for on a unit price basis, any adjustment in Contract Price will be subject to the provisions of Paragraph 13.03; and,
    - c. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times.
  - 2. Contractor shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times with respect to a subsurface or physical condition if:
    - Contractor knew of the existence of such condition at the time Contractor made a commitment to Owner with respect to Contract Price and Contract Times by the submission of a Bid or becoming bound under a negotiated contract, or otherwise; or
    - b. the existence of such condition reasonably could have been discovered or revealed as a result of any examination, investigation, exploration, test, or study of the Site and contiguous areas expressly required by the Bidding Requirements or Contract

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 15 of 68



Documents to be conducted by or for Contractor prior to Contractor's making such commitment; or

- c. Contractor failed to give the written notice as required by Paragraph 5.04.A.
- If Owner and Contractor agree regarding Contractor's entitlement to and the amount or extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, then any such adjustment shall be set forth in a Change Order.
- 4. Contractor may submit a Change Proposal regarding its entitlement to or the amount or extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, no later than 30 days after Owner's issuance of the Owner's written statement to Contractor regarding the subsurface or physical condition in question.

### 5.05 Underground Facilities

- A. Contractor's Responsibilities: The information and data shown or indicated in the Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or adjacent to the Site is based on information and data furnished to Owner or Engineer by the owners of such Underground Facilities, including Owner, or by others. Unless it is otherwise expressly provided in the Supplementary Conditions:
  - 1. Owner and Engineer do not warrant or guarantee the accuracy or completeness of any such information or data provided by others; and
  - 2. the cost of all of the following will be included in the Contract Price, and Contractor shall have full responsibility for:
    - a. reviewing and checking all information and data regarding existing Underground Facilities at the Site;
    - b. locating all Underground Facilities shown or indicated in the Contract Documents as being at the Site;
    - c. coordination of the Work with the owners (including Owner) of such Underground Facilities, during construction; and
    - d. the safety and protection of all existing Underground Facilities at the Site and repairing any damage thereto resulting from the Work.
- B. Notice by Contractor: If Contractor believes that an Underground Facility that is uncovered or revealed at the Site was not shown or indicated in the Contract Documents, or was not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy, then Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing conditions affected thereby or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15), identify the owner of such Underground Facility and give written notice to that owner and to Owner and Engineer.
- C. Engineer's Review: Engineer will promptly review the Underground Facility and conclude whether such Underground Facility was not shown or indicated in the Contract Documents, or was not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy; obtain any pertinent cost or schedule information from Contractor; prepare recommendations to Owner regarding the Contractor's resumption of Work in connection with the Underground Facility in question; determine the extent, if any, to which a change is required in the Drawings or Specifications

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 16 of 68



to reflect and document the consequences of the existence or location of the Underground Facility; and advise Owner in writing of Engineer's findings, conclusions, and recommendations. During such time, Contractor shall be responsible for the safety and protection of such Underground Facility.

- D. Owner's Statement to Contractor Regarding Underground Facility: After receipt of Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations, Owner shall issue a written statement to Contractor (with a copy to Engineer) regarding the Underground Facility in question, addressing the resumption of Work in connection with such Underground Facility, indicating whether any change in the Drawings or Specifications will be made, and adopting or rejecting Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations in whole or in part.
- E. Possible Price and Times Adjustments:
  - Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract
    Times, or both, to the extent that any existing Underground Facility at the Site that was
    not shown or indicated in the Contract Documents, or was not shown or indicated with
    reasonable accuracy, or any related delay, disruption, or interference, causes an
    increase or decrease in Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of the
    Work; subject, however, to the following:
    - Contractor did not know of and could not reasonably have been expected to be aware of or to have anticipated the existence or actual location of the Underground Facility in question;
    - b. With respect to Work that is paid for on a unit price basis, any adjustment in Contract Price will be subject to the provisions of Paragraph 13.03;
    - Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times; and
    - d. Contractor gave the notice required in Paragraph 5.05.B.
  - If Owner and Contractor agree regarding Contractor's entitlement to and the amount or extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, then any such adjustment shall be set forth in a Change Order.
  - Contractor may submit a Change Proposal regarding its entitlement to or the amount or extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, no later than 30 days after Owner's issuance of the Owner's written statement to Contractor regarding the Underground Facility in question.
- 5.06 Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site
  - A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary Conditions identify:
    - 1. those reports and drawings known to Owner relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions that have been identified at or adjacent to the Site; and
    - 2. Technical Data contained in such reports and drawings.
  - B. Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data Authorized: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the Technical Data expressly identified in the Supplementary Conditions with respect to

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 17 of 68



such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. If no such express identification has been made, then Contractor may rely on the accuracy of the Technical Data (as defined in Article 1) contained in any geotechnical or environmental report prepared for the Project and made available to Contractor. Except for such reliance on Technical Data, Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors with respect to:

- the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor's purposes, including, but not limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor and safety precautions and programs incident thereto; or
- 2. other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings; or
- 3. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any Technical Data or any such other data, interpretations, opinions, or information.
- C. Contractor shall not be responsible for removing or remediating any Hazardous Environmental Condition encountered, uncovered, or revealed at the Site unless such removal or remediation is expressly identified in the Contract Documents to be within the scope of the Work. Contractor shall be responsible for controlling, containing, and duly removing all Constituents of Concern brought to the Site by Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or anyone else for whom Contractor is responsible, and for any associated costs; and for the costs of removing and remediating any Hazardous Environmental Condition created by the presence of any such Constituents of Concern.
- D. If Contractor encounters, uncovers, or reveals a Hazardous Environmental Condition whose removal or remediation is not expressly identified in the Contract Documents as being within the scope of the Work, or if Contractor or anyone for whom Contractor is responsible creates a Hazardous Environmental Condition, then Contractor shall immediately: (1) secure or otherwise isolate such condition; (2) stop all Work in connection with such condition and in any area affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15); and (3) notify Owner and Engineer (and promptly thereafter confirm such notice in writing). Owner shall promptly consult with Engineer concerning the necessity for Owner to retain a qualified expert to evaluate such condition or take corrective action, if any. Promptly after consulting with Engineer, Owner shall take such actions as are necessary to permit Owner to timely obtain required permits and provide Contractor the written notice required by Paragraph 5.06.F. If Contractor or anyone for whom Contractor is responsible created the Hazardous Environmental Condition in question, then Owner may remove and remediate the Hazardous Environmental Condition and impose a set-off against payments to account for the associated costs.
- E. Contractor shall not resume Work in connection with such Hazardous Environmental Condition or in any affected area until after Owner has obtained any required permits related thereto, and delivered written notice to Contractor either (1) specifying that such condition and any affected area is or has been rendered safe for the resumption of Work, or (2) specifying any special conditions under which such Work may be resumed safely.
- F. If Owner and Contractor cannot agree as to entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if



any, of any adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, as a result of such Work stoppage or such special conditions under which Work is agreed to be resumed by Contractor, then within 30 days of Owner's written notice regarding the resumption of Work, Contractor may submit a Change Proposal, or Owner may impose a set-off.

- G. If after receipt of such written notice Contractor does not agree to resume such Work based on a reasonable belief it is unsafe or does not agree to resume such Work under such special conditions, then Owner may order the portion of the Work that is in the area affected by such condition to be deleted from the Work, following the contractual change procedures in Article 11. Owner may have such deleted portion of the Work performed by Owner's own forces or others in accordance with Article 8.
- H. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to a Hazardous Environmental Condition, provided that such Hazardous Environmental Condition (1) was not shown or indicated in the Drawings, Specifications, or other Contract Documents, identified as Technical Data entitled to limited reliance pursuant to Paragraph 5.06.B, or identified in the Contract Documents to be included within the scope of the Work, and (2)
  - was not created by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 5.06.I shall obligate Owner to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence.
- I. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the failure to control, contain, or remove a Constituent of Concern brought to the Site by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible, or to a Hazardous Environmental Condition created by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 5.06.J shall obligate Contractor to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence.
- J. The provisions of Paragraphs 5.03, 5.04, and 5.05 do not apply to the presence of Constituents of Concern or to a Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site.

### **ARTICLE 6 – BONDS AND INSURANCE**

- 6.01 Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds
  - A. Contractor shall furnish a performance bond and a payment bond, each in an amount at least equal to the Contract Price, as security for the faithful performance and payment of all of Contractor's obligations under the Contract. These bonds shall remain in effect until one year

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 19 of 68



after the date when final payment becomes due or until completion of the correction period specified in Paragraph 15.08, whichever is later, except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations, the Supplementary Conditions, or other specific provisions of the Contract. Contractor shall also furnish such other bonds as are required by the Supplementary Conditions or other specific provisions of the Contract.

- B. All bonds shall be in the form prescribed by the Contract except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations, and shall be executed by such sureties as are named in "Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies" as published in Circular 570 (as amended and supplemented) by the Financial Management Service, Surety Bond Branch, U.S. Department of the Treasury. A bond signed by an agent or attorney-in-fact must be accompanied by a certified copy of that individual's authority to bind the surety. The evidence of authority shall show that it is effective on the date the agent or attorney-in-fact signed the accompanying bond.
- C. Contractor shall obtain the required bonds from surety companies that are duly licensed or authorized in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located to issue bonds in the required amounts.
- D. If the surety on a bond furnished by Contractor is declared bankrupt or becomes insolvent, or its right to do business is terminated in any state or jurisdiction where any part of the Project is located, or the surety ceases to meet the requirements above, then Contractor shall promptly notify Owner and Engineer and shall, within 20 days after the event giving rise to such notification, provide another bond and surety, both of which shall comply with the bond and surety requirements above.
- E. If Contractor has failed to obtain a required bond, Owner may exclude the Contractor from the Site and exercise Owner's termination rights under Article 16.
- F. Upon request, Owner shall provide a copy of the payment bond to any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person or entity claiming to have furnished labor or materials used in the performance of the Work.

### 6.02 Insurance—General Provisions

- A. Owner and Contractor shall obtain and maintain insurance as required in this Article and in the Supplementary Conditions.
- B. All insurance required by the Contract to be purchased and maintained by Owner or Contractor shall be obtained from insurance companies that are duly licensed or authorized, in the state or jurisdiction in which the Project is located, to issue insurance policies for the required limits and coverages. Unless a different standard is indicated in the Supplementary Conditions, all companies that provide insurance policies required under this Contract shall have an A.M. Best rating of A-VII or better.
- C. Contractor shall deliver to Owner, with copies to each named insured and additional insured (as identified in this Article, in the Supplementary Conditions, or elsewhere in the Contract), certificates of insurance establishing that Contractor has obtained and is maintaining the policies, coverages, and endorsements required by the Contract. Upon request by Owner or any other insured, Contractor shall also furnish other evidence of such required insurance, including but not limited to copies of policies and endorsements, and documentation of applicable self-insured retentions and deductibles. Contractor may block out (redact) any

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 20 of 68



- confidential premium or pricing information contained in any policy or endorsement furnished under this provision.
- D. Owner shall deliver to Contractor, with copies to each named insured and additional insured (as identified in this Article, the Supplementary Conditions, or elsewhere in the Contract), certificates of insurance establishing that Owner has obtained and is maintaining the policies, coverages, and endorsements required of Owner by the Contract (if any). Upon request by Contractor or any other insured, Owner shall also provide other evidence of such required insurance (if any), including but not limited to copies of policies and endorsements, and documentation of applicable self-insured retentions and deductibles. Owner may block out (redact) any confidential premium or pricing information contained in any policy or endorsement furnished under this provision.
- E. Failure of Owner or Contractor to demand such certificates or other evidence of the other party's full compliance with these insurance requirements, or failure of Owner or Contractor to identify a deficiency in compliance from the evidence provided, shall not be construed as a waiver of the other party's obligation to obtain and maintain such insurance.
- F. If either party does not purchase or maintain all of the insurance required of such party by the Contract, such party shall notify the other party in writing of such failure to purchase prior to the start of the Work, or of such failure to maintain prior to any change in the required coverage.
- G. If Contractor has failed to obtain and maintain required insurance, Owner may exclude the Contractor from the Site, impose an appropriate set-off against payment, and exercise Owner's termination rights under Article 16.
- H. Without prejudice to any other right or remedy, if a party has failed to obtain required insurance, the other party may elect to obtain equivalent insurance to protect such other party's interests at the expense of the party who was required to provide such coverage, and the Contract Price shall be adjusted accordingly.
- I. Owner does not represent that insurance coverage and limits established in this Contract necessarily will be adequate to protect Contractor or Contractor's interests.
- J. The insurance and insurance limits required herein shall not be deemed as a limitation on Contractor's liability under the indemnities granted to Owner and other individuals and entities in the Contract.

### 6.03 Contractor's Insurance

- A. Workers' Compensation: Contractor shall purchase and maintain workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance for:
  - 1. claims under workers' compensation, disability benefits, and other similar employee benefit acts.
  - 2. United States Longshoreman and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act and Jones Act coverage (if applicable).
  - 3. claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of Contractor's employees (by stop-gap endorsement in monopolist worker's compensation states).

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 21 of 68



- 4. Foreign voluntary worker compensation (if applicable).
- B. Commercial General Liability—Claims Covered: Contractor shall purchase and maintain commercial general liability insurance, covering all operations by or on behalf of Contractor, on an occurrence basis, against:
  - 1. claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than Contractor's employees.
  - 2. claims for damages insured by reasonably available personal injury liability coverage.
  - 3. claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or destruction of tangible property wherever located, including loss of use resulting therefrom.
- C. Commercial General Liability—Form and Content: Contractor's commercial liability policy shall be written on a 1996 (or later) ISO commercial general liability form (occurrence form) and include the following coverages and endorsements:
  - 1. Products and completed operations coverage:
    - a. Such insurance shall be maintained for three years after final payment.
    - b. Contractor shall furnish Owner and each other additional insured (as identified in the Supplementary Conditions or elsewhere in the Contract) evidence of continuation of such insurance at final payment and three years thereafter.
  - 2. Blanket contractual liability coverage, to the extent permitted by law, including but not limited to coverage of Contractor's contractual indemnity obligations in Paragraph 7.18.
  - 3. Broad form property damage coverage.
  - 4. Severability of interest.
  - 5. Underground, explosion, and collapse coverage.
  - 6. Personal injury coverage.
  - 7. Additional insured endorsements that include both ongoing operations and products and completed operations coverage through ISO Endorsements CG 20 10 10 01 and CG 20 37 10 01 (together); or CG 20 10 07 04 and CG 20 37 07 04 (together); or their equivalent.
  - 8. For design professional additional insureds, ISO Endorsement CG 20 32 07 04, "Additional Insured—Engineers, Architects or Surveyors Not Engaged by the Named Insured" or its equivalent.
- D. Automobile liability: Contractor shall purchase and maintain automobile liability insurance against claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of any motor vehicle. The automobile liability policy shall be written on an occurrence basis.
- E. Umbrella or excess liability: Contractor shall purchase and maintain umbrella or excess liability insurance written over the underlying employer's liability, commercial general liability, and automobile liability insurance described in the paragraphs above. Subject to industry-standard exclusions, the coverage afforded shall follow form as to each and every one of the underlying policies.

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 22 of 68



- F. Contractor's pollution liability insurance: Contractor shall purchase and maintain a policy covering third-party injury and property damage claims, including clean-up costs, as a result of pollution conditions arising from Contractor's operations and completed operations. This insurance shall be maintained for no less than three years after final completion.
- G. Additional insureds: The Contractor's commercial general liability, automobile liability, umbrella or excess, and pollution liability policies shall include and list as additional insureds Owner and Engineer, and any individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions; include coverage for the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of all such additional insureds; and the insurance afforded to these additional insureds shall provide primary coverage for all claims covered thereby (including as applicable those arising from both ongoing and completed operations) on a non-contributory basis. Contractor shall obtain all necessary endorsements to support these requirements.
- H. Contractor's professional liability insurance: If Contractor will provide or furnish professional services under this Contract, through a delegation of professional design services or otherwise, then Contractor shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining applicable professional liability insurance. This insurance shall provide protection against claims arising out of performance of professional design or related services, and caused by a negligent error, omission, or act for which the insured party is legally liable. It shall be maintained throughout the duration of the Contract and for a minimum of two years after Substantial Completion. If such professional design services are performed by a Subcontractor, and not by Contractor itself, then the requirements of this paragraph may be satisfied through the purchasing and maintenance of such insurance by such Subcontractor.
- I. General provisions: The policies of insurance required by this Paragraph 6.03 shall:
  - 1. include at least the specific coverages provided in this Article.
  - 2. be written for not less than the limits of liability provided in this Article and in the Supplementary Conditions, or required by Laws or Regulations, whichever is greater.
  - contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled, materially changed, or renewal refused until at least 10 days prior written notice has been given to Contractor. Within three days of receipt of any such written notice, Contractor shall provide a copy of the notice to Owner, Engineer, and each other insured under the policy.
  - 4. remain in effect at least until final payment (and longer if expressly required in this Article) and at all times thereafter when Contractor may be correcting, removing, or replacing defective Work as a warranty or correction obligation, or otherwise, or returning to the Site to conduct other tasks arising from the Contract Documents.
  - 5. be appropriate for the Work being performed and provide protection from claims that may arise out of or result from Contractor's performance of the Work and Contractor's other obligations under the Contract Documents, whether it is to be performed by Contractor, any Subcontractor or Supplier, or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 23 of 68



J. The coverage requirements for specific policies of insurance must be met by such policies, and not by reference to excess or umbrella insurance provided in other policies.

### 6.04 Owner's Liability Insurance

- A. In addition to the insurance required to be provided by Contractor under Paragraph 6.03, Owner, at Owner's option, may purchase and maintain at Owner's expense Owner's own liability insurance as will protect Owner against claims which may arise from operations under the Contract Documents.
- B. Owner's liability policies, if any, operate separately and independently from policies required to be provided by Contractor, and Contractor cannot rely upon Owner's liability policies for any of Contractor's obligations to the Owner, Engineer, or third parties.

### 6.05 Property Insurance

- A. *Builder's Risk*: Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Contractor shall purchase and maintain builder's risk insurance upon the Work on a completed value basis, in the amount of the full insurable replacement cost thereof (subject to such deductible amounts as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions or required by Laws and Regulations). This insurance shall:
  - include the Owner and Contractor as named insureds, and all Subcontractors, and any individuals or entities required by the Supplementary Conditions to be insured under such builder's risk policy, as insureds or named insureds. For purposes of the remainder of this Paragraph 6.05, Paragraphs 6.06 and 6.07, and any corresponding Supplementary Conditions, the parties required to be insured shall collectively be referred to as "insureds."
  - 2. be written on a builder's risk "all risk" policy form that shall at least include insurance for physical loss or damage to the Work, temporary buildings, falsework, and materials and equipment in transit, and shall insure against at least the following perils or causes of loss: fire; lightning; windstorm; riot; civil commotion; terrorism; vehicle impact; aircraft; smoke; theft; vandalism and malicious mischief; mechanical breakdown, boiler explosion, and artificially generated electric current; earthquake; volcanic activity, and other earth movement; flood; collapse; explosion; debris removal; demolition occasioned by enforcement of Laws and Regulations; water damage (other than that caused by flood); and such other perils or causes of loss as may be specifically required by the Supplementary Conditions. If insurance against mechanical breakdown, boiler explosion, and artificially generated electric current; earthquake; volcanic activity, and other earth movement; or flood, are not commercially available under builder's risk policies, by endorsement or otherwise, such insurance may be provided through other insurance policies acceptable to Owner and Contractor.
  - 3. cover, as insured property, at least the following: (a) the Work and all materials, supplies, machinery, apparatus, equipment, fixtures, and other property of a similar nature that are to be incorporated into or used in the preparation, fabrication, construction, erection, or completion of the Work, including Owner-furnished or assigned property; (b) spare parts inventory required within the scope of the Contract; and (c) temporary works which are not intended to form part of the permanent constructed Work but which are intended to provide working access to the Site, or to

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 24 of 68



the Work under construction, or which are intended to provide temporary support for the Work under construction, including scaffolding, form work, fences, shoring, falsework, and temporary structures.

- 4. cover expenses incurred in the repair or replacement of any insured property (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers and architects).
- 5. extend to cover damage or loss to insured property while in temporary storage at the Site or in a storage location outside the Site (but not including property stored at the premises of a manufacturer or Supplier).
- 6. extend to cover damage or loss to insured property while in transit.
- 7. allow for partial occupation or use of the Work by Owner, such that those portions of the Work that are not yet occupied or used by Owner shall remain covered by the builder's risk insurance.
- 8. allow for the waiver of the insurer's subrogation rights, as set forth below.
- 9. provide primary coverage for all losses and damages caused by the perils or causes of loss covered.
- 10. not include a co-insurance clause.
- 11. include an exception for ensuing losses from physical damage or loss with respect to any defective workmanship, design, or materials exclusions.
- 12. include performance/hot testing and start-up.
- 13. be maintained in effect, subject to the provisions herein regarding Substantial Completion and partial occupancy or use of the Work by Owner, until the Work is complete.
- B. Notice of Cancellation or Change: All the policies of insurance (and the certificates or other evidence thereof) required to be purchased and maintained in accordance with this Paragraph 6.05 will contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled or materially changed or renewal refused until at least 10 days prior written notice has been given to the purchasing policyholder. Within three days of receipt of any such written notice, the purchasing policyholder shall provide a copy of the notice to each other insured.
- C. *Deductibles*: The purchaser of any required builder's risk or property insurance shall pay for costs not covered because of the application of a policy deductible.
- D. Partial Occupancy or Use by Owner: If Owner will occupy or use a portion or portions of the Work prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work as provided in Paragraph 15.04, then Owner (directly, if it is the purchaser of the builder's risk policy, or through Contractor) will provide notice of such occupancy or use to the builder's risk insurer. The builder's risk insurance shall not be canceled or permitted to lapse on account of any such partial use or occupancy; rather, those portions of the Work that are occupied or used by Owner may come off the builder's risk policy, while those portions of the Work not yet occupied or used by Owner shall remain covered by the builder's risk insurance.
- E. Additional Insurance: If Contractor elects to obtain other special insurance to be included in



- or supplement the builder's risk or property insurance policies provided under this Paragraph 6.05, it may do so at Contractor's expense.
- F. Insurance of Other Property: If the express insurance provisions of the Contract do not require or address the insurance of a property item or interest, such as tools, construction equipment, or other personal property owned by Contractor, a Subcontractor, or an employee of Contractor or a Subcontractor, then the entity or individual owning such property item will be responsible for deciding whether to insure it, and if so in what amount.

### 6.06 Waiver of Rights

- A. All policies purchased in accordance with Paragraph 6.05, expressly including the builder's risk policy, shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurers will have no rights of recovery against any insureds thereunder, or against Engineer or its consultants, or their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors. Owner and Contractor waive all rights against each other and the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by such policies and any other property insurance applicable to the Work; and, in addition, waive all such rights against Engineer, its consultants, all Subcontractors, all individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions as insureds, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, under such policies for losses and damages so caused. None of the above waivers shall extend to the rights that any party making such waiver may have to
  - the proceeds of insurance held by Owner or Contractor as trustee or fiduciary, or otherwise payable under any policy so issued.
- B. Owner waives all rights against Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, for:
  - loss due to business interruption, loss of use, or other consequential loss extending beyond direct physical loss or damage to Owner's property or the Work caused by, arising out of, or resulting from fire or other perils whether or not insured by Owner; and
  - loss or damage to the completed Project or part thereof caused by, arising out of, or resulting from fire or other insured peril or cause of loss covered by any property insurance maintained on the completed Project or part thereof by Owner during partial occupancy or use pursuant to Paragraph 15.04, after Substantial Completion pursuant to Paragraph 15.03, or after final payment pursuant to Paragraph 15.06.
- C. Any insurance policy maintained by Owner covering any loss, damage or consequential loss referred to in Paragraph 6.06.B shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any such loss, damage, or consequential loss, the insurers will have no rights of recovery against Contractor, Subcontractors, or Engineer, or the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors of each and any of them.
- D. Contractor shall be responsible for assuring that the agreement under which a Subcontractor

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 26 of 68



performs a portion of the Work contains provisions whereby the Subcontractor waives all rights against Owner, Contractor, all individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions as insureds, the Engineer and its consultants, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, relating to, or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by builder's risk insurance and any other property insurance applicable to the Work.

## 6.07 Receipt and Application of Property Insurance Proceeds

- A. Any insured loss under the builder's risk and other policies of insurance required by Paragraph 6.05 will be adjusted and settled with the named insured that purchased the policy. Such named insured shall act as fiduciary for the other insureds and give notice to such other insureds that adjustment and settlement of a claim is in progress. Any other insured may state its position regarding a claim for insured loss in writing within 15 days after notice of such claim.
- B. Proceeds for such insured losses may be made payable by the insurer either jointly to multiple insureds, or to the named insured that purchased the policy in its own right and as fiduciary for other insureds, subject to the requirements of any applicable mortgage clause. A named insured receiving insurance proceeds under the builder's risk and other policies of insurance required by Paragraph 6.05 shall distribute such proceeds in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach, or as otherwise required under the dispute resolution provisions of this Contract or applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. If no other special agreement is reached, the damaged Work shall be repaired or replaced, the money so received applied on account thereof, and the Work and the cost thereof covered by Change Order, if needed.

### **ARTICLE 7 – CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES**

### 7.01 Supervision and Superintendence

- A. Contractor shall supervise, inspect, and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction.
- B. At all times during the progress of the Work, Contractor shall assign a competent resident superintendent who shall not be replaced without written notice to Owner and Engineer except under extraordinary circumstances.

### 7.02 Labor; Working Hours

- A. Contractor shall provide competent, suitably qualified personnel to survey and lay out the Work and perform construction as required by the Contract Documents. Contractor shall at all times maintain good discipline and order at the Site.
- B. Except as otherwise required for the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, all Work at the Site shall be performed during regular working hours, Monday through Friday. Contractor will not perform Work on a Saturday, Sunday, or any legal holiday. Contractor

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 27 of 68



may perform Work outside regular working hours or on Saturdays, Sundays, or legal holidays only with Owner's written consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld.

### 7.03 Services, Materials, and Equipment

- A. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall provide and assume full responsibility for all services, materials, equipment, labor, transportation, construction equipment and machinery, tools, appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water, sanitary facilities, temporary facilities, and all other facilities and incidentals necessary for the performance, testing, start up, and completion of the Work, whether or not such items are specifically called for in the Contract Documents.
- B. All materials and equipment incorporated into the Work shall be of good quality and new, except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. All special warranties and guarantees required by the Specifications shall expressly run to the benefit of Owner. If required by Engineer, Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence (including reports of required tests) as to the source, kind, and quality of materials and equipment.
- C. All materials and equipment shall be stored, applied, installed, connected, erected, protected, used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with instructions of the applicable Supplier, except as otherwise may be provided in the Contract Documents.

### 7.04 *"Or Equals"*

- A. Whenever an item of material or equipment is specified or described in the Contract Documents by using the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular Supplier, the Contract Price has been based upon Contractor furnishing such item as specified. The specification or description of such an item is intended to establish the type, function, appearance, and quality required. Unless the specification or description contains or is followed by words reading that no like, equivalent, or "or equal" item is permitted, Contractor may request that Engineer authorize the use of other items of material or equipment, or items from other proposed suppliers under the circumstances described below.
  - 1. If Engineer in its sole discretion determines that an item of material or equipment proposed by Contractor is functionally equal to that named and sufficiently similar so that no change in related Work will be required, Engineer shall deem it an "or equal" item. For the purposes of this paragraph, a proposed item of material or equipment will be considered functionally equal to an item so named if:
    - a. in the exercise of reasonable judgment Engineer determines that:
      - 1) it is at least equal in materials of construction, quality, durability, appearance, strength, and design characteristics;
      - it will reliably perform at least equally well the function and achieve the results imposed by the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole;
      - 3) it has a proven record of performance and availability of responsive service; and
      - 4) it is not objectionable to Owner.

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 28 of 68



- b. Contractor certifies that, if approved and incorporated into the Work:
  - there will be no increase in cost to the Owner or increase in Contract Times;
     and
  - 2) it will conform substantially to the detailed requirements of the item named in the Contract Documents.
- B. *Contractor's Expense*: Contractor shall provide all data in support of any proposed "or equal" item at Contractor's expense.
- C. Engineer's Evaluation and Determination: Engineer will be allowed a reasonable time to evaluate each "or-equal" request. Engineer may require Contractor to furnish additional data about the proposed "or-equal" item. Engineer will be the sole judge of acceptability. No "or-equal" item will be ordered, furnished, installed, or utilized until Engineer's review is complete and Engineer determines that the proposed item is an "or-equal," which will be evidenced by an approved Shop Drawing or other written communication. Engineer will advise Contractor in writing of any negative determination.
- D. Effect of Engineer's Determination: Neither approval nor denial of an "or-equal" request shall result in any change in Contract Price. The Engineer's denial of an "or-equal" request shall be final and binding and may not be reversed through an appeal under any provision of the Contract Documents.
- E. *Treatment as a Substitution Request*: If Engineer determines that an item of material or equipment proposed by Contractor does not qualify as an "or-equal" item, Contractor may request that Engineer considered the proposed item as a substitute pursuant to Paragraph 7.05.

### 7.05 Substitutes

- A. Unless the specification or description of an item of material or equipment required to be furnished under the Contract Documents contains or is followed by words reading that no substitution is permitted, Contractor may request that Engineer authorize the use of other items of material or equipment under the circumstances described below. To the extent possible such requests shall be made before commencement of related construction at the Site.
  - Contractor shall submit sufficient information as provided below to allow Engineer to determine if the item of material or equipment proposed is functionally equivalent to that named and an acceptable substitute therefor. Engineer will not accept requests for review of proposed substitute items of material or equipment from anyone other than Contractor.
  - 2. The requirements for review by Engineer will be as set forth in Paragraph 7.05.B, as supplemented by the Specifications, and as Engineer may decide is appropriate under the circumstances.
  - Contractor shall make written application to Engineer for review of a proposed substitute item of material or equipment that Contractor seeks to furnish or use. The application:
    - a. shall certify that the proposed substitute item will:

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 29 of 68



- 1) perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design,
- be similar in substance to that specified, and
- 3) be suited to the same use as that specified.

#### b. will state:

- 1) the extent, if any, to which the use of the proposed substitute item will necessitate a change in Contract Times,
- 2) whether use of the proposed substitute item in the Work will require a change in any of the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with Owner for other work on the Project) to adapt the design to the proposed substitute item, and
- 3) whether incorporation or use of the proposed substitute item in connection with the Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty.

### c. will identify:

- 1) all variations of the proposed substitute item from that specified, and
- 2) available engineering, sales, maintenance, repair, and replacement services.
- d. shall contain an itemized estimate of all costs or credits that will result directly or indirectly from use of such substitute item, including but not limited to changes in Contract Price, shared savings, costs of redesign, and claims of other contractors affected by any resulting change.
- B. Engineer's Evaluation and Determination: Engineer will be allowed a reasonable time to evaluate each substitute request, and to obtain comments and direction from Owner. Engineer may require Contractor to furnish additional data about the proposed substitute item. Engineer will be the sole judge of acceptability. No substitute will be ordered, furnished, installed, or utilized until Engineer's review is complete and Engineer determines that the proposed item is an acceptable substitute. Engineer's determination will be evidenced by a Field Order or a proposed Change Order accounting for the substitution itself and all related impacts, including changes in Contract Price or Contract Times. Engineer will advise Contractor in writing of any negative determination.
- C. Special Guarantee: Owner may require Contractor to furnish at Contractor's expense a special performance guarantee or other surety with respect to any substitute.
- D. Reimbursement of Engineer's Cost: Engineer will record Engineer's costs in evaluating a substitute proposed or submitted by Contractor. Whether or not Engineer approves a substitute so proposed or submitted by Contractor, Contractor shall reimburse Owner for the reasonable charges of Engineer for evaluating each such proposed substitute. Contractor shall also reimburse Owner for the reasonable charges of Engineer for making changes in the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with Owner) resulting from the acceptance of each proposed substitute.
- E. *Contractor's Expense*: Contractor shall provide all data in support of any proposed substitute at Contractor's expense.

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 30 of 68



- F. Effect of Engineer's Determination: If Engineer approves the substitution request, Contractor shall execute the proposed Change Order and proceed with the substitution. The Engineer's denial of a substitution request shall be final and binding and may not be reversed through an appeal under any provision of the Contract Documents. Contractor may challenge the scope of reimbursement costs imposed under Paragraph 7.05.D, by timely submittal of a Change Proposal.
- 7.06 Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others
  - A. Contractor may retain Subcontractors and Suppliers for the performance of parts of the Work. Such Subcontractors and Suppliers must be acceptable to Owner.
  - B. Contractor shall retain specific Subcontractors, Suppliers, or other individuals or entities for the performance of designated parts of the Work if required by the Contract to do so.
  - C. Subsequent to the submittal of Contractor's Bid or final negotiation of the terms of the Contract, Owner may not require Contractor to retain any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity to furnish or perform any of the Work against which Contractor has reasonable objection.
  - D. Prior to entry into any binding subcontract or purchase order, Contractor shall submit to Owner the identity of the proposed Subcontractor or Supplier (unless Owner has already deemed such proposed Subcontractor or Supplier acceptable, during the bidding process or otherwise). Such proposed Subcontractor or Supplier shall be deemed acceptable to Owner unless Owner raises a substantive, reasonable objection within five days.
  - E. Owner may require the replacement of any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity retained by Contractor to perform any part of the Work. Owner also may require Contractor to retain specific replacements; provided, however, that Owner may not require a replacement to which Contractor has a reasonable objection. If Contractor has submitted the identity of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers, or other individuals or entities for acceptance by Owner, and Owner has accepted it (either in writing or by failing to make written objection thereto), then Owner may subsequently revoke the acceptance of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity so identified solely on the basis of substantive, reasonable objection after due investigation. Contractor shall submit an acceptable replacement for the rejected Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity.
  - F. If Owner requires the replacement of any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity retained by Contractor to perform any part of the Work, then Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, with respect to the replacement; and Contractor shall initiate a Change Proposal for such adjustment within 30 days of Owner's requirement of replacement.
  - G. No acceptance by Owner of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, whether initially or as a replacement, shall constitute a waiver of the right of Owner to the completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
  - H. On a monthly basis Contractor shall submit to Engineer a complete list of all Subcontractors and Suppliers having a direct contract with Contractor, and of all other Subcontractors and Suppliers known to Contractor at the time of submittal.

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 31 of 68



- I. Contractor shall be fully responsible to Owner and Engineer for all acts and omissions of the Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work just as Contractor is responsible for Contractor's own acts and omissions.
- J. Contractor shall be solely responsible for scheduling and coordinating the work of Subcontractors, Suppliers, and all other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work.
- K. Contractor shall restrict all Subcontractors, Suppliers, and such other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work from communicating with Engineer or Owner, except through Contractor or in case of an emergency, or as otherwise expressly allowed herein.
- L. The divisions and sections of the Specifications and the identifications of any Drawings shall not control Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or Suppliers or delineating the Work to be performed by any specific trade.
- M. All Work performed for Contractor by a Subcontractor or Supplier shall be pursuant to an appropriate contractual agreement that specifically binds the Subcontractor or Supplier to the applicable terms and conditions of the Contract Documents for the benefit of Owner and Engineer.
- N. Owner may furnish to any Subcontractor or Supplier, to the extent practicable, information about amounts paid to Contractor on account of Work performed for Contractor by the particular Subcontractor or Supplier.
- O. Nothing in the Contract Documents:
  - 1. shall create for the benefit of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity any contractual relationship between Owner or Engineer and any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity; nor
  - 2. shall create any obligation on the part of Owner or Engineer to pay or to see to the payment of any money due any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity except as may otherwise be required by Laws and Regulations.

# 7.07 Patent Fees and Royalties

- A. Contractor shall pay all license fees and royalties and assume all costs incident to the use in the performance of the Work or the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device which is the subject of patent rights or copyrights held by others. If a particular invention, design, process, product, or device is specified in the Contract Documents for use in the performance of the Work and if, to the actual knowledge of Owner or Engineer, its use is subject to patent rights or copyrights calling for the payment of any license fee or royalty to others, the existence of such rights shall be disclosed by Owner in the Contract Documents.
- B. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, and its officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any infringement of patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 32 of 68



performance of the Work or resulting from the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device specified in the Contract Documents, but not identified as being subject to payment of any license fee or royalty to others required by patent rights or copyrights.

C. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any infringement of patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the performance of the Work or resulting from the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device not specified in the Contract Documents.

#### 7.08 *Permits*

A. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall obtain and pay for all construction permits and licenses. Owner shall assist Contractor, when necessary, in obtaining such permits and licenses. Contractor shall pay all governmental charges and inspection fees necessary for the prosecution of the Work which are applicable at the time of the submission of Contractor's Bid (or when Contractor became bound under a negotiated contract). Owner shall pay all charges of utility owners for connections for providing permanent service to the Work

## 7.09 *Taxes*

A. Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes required to be paid by Contractor in accordance with the Laws and Regulations of the place of the Project which are applicable during the performance of the Work.

### 7.10 Laws and Regulations

- A. Contractor shall give all notices required by and shall comply with all Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Except where otherwise expressly required by applicable Laws and Regulations, neither Owner nor Engineer shall be responsible for monitoring Contractor's compliance with any Laws or Regulations.
- B. If Contractor performs any Work or takes any other action knowing or having reason to know that it is contrary to Laws or Regulations, Contractor shall bear all resulting costs and losses, and shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such Work or other action. It shall not be Contractor's responsibility to make certain that the Work described in the Contract Documents is in accordance with Laws and Regulations, but this shall not relieve Contractor of Contractor's obligations under Paragraph 3.03.
- C. Owner or Contractor may give notice to the other party of any changes after the submission of Contractor's Bid (or after the date when Contractor became bound under a negotiated contract) in Laws or Regulations having an effect on the cost or time of performance of the

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 33 of 68



Work, including but not limited to changes in Laws or Regulations having an effect on procuring permits and on sales, use, value-added, consumption, and other similar taxes. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times resulting from such changes, then within 30 days of such notice Contractor may submit a Change Proposal, or Owner may initiate a Claim.

### 7.11 Record Documents

A. Contractor shall maintain in a safe place at the Site one printed record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders, written interpretations and clarifications, and approved Shop Drawings. Contractor shall keep such record documents in good order and annotate them to show changes made during construction. These record documents, together with all approved Samples, will be available to Engineer for reference. Upon completion of the Work, Contractor shall deliver these record documents to Engineer.

### 7.12 Safety and Protection

- A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work. Such responsibility does not relieve Subcontractors of their responsibility for the safety of persons or property in the performance of their work, nor for compliance with applicable safety Laws and Regulations. Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury, or loss to:
  - 1. all persons on the Site or who may be affected by the Work;
  - 2. all the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the Site; and
  - other property at the Site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, other work in progress, utilities, and Underground Facilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of construction.
- B. Contractor shall comply with all applicable Laws and Regulations relating to the safety of persons or property, or to the protection of persons or property from damage, injury, or loss; and shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection. Contractor shall notify Owner; the owners of adjacent property, Underground Facilities, and other utilities; and other contractors and utility owners performing work at or adjacent to the Site, when prosecution of the Work may affect them, and shall cooperate with them in the protection, removal, relocation, and replacement of their property or work in progress.
- C. Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of Owner's safety programs, if any. The Supplementary Conditions identify any Owner's safety programs that are applicable to the Work.
- D. Contractor shall inform Owner and Engineer of the specific requirements of Contractor's safety program with which Owner's and Engineer's employees and representatives must comply while at the Site.

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 34 of 68



- E. All damage, injury, or loss to any property referred to in Paragraph 7.12.A.2 or 7.12.A.3 caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by Contractor, any Subcontractor, Supplier, or any other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, shall be remedied by Contractor at its expense (except damage or loss attributable to the fault of Drawings or Specifications or to the acts or omissions of Owner or Engineer or anyone employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, and not attributable, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to the fault or negligence of Contractor or any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them).
- F. Contractor's duties and responsibilities for safety and protection shall continue until such time as all the Work is completed and Engineer has issued a notice to Owner and Contractor in accordance with Paragraph 15.06.B that the Work is acceptable (except as otherwise expressly provided in connection with Substantial Completion).
- G. Contractor's duties and responsibilities for safety and protection shall resume whenever Contractor or any Subcontractor or Supplier returns to the Site to fulfill warranty or correction obligations, or to conduct other tasks arising from the Contract Documents.

## 7.13 Safety Representative

A. Contractor shall designate a qualified and experienced safety representative at the Site whose duties and responsibilities shall be the prevention of accidents and the maintaining and supervising of safety precautions and programs.

## 7.14 Hazard Communication Programs

A. Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating any exchange of material safety data sheets or other hazard communication information required to be made available to or exchanged between or among employers at the Site in accordance with Laws or Regulations.

### 7.15 *Emergencies*

A. In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, Contractor is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. Contractor shall give Engineer prompt written notice if Contractor believes that any significant changes in the Work or variations from the Contract Documents have been caused thereby or are required as a result thereof. If Engineer determines that a change in the Contract Documents is required because of the action taken by Contractor in response to such an emergency, a Work Change Directive or Change Order will be issued.

### 7.16 Shop Drawings, Samples, and Other Submittals

- A. Shop Drawing and Sample Submittal Requirements:
  - 1. Before submitting a Shop Drawing or Sample, Contractor shall have:
    - a. reviewed and coordinated the Shop Drawing or Sample with other Shop Drawings and Samples and with the requirements of the Work and the Contract Documents;
    - determined and verified all field measurements, quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, installation requirements, materials, catalog numbers, and similar information with respect thereto;

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 35 of 68



- c. determined and verified the suitability of all materials and equipment offered with respect to the indicated application, fabrication, shipping, handling, storage, assembly, and installation pertaining to the performance of the Work; and
- d. determined and verified all information relative to Contractor's responsibilities for means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto.
- Each submittal shall bear a stamp or specific written certification that Contractor has satisfied Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents with respect to Contractor's review of that submittal, and that Contractor approves the submittal.
- With each submittal, Contractor shall give Engineer specific written notice of any variations that the Shop Drawing or Sample may have from the requirements of the Contract Documents. This notice shall be set forth in a written communication separate from the Shop Drawings or Sample submittal; and, in addition, in the case of Shop Drawings by a specific notation made on each Shop Drawing submitted to Engineer for review and approval of each such variation.
- B. Submittal Procedures for Shop Drawings and Samples: Contractor shall submit Shop Drawings and Samples to Engineer for review and approval in accordance with the accepted Schedule of Submittals. Each submittal will be identified as Engineer may require.
  - 1. Shop Drawings:
    - a. Contractor shall submit the number of copies required in the Specifications.
    - b. Data shown on the Shop Drawings will be complete with respect to quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, materials, and similar data to show Engineer the services, materials, and equipment Contractor proposes to provide and to enable Engineer to review the information for the limited purposes required by Paragraph 7.16.D.

### 2. Samples:

- a. Contractor shall submit the number of Samples required in the Specifications.
- b. Contractor shall clearly identify each Sample as to material, Supplier, pertinent data such as catalog numbers, the use for which intended and other data as Engineer may require to enable Engineer to review the submittal for the limited purposes required by Paragraph 7.16.D.
- Where a Shop Drawing or Sample is required by the Contract Documents or the Schedule of Submittals, any related Work performed prior to Engineer's review and approval of the pertinent submittal will be at the sole expense and responsibility of Contractor.
- C. Other Submittals: Contractor shall submit other submittals to Engineer in accordance with the accepted Schedule of Submittals, and pursuant to the applicable terms of the Specifications.
- D. Engineer's Review:
  - 1. Engineer will provide timely review of Shop Drawings and Samples in accordance with

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 36 of 68



the Schedule of Submittals acceptable to Engineer. Engineer's review and approval will be only to determine if the items covered by the submittals will, after installation or incorporation in the Work, conform to the information given in the Contract Documents and be compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents.

- 2. Engineer's review and approval will not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or to safety precautions or programs incident thereto.
- 3. Engineer's review and approval of a separate item as such will not indicate approval of the assembly in which the item functions.
- 4. Engineer's review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for any variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents unless Contractor has complied with the requirements of Paragraph 7.16.A.3 and Engineer has given written approval of each such variation by specific written notation thereof incorporated in or accompanying the Shop Drawing or Sample. Engineer will document any such approved variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents in a Field Order.
- 5. Engineer's review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for complying with the requirements of Paragraph 7.16.A and B.
- Engineer's review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample, or of a variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents, shall not, under any circumstances, change the Contract Times or Contract Price, unless such changes are included in a Change Order.
- 7. Neither Engineer's receipt, review, acceptance or approval of a Shop Drawing, Sample, or other submittal shall result in such item becoming a Contract Document.
- 8. Contractor shall perform the Work in compliance with the requirements and commitments set forth in approved Shop Drawings and Samples, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 7.16.D.4.

### E. Resubmittal Procedures:

- Contractor shall make corrections required by Engineer and shall return the required number of corrected copies of Shop Drawings and submit, as required, new Samples for review and approval. Contractor shall direct specific attention in writing to revisions other than the corrections called for by Engineer on previous submittals.
- 2. Contractor shall furnish required submittals with sufficient information and accuracy to obtain required approval of an item with no more than three submittals. Engineer will record Engineer's time for reviewing a fourth or subsequent submittal of a Shop Drawings, sample, or other item requiring approval, and Contractor shall be responsible for Engineer's charges to Owner for such time. Owner may impose a set- off against payments due to Contractor to secure reimbursement for such charges.
- 3. If Contractor requests a change of a previously approved submittal item, Contractor shall be responsible for Engineer's charges to Owner for its review time, and Owner may



impose a set-off against payments due to Contractor to secure reimbursement for such charges, unless the need for such change is beyond the control of Contractor.

## 7.17 Contractor's General Warranty and Guarantee

- A. Contractor warrants and guarantees to Owner that all Work will be in accordance with the Contract Documents and will not be defective for a period of one year. The pump supplier shall provide a two-year warranty on the Pumps, Electrical Control Panel and any supplied appurtenances with the pump package that shall be transferred to the City. Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors shall be entitled to rely on Contractor's warranty and guarantee.
- B. Contractor's warranty and guarantee hereunder excludes defects or damage caused by:
  - 1. abuse, modification, or improper maintenance or operation by persons other than Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or any other individual or entity for whom Contractor is responsible; or
  - 2. normal wear and tear under normal usage.
- C. Contractor's obligation to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents shall be absolute. None of the following will constitute an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the Contract Documents or a release of Contractor's obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents:
  - 1. observations by Engineer;
  - 2. recommendation by Engineer or payment by Owner of any progress or final payment;
  - 3. the issuance of a certificate of Substantial Completion by Engineer or any payment related thereto by Owner;
  - 4. use or occupancy of the Work or any part thereof by Owner;
  - 5. any review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal;
  - 6. the issuance of a notice of acceptability by Engineer;
  - 7. any inspection, test, or approval by others; or
  - 8. any correction of defective Work by Owner.
- D. If the Contract requires the Contractor to accept the assignment of a contract entered into by Owner, then the specific warranties, guarantees, and correction obligations contained in the assigned contract shall govern with respect to Contractor's performance obligations to Owner for the Work described in the assigned contract.

### 7.18 *Indemnification*

A. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, and in addition to any other obligations of Contractor under the Contract or otherwise, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the performance of the Work, provided

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 38 of 68



that any such claim, cost, loss, or damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.

- B. In any and all claims against Owner or Engineer or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors by any employee (or the survivor or personal representative of such employee) of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under Paragraph 7.18.A shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Contractor or any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.
- C. The indemnification obligations of Contractor under Paragraph 7.18.A shall not extend to the liability of Engineer and Engineer's officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors arising out of:
  - 1. the preparation or approval of, or the failure to prepare or approve maps, Drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, Change Orders, designs, or Specifications; or
  - 2. giving directions or instructions, or failing to give them, if that is the primary cause of the injury or damage.

### 7.19 Delegation of Professional Design Services

- A. Contractor will not be required to provide professional design services unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of the Work or unless such services are required to carry out Contractor's responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures. Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services in violation of applicable Laws and Regulations.
- B. If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials, or equipment are specifically required of Contractor by the Contract Documents, Owner and Engineer will specify all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by a properly licensed professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, and other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional's written approval when submitted to Engineer.
- C. Owner and Engineer shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy, and completeness of the services, certifications, or approvals performed by such design professionals, provided Owner and Engineer have specified to Contractor all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy.
- D. Pursuant to this paragraph, Engineer's review and approval of design calculations and design drawings will be only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with performance

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 39 of 68



- and design criteria given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Engineer's review and approval of Shop Drawings and other submittals (except design calculations and design drawings) will be only for the purpose stated in Paragraph 7.16.D.1.
- E. Contractor shall not be responsible for the adequacy of the performance or design criteria specified by Owner or Engineer.

### **ARTICLE 8 – OTHER WORK AT THE SITE**

#### 8.01 Other Work

- A. In addition to and apart from the Work under the Contract Documents, the Owner may perform other work at or adjacent to the Site. Such other work may be performed by Owner's employees, or through contracts between the Owner and third parties. Owner may also arrange to have third-party utility owners perform work on their utilities and facilities at or adjacent to the Site.
- B. If Owner performs other work at or adjacent to the Site with Owner's employees, or through contracts for such other work, then Owner shall give Contractor written notice thereof prior to starting any such other work. If Owner has advance information regarding the start of any utility work at or adjacent to the Site, Owner shall provide such information to Contractor.
- C. Contractor shall afford each other contractor that performs such other work, each utility owner performing other work, and Owner, if Owner is performing other work with Owner's employees, proper and safe access to the Site, and provide a reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and the execution of such other work. Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, and patching of the Work that may be required to properly connect or otherwise make its several parts come together and properly integrate with such other work. Contractor shall not endanger any work of others by cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering such work; provided, however, that Contractor may cut or alter others' work with the written consent of Engineer and the others whose work will be affected.
- D. If the proper execution or results of any part of Contractor's Work depends upon work performed by others under this Article 8, Contractor shall inspect such other work and promptly report to Engineer in writing any delays, defects, or deficiencies in such other work that render it unavailable or unsuitable for the proper execution and results of Contractor's Work. Contractor's failure to so report will constitute an acceptance of such other work as fit and proper for integration with Contractor's Work except for latent defects and deficiencies in such other work.

### 8.02 Coordination

- A. If Owner intends to contract with others for the performance of other work at or adjacent to the Site, to perform other work at or adjacent to the Site with Owner's employees, or to arrange to have utility owners perform work at or adjacent to the Site, the following will be set forth in the Supplementary Conditions or provided to Contractor prior to the start of any such other work:
  - 1. the identity of the individual or entity that will have authority and responsibility for coordination of the activities among the various contractors;

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 40 of 68



- 2. an itemization of the specific matters to be covered by such authority and responsibility; and
- 3. the extent of such authority and responsibilities.
- B. Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Owner shall have sole authority and responsibility for such coordination.

### 8.03 Legal Relationships

- If, in the course of performing other work at or adjacent to the Site for Owner, the Owner's employees, any other contractor working for Owner, or any utility owner for whom the Owner is responsible causes damage to the Work or to the property of Contractor or its Subcontractors, or delays, disrupts, interferes with, or increases the scope or cost of the performance of the Work, through actions or inaction, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both. Contractor must submit any Change Proposal seeking an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times under this paragraph within 30 days of the damaging, delaying, disrupting, or interfering event. The entitlement to, and extent of, any such equitable adjustment shall take into account information (if any) regarding such other work that was provided to Contractor in the Contract Documents prior to the submittal of the Bid or the final negotiation of the terms of the Contract. When applicable, any such equitable adjustment in Contract Price shall be conditioned on Contractor assigning to Owner all Contractor's rights against such other contractor or utility owner with respect to the damage, delay, disruption, or interference that is the subject of the adjustment. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times.
- B. Contractor shall take reasonable and customary measures to avoid damaging, delaying, disrupting, or interfering with the work of Owner, any other contractor, or any utility owner performing other work at or adjacent to the Site. If Contractor fails to take such measures and as a result damages, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the work of any such other contractor or utility owner, then Owner may impose a set-off against payments due to Contractor, and assign to such other contractor or utility owner the Owner's contractual rights against Contractor with respect to the breach of the obligations set forth in this paragraph.
- C. When Owner is performing other work at or adjacent to the Site with Owner's employees, Contractor shall be liable to Owner for damage to such other work, and for the reasonable direct delay, disruption, and interference costs incurred by Owner as a result of Contractor's failure to take reasonable and customary measures with respect to Owner's other work. In response to such damage, delay, disruption, or interference, Owner may impose a set-off against payments due to Contractor.
- D. If Contractor damages, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the work of any other contractor, or any utility owner performing other work at or adjacent to the Site, through Contractor's failure to take reasonable and customary measures to avoid such impacts, or if any claim arising out of Contractor's actions, inactions, or negligence in performance of the Work at or adjacent to the Site is made by any such other contractor or utility owner against Contractor, Owner, or Engineer, then Contractor shall (1) promptly attempt to settle the claim as to all

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 41 of 68



parties through negotiations with such other contractor or utility owner, or otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding or at law, and (2) indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against any such claims, and against all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such damage, delay, disruption, or interference.

### **ARTICLE 9 – OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES**

- 9.01 Communications to Contractor
  - A. Except as otherwise provided in these General Conditions, Owner shall issue all communications to Contractor through Engineer.
- 9.02 Replacement of Engineer
  - A. Owner may at its discretion appoint an engineer to replace Engineer, provided Contractor makes no reasonable objection to the replacement engineer. The replacement engineer's status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the former Engineer.
- 9.03 Furnish Data
  - A. Owner shall promptly furnish the data required of Owner under the Contract Documents.
- 9.04 Pay When Due
  - A. Owner shall make payments to Contractor when they are due as provided in the Agreement.
- 9.05 Lands and Easements; Reports, Tests, and Drawings
  - A. Owner's duties with respect to providing lands and easements are set forth in Paragraph 5.01.
  - B. Owner's duties with respect to providing engineering surveys to establish reference points are set forth in Paragraph 4.03.
  - C. Article 5 refers to Owner's identifying and making available to Contractor copies of reports of explorations and tests of conditions at the Site, and drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site.
- 9.06 Insurance
  - A. Owner's responsibilities, if any, with respect to purchasing and maintaining liability and property insurance as set forth in Article 6.
- 9.07 Change Orders
  - A. Owner's responsibilities with respect to Change Orders are set forth in Article 11.
- 9.08 Inspections, Tests, and Approvals
  - A. Owner's responsibility with respect to certain inspections, tests, and approvals is set forth in Paragraph 14.02.B.
- 9.09 Limitations on Owner's Responsibilities



A. The Owner shall not supervise, direct, or have control or authority over, nor be responsible for, Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Owner will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

#### 9.10 Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition

A. Owner's responsibility in respect to an undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition is set forth in Paragraph 5.06.

### 9.11 Evidence of Financial Arrangements

A. Upon request of Contractor, Owner shall furnish Contractor reasonable evidence that financial arrangements have been made to satisfy Owner's obligations under the Contract Documents (including obligations under proposed changes in the Work).

### 9.12 Safety Programs

- A. While at the Site, Owner's employees and representatives shall comply with the specific applicable requirements of Contractor's safety programs of which Owner has been informed.
- B. Owner shall furnish copies of any applicable Owner safety programs to Contractor.

#### **ARTICLE 10 – ENGINEER'S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION**

#### 10.01 Owner's Representative

A. Engineer will be Owner's representative during the construction period. The duties and responsibilities and the limitations of authority of Engineer as Owner's representative during construction are set forth in the Contract.

#### 10.02 Visits to Site

- A. Engineer will make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction as Engineer deems necessary in order to observe as an experienced and qualified design professional the progress that has been made and the quality of the various aspects of Contractor's executed Work. Based on information obtained during such visits and observations, Engineer, for the benefit of Owner, will determine, in general, if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. Engineer will not be required to make exhaustive or continuous inspections on the Site to check the quality or quantity of the Work. Engineer's efforts will be directed toward providing for Owner a greater degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform generally to the Contract Documents. On the basis of such visits and observations, Engineer will keep Owner informed of the progress of the Work and will endeavor to guard Owner against defective Work.
- 3. Engineer's visits and observations are subject to all the limitations on Engineer's authority and responsibility set forth in Paragraph 10.08. Particularly, but without limitation, during or as a result of Engineer's visits or observations of Contractor's Work, Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 43 of 68



Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work.

### 10.03 Project Representative

A. If Owner and Engineer have agreed that Engineer will furnish a Resident Project Representative to represent Engineer at the Site and assist Engineer in observing the progress and quality of the Work, then the authority and responsibilities of any such Resident Project Representative will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions, and limitations on the responsibilities thereof will be as provided in Paragraph 10.08. If Owner designates another representative or agent to represent Owner at the Site who is not Engineer's consultant, agent, or employee, the responsibilities and authority and limitations thereon of such other individual or entity will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions.

### 10.04 Rejecting Defective Work

A. Engineer has the authority to reject Work in accordance with Article 14.

### 10.05 Shop Drawings, Change Orders and Payments

- A. Engineer's authority, and limitations thereof, as to Shop Drawings and Samples, are set forth in Paragraph 7.16.
- B. Engineer's authority, and limitations thereof, as to design calculations and design drawings submitted in response to a delegation of professional design services, if any, are set forth in Paragraph 7.19.
- C. Engineer's authority as to Change Orders is set forth in Article 11.
- D. Engineer's authority as to Applications for Payment is set forth in Article 15.

### 10.06 Determinations for Unit Price Work

A. Engineer will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor as set forth in Paragraph 13.03.

## 10.07 Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work

A. Engineer will render decisions regarding the requirements of the Contract Documents, and judge the acceptability of the Work, pursuant to the specific procedures set forth herein for initial interpretations, Change Proposals, and acceptance of the Work. In rendering such decisions and judgments, Engineer will not show partiality to Owner or Contractor, and will not be liable to Owner, Contractor, or others in connection with any proceedings, interpretations, decisions, or judgments conducted or rendered in good faith.

### 10.08 Limitations on Engineer's Authority and Responsibilities

- A. Neither Engineer's authority or responsibility under this Article 10 or under any other provision of the Contract, nor any decision made by Engineer in good faith either to exercise or not exercise such authority or responsibility or the undertaking, exercise, or performance of any authority or responsibility by Engineer, shall create, impose, or give rise to any duty in contract, tort, or otherwise owed by Engineer to Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee or agent of any of them.
- 3. Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 44 of 68



safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Engineer will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

- C. Engineer will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of Contractor or of any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or of any other individual or entity performing any of the Work.
- D. Engineer's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation and all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, and other documentation required to be delivered by Paragraph 15.06.A will only be to determine generally that their content complies with the requirements of, and in the case of certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals, that the results certified indicate compliance with the Contract Documents.
- E. The limitations upon authority and responsibility set forth in this Paragraph 10.08 shall also apply to the Resident Project Representative, if any.

## 10.09 Compliance with Safety Program

A. While at the Site, Engineer's employees and representatives will comply with the specific applicable requirements of Owner's and Contractor's safety programs (if any) of which Engineer has been informed.

### ARTICLE 11 – AMENDING THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS; CHANGES IN THE WORK

### 11.01 Amending and Supplementing Contract Documents

- A. The Contract Documents may be amended or supplemented by a Change Order, a Work Change Directive, or a Field Order.
  - 1. Change Orders:
    - a. If an amendment or supplement to the Contract Documents includes a change in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, such amendment or supplement must be set forth in a Change Order. A Change Order also may be used to establish amendments and supplements of the Contract Documents that do not affect the Contract Price or Contract Times.
    - b. Owner and Contractor may amend those terms and conditions of the Contract Documents that do not involve (1) the performance or acceptability of the Work,
      (2) the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (3) other engineering or technical matters, without the recommendation of the Engineer. Such an amendment shall be set forth in a Change Order.
  - 2. Work Change Directives: A Work Change Directive will not change the Contract Price or the Contract Times but is evidence that the parties expect that the modification ordered or documented by a Work Change Directive will be incorporated in a subsequently issued Change Order, following negotiations by the parties as to the Work Change Directive's effect, if any, on the Contract Price and Contract Times; or, if negotiations are unsuccessful, by a determination under the terms of the Contract Documents governing adjustments, expressly including Paragraph 11.04 regarding change of

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 45 of 68



Contract Price. Contractor must submit any Change Proposal seeking an adjustment of the Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both, no later than 30 days after the completion of the Work set out in the Work Change Directive. Owner must submit any Claim seeking an adjustment of the Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both, no later than 60 days after issuance of the Work Change Directive.

3. Field Orders: Engineer may authorize minor changes in the Work if the changes do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times and are compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents. Such changes will be accomplished by a Field Order and will be binding on Owner and also on Contractor, which shall perform the Work involved promptly. If Contractor believes that a Field Order justifies an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, then before proceeding with the Work at issue, Contractor shall submit a Change Proposal as provided herein.

### 11.02 Owner-Authorized Changes in the Work

A. Without invalidating the Contract and without notice to any surety, Owner may, at any time or from time to time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work. Such changes shall be supported by Engineer's recommendation, to the extent the change involves the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or other engineering or technical matters. Such changes may be accomplished by a Change Order, if Owner and Contractor have agreed as to the effect, if any, of the changes on Contract Times or Contract Price; or by a Work Change Directive. Upon receipt of any such document, Contractor shall promptly proceed with the Work involved; or, in the case of a deletion in the Work, promptly cease construction activities with respect to such deleted Work. Added or revised Work shall be performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents. Nothing in this paragraph shall obligate Contractor to undertake work that Contractor reasonably concludes cannot be performed in a manner consistent with Contractor's safety obligations under the Contract Documents or Laws and Regulations.

### 11.03 Unauthorized Changes in the Work

A. Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times with respect to any work performed that is not required by the Contract Documents, as amended, modified, or supplemented, except in the case of an emergency as provided in Paragraph 7.15 or in the case of uncovering Work as provided in Paragraph 14.05.

### 11.04 Change of Contract Price

- A. The Contract Price may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Change Proposal for an adjustment in the Contract Price shall comply with the provisions of Paragraph 11.06. Any Claim for an adjustment of Contract Price shall comply with the provisions of Article 12.
- B. An adjustment in the Contract Price will be determined as follows:
  - 1. where the Work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, then by application of such unit prices to the quantities of the items involved (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 13.03); or
  - 2. where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, then by a mutually agreed lump sum (which may include an allowance for

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 46 of 68



- overhead and profit not necessarily in accordance with Paragraph 11.04.C.2); or
- 3. where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents and the parties do not reach mutual agreement to a lump sum, then on the basis of the Cost of the Work (determined as provided in Paragraph 13.01) plus a Contractor's fee for overhead and profit (determined as provided in Paragraph 11.04.C).
- C. *Contractor's Fee*: When applicable, the Contractor's fee for overhead and profit shall be determined as follows:
  - 1. a mutually acceptable fixed fee; or
  - 2. if a fixed fee is not agreed upon, then a fee based on the following percentages of the various portions of the Cost of the Work:
    - a. for costs incurred under Paragraphs 13.01.B.1 and 13.01.B.2, the Contractor's fee shall be 15 percent;
    - b. for costs incurred under Paragraph 13.01.B.3, the Contractor's fee shall be five percent;
    - c. where one or more tiers of subcontracts are on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee and no fixed fee is agreed upon, the intent of Paragraphs 11.04.C.2.a and 11.04.C.2.b is that the Contractor's fee shall be based on: (1) a fee of 15 percent of the costs incurred under Paragraphs 13.01.A.1 and 13.01.A.2 by the Subcontractor that actually performs the Work, at whatever tier, and (2) with respect to Contractor itself and to any Subcontractors of a tier higher than that of the Subcontractor that actually performs the Work, a fee of five percent of the amount (fee plus underlying costs incurred) attributable to the next lower tier Subcontractor; provided, however, that for any such subcontracted work the maximum total fee to be paid by Owner shall be no greater than 27 percent of the costs incurred by the Subcontractor that actually performs the work;
    - d. no fee shall be payable on the basis of costs itemized under Paragraphs 13.01.B.4, 13.01.B.5, and 13.01.C;
    - e. the amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to Owner for any change which results in a net decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease in cost plus a deduction in Contractor's fee by an amount equal to five percent of such net decrease; and
    - f. when both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the adjustment in Contractor's fee shall be computed on the basis of the net change in accordance with Paragraphs 11.04.C.2.a through 11.04.C.2.e, inclusive.

## 11.05 Change of Contract Times

- A. The Contract Times may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Change Proposal for an adjustment in the Contract Times shall comply with the provisions of Paragraph 11.06. Any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Times shall comply with the provisions of Article 12.
- B. An adjustment of the Contract Times shall be subject to the limitations set forth in Paragraph 4.05, concerning delays in Contractor's progress.

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 47 of 68



### 11.06 Change Proposals

- A. Contractor shall submit a Change Proposal to Engineer to request an adjustment in the Contract Times or Contract Price; appeal an initial decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the Contract Documents; contest a set-off against payment due; or seek other relief under the Contract. The Change Proposal shall specify any proposed change in Contract Times or Contract Price, or both, or other proposed relief, and explain the reason for the proposed change, with citations to any governing or applicable provisions of the Contract Documents.
  - 1. Procedures: Contractor shall submit each Change Proposal to Engineer promptly (but in no event later than 30 days) after the start of the event giving rise thereto, or after such initial decision. The Contractor shall submit supporting data, including the proposed change in Contract Price or Contract Time (if any), to the Engineer and Owner within 15 days after the submittal of the Change Proposal. The supporting data shall be accompanied by a written statement that the supporting data are accurate and complete, and that any requested time or price adjustment is the entire adjustment to which Contractor believes it is entitled as a result of said event. Engineer will advise Owner regarding the Change Proposal and consider any comments or response from Owner regarding the Change Proposal.
  - 2. Engineer's Action: Engineer will review each Change Proposal and, within 30 days after receipt of the Contractor's supporting data, either deny the Change Proposal in whole, approve it in whole, or deny it in part and approve it in part. Such actions shall be in writing, with a copy provided to Owner and Contractor. If Engineer does not take action on the Change Proposal within 30 days, then either Owner or Contractor may at any time thereafter submit a letter to the other party indicating that as a result of Engineer's inaction the Change Proposal is deemed denied, thereby commencing the time for appeal of the denial under Article 12.
  - 3. *Binding Decision*: Engineer's decision will be final and binding upon Owner and Contractor, unless Owner or Contractor appeals the decision by filing a Claim under Article 12.
- B. Resolution of Certain Change Proposals: If the Change Proposal does not involve the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), the acceptability of the Work, or other engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will notify the parties that the Engineer is unable to resolve the Change Proposal. For purposes of further resolution of such a Change Proposal, such notice shall be deemed a denial, and Contractor may choose to seek resolution under the terms of Article 12.

### 11.07 Execution of Change Orders

- A. Owner and Contractor shall execute appropriate Change Orders covering:
  - changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times which are agreed to by the parties, including any undisputed sum or amount of time for Work actually performed in accordance with a Work Change Directive;
  - changes in Contract Price resulting from an Owner set-off, unless Contractor has duly contested such set-off;

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 48 of 68



- 3. changes in the Work which are: (a) ordered by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 11.02, (b) required because of Owner's acceptance of defective Work under Paragraph 14.04 or Owner's correction of defective Work under Paragraph 14.07, or (c) agreed to by the parties, subject to the need for Engineer's recommendation if the change in the Work involves the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or other engineering or technical matters; and
- 4. changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or other changes, which embody the substance of any final and binding results under Paragraph 11.06, or Article 12.
- B. If Owner or Contractor refuses to execute a Change Order that is required to be executed under the terms of this Paragraph 11.07, it shall be deemed to be of full force and effect, as if fully executed.

### 11.08 Notification to Surety

A. If the provisions of any bond require notice to be given to a surety of any change affecting the general scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, Contract Price or Contract Times), the giving of any such notice will be Contractor's responsibility. The amount of each applicable bond will be adjusted to reflect the effect of any such change.

#### **ARTICLE 12 – CLAIMS**

### 12.01 *Claims*

- A. *Claims Process*: The following disputes between Owner and Contractor shall be submitted to the Claims process set forth in this Article:
  - 1. Appeals by Owner or Contractor of Engineer's decisions regarding Change Proposals;
  - 2. Owner demands for adjustments in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or other relief under the Contract Documents; and
  - 3. Disputes that Engineer has been unable to address because they do not involve the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), the acceptability of the Work, or other engineering or technical matters.
- B. Submittal of Claim: The party submitting a Claim shall deliver it directly to the other party to the Contract promptly (but in no event later than 30 days) after the start of the event giving rise thereto; in the case of appeals regarding Change Proposals within 30 days of the decision under appeal. The party submitting the Claim shall also furnish a copy to the Engineer, for its information only. The responsibility to substantiate a Claim shall rest with the party making the Claim. In the case of a Claim by Contractor seeking an increase in the Contract Times or Contract Price, or both, Contractor shall certify that the Claim is made in good faith, that the supporting data are accurate and complete, and that to the best of Contractor's knowledge and belief the amount of time or money requested accurately reflects the full amount to which Contractor is entitled.
- C. Review and Resolution: The party receiving a Claim shall review it thoroughly, giving full consideration to its merits. The two parties shall seek to resolve the Claim through the exchange of information and direct negotiations. The parties may extend the time for

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 49 of 68



resolving the Claim by mutual agreement. All actions taken on a Claim shall be stated in writing and submitted to the other party, with a copy to Engineer.

#### D. Mediation:

- At any time after initiation of a Claim, Owner and Contractor may mutually agree to mediation of the underlying dispute. The agreement to mediate shall stay the Claim submittal and response process.
- 2. If Owner and Contractor agree to mediation, then after 60 days from such agreement, either Owner or Contractor may unilaterally terminate the mediation process, and the Claim submittal and decision process shall resume as of the date of the termination. If the mediation proceeds but is unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, the Claim submittal and decision process shall resume as of the date of the conclusion of the mediation, as determined by the mediator.
- 3. Owner and Contractor shall each pay one-half of the mediator's fees and costs.
- E. *Partial Approval*: If the party receiving a Claim approves the Claim in part and denies it in part, such action shall be final and binding unless within 30 days of such action the other party invokes the procedure set forth in Article 17 for final resolution of disputes.
- F. Denial of Claim: If efforts to resolve a Claim are not successful, the party receiving the Claim may deny it by giving written notice of denial to the other party. If the receiving party does not take action on the Claim within 90 days, then either Owner or Contractor may at any time thereafter submit a letter to the other party indicating that as a result of the inaction, the Claim is deemed denied, thereby commencing the time for appeal of the denial. A denial of the Claim shall be final and binding unless within 30 days of the denial the other party invokes the procedure set forth in Article 17 for the final resolution of disputes.
- G. Final and Binding Results: If the parties reach a mutual agreement regarding a Claim, whether through approval of the Claim, direct negotiations, mediation, or otherwise; or if a Claim is approved in part and denied in part, or denied in full, and such actions become final and binding; then the results of the agreement or action on the Claim shall be incorporated in a Change Order to the extent they affect the Contract, including the Work, the Contract Times, or the Contract Price.

### ARTICLE 13 – COST OF THE WORK; ALLOWANCES; UNIT PRICE WORK

### 13.01 Cost of the Work

- A. Purposes for Determination of Cost of the Work: The term Cost of the Work means the sum of all costs necessary for the proper performance of the Work at issue, as further defined below. The provisions of this Paragraph 13.01 are used for two distinct purposes:
  - 1. To determine Cost of the Work when Cost of the Work is a component of the Contract Price, under cost-plus-fee, time-and-materials, or other cost-based terms; or
  - 2. To determine the value of a Change Order, Change Proposal, Claim, set-off, or other adjustment in Contract Price. When the value of any such adjustment is determined on the basis of Cost of the Work, Contractor is entitled only to those additional or incremental costs required because of the change in the Work or because of the event

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 50 of 68



giving rise to the adjustment.

- B. Costs Included: Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by Owner, costs included in the Cost of the Work shall be in amounts no higher than those prevailing in the locality of the Project, shall not include any of the costs itemized in Paragraph 13.01.C, and shall include only the following items:
  - Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of Contractor in the performance of the Work under schedules of job classifications agreed upon by Owner and Contractor. Such employees shall include, without limitation, superintendents, foremen, and other personnel employed full time on the Work. Payroll costs for employees not employed full time on the Work shall be apportioned on the basis of their time spent on the Work. Payroll costs shall include, but not be limited to, salaries and wages plus the cost of fringe benefits, which shall include social security contributions, unemployment, excise, and payroll taxes, workers' compensation, health and retirement benefits, bonuses, sick leave, and vacation and holiday pay applicable thereto. The expenses of performing Work outside of regular working hours, on Saturday, Sunday, or legal holidays, shall be included in the above to the extent authorized by Owner.
  - 2. Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated in the Work, including costs of transportation and storage thereof, and Suppliers' field services required in connection therewith. All cash discounts shall accrue to Contractor unless Owner deposits funds with Contractor with which to make payments, in which case the cash discounts shall accrue to Owner. All trade discounts, rebates, and refunds and returns from sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to Owner, and Contractor shall make provisions so that they may be obtained.
  - 3. Payments made by Contractor to Subcontractors for Work performed by Subcontractors. If required by Owner, Contractor shall obtain competitive bids from subcontractors acceptable to Owner and Contractor and shall deliver such bids to Owner, who will then determine, with the advice of Engineer, which bids, if any, will be acceptable. If any subcontract provides that the Subcontractor is to be paid on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee, the Subcontractor's Cost of the Work and fee shall be determined in the same manner as Contractor's Cost of the Work and fee as provided in this Paragraph 13.01.
  - Costs of special consultants (including but not limited to engineers, architects, testing laboratories, surveyors, attorneys, and accountants) employed for services specifically related to the Work.
  - 5. Supplemental costs including the following:
    - a. The proportion of necessary transportation, travel, and subsistence expenses of Contractor's employees incurred in discharge of duties connected with the Work.
    - b. Cost, including transportation and maintenance, of all materials, supplies, equipment, machinery, appliances, office, and temporary facilities at the Site, and hand tools not owned by the workers, which are consumed in the performance of the Work, and cost, less market value, of such items used but not consumed which remain the property of Contractor.
    - c. Rentals of all construction equipment and machinery, and the parts thereof,

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 51 of 68



whether rented from Contractor or others in accordance with rental agreements approved by Owner with the advice of Engineer, and the costs of transportation, loading, unloading, assembly, dismantling, and removal thereof. All such costs shall be in accordance with the terms of said rental agreements. The rental of any such equipment, machinery, or parts shall cease when the use thereof is no longer necessary for the Work.

- d. Sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes related to the Work, and for which Contractor is liable, as imposed by Laws and Regulations.
- e. Deposits lost for causes other than negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, and royalty payments and fees for permits and licenses.
- f. Losses and damages (and related expenses) caused by damage to the Work, not compensated by insurance or otherwise, sustained by Contractor in connection with the performance of the Work (except losses and damages within the deductible amounts of property insurance established in accordance with Paragraph 6.05), provided such losses and damages have resulted from causes other than the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable. Such losses shall include settlements made with the written consent and approval of Owner. No such losses, damages, and expenses shall be included in the Cost of the Work for the purpose of determining Contractor's fee.
- g. The cost of utilities, fuel, and sanitary facilities at the Site.
- h. Minor expenses such as communication service at the Site, express and courier services, and similar petty cash items in connection with the Work.
- i. The costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance that Contractor is required by the Contract Documents to purchase and maintain.
- C. Costs Excluded: The term Cost of the Work shall not include any of the following items:
  - 1. Payroll costs and other compensation of Contractor's officers, executives, principals (of partnerships and sole proprietorships), general managers, safety managers, engineers, architects, estimators, attorneys, auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agents, expediters, timekeepers, clerks, and other personnel employed by Contractor, whether at the Site or in Contractor's principal or branch office for general administration of the Work and not specifically included in the agreed upon schedule of job classifications referred to in Paragraph 13.01.B.1 or specifically covered by Paragraph 13.01.B.4. The payroll costs and other compensation excluded here are to be considered administrative costs covered by the Contractor's fee.
  - 2. Expenses of Contractor's principal and branch offices other than Contractor's office at the Site.
  - 3. Any part of Contractor's capital expenses, including interest on Contractor's capital employed for the Work and charges against Contractor for delinquent payments.
  - Costs due to the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable,

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 52 of 68



- including but not limited to, the correction of defective Work, disposal of materials or equipment wrongly supplied, and making good any damage to property.
- 5. Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not specifically and expressly included in Paragraph 13.01.B.
- D. Contractor's Fee: When the Work as a whole is performed on the basis of cost-plus, Contractor's fee shall be determined as set forth in the Agreement. When the value of any Work covered by a Change Order, Change Proposal, Claim, set-off, or other adjustment in Contract Price is determined on the basis of Cost of the Work, Contractor's fee shall be determined as set forth in Paragraph 11.04.C.
- E. *Documentation*: Whenever the Cost of the Work for any purpose is to be determined pursuant to this Article 13, Contractor will establish and maintain records thereof in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and submit in a form acceptable to Engineer an itemized cost breakdown together with supporting data.

#### 13.02 Allowances

- A. It is understood that Contractor has included in the Contract Price all allowances so named in the Contract Documents and shall cause the Work so covered to be performed for such sums and by such persons or entities as may be acceptable to Owner and Engineer.
- B. Cash Allowances: Contractor agrees that:
  - the cash allowances include the cost to Contractor (less any applicable trade discounts)
    of materials and equipment required by the allowances to be delivered at the Site, and
    all applicable taxes; and
  - 2. Contractor's costs for unloading and handling on the Site, labor, installation, overhead, profit, and other expenses contemplated for the cash allowances have been included in the Contract Price and not in the allowances, and no demand for additional payment on account of any of the foregoing will be valid.
- C. *Contingency Allowance*: Contractor agrees that a contingency allowance, if any, is for the sole use of Owner to cover unanticipated costs.
- D. Prior to final payment, an appropriate Change Order will be issued as recommended by Engineer to reflect actual amounts due Contractor on account of Work covered by allowances, and the Contract Price shall be correspondingly adjusted.

#### 13.03 Unit Price Work

- A. Where the Contract Documents provide that all or part of the Work is to be Unit Price Work, initially the Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal to the sum of the unit price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of each item as indicated in the Agreement.
- B. The estimated quantities of items of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids and determining an initial Contract Price. Payments to Contractor for Unit Price Work will be based on actual quantities.
- C. Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by Contractor to be adequate to cover Contractor's overhead and profit for each separately identified item.



- D. Engineer will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor. Engineer will review with Contractor the Engineer's preliminary determinations on such matters before rendering a written decision thereon (by recommendation of an Application for Payment or otherwise). Engineer's written decision thereon will be final and binding (except as modified by Engineer to reflect changed factual conditions or more accurate data) upon Owner and Contractor, subject to the provisions of the following paragraph.
- E. Within 30 days of Engineer's written decision under the preceding paragraph, Contractor may submit a Change Proposal, or Owner may file a Claim, seeking an adjustment in the Contract Price if:
  - 1. the quantity of any item of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor differs materially and significantly from the estimated quantity of such item indicated in the Agreement;
  - 2. there is no corresponding adjustment with respect to any other item of Work; and
  - Contractor believes that it is entitled to an increase in Contract Price as a result of having
    incurred additional expense or Owner believes that Owner is entitled to a decrease in
    Contract Price, and the parties are unable to agree as to the amount of any such increase
    or decrease.

### ARTICLE 14 – TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL OR ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK

#### 14.01 Access to Work

A. Owner, Engineer, their consultants and other representatives and personnel of Owner, independent testing laboratories, and authorities having jurisdiction will have access to the Site and the Work at reasonable times for their observation, inspection, and testing. Contractor shall provide them proper and safe conditions for such access and advise them of Contractor's safety procedures and programs so that they may comply therewith as applicable.

#### 14.02 Tests, Inspections, and Approvals

- A. Contractor shall give Engineer timely notice of readiness of the Work (or specific parts thereof) for all required inspections and tests and shall cooperate with inspection and testing personnel to facilitate required inspections and tests.
- 3. Owner shall retain and pay for the services of an independent inspector, testing laboratory, or other qualified individual or entity to perform all inspections and tests expressly required by the Contract Documents to be furnished and paid for by Owner, except that costs incurred in connection with tests or inspections of covered Work shall be governed by the provisions of Paragraph 14.05.
- C. If Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction require any Work (or part thereof) specifically to be inspected, tested, or approved by an employee or other representative of such public body, Contractor shall assume full responsibility for arranging and obtaining such inspections, tests, or approvals, pay all costs in connection therewith, and furnish Engineer the required certificates of inspection or approval.

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 54 of 68



- D. Contractor shall be responsible for arranging, obtaining, and paying for all inspections and tests required:
  - 1. by the Contract Documents, unless the Contract Documents expressly allocate responsibility for a specific inspection or test to Owner;
  - 2. to attain Owner's and Engineer's acceptance of materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work;
  - 3. by manufacturers of equipment furnished under the Contract Documents;
  - 4. for testing, adjusting, and balancing of mechanical, electrical, and other equipment to be incorporated into the Work; and
  - 5. for acceptance of materials, mix designs, or equipment submitted for approval prior to Contractor's purchase thereof for incorporation in the Work.

Such inspections and tests shall be performed by independent inspectors, testing laboratories, or other qualified individuals or entities acceptable to Owner and Engineer.

- E. If the Contract Documents require the Work (or part thereof) to be approved by Owner, Engineer, or another designated individual or entity, then Contractor shall assume full responsibility for arranging and obtaining such approvals.
- F. If any Work (or the work of others) that is to be inspected, tested, or approved is covered by Contractor without written concurrence of Engineer, Contractor shall, if requested by Engineer, uncover such Work for observation. Such uncovering shall be at Contractor's expense unless Contractor had given Engineer timely notice of Contractor's intention to cover the same and Engineer had not acted with reasonable promptness in response to such notice.

#### 14.03 Defective Work

- A. Contractor's Obligation: It is Contractor's obligation to assure that the Work is not defective for a period of one year. The pump supplier shall provide a two-year warranty on the Pumps, Electrical Control Panel and any supplied appurtenances with the pump package that shall be transferred to the City.
- B. *Engineer's Authority*: Engineer has the authority to determine whether Work is defective, and to reject defective Work.
- C. *Notice of Defects*: Prompt notice of all defective Work of which Owner or Engineer has actual knowledge will be given to Contractor.
- D. *Correction, or Removal and Replacement*: Promptly after receipt of written notice of defective Work, Contractor shall correct all such defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed, or, if Engineer has rejected the defective Work, remove it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not defective.
- E. *Preservation of Warranties*: When correcting defective Work, Contractor shall take no action that would void or otherwise impair Owner's special warranty and guarantee, if any, on said Work.
- F. Costs and Damages: In addition to its correction, removal, and replacement obligations with respect to defective Work, Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages arising

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 55 of 68



out of or relating to defective Work, including but not limited to the cost of the inspection, testing, correction, removal, replacement, or reconstruction of such defective Work, fines levied against Owner by governmental authorities because the Work is defective, and the costs of repair or replacement of work of others resulting from defective Work. Prior to final payment, if Owner and Contractor are unable to agree as to the measure of such claims, costs, losses, and damages resulting from defective Work, then Owner may impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under Article 15.

#### 14.04 Acceptance of Defective Work

A. If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, Owner prefers to accept it, Owner may do so (subject, if such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, to Engineer's confirmation that such acceptance is in general accord with the design intent and applicable engineering principles and will not endanger public safety). Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages attributable to Owner's evaluation of and determination to accept such defective Work (such costs to be approved by Engineer as to reasonableness), and for the diminished value of the Work to the extent not otherwise paid by Contractor. If any such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work shall be incorporated in a Change Order. If the parties are unable to agree as to the decrease in the Contract Price, reflecting the diminished value of Work so accepted, then Owner may impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under Article 15. If the acceptance of defective Work occurs after final payment, Contractor shall pay an appropriate amount to Owner.

#### 14.05 Uncovering Work

- A. Engineer has the authority to require additional inspection or testing of the Work, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed.
- 3. If any Work is covered contrary to the written request of Engineer, then Contractor shall, if requested by Engineer, uncover such Work for Engineer's observation, and then replace the covering, all at Contractor's expense.
- C. If Engineer considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be observed by Engineer or inspected or tested by others, then Contractor, at Engineer's request, shall uncover, expose, or otherwise make available for observation, inspection, or testing as Engineer may require, that portion of the Work in question, and provide all necessary labor, material, and equipment.
  - If it is found that the uncovered Work is defective, Contractor shall be responsible for all claims, costs, losses, and damages arising out of or relating to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, and testing, and of satisfactory replacement or reconstruction (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others); and pending Contractor's full discharge of this responsibility the Owner shall be entitled to impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under Article 15.
  - 2. If the uncovered Work is not found to be defective, Contractor shall be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, or both, directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing, replacement, and reconstruction. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount or extent thereof, then Contractor may submit a Change Proposal within 30 days of the

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 56 of 68



#### determination that the Work is not defective.

#### 14.06 Owner May Stop the Work

A. If the Work is defective, or Contractor fails to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment, or fails to perform the Work in such a way that the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents, then Owner may order Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or entity, or any surety for, or employee or agent of any of them.

#### 14.07 Owner May Correct Defective Work

- A. If Contractor fails within a reasonable time after written notice from Engineer to correct defective Work, or to remove and replace rejected Work as required by Engineer, or if Contractor fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or if Contractor fails to comply with any other provision of the Contract Documents, then Owner may, after seven days written notice to Contractor, correct or remedy any such deficiency.
- B. In exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 14.07, Owner shall proceed expeditiously. In connection with such corrective or remedial action, Owner may exclude Contractor from all or part of the Site, take possession of all or part of the Work and suspend Contractor's services related thereto, and incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid Contractor but which are stored elsewhere. Contractor shall allow Owner, Owner's representatives, agents and employees, Owner's other contractors, and Engineer and Engineer's consultants access to the Site to enable Owner to exercise the rights and remedies under this paragraph.
- C. All claims, costs, losses, and damages incurred or sustained by Owner in exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 14.07 will be charged against Contractor as set- offs against payments due under Article 15. Such claims, costs, losses and damages will include but not be limited to all costs of repair, or replacement of work of others destroyed or damaged by correction, removal, or replacement of Contractor's defective Work.
- D. Contractor shall not be allowed an extension of the Contract Times because of any delay in the performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by Owner of Owner's rights and remedies under this Paragraph 14.07.

#### ARTICLE 15 – PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR; SET-OFFS; COMPLETION; CORRECTION PERIOD

#### 15.01 Progress Payments

- A. Basis for Progress Payments: The Schedule of Values established as provided in Article 2 will serve as the basis for progress payments and will be incorporated into a form of Application for Payment acceptable to Engineer. Progress payments on account of Unit Price Work will be based on the number of units completed during the pay period, as determined under the provisions of Paragraph 13.03. Progress payments for cost-based Work will be based on Cost of the Work completed by Contractor during the pay period.
- B. Applications for Payments:

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 57 of 68



- 1. At least 20 days before the date established in the Agreement for each progress payment (but not more often than once a month), Contractor shall submit to Engineer for review an Application for Payment filled out and signed by Contractor covering the Work completed as of the date of the Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents. If payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored at the Site or at another location agreed to in writing, the Application for Payment shall also be accompanied by a bill of sale, invoice, or other documentation warranting that Owner has received the materials and equipment free and clear of all Liens, and evidence that the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance, a warehouse bond, or other arrangements to protect Owner's interest therein, all of which must be satisfactory to Owner.
- 2. Beginning with the second Application for Payment, each Application shall include an affidavit of Contractor stating that all previous progress payments received on account of the Work have been applied on account to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations associated with prior Applications for Payment.
- 3. The amount of retainage with respect to progress payments will be as stipulated in the Agreement.

#### C. Review of Applications:

- Engineer will, within 10 business days after receipt of each Application for Payment, including each resubmittal, either indicate in writing a recommendation of payment and present the Application to Owner, or return the Application to Contractor indicating in writing Engineer's reasons for refusing to recommend payment. In the latter case, Contractor may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application.
- 2. Engineer's recommendation of any payment requested in an Application for Payment will constitute a representation by Engineer to Owner, based on Engineer's observations of the executed Work as an experienced and qualified design professional, and on Engineer's review of the Application for Payment and the accompanying data and schedules, that to the best of Engineer's knowledge, information and belief:
  - a. the Work has progressed to the point indicated;
  - the quality of the Work is generally in accordance with the Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial Completion, the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Contract Documents, a final determination of quantities and classifications for Unit Price Work under Paragraph 13.03, and any other qualifications stated in the recommendation); and
  - c. the conditions precedent to Contractor's being entitled to such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer's responsibility to observe the Work.
- 3. By recommending any such payment Engineer will not thereby be deemed to have represented that:
  - a. inspections made to check the quality or the quantity of the Work as it has been performed have been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of the Work in

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 58 of 68



- progress, or involved detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer in the Contract; or
- b. there may not be other matters or issues between the parties that might entitle Contractor to be paid additionally by Owner or entitle Owner to withhold payment to Contractor.
- 4. Neither Engineer's review of Contractor's Work for the purposes of recommending payments nor Engineer's recommendation of any payment, including final payment, will impose responsibility on Engineer:
  - a. to supervise, direct, or control the Work, or
  - b. for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or
  - c. for Contractor's failure to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor's performance of the Work, or
  - d. to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes Contractor has used the money paid on account of the Contract Price, or
  - e. to determine that title to any of the Work, materials, or equipment has passed to Owner free and clear of any Liens.
- 5. Engineer may refuse to recommend the whole or any part of any payment if, in Engineer's opinion, it would be incorrect to make the representations to Owner stated in Paragraph 15.01.C.2.
- 6. Engineer will recommend reductions in payment (setoffs) necessary in Engineer's opinion to protect Owner from loss because:
  - a. the Work is defective, requiring correction or replacement;
  - b. the Contract Price has been reduced by Change Orders;
  - c. Owner has been required to correct defective Work in accordance with Paragraph 14.07, or has accepted defective Work pursuant to Paragraph 14.04;
  - d. Owner has been required to remove or remediate a Hazardous Environmental Condition for which Contractor is responsible; or
  - e. Engineer has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events that would constitute a default by Contractor and therefore justify termination for cause under the Contract Documents.

#### D. Payment Becomes Due:

- 1. Thirty (30) days after presentation of the Application for Payment to Owner with Engineer's recommendation, the amount recommended (subject to any Owner set-offs) will become due, and when due will be paid by Owner to Contractor.
- E. Reductions in Payment by Owner:
  - 1. In addition to any reductions in payment (setoffs) recommended by Engineer, Owner is entitled to impose a set-off against payment based on any of the following:



- a. claims have been made against Owner on account of Contractor's conduct in the performance or furnishing of the Work, or Owner has incurred costs, losses, or damages on account of Contractor's conduct in the performance or furnishing of the Work, including but not limited to claims, costs, losses, or damages from workplace injuries, adjacent property damage, non-compliance with Laws and Regulations, and patent infringement;
- b. Contractor has failed to take reasonable and customary measures to avoid damage, delay, disruption, and interference with other work at or adjacent to the Site;
- c. Contractor has failed to provide and maintain required bonds or insurance;
- d. Owner has been required to remove or remediate a Hazardous Environmental Condition for which Contractor is responsible;
- e. Owner has incurred extra charges or engineering costs related to submittal reviews, evaluations of proposed substitutes, tests and inspections, or return visits to manufacturing or assembly facilities;
- f. the Work is defective, requiring correction or replacement;
- g. Owner has been required to correct defective Work in accordance with Paragraph 14.07, or has accepted defective Work pursuant to Paragraph 14.04;
- h. the Contract Price has been reduced by Change Orders;
- i. an event that would constitute a default by Contractor and therefore justify a termination for cause has occurred;
- j. liquidated damages have accrued as a result of Contractor's failure to achieve Milestones, Substantial Completion, or final completion of the Work;
- k. Liens have been filed in connection with the Work, except where Contractor has delivered a specific bond satisfactory to Owner to secure the satisfaction and discharge of such Liens;
- I. there are other items entitling Owner to a set off against the amount recommended.
- 2. If Owner imposes any set-off against payment, whether based on its own knowledge or on the written recommendations of Engineer, Owner will give Contractor immediate written notice (with a copy to Engineer) stating the reasons for such action and the specific amount of the reduction, and promptly pay Contractor any amount remaining after deduction of the amount so withheld. Owner shall promptly pay Contractor the amount so withheld, or any adjustment thereto agreed to by Owner and Contractor, if Contractor remedies the reasons for such action. The reduction imposed shall be binding on Contractor unless it duly submits a Change Proposal contesting the reduction.
- 3. Upon a subsequent determination that Owner's refusal of payment was not justified, the amount wrongfully withheld shall be treated as an amount due as determined by Paragraph 15.01.C.1 and subject to interest as provided in the Agreement.

15.02 Contractor's Warranty of Title

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 60 of 68



A. Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials, and equipment furnished under the Contract will pass to Owner free and clear of (1) all Liens and other title defects, and (2) all patent, licensing, copyright, or royalty obligations, no later than seven days after the time of payment by Owner.

#### 15.03 Substantial Completion

- A. When Contractor considers the entire Work ready for its intended use Contractor shall notify Owner and Engineer in writing that the entire Work is substantially complete and request that Engineer issue a certificate of Substantial Completion. Contractor shall at the same time submit to Owner and Engineer an initial draft of punch list items to be completed or corrected before final payment.
- B. Promptly after Contractor's notification, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an inspection of the Work to determine the status of completion. If Engineer does not consider the Work substantially complete, Engineer will notify Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor.
- C. If Engineer considers the Work substantially complete, Engineer will deliver to Owner a preliminary certificate of Substantial Completion which shall fix the date of Substantial Completion. Engineer shall attach to the certificate a punch list of items to be completed or corrected before final payment. Owner shall have seven days after receipt of the preliminary certificate during which to make written objection to Engineer as to any provisions of the certificate or attached punch list. If, after considering the objections to the provisions of the preliminary certificate, Engineer concludes that the Work is not substantially complete, Engineer will, within 14 days after submission of the preliminary certificate to Owner, notify Contractor in writing that the Work is not substantially complete, stating the reasons therefor. If Owner does not object to the provisions of the certificate, or if despite consideration of Owner's objections Engineer concludes that the Work is substantially complete, then Engineer will, within said 14 days, execute and deliver to Owner and Contractor a final certificate of Substantial Completion (with a revised punch list of items to be completed or corrected) reflecting such changes from the preliminary certificate as Engineer believes justified after consideration of any objections from Owner.
- D. At the time of receipt of the preliminary certificate of Substantial Completion, Owner and Contractor will confer regarding Owner's use or occupancy of the Work following Substantial Completion, review the builder's risk insurance policy with respect to the end of the builder's risk coverage, and confirm the transition to coverage of the Work under a permanent property insurance policy held by Owner. Unless Owner and Contractor agree otherwise in writing, Owner shall bear responsibility for security, operation, protection of the Work, property insurance, maintenance, heat, and utilities upon Owner's use or occupancy of the Work.
- E. After Substantial Completion, the Contractor shall promptly begin work on the punch list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. In appropriate cases Contractor may submit monthly Applications for Payment for completed punch list items, following the progress payment procedures set forth above.
- F. Owner shall have the right to exclude Contractor from the Site after the date of Substantial Completion subject to allowing Contractor reasonable access to remove its property and

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 61 of 68



complete or correct items on the punch list.

#### 15.04 Partial Use or Occupancy

- A. Prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work, Owner may use or occupy any substantially completed part of the Work which has specifically been identified in the Contract Documents, or which Owner, Engineer, and Contractor agree constitutes a separately functioning and usable part of the Work that can be used by Owner for its intended purpose without significant interference with Contractor's performance of the remainder of the Work, subject to the following conditions:
  - At any time, Owner may request in writing that Contractor permit Owner to use or occupy any such part of the Work that Owner believes to be substantially complete. If and when Contractor agrees that such part of the Work is substantially complete, Contractor, Owner, and Engineer will follow the procedures of Paragraph 15.03.A through E for that part of the Work.
  - 2. At any time, Contractor may notify Owner and Engineer in writing that Contractor considers any such part of the Work substantially complete and request Engineer to issue a certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the Work.
  - 3. Within a reasonable time after either such request, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an inspection of that part of the Work to determine its status of completion. If Engineer does not consider that part of the Work to be substantially complete, Engineer will notify Owner and Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor. If Engineer considers that part of the Work to be substantially complete, the provisions of Paragraph 15.03 will apply with respect to certification of Substantial Completion of that part of the Work and the division of responsibility in respect thereof and access thereto.
  - 4. No use or occupancy or separate operation of part of the Work may occur prior to compliance with the requirements of Paragraph 6.05 regarding builder's risk or other property insurance.

#### 15.05 Final Inspection

A. Upon written notice from Contractor that the entire Work or an agreed portion thereof is complete, Engineer will promptly make a final inspection with Owner and Contractor and will notify Contractor in writing of all particulars in which this inspection reveals that the Work, or agreed portion thereof, is incomplete or defective. Contractor shall immediately take such measures as are necessary to complete such Work or remedy such deficiencies.

#### 15.06 Final Payment

#### A. Application for Payment:

 After Contractor has, in the opinion of Engineer, satisfactorily completed all corrections identified during the final inspection and has delivered, in accordance with the Contract Documents, all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates or other evidence of insurance, certificates of inspection, annotated record documents (as provided in Paragraph 7.11), and other documents, Contractor may make application for final payment.

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 62 of 68



- 2. The final Application for Payment shall be accompanied (except as previously delivered) by:
  - a. all documentation called for in the Contract Documents;
  - b. consent of the surety, if any, to final payment;
  - c. satisfactory evidence that all title issues have been resolved such that title to all Work, materials, and equipment has passed to Owner free and clear of any Liens or other title defects or will so pass upon final payment.
  - d. a list of all disputes that Contractor believes are unsettled; and
  - e. complete and legally effective releases or waivers (satisfactory to Owner) of all Lien rights arising out of the Work, and of Liens filed in connection with the Work.
- 3. In lieu of the releases or waivers of Liens specified in Paragraph 15.06.A.2 and as approved by Owner, Contractor may furnish receipts or releases in full and an affidavit of Contractor that: (a) the releases and receipts include all labor, services, material, and equipment for which a Lien could be filed; and (b) all payrolls, material and equipment bills, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for which Owner might in any way be responsible, or which might in any way result in liens or other burdens on Owner's property, have been paid or otherwise satisfied. If any Subcontractor or Supplier fails to furnish such a release or receipt in full, Contractor may furnish a bond or other collateral satisfactory to Owner to indemnify Owner against any Lien, or Owner at its option may issue joint checks payable to Contractor and specified Subcontractors and Suppliers.
- B. Engineer's Review of Application and Acceptance:
  - 1. If, on the basis of Engineer's observation of the Work during construction and final inspection, and Engineer's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation as required by the Contract Documents, Engineer is satisfied that the Work has been completed and Contractor's other obligations under the Contract have been fulfilled, Engineer will, within ten days after receipt of the final Application for Payment, indicate in writing Engineer's recommendation of final payment and present the Application for Payment to Owner for payment. Such recommendation shall account for any setoffs against payment that are necessary in Engineer's opinion to protect Owner from loss for the reasons stated above with respect to progress payments. At the same time Engineer will also give written notice to Owner and Contractor that the Work is acceptable, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 15.07. Otherwise, Engineer will return the Application for Payment to Contractor, indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to recommend final payment, in which case Contractor shall make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application for Payment.
- C. Completion of Work: The Work is complete (subject to surviving obligations) when it is ready for final payment as established by the Engineer's written recommendation of final payment.
- D. Payment Becomes Due: Thirty days after the presentation to Owner of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation, the amount recommended by Engineer (less any further sum Owner is entitled to set off against Engineer's recommendation, including

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 63 of 68



but not limited to set-offs for liquidated damages and set-offs allowed under the provisions above with respect to progress payments) will become due and shall be paid by Owner to Contractor.

#### 15.07 Waiver of Claims

- A. The making of final payment will not constitute a waiver by Owner of claims or rights against Contractor. Owner expressly reserves claims and rights arising from unsettled Liens, from defective Work appearing after final inspection pursuant to Paragraph 15.05, from Contractor's failure to comply with the Contract Documents or the terms of any special guarantees specified therein, from outstanding Claims by Owner, or from Contractor's continuing obligations under the Contract Documents.
- B. The acceptance of final payment by Contractor will constitute a waiver by Contractor of all claims and rights against Owner other than those pending matters that have been duly submitted or appealed under the provisions of Article 17.

#### 15.08 Correction Period

- A. If within one year after the date of Substantial Completion (or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the Contract Documents, or by any specific provision of the Contract Documents), any Work is found to be defective, or if the repair of any damages to the Site, adjacent areas that Contractor has arranged to use through construction easements or otherwise, and other adjacent areas used by Contractor as permitted by Laws and Regulations, is found to be defective, then Contractor shall promptly, without cost to Owner and in accordance with Owner's written instructions:
  - 1. correct the defective repairs to the Site or such other adjacent areas;
  - 2. correct such defective Work;
  - 3. if the defective Work has been rejected by Owner, remove it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not defective, and
  - 4. satisfactorily correct or repair or remove and replace any damage to other Work, to the work of others, or to other land or areas resulting therefrom.
- B. If Contractor does not promptly comply with the terms of Owner's written instructions, or in an emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, Owner may have the defective Work corrected or repaired or may have the rejected Work removed and replaced. Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such correction or repair or such removal and replacement (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others).
- C. In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in continuous service before Substantial Completion of all the Work, the correction period for that item may start to run from an earlier date if so provided in the Specifications.
- D. Where defective Work (and damage to other Work resulting therefrom) has been corrected

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 64 of 68



- or removed and replaced under this paragraph, the correction period hereunder with respect to such Work will be extended for an additional period of one year after such correction or removal and replacement has been satisfactorily completed.
- E. Contractor's obligations under this paragraph are in addition to all other obligations and warranties. The provisions of this paragraph shall not be construed as a substitute for, or a waiver of, the provisions of any applicable statute of limitation or repose.

#### ARTICLE 16 – SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION

#### 16.01 Owner May Suspend Work

A. At any time and without cause, Owner may suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a period of not more than 90 consecutive days by written notice to Contractor and Engineer. Such notice will fix the date on which Work will be resumed. Contractor shall resume the Work on the date so fixed. Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, or both, directly attributable to any such suspension. Any Change Proposal seeking such adjustments shall be submitted no later than 30 days after the date fixed for resumption of Work.

#### 16.02 Owner May Terminate for Cause

- A. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events will constitute a default by Contractor and justify termination for cause:
  - Contractor's persistent failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, failure to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment or failure to adhere to the Progress Schedule);
  - Failure of Contractor to perform or otherwise to comply with a material term of the Contract Documents;
  - 3. Contractor's disregard of Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction; or
  - 4. Contractor's repeated disregard of the authority of Owner or Engineer.
- B. If one or more of the events identified in Paragraph 16.02.A occurs, then after giving Contractor (and any surety) ten days written notice that Owner is considering a declaration that Contractor is in default and termination of the contract, Owner may proceed to:
  - declare Contractor to be in default, and give Contractor (and any surety) notice that the Contract is terminated; and
  - 2. enforce the rights available to Owner under any applicable performance bond.
- C. Subject to the terms and operation of any applicable performance bond, if Owner has terminated the Contract for cause, Owner may exclude Contractor from the Site, take possession of the Work, incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid Contractor but which are stored elsewhere, and complete the Work as Owner may deem expedient.
- D. Owner may not proceed with termination of the Contract under Paragraph 16.02.B if Contractor within seven days of receipt of notice of intent to terminate begins to correct its failure to perform and proceeds diligently to cure such failure.

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 65 of 68



- E. If Owner proceeds as provided in Paragraph 16.02.B, Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the Work is completed. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds the cost to complete the Work, including all related claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals) sustained by Owner, such excess will be paid to Contractor. If the cost to complete the Work including such related claims, costs, losses, and damages exceeds such unpaid balance, Contractor shall pay the difference to Owner. Such claims, costs, losses, and damages incurred by Owner will be reviewed by Engineer as to their reasonableness and, when so approved by Engineer, incorporated in a Change Order. When exercising any rights or remedies under this paragraph, Owner shall not be required to obtain the lowest price for the Work performed.
- F. Where Contractor's services have been so terminated by Owner, the termination will not affect any rights or remedies of Owner against Contractor then existing or which may thereafter accrue, or any rights or remedies of Owner against Contractor or any surety under any payment bond or performance bond. Any retention or payment of money due Contractor by Owner will not release Contractor from liability.
- G. If and to the extent that Contractor has provided a performance bond under the provisions of Paragraph 6.01.A, the provisions of that bond shall govern over any inconsistent provisions of Paragraphs 16.02.B and 16.02.D.

#### 16.03 Owner May Terminate For Convenience

- A. Upon seven days written notice to Contractor and Engineer, Owner may, without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of Owner, terminate the Contract. In such case, Contractor shall be paid for (without duplication of any items):
  - completed and acceptable Work executed in accordance with the Contract Documents prior to the effective date of termination, including fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such Work;
  - 2. expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing services and furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the Contract Documents in connection with uncompleted Work, plus fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such expenses; and
  - 3. other reasonable expenses directly attributable to termination, including costs incurred to prepare a termination for convenience cost proposal.
- B. Contractor shall not be paid on account of loss of anticipated overhead, profits, or revenue, or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination.

#### 16.04 Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate

A. If, through no act or fault of Contractor, (1) the Work is suspended for more than 90 consecutive days by Owner or under an order of court or other public authority, or (2) Engineer fails to act on any Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or (3) Owner fails for 30 days to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due, then Contractor may, upon seven days written notice to Owner and Engineer, and provided Owner or Engineer do not remedy such suspension or failure within that time, terminate the contract and recover from Owner payment on the same terms as provided in Paragraph

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 66 of 68



16.03.

B. In lieu of terminating the Contract and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, if Engineer has failed to act on an Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or Owner has failed for 30 days to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due, Contractor may, seven days after written notice to Owner and Engineer, stop the Work until payment is made of all such amounts due Contractor, including interest thereon. The provisions of this paragraph are not intended to preclude Contractor from submitting a Change Proposal for an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times or otherwise for expenses or damage directly attributable to Contractor's stopping the Work as permitted by this paragraph.

#### **ARTICLE 17 – FINAL RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES**

#### 17.01 Methods and Procedures

- A. *Disputes Subject to Final Resolution*: The following disputed matters are subject to final resolution under the provisions of this Article:
  - A timely appeal of an approval in part and denial in part of a Claim, or of a denial in full;
     and
  - 2. Disputes between Owner and Contractor concerning the Work or obligations under the Contract Documents and arising after final payment has been made.
- 3. Final Resolution of Disputes: For any dispute subject to resolution under this Article, Owner or Contractor may:
  - 1. elect in writing to invoke the dispute resolution process provided for in the Supplementary Conditions; or
  - 2. agree with the other party to submit the dispute to another dispute resolution process; or
  - if no dispute resolution process is provided for in the Supplementary Conditions or mutually agreed to, give written notice to the other party of the intent to submit the dispute to a court of competent jurisdiction.

#### **ARTICLE 18 – MISCELLANEOUS**

#### 18.01 Giving Notice

- A. Whenever any provision of the Contract Documents requires the giving of written notice, it will be deemed to have been validly given if delivered in person, by a commercial courier service or otherwise, to the individual or to a member of the firm or to an officer of the corporation for which it is intended; or
  - 1. delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the last business address known to the sender of the notice.
- B. When any period of time is referred to in the Contract by days, it will be computed to exclude the first and include the last day of such period. If the last day of any such period falls on a Saturday or Sunday or on a day made a legal holiday by the law of the applicable jurisdiction,

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 67 of 68



such day will be omitted from the computation.

#### 18.02 Cumulative Remedies

A. The duties and obligations imposed by these General Conditions and the rights and remedies available hereunder to the parties hereto are in addition to, and are not to be construed in any way as a limitation of, any rights and remedies available to any or all of them which are otherwise imposed or available by Laws or Regulations, by special warranty or guarantee, or by other provisions of the Contract. The provisions of this paragraph will be as effective as if repeated specifically in the Contract Documents in connection with each particular duty, obligation, right, and remedy to which they apply.

#### 18.03 *Limitation of Damages*

A. With respect to any and all Change Proposals, Claims, disputes subject to final resolution, and other matters at issue, neither Owner nor Engineer, nor any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, shall be liable to Contractor for any claims, costs, losses, or damages sustained by Contractor on or in connection with any other project or anticipated project.

#### 18.04 No Waiver

A. A party's non-enforcement of any provision shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Contract.

#### 18.05 Survival of Obligations

A. All representations, indemnifications, warranties, and guarantees made in, required by, or given in accordance with the Contract, as well as all continuing obligations indicated in the Contract, will survive final payment, completion, and acceptance of the Work or termination or completion of the Contract or termination of the services of Contractor.

#### 18.06 Controlling Law

A. This Contract is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located.

#### 18.07 Headings

A. Article and paragraph headings are inserted for convenience only and do not constitute parts of these General Conditions.

#### **END OF SECTION**

Section 00 22 13 GENERAL CONDITIONS Page 68 of 68



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



## SECTION 00 22 15 SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS

These Supplementary Conditions amend or supplement the Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract, EJCDC® C-700 (2013 Edition). All provisions that are not so amended or supplemented remain in full force and effect.

The terms used in these Supplementary Conditions have the meanings stated in the General Conditions. Additional terms used in these Supplementary Conditions have the meanings stated below, which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof.

The address system used in these Supplementary Conditions is the same as the address system used in the General Conditions, with the prefix "SC" added thereto.

ARTICLE 5 — AVAILABILITY OF LANDS; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS; HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

SC-5.06 Hazardous Environmental Conditions

SC 5.06 Delete Paragraphs 5.06.A and 5.06.B in their entirety and insert the following:

A. No reports or drawings related to Hazardous Environmental Conditions at the Site are known to Owner.

ARTICLE 6 - BONDS AND INSURANCE

SC-6.02 Insurance—General Provisions

SC-6.02 Add the following paragraph immediately after Paragraph 6.02.B:

1. Contractor may obtain worker's compensation insurance from an insurance company that has not been rated by A.M. Best, provided that such company (a) is domiciled in the state in which the project is located, (b) is certified or authorized as a worker's compensation insurance provider by the appropriate state agency, and (c) has been accepted to provide worker's compensation insurance for similar projects by the state within the last 12 months.

SC-6.03 Contractor's Liability Insurance

SC 6.03 Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 6.03.J:

K. The limits of liability for the insurance required by Paragraph 6.03 of the General Conditions shall provide coverage for not less than the following amounts or greater where required by Laws and Regulations:

Section 00 22 15



**1.** Workers' Compensation, and related coverages under Paragraphs 6.03.A.1 and A.2 of the General Conditions:

	State:		Statutory	
	Federal, if applicable (e.g., Longshoreman's):		Statutory	
	Jones Act coverage, if applicable:			
	Bodily injury by accident, each accident	\$_	NA	
	Bodily injury by disease, aggregate	\$	NA	
	Employer's Liability:			
	Bodily injury, each accident	\$	500,000.00	
	Bodily injury by disease, each employee	\$	500,000.00	
	Bodily injury/disease aggregate	\$_	1,000,000.00	
	Foreign voluntary worker compensation	_	Statutory	
2.	Contractor's Commercial General Liability under Paragraphs 6.03.B and 6.03.C of the General Conditions:			
	General Aggregate	\$_	2,000,000.00	
	Products - Completed Operations Aggregate	\$	1,000,000.00	
	Personal and Advertising Injury	\$	1,000,000.00	
	Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage)	\$ _	1,000,000.00	
3.	Automobile Liability under Paragraph 6.03.D. of the General Conditions:			
	Bodily Injury:			
	Each person	\$_	500,000.00	
	Each accident	\$_	1,000,000.00	
	Property Damage:			
	Combined Single Limit of	\$_	1,000,000.00	

Section 00 22 15

**SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS** 

Page 2 of 9



4.	Excess or Umbrella Liability:			
	General Aggregate	\$	1,000,000.00	
5.	Contractor's Professional Liability:			
	Each Claim	\$	1,000,000.00	
	Annual Aggregate	\$	2,000,000.00	

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



#### **ARTICLE 7 – CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES**

SC-7.02 Labor; Working Hours

- SC-7.02.B. Amend the first and second sentences of Paragraph 7.02.B to state "...all Work at the Site shall be performed during regular working hours, 7:00 AM through 10:00 PM, Sunday through Saturday.
- A. If the Owner has no objections to the Contractor working multiple shifts, weekends, and legal holidays, use the following:
  - SC-7.02.B. Delete Paragraph 7.02 B. in its entirety, and insert the following:
    - B. In the absence of any Laws or Regulations to the contrary, Contractor may perform the Work on holidays, during any or all hours of the day, and on any or all days of the week, at Contractor's sole discretion.
  - SC-7.02.C. Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 7.02.B:

Contractor shall be responsible for the cost of any overtime pay or other expense incurred by the Owner for Engineer's services (including those of the Resident Project Representative, if any), Owner's representative, and construction observation services, occasioned by the performance of Work on Saturday or as overtime on any regular workday. If Contractor is responsible but does not pay, or if the parties are unable to agree as to the amount owed, then Owner may impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under Article 15.

#### **ARTICLE 10 – ENGINEER'S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION**

SC-10.03 Project Representative

- SC-10.03 Add the following new paragraphs immediately after Paragraph 10.03.A:
  - B. The Resident Project Representative (RPR) will be Engineer's representative at the Site, will act as directed by and under the supervision of Engineer, and will confer with Engineer regarding RPR's actions.
    - General: RPR's dealings in matters pertaining to the Work in general shall be with Engineer and Contractor. RPR's dealings with Subcontractors shall only be through or with the full knowledge and approval of Contractor. RPR shall generally communicate with Owner only with the knowledge of and under the direction of Engineer.
    - Schedules: Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample submittals, and Schedule of Values prepared by Contractor and consult with Engineer concerning acceptability.
    - Conferences and Meetings: Attend meetings with Contractor, such as preconstruction conferences, progress meetings, job conferences, and other Project-related meetings, and prepare and circulate copies of minutes thereof.

Section 00 22 15

Page 4 of 9



#### 4. Liaison:

- a. Serve as Engineer's liaison with Contractor. Working principally through Contractor's authorized representative or designee, assist in providing information regarding the provisions and intent of the Contract Documents.
- b. Assist Engineer in serving as Owner's liaison with Contractor when Contractor's operations affect Owner's on-Site operations.
- Assist in obtaining from Owner additional details or information, when required for proper execution of the Work.
- Interpretation of Contract Documents: Report to Engineer when clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents are needed and transmit to Contractor clarifications and interpretations as issued by Engineer.
- 6. Shop Drawings and Samples:
  - Record date of receipt of Samples and Contractor-approved Shop Drawings.
  - b. Receive Samples which are furnished at the Site by Contractor and notify Engineer of availability of Samples for examination.
  - c. Advise Engineer and Contractor of the commencement of any portion of the Work requiring a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal for which RPR believes that the submittal has not been approved by Engineer.
- 7. Modifications: Consider and evaluate Contractor's suggestions for modifications in Drawings or Specifications and report such suggestions, together with RPR's recommendations, if any, to Engineer. Transmit to Contractor in writing decisions as issued by Engineer.
- 8. Review of Work and Rejection of Defective Work:
  - a. Conduct on-Site observations of Contractor's work in progress to assist Engineer in determining if the Work is in general proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.
  - b. Report to Engineer whenever RPR believes that any part of Contractor's work in progress is defective, will not produce a completed Project that conforms generally to the Contract Documents, or will imperil the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated in the Contract Documents, or has been damaged, or does not meet the requirements of any inspection, test or approval required to be made; and advise Engineer of that part of work in progress that RPR believes should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for observation, or requires special testing, inspection or approval.



#### 9. Inspections, Tests, and System Start-ups:

- a. Verify that tests, equipment, and systems start-ups and operating and maintenance training are conducted in the presence of appropriate Owner's personnel, and that Contractor maintains adequate records thereof.
- b. Observe, record, and report to Engineer appropriate details relative to the test procedures and systems start-ups.

#### 10. Records:

- a. Prepare a daily report or keep a diary or log book, recording Contractor's hours on the Site, Subcontractors present at the Site, weather conditions, data relative to questions of Change Orders, Field Orders, Work Change Directives, or changed conditions, Site visitors, deliveries of equipment or materials, daily activities, decisions, observations in general, and specific observations in more detail as in the case of observing test procedures; and send copies to Engineer.
- b. Record names, addresses, fax numbers, e-mail addresses, web site locations, and telephone numbers of all Contractors, Subcontractors, and major Suppliers of materials and equipment.
- c. Maintain records for use in preparing Project documentation.

#### 11. Reports:

- a. Furnish to Engineer periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of Contractor's compliance with the Progress Schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample submittals.
- Draft and recommend to Engineer proposed Change Orders, Work Change Directives, and Field Orders. Obtain backup material from Contractor.
- c. Immediately notify Engineer of the occurrence of any Site accidents, emergencies, acts of God endangering the Work, force majeure or delay events, damage to property by fire or other causes, or the discovery of any Constituent of Concern or Hazardous Environmental Condition.
- 12. Payment Requests: Review applications for payment with Contractor for compliance with the established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations to Engineer, noting particularly the relationship of the payment requested to the Schedule of Values, Work completed, and materials and equipment delivered at the Site but not incorporated in the Work.
- 13. Certificates, Operation and Maintenance Manuals: During the course of the Work, verify that materials and equipment certificates, operation and maintenance manuals and other data required by the Contract Documents to be assembled and furnished by Contractor are applicable to the items actually installed and in accordance with the Contract Documents, and have

Section 00 22 15



these documents delivered to Engineer for review and forwarding to Owner prior to payment for that part of the Work.

#### 14. Completion:

- a. Participate in Engineer's visits to the Site to determine Substantial Completion, assist in the determination of Substantial Completion and the preparation of a punch list of items to be completed or corrected.
- b. Participate in Engineer's final visit to the Site to determine completion of the Work, in the company of Owner and Contractor, and prepare a final punch list of items to be completed and deficiencies to be remedied.
- c. Observe whether all items on the final list have been completed or corrected and make recommendations to Engineer concerning acceptance and issuance of the notice of acceptability of the work.

#### C. The RPR shall not:

- 1. Authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitution of materials or equipment (including "or-equal" items).
- 2. Exceed limitations of Engineer's authority as set forth in the Contract Documents.
- 3. Undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, Subcontractors, or Suppliers.
- Advise on, issue directions relative to, or assume control over any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of Contractor's work.
- 5. Advise on, issue directions regarding, or assume control over security or safety practices, precautions, and programs in connection with the activities or operations of Owner or Contractor.
- 6. Participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted off-site by others except as specifically authorized by Engineer.
- 7. Accept Shop Drawing or Sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor.
- 8. Authorize Owner to occupy the Project in whole or in part.

#### ARTICLE 13 – COST OF THE WORK; ALLOWANCES; UNIT PRICE WORK

#### SC-13.03 Unit Price Work

A. The following Supplementary Condition is typically called a "variation in estimated quantities (VEQ) clause" and facilitates administrative resolution of situations where actual quantities of unit price items differ materially from estimated quantities. Typically, the clause applies where the extended price (unit price times estimated quantity) of an item of the Unit Price Work is more than 5 percent of the Contract Price (based on estimated quantities), and the actual quantity of the units of work performed or furnished varies by more than a specified percent (typically 15 to 25 percent).

Section 00 22 15

#### **SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS**

Page 7 of 9



#### SC 13.03.E Delete Paragraph 13.03.E in its entirety and insert the following in its place:

- E. The unit price of an item of Unit Price Work shall be subject to reevaluation and adjustment under the following conditions:
  - if the extended price of a particular item of Unit Price Work amounts to 5 percent or more of the Contract Price (based on estimated quantities at the time of Contract formation) and the variation in the quantity of that particular item of Unit Price Work actually furnished or performed by Contractor differs by more than 20 percent from the estimated quantity of such item indicated in the Agreement; and
  - if there is no corresponding adjustment with respect to any other item of Work; and
  - 3. if Contractor believes that Contractor has incurred additional expense as a result thereof, Contractor may submit a Change Proposal, or if Owner believes that the quantity variation entitles Owner to an adjustment in the unit price, Owner may make a Claim, seeking an adjustment in the Contract Price.

#### ARTICLE 15 – PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR; SET-OFFS; COMPLETION; CORRECTION PERIOD

SC-15.03 Substantial Completion

#### SC 15.03.B Add the following new subparagraph to Paragraph 15.03.B:

 If some or all of the Work has been determined not to be at a point of Substantial Completion and will require re-inspection or re-testing by Engineer, the cost of such re-inspection or re-testing, including the cost of time, travel and living expenses, shall be paid by Contractor to Owner. If Contractor does not pay, or the parties are unable to agree as to the amount owed, then Owner may impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under Article 15.

#### **ARTICLE 17 – FINAL RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES**

SC-17.02 Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 17.01.

#### SC-17.02 Arbitration

- A. All matters subject to final resolution under this Article will be decided by arbitration in accordance with the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure, subject to the conditions and limitations of this paragraph. This agreement to arbitrate and any other agreement or consent to arbitrate entered into will be specifically enforceable under the prevailing law of any court having jurisdiction.
- B. The demand for arbitration will be filed in writing with the other party to the Contract and with the selected arbitrator or arbitration provider, and a copy will be sent to Engineer for information. The demand for arbitration will be made within the specific time required in this Article, or if no specified time is applicable within a reasonable time after the matter in question has arisen, and in no event shall any such demand be made after the date when institution of legal or

Section 00 22 15

Page 8 of 9



- equitable proceedings based on such matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. The demand for arbitration should include specific reference to Paragraph SC-17.02.D below.
- C. No arbitration arising out of or relating to the Contract shall include by consolidation, joinder, or in any other manner any other individual or entity (including Engineer, and Engineer's consultants and the officers, directors, partners, agents, employees, or consultants of any of them) who is not a party to this Contract unless:
  - 1. the inclusion of such other individual or entity is necessary if complete relief is to be afforded among those who are already parties to the arbitration; and
  - such other individual or entity is substantially involved in a question of law or fact which is common to those who are already parties to the arbitration and which will arise in such proceedings.
- D. The award rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be consistent with the agreement of the parties, in writing, and include a concise breakdown of the award, and a written explanation of the award specifically citing the Contract provisions deemed applicable and relied on in making the award.
- E. The award will be final. Judgment may be entered upon it in any court having jurisdiction thereof, and it will not be subject to modification or appeal, subject to provisions of the Laws and Regulations relating to vacating or modifying an arbitral award.
- F. The fees and expenses of the arbitrators and any arbitration service shall be shared equally by Owner and Contractor.

**END OF SECTION** 



# SECTION 00 26 00 AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between	The City of Flagler Beach	("Owner") and
		("Contractor")

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows:

#### **ARTICLE 1 – WORK**

1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work is generally described as follows: *Installation of approximately 500 Linear Feet of 8" water main. Existing main to be placed out of service. Project also includes installation of 500 Linear Feet of 8" reclaim main.* 

#### **ARTICLE 2 – THE PROJECT**

2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is generally described as follows: South Central Avenue Water Main Replacement.

#### **ARTICLE 3 – ENGINEER**

- 3.01 The part of the Project that pertains to the Work has been designed by Mead & Hunt
- 3.02 The Owner has retained Mead & Hunt ("Engineer") to act as Owner's representative, assume all duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned to Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

#### **ARTICLE 4 – CONTRACT TIMES**

- 4.01 Time of the Essence
  - A. All time limits for Substantial Completion, and Final Completion and readiness for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.
- 4.02 Contract Times: Days
  - A. The Work will be substantially completed within sixty (60) calendar days after the date when the Contract Times commence to run as provided in Paragraph 4.01 of the General Conditions, and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions within ninety (90) calendar days after the date when the Contract Times commence to run.
- 4.03 Liquidated Damages
  - A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed and Milestones not achieved within the times specified in Paragraph 4.02 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with the Contract. The parties also recognize

Section 00 26 00

**OWNER – CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT** 

Page 1 of 6



the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty):

- Substantial Completion: Contractor shall pay Owner \$500.00 for each day that expires
  after the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified in Paragraph 4.02.A
  above for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete.
- Completion of Remaining Work: After Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Times (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) for completion and readiness for final payment, Contractor shall pay Owner \$1,000.00 for each day that expires after such time until the Work is completed and ready for final payment.
- 3. Liquidated damages for failing to timely attain Substantial Completion and final completion are not additive and will not be imposed concurrently.

#### **ARTICLE 5 – CONTRACT PRICE**

- 5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract:
  - A. For all Unit Price Work not included in the lump sum price, an amount equal to the sum of the extended prices (established for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work by multiplying the unit price times the actual quantity of that item): See chart in Section 00 41 13, Page 4 of 6 to be used in the bid package submittal.

#### **ARTICLE 6 – PAYMENT PROCEDURES**

- 6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments
  - A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the General Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in the General Conditions.
- 6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage
  - A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of Contractor's Applications for Payment on or about the 15<sup>th</sup> day of each month during performance of the Work as provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below, provided that such Applications for Payment have been submitted in a timely manner and otherwise meet the requirements of the Contract. All such payments will be measured by the Schedule of Values established as provided in the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no Schedule of Values, as provided elsewhere in the Contract.
    - Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to the percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously made and less such amounts as Owner may withhold, including but not limited to liquidated damages, in accordance with the Contract:

Section 00 26 00

OWNER - CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

Page 2 of 6



- a. 95 percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage). If the Work has been 50 percent completed as determined by Engineer, and if the character and progress of the Work have been satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, then as long as the character and progress of the Work remain satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, there will be no additional retainage.
- B. Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total payments to Contractor to 100 percent of the Work completed, less such amounts set off by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 15.01.E of the General Conditions, and less 200 percent of Engineer's estimate of the value of Work to be completed or corrected as shown on the punch list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment.

#### 6.03 Final Payment

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06.

#### **ARTICLE 7 – INTEREST**

7.01 All amounts not paid when due shall bear interest at the rate of 3 percent per annum.

#### **ARTICLE 8 – CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS**

- 8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following representations:
  - A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, and any data and reference items identified in the Contract Documents.
  - B. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
  - C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
  - D. Contractor has carefully studied all reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings.
  - E. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Site-related reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor; and (3) Contractor's safety precautions and programs.
  - F. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Times,

Section 00 26 00

OWNER - CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

Page 3 of 6



and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract.

- G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.
- H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor.
- I. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.
- J. Contractor's entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents.

#### **ARTICLE 9 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS**

#### 9.01 Contents

- A. The Contract Documents consist of the following:
  - 1. This Agreement (pages 1 to 6, inclusive).
  - 2. Bid Bond (pages 1 to 2, inclusive).
  - 3. Performance bond (pages 1 to 3, inclusive).
  - 4. Payment bond (pages 1 to 3, inclusive).
  - 5. General Conditions (pages *i* to *v* and pages 1 to 67, inclusive).
  - 6. Supplementary Conditions (pages 1 to 8, inclusive).
  - 7. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual.
  - 8. Issued Addenda
  - 9. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows):
    - a. Contractor's Bid Form (pages i to ii and pages 1 to 6, inclusive).
  - 10. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the Contract and are not attached hereto:
    - a. Notice to Proceed.
    - b. Work Change Directives.
    - c. Change Orders.
    - d. Field Orders.
- B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as expressly noted otherwise above).
- C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9.
- D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in the General Conditions.

Section 00 26 00



#### **ARTICLE 10 – MISCELLANEOUS**

#### 10.01 Terms

A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions.

#### 10.02 Assignment of Contract

A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without limitation, money that may become due and money that is due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.

#### 10.03 Successors and Assigns

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.

#### 10.04 Severability

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision.

#### 10.05 Contractor's Certifications

- A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for or in executing the Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 10.05:
  - "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the Contract execution;
  - "fraudulent practice" means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition;
  - "collusive practice" means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with
    or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices at
    artificial, non-competitive levels; and
  - 4. "coercive practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution of the Contract.

Section 00 26 00

**OWNER - CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT** 

Page 5 of 6



OWNER:	CONTRACTOR:
By:	
Title:	Title:
	(If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, or a joint venture, attach evidence of authority to sign.)
Attest:	Attest:
Title:	Title:
Address for giving notices:	Address for giving notices:
	License No.:

(If Owner is a corporation, attach evidence of authority to sign. If Owner is a public body, attach evidence of authority to sign and resolution or other documents authorizing execution of this Agreement.)

#### **END OF SECTION**



# CITY OF FLAGLER BEACH SOUTH CENTRAL WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT CITY PROJECT NO.: 570 CITY INVITATION TO BID NO: 24-1021





# INVITATION TO BID TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Article 1 – Bid Recipient	1
Article 2 – Bidder's Acknowledgements	1
Article 3 – Bidder's Representations	1
Article 4 – Bidder's Certification	2
Article 5 – Basis of Bid	3
Article 6 – Time of Completion	5
Article 7 – Attachments to this Bid	5
Article 8 – Defined Terms	5
Article 9 – Bid Submittal	6

#### **END OF TABLE OF CONTENTS**

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



#### **ARTICLE 1 – BID RECIPIENT**

1.01 This Bid is submitted to:

City of Flagler Beach 105 S 2<sup>nd</sup> Street Flagler Beach, FL 32136

1.02 The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement with Owner in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or indicated in the Bidding Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.

#### **ARTICLE 2 – BIDDER'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS**

2.01 Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid will remain subject to acceptance for 60 days after the Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may agree to in writing upon request of Owner.

#### **ARTICLE 3 – BIDDER'S REPRESENTATIONS**

- 3.01 In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents that:
  - A. Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, and any data and reference items identified in the Bidding Documents, and hereby acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda:

Addendum No.	Addendum, Date

- B. Bidder has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and satisfied itself as to the general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
- C. Bidder is familiar with and has satisfied itself as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
- D. Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings.
- E. Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder itself; information commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Bidding Documents; and any Site-related reports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the effect of such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance

Section 00 41 13 INVITATION TO BID Page 1 of 6



- of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder; and (3) Bidder's safety precautions and programs.
- F. Bidder agrees, based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the price bid and within the times required, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.
- G. Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents.
- H. Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Bidder has discovered in the Bidding Documents and confirms that the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder.
- I. The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for the performance and furnishing of the Work.
- J. The submission of this Bid constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that Bidder has complied with every requirement of this Article, and that without exception the Bid and all prices in the Bid are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Bidding Documents.

#### **ARTICLE 4 – BIDDER'S CERTIFICATION**

- 4.01 Bidder certifies that:
  - A. This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or rules of any group, association, organization, or corporation;
  - B. Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid;
  - C. Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and
  - D. Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for the Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 4.01.D:
    - 1. "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process;
    - 2. "fraudulent practice" means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence the bidding process to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish bid prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition;
    - 3. "collusive practice" means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels; and
    - 4. "coercive practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the e execution of the Contract.



## **ARTICLE 5 – BASIS OF BID**

5.01 Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following price(s):

	BASE BID				
ITEM NO.	DESCRIPTION	QTY	UNIT	UNIT COST	TOTAL
1	Mobilization/Demobilization	1	LS		
2	Pre-Construction Video	1	LS		
3	<b>Erosion Control and Pollution Abatement</b>	1	LS		
4	Maintenance of Traffic	1	LS		
5	Survey Layout Furnish & Install C900 PVC Water Main	1	LS		
6		70	LF		
a	4"	70	1		
b	6"	25	LF		
С	8"	560	LF		
7	Furnish & Install C900 PVC Reclaim Main				
a	8"	700	LF		
8	Resilient Seat Gate Valve and Box				
а	8"	7	EA		
b	4"	2	EA		
С	2"	2	EA		
9	Fire Hydrant Assembly (Remove and Replace)	1	EA		
10	Tie-Ins (including Tapping Sleeve and Valve)				
а	16"x 8"	1	EA		
b	8" x 8"	1	EA		
С	2"	2	EA		
11	Line Stop				
а	8"	4	EA		
12	Ductile Iron Fittings - Add or Delete	1	TN		
13	Blow-Off Assembly	1	EA		
14	Potable Water Services	5	EA		
15	Reclaim Water Services	5	EA		
16	Mill and Resurface (1 1/2")	1100	SY		
17	Open Cut/Replace Base/Seal	320	SY		
18	Open Cut/Repair Asphalt	610	SY		
19	Concrete Curb (Remove and Replace)	35	LF		
20	Patterned Pavers (Remove and Replace)	175	SY		
21	As-builts	1	LS		
			1	Total Base Bid	



	BID ALTERNATE 1				
ITEM NO.	DESCRIPTION	QTY	UNIT	UNIT COST	TOTAL
1A	Exploratory Excavation	1	LS		
2A	Line Stop				
а	12"	2	EA		
3A	Side Actuated Gate Valve and Box				
а	12"	1	EA		
4A	Pervious Parking Grid Pavers (Remove and Replace)	40	SY		
5A	Mill and Resurface (1 1/2")	120	SY		
6A	Open Cut/Repair Asphalt	55	SY		
7A	Concrete Curb (Remove and Replace)	55	LF		
8A	Concrete Driveway/Sidewalks (Remove and Replace)	30	SY		
			Total	Bid Alternate 1	·

Bidder acknowledges that (1) each Bid Unit Price includes an amount considered by Bidder to be adequate to cover Contractor's overhead and profit for each separately identified item, and (2) estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids, and final payment for all unit price Bid items will be based on actual quantities, determined as provided in the Contract Documents.

Total Base Bid Pr <u>ice:</u>	
Total Bid Alternate 1 Price:	

Section 00 41 13 INVITATION TO BID Page 4 of 6



#### **ARTICLE 6 – TIME OF COMPLETION**

- 6.01 Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete and will be completed and ready for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions on or before the dates or within the number of calendar days indicated in the Agreement.
- 6.02 Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages.

#### **ARTICLE 7 – ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID**

- 7.01 The following documents are submitted with and made a condition of this Bid:
  - A. Required Bid security;
  - B. List of Proposed Subcontractors;
  - C. List of Proposed Suppliers;
  - D. List of Project References;
  - E. Evidence of authority to do business in the state of the Project; or a written covenant to obtain such license within the time for acceptance of Bids;
  - F. Required Bidder Qualification Statement with supporting Attachments A through O
  - G. Submit sealed bids including one original copy, four (4) identical paper copies, and one (1) electronic copy in pdf format on USB or CD.

#### **ARTICLE 8 – DEFINED TERMS**

8.01 The terms used in this Bid with initial capital letters have the meanings stated in the Instructions to Bidders, the General Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Section 00 41 13 INVITATION TO BID Page 5 of 6



## **ARTICLE 9 – BID SUBMITTAL**

BIDDER: [Indicate correct name of bidding entity]	
By: [Signature]	
[Printed name] (If Bidder is a corporation, a limited liability company, a partnership, or a joint venture, attach ex of authority to sign.)	 vidence
Attest: [Signature]	
[Printed name]	
Title:	
Submittal Date:	
Address for giving notices:	
Telephone Number:	
Fax Number:	
Contact Name:	
Contact e-mail address:	
Bidder's License No.:	

## **END OF SECTION**



## SECTION 00 43 25 PERFORMANCE BOND

CONTRACTOR (name and address): SURETY (name and a	ddress of principal place of business):
OWNER	
City of Flagler Beach 105 S 2 <sup>nd</sup> Street	
Flagler Beach, FL 32137	
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT	
Effective Date of the Agreement:	
Amount:	
Description: City of Flagler Beach Bid Number X	X South Central Watermain Replacement
BOND	
Bond Number:	
Date (not earlier than the Effective Date of the Agreement of	the Construction Contract):
Amount:	
Modifications to this Bond Form: None	See Paragraph 16
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL	SURETY
(seal) Contractor's Name and Corporate Seal	
contractor 5 Name and corporate scar	surety s name and corporate seal
Ву:	Ву:
Signature	Signature (attach power of attorney)
Print Name	Print Name
Title	Title
Attest:	Attest:
Signature	Signature
 Title	

Section 00 43 25 PERFORMANCE BOND Page 1 of 3

Notes: (1) Provide supplemental execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers. (2) Any singular reference to

Contractor, Surety, Owner, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.



- 1. The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns to the Owner for the performance of the Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.
- 2. If the Contractor performs the Construction Contract, the Surety and the Contractor shall have no obligation under this Bond, except when applicable to participate in a conference as provided in Paragraph 3.
- 3. If there is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, the Surety's obligation under this Bond shall arise after:
  - 3.1 The Owner first provides notice to the Contractor and the Surety that the Owner is considering declaring a Contractor Default. Such notice shall indicate whether the Owner is requesting a conference among the Owner, Contractor, and Surety to discuss the Contractor's performance. If the Owner does not request a conference, the Surety may, within five (5) business days after receipt of the Owner's notice, request such a conference. If the Surety timely requests a conference, the Owner shall attend. Unless the Owner agrees otherwise, any conference requested under this Paragraph 3.1 shall be held within ten (10) business days of the Surety's receipt of the Owner's notice. If the Owner, the Contractor, and the Surety agree, the Contractor shall be allowed a reasonable time to perform the Construction Contract, but such an agreement shall not waive the Owner's right, if any, subsequently to declare a Contractor Default;
  - 3.2 The Owner declares a Contractor Default, terminates the Construction Contract, and notifies the Surety; and
  - 3.3 The Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price in accordance with the terms of the Construction Contract to the Surety or to a contractor selected to perform the Construction Contract.
- 4. Failure on the part of the Owner to comply with the notice requirement in Paragraph 3.1 shall not constitute a failure to comply with a condition precedent to the Surety's obligations, or release the Surety from its obligations, except to the extent the Surety demonstrates actual prejudice.
- 5. When the Owner has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 3, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense take one of the following actions:
  - 5.1 Arrange for the Contractor, with the consent of the Owner, to perform and complete the Construction Contract;
  - 5.2 Undertake to perform and complete the Construction Contract itself, through its agents or independent contractors;
  - 5.3 Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to the Owner for a contract for performance and completion of the Construction Contract,

- arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution by the Owner and a contractor selected with the Owners concurrence, to be secured with performance and payment bonds executed by a qualified surety equivalent to the bonds issued on the Construction Contract, and pay to the Owner the amount of damages as described in Paragraph 7 in excess of the Balance of the Contract Price incurred by the Owner as a result of the Contractor Default; or
- 5.4 Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor, and with reasonable promptness under the circumstances:
  - 5.4.1 After investigation, determine the amount for which it may be liable to the Owner and, as soon as practicable after the amount is determined, make payment to the Owner; or
  - 5.4.2 Deny liability in whole or in part and notify the Owner, citing the reasons for denial.
- 6. If the Surety does not proceed as provided in Paragraph 5 with reasonable promptness, the Surety shall be deemed to be in default on this Bond seven days after receipt of an additional written notice from the Owner to the Surety demanding that the Surety perform its obligations under this Bond, and the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the Owner. If the Surety proceeds as provided in Paragraph 5.4, and the Owner refuses the payment or the Surety has denied liability, in whole or in part, without further notice the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the Owner.
- 7. If the Surety elects to act under Paragraph 5.1, 5.2, or 5.3, then the responsibilities of the Surety to the Owner shall not be greater than those of the Contractor under the Construction Contract, and the responsibilities of the Owner to the Surety shall not be greater than those of the Owner under the Construction Contract. Subject to the commitment by the Owner to pay the Balance of the Contract Price, the Surety is obligated, without duplication for:
  - 7.1 the responsibilities of the Contractor for correction of defective work and completion of the Construction Contract;
  - 7.2 additional legal, design professional, and delay costs resulting from the Contractor's Default, and resulting from the actions or failure to act of the Surety under Paragraph 5; and
  - 7.3 liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are specified in the Construction Contract, actual damages caused by delayed performance or non-performance of the Contractor.
- 8. If the Surety elects to act under Paragraph 5.1, 5.3, or 5.4, the Surety's liability is limited to the amount of this Bond.
- 9. The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner or others for obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated to the Construction Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price shall not be reduced

10.



or set off on account of any such unrelated obligations. No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to any person or entity other than the Owner or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.

- 11. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to related subcontracts, purchase orders, and other obligations.
- 12. Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond may be instituted in any court of competent jurisdiction in the location in which the work or part of the work is located and shall be instituted within two years after a declaration of Contractor Default or within two years after the Contractor ceased working or within two years after the Surety refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this Bond, whichever occurs first. If the provisions of this paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum periods of limitations available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.
- 13. Notice to the Surety, the Owner, or the Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the page on which their signature appears.
- 14. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed deleted here from and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.

#### 15. Definitions

15.1 Balance of the Contract Price: The total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction Contract after all proper adjustments have been made including allowance for the Contractor for any amounts received or to be received by the Owner in settlement of insurance or other claims for damages to which the Contractor is entitled, reduced by all valid and proper payments made to or on behalf of the Contractor under the Construction Contract.

- 15.2 Construction Contract: The agreement between the Owner and Contractor identified on the cover page, including all Contract Documents and changes made to the agreement and the Contract Documents.
- 15.3 Contractor Default: Failure of the Contractor, which has not been remedied or waived, to perform or otherwise to comply with a material term of the Construction Contract.
- 15.4 Owner Default: Failure of the Owner, which has not been remedied or waived, to pay the Contractor as required under the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other material terms of the Construction Contract.
- 15.5 Contract Documents: All the documents that comprise the agreement between the Owner and Contractor.
- 16. If this Bond is issued for an agreement between a contractor and subcontractor, the term Contractor in this Bond shall be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed to be Contractor.

**END OF SECTION** 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



## SECTION 00 51 00 NOTICE OF AWARD

Section	00 51 00	NOTICE OF AWARD	Page 1 of 1
Copy: Er	ngineer	END OF SECTION	
Title:			
By:			
	Authorized Signature		
Owner:	City of Flagler Beach		
counterpa Paragraph	rt of the Agreement, toget 2.02 of the General Condition	y with the above conditions, Owner wi her with any additional copies of the ( ons.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
annul this	Notice of Award, and declare	·	
3	Other conditions precedent	in the Instructions to Bidders and General	ai Conditions, Articles 2 and 6.
2.		Agreement(s) the Contract security [e.g.,	
1.	Deliver to Owner Three (3)	counterparts of the Agreement, fully exec	uted by Bidder.
You m	nust comply with the following	g conditions precedent within ten (10) day	ys of the date of this Notice of Award:
[	a set of the Drawings will	be delivered separately from the other Co	ontract Documents.
		made available to Bidder electronically.	otice of Award and one copy of the
		tract is: <b>\$</b> arts of the Agreement accompany this N	latice of Award and one conv of the
		cepted your Bid dated	<del></del>
TO BIDDE			
South Cen	tral WM Replacement		
Project: <u>Ci</u>	ity of Flagler Beach		
Engineer:	Mead & Hunt	Engineer's Project No.:_	R1000709-231849.01
Owner: <u>Ci</u>	ty of Flagler Beach	Owner's Project No.:	570
Date of Iss	suance:	. 20	

City of Flagler Beach S. Central WM Replacement



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



# SECTION 00 51 20 NOTICE TO PROCEED

Owner	: City of Flagier Beach	Owner's Contract No.: 570
Contra	ctor:	Contractor's Project No.:
Engine	er: Mead & Hunt	Engineer's Project No.: R1000709-231849.01
Project	: CITY OF FLAGLER SOUTH CENTRAL WATERMAIN	N REPLACEMENT
		Effective Date of Contract:
то со	NTRACTOR:	
	ner hereby notifies Contractor that, 20	the Contract Times under the above Contract will commence to run on
done a	t the Site prior to such date. In acc	ming its obligations under the Contract Documents. No Work shall be ordance with the Agreement, the number of calendar days to achieve number of days to achieve readiness for final payment is ninety (90).
Before	e starting any Work at the Site, Cont	ractor must comply with the following: NONE
Owne	r:	
	Authorized Signature	
Ву:		
Title:		
Date	Issued:	
Сору:	Engineer	
		END OF SECTION

Page 1 of 1

**NOTICE TO PROCEED** 

Section 00 51 20



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



## **SECTION 00 61 10**

		32011011 00 01 10	
			Work Change Directive No.
Date of Issuan	ce:	Effective Date:	
Owner:	City of Flagler Beach	Owner's Contract	No.: 570
Contractor:	, ,	Contractor's Proje	ect No.:
Engineer:	Mead & Hunt	Engineer's Projec	t No.: R1000709-231849.01
Project:	CITY OF FLAGLER BEACH S	SOUTH CENTRAL WATER MAIN REF	PLACEMENT
Contractor is Description:	directed to proceed p	romptly with the following cha	ange(s):
Attachments: ,	[List documents supporting	ı change]	
Directive to proceed t	, is issued due to: [check or nt on pricing of proposed cl roceed for schedule or othe	ne or both of the following] hange.	greeing to changes on Contract Price and
	_		•
Contract Price Contract Time	\$ days	_	e] [decrease]. e] [decrease].
	ated change in Contract Pr		-, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -
Lump Sum	-	Unit Pri	ce
Cost of the Wo	ork	Other	
RECOMMENDE	ED:	AUTHORIZED BY:	RECEIVED:
Ву:		Ву:	By:
Engineer (Autho Signature)	orized Signature)	Owner (Authorized Signat	ure) Contractor (Authorized
Title:		Title:	Title:
Date:		Date:	Date:
Approved by F	unding Agency (if applicabl	le)	
Bv:		Date:	

By: Title:



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



## SECTION 00 62 50 NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK

PROJECT: CI	TY OF FLAGLER BEACH SOUTH CENTRAL WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT
OWNER: Cit	y of Flagler Beach
CONTRACTO	DR:
OWNER'S C	ONSTRUCTION CONTRACT IDENTIFICATION:
EFFECTIVE D	DATE OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT:, 20
ENGINEER: 1	Mead & Hunt
NOTICE DAT	E:
To:	City of Flagler Beach Owner
And To:	Contractor
From:	Mead & Hunt Engineer
payment of Contract is a between Ov and condition	er hereby gives notice to the above Owner and Contractor that Engineer has recommended final Contractor, and that the Work furnished and performed by Contractor under the above Construction acceptable, expressly subject to the provisions of the related Contract Documents, the Agreement owner and Engineer for Professional Services dated
CON	DITIONS OF NOTICE OF ACCEL FABILITY OF WORK

The Notice of Acceptability of Work ("Notice") is expressly made subject to the following terms and conditions to which all those who receive said Notice and rely thereon agree:

1. This Notice is given with the skill and care ordinarily used by members of the engineering profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time and in the same locality.

Section 00 62 50 WORK ACCEPTABILITY NOTICE Page 1 of 2



- 2. This Notice reflects and is an expression of the Engineer's professional opinion.
- 3. This Notice is given as to the best of Engineer's knowledge, information, and belief as of the Notice Date.
- 4. This Notice is based entirely on and expressly limited by the scope of services Engineer has been employed by Owner to perform or furnish during construction of the Project (including observation of the Contractor's work) under Engineer's Agreement with Owner, and applies only to facts that are within Engineer's knowledge or could reasonably have been ascertained by Engineer as a result of carrying out the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer under such Agreement.
- 5. This Notice is not a guarantee or warranty of Contractor's performance under the Construction Contract, an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the related Contract Documents, including but not limited to defective Work discovered after final inspection, nor an assumption of responsibility for any failure of Contractor to furnish and perform the Work thereunder in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents, or to otherwise comply with the Construction Contract Documents or the terms of any special guarantees specified therein.
- 6. This Notice does not relieve Contractor of any surviving obligations under the Construction Contract and is subject to Owner's reservations of rights with respect to completion and final payment.

by:		
Title:		
Dated:		

**END OF SECTION** 



## SECTION 00 64 25 CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

Owner	City of Flagler Peach		Owner's Contract	No : E70	
Owner: Contractor:	City of Flagler Beach		Contractor's Proje		
Engineer: 231849.01	Mead & Hunt		Engineer's Project		
	South Central Waterma	ain Replacement			
This [preli	minary] [final] Certificat	e of Substantial Comple	etion applies to:		
⊠ All W	/ork		The following specifi	ed portions of the Work:	
			, 20		
	Date of S	ubstantial Completio			
Engineer, a designated The date of	nd found to be substant above is hereby establis	ially complete. The Da hed, subject to the pro in the final Certificate	cted by authorized represen ate of Substantial Completic ovisions of the Contract pert of Substantial Completion quired by the Contract.	on of the Work or portice caining to Substantial Co	on thereof empletion.
ailure to in	•		ed to this Certificate. This listhe responsibility of the Co		•
-	ties upon Owner's use o		urity, operation, safety, mair rk shall be as provided in th		
Amendmen esponsibilit	ties:	ner's Ione s follows			
Amendmen Contractor's	s responsibilities: 🔀 N	lone s follows:			
The fellowin	ng documents are attach	ed to and made a part o	of this Certificate: No Docum	ents Attached.	
rne ronowii		an acceptance of Work	not in accordance with the C	Contract Documents, nor	
Γhis Certific	ate does not constitute a or's obligation to comple	•	nce with the Contract.		is it a relea
This Certific of Contracto		•		RECEIVED:	is it a relea
This Certific of Contracto EXECU By:	or's obligation to comple	te the Work in accorda  RECEIVI By:	ED: By:		
This Certific of Contracton EXECU By:	or's obligation to comple	te the Work in accorda  RECEIVI By:	ED: By:	RECEIVED: Contractor (Authorized	
This Certific of Contracto EXECU By: (Au	or's obligation to comple TED BY ENGINEER: thorized signature)	te the Work in accorda  RECEIVI By: Owner (Author	ED: By: ized Signature)		Signature)



#### **TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS INDEX**

## Flagler Beach - South Central Watermain Replacement

DIVISION 1 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS	
01 00 00	GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
01 11 00	SUMMARY OF WORK
01 20 00	PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES
01 29 76	PROGRESSIVE PAYMENT PROCEDURES
01 30 00	ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS
01 31 19	PROJECT MEETINGS
01 32 16	CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDULES
01 32 33	PHOTOGRAPHIC DOCUMENTATION
01 33 23	SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA, AND SAMPLES
01 35 13	SPECIAL PROJECT PROCEDURES
01 45 29	TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES
01 50 00	TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS
01 57 13	TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROLS
01 60 00	PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS
01 71 13	MOBILIZATION
01 77 00	CLOSE OUT PROCEDURES
01 78 33	BONDS
01 78 36	WARRANTIES
01 78 39	PROJECT RECORD DRAWINGS

## **DIVISION 2 - SITE CONSTRUCTION**

02 41 13.23 UTILITY LINE REMOVAL

## **DIVISION 3 – CONCRETE**

03 30 00 CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE

## **DIVISION 31 – EARTHWORK**

31 23 33 TRENCHING, BACKFILLING, AND COMPACTING

## **DIVISION 32 – EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS**

32 10 00 BASES, BALLASTS, AND PAVING

## **DIVISION 33 – UTILITIES**

33 01 00	OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES
33 01 12	INSPECTION AND TESTING OF WATER UTILITIES
33 14 00	WATER UTILITY TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION

## **END OF SECTION**

#### **SECTION 01 00 00 – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS**

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.1 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work: The Work to be done consists of the furnishing of all labor, materials and equipment, and the performance of all Work included in this Contract.

#### B. Work Included:

- 1. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, superintendence, materials, plant power, light, heat, fuel, water, tools, appliances, equipment, supplies, and means of construction necessary for proper performance and completion of the Work. The Contractor shall obtain and pay for all necessary local building permits. The Contractor shall perform and complete the work in the manner best calculated to promote rapid construction consistent with safety of life and property and to the satisfaction of the Engineer, and in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall clean up the Work and maintain it during and after construction, until accepted, and shall do all Work and pay all costs incidental thereto. The Contractor shall repair or restore all structures and property that may be damaged or disturbed during performance of the Work.
- 2. The cost of incidental work described in these project requirements, for which there are no specific Contract Items, shall be considered as part of the general cost of doing the Work and shall be included in the prices for the various Contract Items. No additional payment will be made therefore.
- 3. The Contractor shall provide and maintain such modern plant, tools, and equipment as may be necessary, in the opinion of the Engineer, to perform in a satisfactory and acceptable manner all the Work required by this Contract. Only equipment of established reputation and proven efficiency shall be used. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the adequacy of their workmanship, materials, and equipment, prior approval of the Engineer notwithstanding.

## C. Public Utility Installations and Structures

- 1. Public utility installations and structures shall be understood to include all poles, tracks, pipes, wires, conduits, vaults, manholes, and all other appurtenances and facilities pertaining thereto whether owned or controlled by the Owner, other governmental bodies, or privately owned by individuals, firms, or corporations, used to serve the public with transportation, traffic control, gas, electricity, telephone, sewerage, drainage, water, or other public or private property which may be affected by the Work shall be deemed included hereunder.
- 2. The Contract Documents contain data relative to existing public utility installations and structures above and below the ground surface. These data are not guaranteed as to their completeness or accuracy, and it is the responsibility of the Contractor to make their own investigations to inform themselves fully of the character, condition, and extent of all such

Section 01 00 00

- installations and structures as may be encountered and as may affect the construction operations.
- 3. The Contractor shall protect all public utility installations and structures from damage during the Work. Access across any buried public utility installation or structure shall be made to avoid any damage to these facilities. All required protective devices and construction shall be provided by the Contractor at their expense. All existing public utilities damaged by the Contractor shall be repaired by the Contractor, at their expense. No separate payment shall be made for such protection or repairs to public utility installations or structures.
- 4. Public utility installations or structures owned or controlled by the Owner or other governmental body which are shown on the Drawings to be removed, relocated, replaced, or rebuilt by the Contractor shall be considered as a part of the general cost of doing the Work and shall be included in the prices bid for the various Contract Items; therefore, no separate payment shall be made.
- 5. Where public utility installations of structures owned or controlled by the Owner or other governmental body are encountered during the course of the Work, and are not indicated on the Drawings or in the Specifications, and when, in the opinion of the Engineer, removal, relocation, replacement, or rebuilding is necessary to complete the Work under this Contract, such Work shall be accomplished by the utility having jurisdiction, or such Work may be ordered, in writing by the Engineer, for the Contractor to accomplish. If such work is accomplished by the utility having jurisdiction it will be carried out expeditiously, and the Contractor shall give full cooperation to permit the utility to complete the removal, relocation, replacement, or rebuilding as required. If such work is accomplished by the Contractor, it will be paid for as extra work as provided in the Agreement.
- 6. The Contractor shall, at all times in performance of the Work, employ acceptable methods and exercise reasonable care and skill so as to avoid unnecessary delay, injury, damage, or destruction of public utility installations and structures; and shall, at all times in the performance of the Work, avoid unnecessary interference with, or interruption of, public utility services, and shall cooperate fully with the utility owners.
- 7. The Contractor shall give written notice to the Owner and other governmental utility departments and other owners of public utilities of the location of their proposed construction operations, at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of breaking ground in any area or on any unit of the Work.
- 8. The maintenance, repair, removal, relocation, or rebuilding of public utility installations and structures, when accomplished by the Contractor as herein provided, shall be done by methods approved by the owners of such utilities.

#### 1.2 DRAWINGS AND PROJECT MANUAL

- A. Drawings: When obtaining data and information from the Drawings, figures shall be used in preference to scaled dimensions, and large-scale drawings in preference to small-scale drawings.
- B. Supplementary Drawings:

- 1. When, in the opinion of the Engineer, it becomes necessary to explain more fully the Work to be done or to illustrate the Work further or to show any changes which may be required, drawings known as Supplementary Drawings, with Specifications pertaining thereto, will be prepared by the Engineer, and the Contractor will be furnished an electronic copy of the plans and project manual.
- 2. The Supplementary Drawings shall be binding upon the Contractor with the same force as the Contract Drawings. Where such Supplementary Drawings require either less or more than the estimated quantities of Work, credit to the Owner or compensation therefore to the Contractor shall be subject to the terms of the Agreement.

## C. Contractor to Check Drawings and Data:

- 1. The Contractor shall verify all dimensions, quantities, and details shown on the Drawings, Supplementary Drawings, schedules, Specifications, or other data received from the Engineer, and shall notify them of all errors, omissions, conflicts, and discrepancies found therein. Failure to discover or correct errors, omissions, conflicts, or discrepancies shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility for unsatisfactory work, faulty construction, or improper operation resulting there from, nor from rectifying such conditions at their own expense. The Contractor will not be allowed to take advantage of any errors or omissions, as full instructions will be furnished by the Engineer, should such errors or omissions be discovered.
- 2. All schedules are given for the convenience of the Engineer and the Contractor and are not guaranteed to be complete. The Contractor shall assume all responsibility for the making of estimates of the size, kind, and quality of materials and equipment included in work to be done under the Contract.
- D. Specifications: The Technical Specifications consist of three (3) parts: General, Products, and Execution. The General part of a Specification contains General Requirements which govern the Work. The Products and Execution parts modify and supplement the General Requirements by detailed requirements for the Work and shall always govern whenever there appears to be a conflict.

#### E. Intent:

- All Work called for in the Specifications applicable to this Contract, but not shown on the
  Drawings in their present form, or vice versa, shall be of like effect as if shown or
  mentioned in both. Work not specified in either the Drawings or in the Specifications but
  involved in carrying out their intent or in the complete and proper execution of the Work,
  is required and shall be performed by the Contractor as though it were specifically
  delineated or described.
- 2. The apparent silence of the Specifications as to any detail, or the apparent omission from them of a detailed description concerning any work to be done and materials to be furnished, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best general practice is to prevail and that only material and workmanship of the best quality is to be used, the interpretation of these Specifications shall be made upon that basis.

## 1.3 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

#### A. Manufacturer:

- 1. All transactions with the manufacturers or subcontractors shall be through the Contractor, unless the Contractor shall request and at the Engineer's option, that the manufacturer or subcontractor deal directly with the Engineer. Any such transactions shall not in any way release the Contractor from their full responsibility under this Contract.
- 2. Any two (2) or more pieces of material or equipment of the same kind, type, or classification, and being used for identical types of service, shall be made by the same manufacturer.

## B. Delivery:

- 1. The Contractor shall deliver materials in ample quantities to ensure the most speedy and uninterrupted progress of the Work so as to complete the Work within the allotted time.
- 2. The Contractor shall also coordinate deliveries in order to avoid delay in, or impediment of, the progress of the work of any related Contractor.

#### C. Tools and Accessories:

- 1. The Contractor shall, unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, furnish with each type, kind, or size of equipment, one (1) complete set of suitably marked high grade special tools and appliances which may be needed to adjust, operate, maintain, or repair the equipment. Such tools and appliances shall be furnished in approved painted steel cases, properly labeled and equipped with good grade cylinder locks and duplicate keys.
- 2. Spare parts shall be furnished as specified herein and as recommended by the manufacturer necessary for the operation of the equipment, not including materials required for routine maintenance.
- 3. Each piece of equipment shall be provided with a substantial nameplate, securely fastened in place and clearly inscribed with the manufacturer's name, year of manufacture, serial number, weight, and principal rate data.

#### D. Service of Manufacturer's Engineer:

- 1. The Contract Prices for equipment shall include the cost of furnishing a competent and experienced Engineer or superintendent who shall represent the manufacturer and shall assist the Contractor, when required, to install, adjust, test, and place in operation, the equipment in conformity with the Contract Documents.
- 2. After the equipment is placed in permanent operation by the Owner, such Engineer or superintendent shall make all adjustments and tests required by the Engineer to prove that such equipment is in proper and satisfactory operating condition, and shall instruct such personnel as may be designated by the Owner in the proper operation and maintenance of such equipment.

Section 01 00 00

#### 1.4 INSPECTION AND TESTING

#### A. General:

- 1. For tests specified to be made by the Contractor, the testing personnel shall make the necessary inspections and tests, and the reports thereof shall be in such form as will facilitate checking to determine compliance with the Contract Documents. One (1) original and one (1) electronic copy of the reports shall be submitted, and authoritative certification thereof must be furnished to the Engineer as a prerequisite for the acceptance of any material or equipment.
- 2. If, in the making of any test of any material or equipment, it is ascertained by the Engineer that the material or equipment does not comply with the Contract Documents, the Contractor will be notified thereof, and they will be directed to refrain from delivering said material or equipment, or to remove it promptly from the site or from the Work and replace it with acceptable material, without cost to the Owner.
- 3. Tests of electrical and mechanical equipment and appliances shall be conducted in accordance with the recognized test codes of the ANSI, ASME, or the IEEE, except as may otherwise be stated herein.
- 4. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for the proper operation of equipment during testing and instruction periods and shall neither have nor make any claim for damage which may occur to equipment prior to the time when the Owner formally takes over the operation thereof.

#### B. Costs:

- 1. All inspection and testing of materials furnished under this Contract will be provided by the Contractor, unless otherwise expressly specified.
- 2. The cost of shop and field tests of equipment and of certain other tests specifically called for in the Contract Documents shall be borne by the Contractor, and such costs shall be deemed to be included in the Contract Price.
- 3. Materials and equipment submitted by the Contractor as the equivalent to those specifically named in the Contract may be tested by the Owner for compliance. The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for the expenditures incurred in making such tests of materials and equipment which are rejected for non-compliance.

#### C. Certificate of Manufacture:

- 1. Contractor shall furnish to Engineer authoritative evidence in the form of a certificate of manufacture that the materials to be used in the Work have been manufactured and tested in conformity with the Contract Documents.
- 2. These certificates shall be notarized and shall include copies of the results of physical tests and chemical analyses, where necessary, that have been made directly on the product or on similar products of the manufacturer.

Section 01 00 00

## D. Shop Tests:

- 1. Each piece of equipment for which pressure, duty, capacity, rating, efficiency, performance, function, or special requirements are specified shall be tested in the shop of the maker in a manner which shall conclusively prove that its characteristics comply fully with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 2. Five (5) copies of the manufacturer's actual test data and interpreted results thereof, accompanied by a certificate of authenticity sworn to by a responsible official of the manufacturing company and/or independent laboratory, shall be submitted to the Engineer for approval.
- 3. The cost of shop tests and of furnishing manufacturer's preliminary and shop test data of operating equipment shall be borne by the Contractor.

## E. Start-up Tests:

- 1. As soon as conditions permit, the Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, and instruments and shall make start-up tests of equipment.
- 2. If the start-up tests disclose any equipment furnished under this Contract which does not comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall, prior to demonstration tests, make all changes, adjustments, and replacements required. The furnishing Contractor shall assist in the start-up tests as applicable.

#### F. Demonstration Tests:

- 1. Prior to Contractor's request for a Substantial Completion inspection, all equipment and piping installed under this Contract shall be subjected to demonstration tests as specified or required to prove compliance with the Contract Documents.
- 2. The Contractor shall furnish labor, fuel, energy, water, and all other materials, equipment, and instruments necessary for all demonstration tests, at no additional cost to the Owner. Contractor shall assist in the demonstration tests as applicable.

#### 1.5 LINES AND GRADES

#### A. Grade:

1. All work under this Contract shall be constructed in accordance with the lines and grades shown on the Drawings, or as given by the Engineer. The full responsibility for keeping alignment and grade shall rest upon the Contractor.

#### B. Surveys:

1. The Contractor shall furnish and maintain, at their own expense, stakes and other such materials.

- 2. The Contractor shall check such reference marks by such means as they may deem necessary and, before using them, shall call the Engineer's attention to any inaccuracies.
- 3. The Contractor shall, at their own expense, establish all working or construction lines and grades as required from the reference marks set by the Engineer, and shall be solely responsible for the accuracy thereof. They shall, however, be subject to the check and review by the Engineer.

## C. Safeguarding Marks:

- The Contractor shall safeguard all points, stakes, grade marks, monuments, and bench
  marks made or established on the Work, bear the cost of re-establishing them if disturbed,
  and bear the entire expense of rectifying work improperly installed due to not maintaining
  or protecting or to removing without authorization such established points, stakes, and
  marks.
- 2. The Contractor shall safeguard all existing and known property corners, monuments, and marks adjacent to but not related to the Work and shall bear the cost of re-establishing them if disturbed or destroyed.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 01 00 00

#### SECTION 01 11 00 – SUMMARY OF WORK

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.1 WORK COVERED BY CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- A. This Contract is for the construction of the **South Central Avenue Water Main Replacement.**The work consists of furnishing all labor, equipment, and materials for the construction of the facilities consisting of, but not limited to, the following:
  - Installation of approximately 500 Linear Feet of 8" water main. Existing main to be placed out of service. Project also includes installation of 500 Linear Feet of 8" reclaim main.
- B. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, equipment, tools, services and incidentals to complete all Work required by these Specifications and as shown on the Drawings.
- C. The Contractor shall perform the Work complete, in place, and ready for continuous service, and shall include repairs, testing, permits, cleanup, replacements and restoration required as a result of damages caused during this construction.
- D. All materials, equipment, skills, tools and labor which is reasonably and properly inferable and necessary for the proper completion of the Work in a substantial manner and in compliance with the requirements stated or implied by these Specification or Drawings shall be furnished and installed by the Contractor without additional compensation, whether specifically indicated in the Contract Documents or not.
- E. The Contractor shall comply with all City, County, State, Federal, and other codes which are applicable to this Project.

## 1.2 CONTRACTOR'S USE OF PREMISES

A. The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for the protection and safekeeping of products and materials at the job site. If additional storage or work areas are required, they shall be obtained by the Contractor at no additional cost to the Owner.

## 1.3 PROJECT SEQUENCE

The Contractor shall establish their work sequence based on the use of crews to facilitate completion of construction and testing within the specified Contract Time.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### END OF SECTION 01 11 00

Section 01 10 00 SUMMARY OF WORK

Page 1 of 1

#### SECTION 01 20 00 – PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.1 SCOPE

- A. Separate payment will be made only for the items of work described herein and listed on the Bid Form. Any related work not specifically listed, but required for satisfactory completion of the work, shall be considered to be included in the scope of the appropriate listed work items.
- B. The Contractor's attention is called to the fact that cleanup is considered a part of the work of construction. No payment will be made until cleanup is essentially complete.
- C. No separate payment will be made for the following items and the cost of such work shall be included in the applicable pay items of work if not shown as a separate pay item.
  - 1. Clearing and grubbing
  - 2. Excavation, including necessary pavement base removal.
  - 3. Shoring and sheeting.
  - 4. Dewatering and disposal of surplus water.
  - 5. Structural fill.
  - 6. Backfill.
  - 7. Grading.
  - 8. Replacement of unpaved roadways, grass, and shrubbery plots.
  - 9. Cleanup.
  - 10. Testing and placing system in operation.
  - 11. Any material and equipment required to be installed and utilized for the test.
  - 12. Pipe, structures, pavement replacement and/or appurtenances included within the limits of lump sum work
- D. No payment shall be made for work constructed outside the authorized limits of work.

## 2.1 Mobilization/Demobilization

BID ITEM 1

The lump sum to complete this item shall be full compensation for the preparatory work and operations in mobilizing for beginning work on the Project including, but not limited to, those operations necessary for the movement of personnel, equipment, supplies and incidentals to the project site, and for the establishment of field office, building, safety equipment and first aid supplies, sanitary and other facilities, as required by these Specifications, and state and local laws and regulations; and any other pre-construction expense necessary for Work; the cost of field engineering including disposal of cleared and grubbed material and debris, permits and fees, construction schedules, project signs, shop drawings, temporary facilities, laydown storage area, construction aids, erosion control, work associated with Contractor support during Owner/Engineer reviews and inspection, re-inspections, and any other re-work resulting from same, cleaning, operation and maintenance data, and for all other work required for demobilization. The Contractor shall submit invoices substantiating the cost of mobilization and demobilization with each pay request. Five percent (5%) for the cost of mobilization and demobilization will be withheld until acceptance and final payment.

#### 2.2 Pre-Construction Video

BID ITEM 2

The contract lump sum price shall be full compensation for all materials and work necessary to complete the professional videotaping in accordance with the project specifications. Construction work shall not start until DVD's are delivered and approved by the project representative.

The full lump sum payment will be made based on delivery to the City of two copies with documentation of the video for the entire project route.

#### 2.3 Erosion Control and Pollution Abatement

BID ITEM 3

Payment will be made at the contract lump sum price for implementation and maintenance of erosion and turbidity control measures as shown on the plans, described in the specifications and/or directed in the field. This price includes all silt fencing, staked & floating turbidity barriers, sediment traps, inlet protection devices, synthetic bales, temporary sodding, equipment, labor and all other incidental items.

Payment shall be based on the percentage of the lump sum price (stated in the Schedule of Unit Prices) equal to the percentage complete of the overall project work.

#### 2.4 Maintenance of Traffic

BID ITEM 4

Payment will be made at the contract lump sum price for maintenance and control of traffic within the project area and adjacent roadways throughout the duration of the project construction work. This price includes the preparation, submittal and costs involved in obtaining approvals/permits for all site-specific traffic control plans as required by FDOT, Flagler County and City of Flagler Beach. The price also includes the full cost of implementing the traffic control plans including all traffic control devices, signage, barricades, variable message boards, flagmen, temporary striping/removal, equipment, labor and all other incidental items. This price also includes the installation and removal of a temporary pedestrian access sidewalk as shown in the plans.

Section 01 20 00

## PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES

Page 2 of 7

Payment shall be based on the percentage of the lump sum price (stated in the Schedule of Unit Prices) equal to the percentage complete of the overall project work.

## 2.5 Survey Layout

BID ITEM 5

Payment shall be made at the lump sum amount or portion thereof for the layout of all proposed improvements by a licensed surveyor registered in the State of Florida. Work shall include the staking of right-of-way and easement lines adjacent to proposed improvements. Surveyor shall verify existing grades and other tie-in locations and notify Engineer of any discrepancies.

#### 2.6 Furnish and Install C900 PVC Watermain

BID ITEM 6

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for providing and installing AWWA C900 PVC water main as shown on the plans and described in the specifications. The unit price shall be full compensation for all excavation, abandonment of existing pipe, sheeting & shoring, fittings, restraining devices, couplings, sleeves, identification tape, tracer wire, dewatering, bedding, backfill, compaction, density testing, pigging, hydrostatic testing, bacteriological testing, surface restoration including dirt, shell, rock, and sod, equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the installation as shown on the plans. Open cut PVC will be paid by the linear foot as measured horizontally from station to station. Vertical deflection is not considered as the basis for renumeration.

## 2.7 Furnish and Install C900 PVC Reclaim main

BID ITEM 7

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for providing and installing AWWA C900 PVC reclaim main as shown on the plans and described in the specifications. The unit price shall be full compensation for all excavation, abandonment of existing pipe, sheeting & shoring, fittings, re-straining devices, couplings, sleeves, identification tape, tracer wire, dewatering, bedding, backfill, compaction, density testing, pigging, hydrostatic testing, bacteriological testing, surface restoration including dirt, shell, rock, and sod, equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the installation as shown on the plans. Open cut PVC will be paid by the linear foot as measured horizontally from station to station. Vertical deflection is not considered as the basis for renumeration.

#### 2.8 Resilient Seat Gate Valve Box

BID ITEM 8

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for furnishing and installing each gate valve as shown on the plans and described in the specifications. The unit price shall be full compensation for all excavation, sheeting & shoring, valves, valve boxes, stems, concrete collars, restraining devices, adjustment of valve boxes to finished grade, surface restoration, equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the installation as shown on the plans.

Payment shall be based on the number of gate valves installed, tested, cleared and accepted at the unit prices stated in the Schedule of Unit Prices

2.9 Fire Hydrant Assembly (Remove and Replace)

BID ITEM 9

Section 01 20 00

PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES

Page 3 of 7

Lump sum payment shall be made for the removal of existing hydrants an installation of new fire hydrants per City of Flagler Beach Standard Construction Details. New installation shall include the installation of fittings, piping (including up to 8 feet of additional pipe if City desires fire hydrant road offset to be increased), hydrant valve, and hydrant along with painting of hydrant top per City requirements. Bagging of fire hydrant if installation is not completed in the same day will be required. Post-work activities include adjustment of isolation valve box to grade, painting of valve box, marking curb/edge of pavement of valve location, and replacement of blue reflective pavement marker.

## 2.10 Tie-ins (including Tapping Sleeve and Valve)

BID ITEM 10

Payment shall be made at the contract price for each tie in, tapping sleeve and tapping valve with valve box. The contract price shall be full compensation for all materials, equipment and labor required to complete the installation in accordance with the drawings and specifications. This item includes all fittings and appurtenances required in addition to the adjustment of valve box to final grade and concrete collar in unpayed areas.

2.11 Line Stop BID ITEM 11& 2A

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for furnishing and installing each temporary line stop as required or as directed in the field to stop flow in existing water mains. The unit price shall be full compensation for all excavation, sheeting & shoring, line stops, restraining devices, equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the installation as shown on the plans.

#### 2.12 Ductile Iron Fittings – Add or Delete

BID ITEM 12

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for the installation of ductile iron fittings over and above the fittings shown in the plans or described in the specifications. This item is included to cover costs for additional fittings that may be required to perform horizontal or vertical adjustments/modifications to the proposed pipeline routing shown on the plans due to field conditions. The unit price shall be full compensation for fittings, adaptors, restraining devices (at both ends of fitting), equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the installations.

Payment shall be based on the number of tons (or fraction thereof) of ductile iron fittings installed at the unit price stated in the Schedule of Unit Prices. The contract unit price will also apply as a credit to the City for fittings which are shown on the plans but not installed in the field.

### 2.13 Blow-Off Assembly

BID ITEM 13

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for furnishing and installing each blow-off valve assembly as shown on the plans and described in the specifications. The unit price shall be full compensation for all excavation, sheeting & shoring, tubing, taps, fittings, boxes, restoration, equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the installation as shown on the plans.

Payment shall be based on the number of blow-off assemblies installed, tested, cleared and accepted at the unit price stated in the Schedule of Unit Prices.

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for all materials, equipment and labor required to provide and install the water services per City detail. The connections shall be installed at the sizes and locations directed in the field. The Contractor shall provide and install service saddle, tap, corp stop, poly tubing, lockable curb stop and City standard meter box in accordance with City requirements as shown on the plans. All services to be installed via trenchless methods.

Payment shall be based on the number of potable water services installed, tested, cleared and accepted at the unit prices stated in the Schedule of Unit Prices.

#### 2.15 Reclaim Water Services

BID ITEM 15

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for all materials, equipment and labor required to provide and install the reclaim water services per City detail. The connections shall be installed at the sizes and locations directed in the field. The Contractor shall provide and install service saddle, tap, corp stop, poly tubing, lockable curb stop and City standard meter box in accordance with City requirements as shown on the plans. The unit prices for the services shall remain the same regardless of the right-of-way width the service is installed in, the length of the service or the method of the installation. All services to be installed via trenchless methods.

Payment shall be based on the number of reclaim water services installed, tested, cleared and accepted at the unit prices stated in the Schedule of Unit Prices.

## 2.16 Mill and Resurface (1 ½")

BID ITEM 16 & 5A

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for milling and overlay of roadways as shown on the plans and described in the specifications. Work shall meet the requirements of FDOT, Brevard County and City of Satellite Beach, as required. The unit price shall be full compensation for removal & disposal of existing roadway, installation of new asphalt & base, compaction, tack coats, testing, equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the repair as shown on the plans. Unit prices also include the restoration of pavement striping/markings and reflective pavement markers (RPM's). This pay item includes as "incidental", the temporary installation of RAP (recycled asphalt product) in disturbed areas if directed by the Owner. Payment shall be based on the number of square yards of asphalt constructed and accepted at the unit price stated in the Schedule of Unit Pricing.

## 2.17 Open Cut/Repair Base/Seal

BID ITEM 17

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for removal and replacement of roadways as shown on the plans and described in the specifications. Work shall meet the requirements of FDOT, Flagler County and City of Flagler Beach as required. The unit price shall be full compensation for saw-cutting, removal & disposal of existing, base, installation of new base, compaction, sealant, testing, equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the repair as shown on the plans. Unit prices also include the restoration of pavement striping/markings and reflective pavement markers (RPM's).

Payment shall be based on the number of square yards of road repair constructed and accepted at the unit

Section 01 20 00

#### PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES

Page 5 of 7

price stated in the Schedule of Unit Prices.

## 2.18 Open Cut/Repair Asphalt

**BID ITEM 18 & 6A** 

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for removal and replacement of asphaltic concrete roadways as shown on the plans and described in the specifications. Work shall meet the requirements of FDOT, Flagler County and City of Flagler Beach as required. The unit price shall be full compensation for sawcutting, removal & disposal of existing asphalt & base, installation of new asphalt & base, compaction, tack coats, testing, equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the repair as shown on the plans. Unit prices also include the restoration of pavement striping/markings and reflective pavement markers (RPM's). This pay item includes as "incidental", the temporary installation of RAP (recycled asphalt product) in disturbed areas if directed by City.

Payment shall be based on the number of square yards of asphalt repair constructed and accepted at the unit price stated in the Schedule of Unit Prices.

#### 2.19 Concrete Curb (Remove and Replace)

**BID ITEM 19 & 7A** 

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for removal and replacement of concrete curbing (all types) as shown on the plans and described in the specifications. The unit price shall be full compensation for saw-cutting, removal and disposal of existing concrete curb, grading, formwork, compaction, cement, water, reinforcement, jointing, finishing, testing, equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the construction as shown on the plans.

Payment shall be based on the linear feet of concrete curb constructed and accepted at the unit price stated in the Schedule of Unit Prices.

#### 2.20 Patterned Pavers (Remove and Replace)

BID ITEM 20

Payment will be made at the contract unit prices for removal and replacement (in-kind) of "specialty" (pavers, stamped concrete, asphalt, etc.) as shown on the plans and described in the specifications. The unit price shall be full compensation for removal & disposal of existing material, grading, formwork, compaction, concrete, pavers, brick, stamped concrete (patterned), asphalt, base, curbing, water, reinforcement, jointing, scoring, finishing, testing, equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the construction as shown on the plans.

2.21 As-Builts ITEM 21

Payment will be made at the contract lump sum price for professional survey layout of the proposed improvements and "as-built" drawings. As-built drawing requirements are set forth in specification Section 017839. Two (2) copies of preliminary as-builts signed & sealed by the Contractor's surveyor shall be submitted with each monthly progress pay request. These preliminary as-built drawings shall be up to date and include all work for which the contractor is asking to be paid for in the respective pay period. Pay requests submitted without updated as-builts shall be a basis for rejection of the pay request until such time as the as-builts are brought up to date. Final as-built requirements and deliverables are outlined in specification Section 017839. No final payment will be made without acceptable completion of final as-

Section 01 20 00

## PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES

Page 6 of 7

built drawings meeting the specifications.

## 2.22 Exploratory Excavation

**BID ITEM 1A** 

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for excavation and exposure of area surrounding exposed valve as noted on the plans. Excavation to confirm configuration of existing utilities. The unit price shall be full compensation for all excavation, sheeting/shoring, equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the work.

#### 2.23 Side Actuated Gate Valve

**BID ITEM 3A** 

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for furnishing and installing each side actuated gate valve as shown on the plans and described in the specifications. The unit price shall be full compensation for all excavation, sheeting & shoring, valves, valve boxes, stems, concrete collars, restraining devices, adjustment of valve boxes to finished grade, surface restoration, equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the installation as shown on the plans.

Payment shall be based on the number of side actuated gate valves installed, tested, cleared and accepted at the unit prices stated in the Schedule of Unit Prices.

## 2.24 Pervious Parking Grid Pavers (Remove and Replace)

BID ITEM 4A

Payment will be made at the contract unit price for removal and replacement of Pervious Parking Grid Pavers. The unit price shall be full compensation for equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the construction as shown on the plans.

Payment shall be based on the Lump Sum of Previous Parking Grid Pavers placed and accepted at the unit price stated in the Schedule of Unit Prices.

## 2.25 Concrete Driveway/Sidewalks (Remove and Replace)

BID ITEM 8A

Payment will be made at the contract unit prices for removal and replacement of concrete driveways and sidewalks as shown on the plans and described in the specifications. The unit price shall be full compensation for removal & disposal of existing concrete, grading, formwork, compaction, concrete, water, reinforcement, jointing, scoring, finishing, testing, equipment, labor and all other incidental items necessary to complete the construction as shown on the plans.

Payment shall be based on the number of square yards of driveway and sidewalk (of required thickness) constructed and accepted at the unit prices stated in the Schedule of Unit Prices.

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### END OF SECTION 01 20 00

Section 01 20 00

PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES

Page 7 of 7

#### SECTION 01 29 76 – PROGRESS PAYMENT PROCEDURES

### PART 1 - GENERAL

# 1.1 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work: Submit Application for Payment to the Engineer in accordance with schedule established by conditions of the Contract and Agreement between Owner and Contractor. Contractor shall use the Application and Certificate for Payment Form included in Section 008440 as the official pay request form.

# 1.2 FORMAT REQUIRED

- A. Submit applications on the form provided.
- B. Provide itemized data on continuation sheets of format, schedules, line items, and values specified on the Application and Certificate for Payment Form. The Contractor shall use the item descriptions and contract values included in the Schedule of Values, approved and accepted by the Engineer as a basis for preparation of the Application for Payment Form.

### 1.3 PREPARATION OF APPLICATION FOR EACH PROGRESS PAYMENT

# A. Application Form:

- 1. Fill in required information, including that for Change Orders executed prior to date of submittal of application.
- 2. Fill in percent complete for each activity and dollar values to agree with respective percents.
- 3. Execute certification with signature of a responsible officer of the Contractor.

#### B. Continuous Sheets:

- 1. Fill in total of all scheduled component items of the Work, with item number and schedule dollar value for each item.
- 2. Fill in dollar value in each column for each scheduled line item when Work has been performed or products stored. Round off values to nearest dollar, or as specified for Schedule of Values.
- 3. List each Change Order executed prior to date of submission, at the end of the continuation sheets. List by Change Order Number, and description, as for an original component item Work.
- 4. To receive approval for payment on component material stored on site, submit copies of the original invoices with Application and Certificate for Payment.

Section 01 29 76

PROGRESS PAYMENT PROCEDURES

Page 1 of 3

5. As provided for in the Application and Certificate for Payment Form, the Contractor shall certify, for each current pay request, that all previous progress payments received from the Owner, under this Contract, have been applied by the Contractor to discharge in full, all obligations of the Contractor in connection with Work covered by prior Applications for Payment, and all materials and equipment incorporated into the Work are free and clear of all liens, claims, security interest, and encumbrances. Contractor shall attach to each Application and Certificate for Payment like affidavits by all subcontractors.

## 1.4 SUBSTANTIATING DATA FOR PROGRESS PAYMENTS

- A. Contractor shall submit suitable information, with a cover letter identifying:
  - 1. Project.
  - 2. Application number and date.
  - 3. Detailed list of enclosures.
  - 4. For stored products:
    - a. Item number and identification as shown on application.
    - b. Description of specific material.
- B. Submit one (1) copy of data and cover letter for each copy of application.
- C. The Contractor is to maintain an updated set of drawings to be used as record drawings. As a prerequisite for monthly progress payments, the Contractor is to exhibit the updated record drawings for review by the Owner and the Engineer.
- D. Each monthly Application for Payment shall incorporate the corresponding "monthly progress status report" and updated construction schedule, prepared in accordance the applicable Specification section.
- E. As a prerequisite for payment, Contractor shall submit a duly executed letter from surety consenting to payment due and progress to date.
- F. Provide construction photographs in accordance with applicable Specification sections.

## 1.5 PREPARATION OF APPLICATION FOR FINAL PAYMENT

- A. Fill in application form as specified for progress payments.
- B. Furnish evidence of completed operations and insurance in accordance with the General Conditions.
- C. Provide Contractor's final release of lien and other close-out submittals as required by the General Conditions.

Section 01 29 76

# 1.6 SUBMITTAL PROCEDURE

- A. Submit Application for Payment to the Engineer at the time stipulated in the Agreement, or as agreed to at the pre-construction meeting. Review the percentage complete with the Engineer and resolve any conflict or discrepancies.
- B. Application for Payment to be submitted electronically in color for processing and payment.
- C. When the Engineer finds the Application and Certificate for Payment Form is properly completed and correct, they will execute the Certificate for Payment and transmit the forms to the Owner, with a copy to the Contractor.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

**END OF SECTION 01 29 76** 

## **SECTION 01 30 00 – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS**

### PART 1 - GENERAL

- 1.1 The Contractor shall not have any right in property in any materials taken from any excavation and they shall not remove any earth, sand or other material from the lines of the work before the excavation is refilled except upon direction of the Engineer. The provisions of this paragraph shall not be construed as relieving the Contractor of any kind of their obligations to remove and dispose of any of the material excavated, with or without rehandling, at their cost and expense as provided in these Specifications.
- 1.2 From investigations, including surveys made at the site, it is assumed that physical conditions are approximately as indicated on the Drawings, but the nature of the materials below the surface, the depth to satisfactory foundations, or the stability of beds or banks or quantity of groundwater are not guaranteed.
- 1.3 Where reference is made within these documents to government specifications, or those of well-known organizations such as ASTM, ASA, ASME, etc., the latest editions shall be used, any or all references in these documents to earlier stated editions notwithstanding.
- 1.4 The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions to prevent damage to existing utilities which are to remain in service during any of the construction operations. Should such utilities be damaged by the Contractor, they shall be required to replace, or repair same, to the satisfaction of the Engineer, at no additional cost to the Owner.
- 1.5 Certain information regarding the reputed presence, size, character, and location of existing underground structure, pipes and conduits has been shown on the Drawings. The location of underground structures shown may be inaccurate and other obstructions than those shown may be encountered. The Contractor distinctly agrees that the Engineer and the Owner are not responsible for the correctness or sufficiency of the information given; that in no event is this information to be considered as a part of the Contract; that they shall have no claim for delay or extra compensation on account of incorrectness of information given; or on account of insufficiency or absence of information regarding obstructions either revealed or not revealed by the Drawings; and that they shall have no claim for relief from any obligation or responsibility under this Contract, in case the location, size or character of any pipe or other underground structure is encountered that is not shown on the Drawings.
- 1.6 The Owner shall provide reference points as shown on the plans. Contractor shall be responsible for having a land surveyor registered in the State of Florida and approved by the Engineer lay out the work, shall protect and preserve the established reference points and shall make no changes or relocations without the prior written approval of the Engineer. Contractor shall report to Engineer whenever such reference point is lost or destroyed or required location because of necessary changes in grades or locations, and the Contractor shall be responsible for replacement

Section 01 30 00

or relocation of such reference points by professionally qualified personnel, registered in the State of Florida and approved by the Engineer.

- 1.7 All dewatering and pumping necessary to accomplish the work of this Contract shall be performed by the Contractor at no extra or additional cost to the Owner. Any permits required shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.
- 1.8 Before submitting a Bid each Contractor must:
  - 1. Examine the Contract Documents thoroughly.
  - 2. Visit the site to familiarize themself with local conditions that may in any manner affect cost, progress or performance of the work.
  - 3. Familiarize themself with federal, state and local laws, ordinance, rules and regulations that may in any manner affect cost, progress or performance of the work.
  - 4. Study and carefully correlate Bidder's observations with the Contract Documents.
- 1.9 Attention is directed to the requirements of the following agencies with regard to permits and construction of utilities within their rights of way or jurisdiction.
  - 1. City of Flagler Beach.
  - 2. HRS/DEP Potable Water Distribution System Extension Permit.
  - 3. FDOT Utility Permit.
  - 4. The Owner will make necessary application for permits to construct such utilities. It shall be, however, the responsibility of the Contractor to construct the utilities in strict accordance with the requirements of the above-mentioned agencies, and no extra or additional payments will be made by the Owner for this work.
- 1.10 Construction shall be limited to weekday day light working hours. No weekend, night time, or holiday work shall be performed without obtaining permission in advance from the Engineer. Certain non-essential items such as clean up, seeding and mulching, sodding, some well pointing operations, saw cutting of pavement, etc. may be performed by the Contractor during the above times by giving the Engineer advance notice of such operations.
- 1.11 The Contractor shall provide an English speaking full time superintendent to supervise sub-contractors and provide direction to field crews. The Engineer's representative shall not be responsible for providing direction to sub-contractor or field crews. The Contractor's superintendent shall not be verbally or physically abusive to citizens or other project personnel.

Use of foul language in the presence of or belligerence towards citizens or project representatives shall be grounds for immediate replacement of the superintendent at no cost to the Owner.

- 1.12 The Contractor acknowledges that they are responsible for complying with all aspects of the Florida Trench Safety Act (90-96, Laws of Fla.) effective October 1, 1990. The Contractor assumes all responsibility and costs entailed.
- 1.13 The proposed pipe alignments indicated on the project plans may require adjustment in the field due to conflicts or field conditions. Field changes shall be paid for at the contact unit price.
- 1.14 The Contractor shall provide suitable, accurate pressure gauges for conducting hydrostatic pressure tests at all pipe branch/blow-off locations or as a minimum at each end of each section of the line tested between valves. No separate payment will be made for this work.
- 1.15 No thrust blocking shall be used unless specifically authorized by the Engineer. Restrained joint pipe fittings and joint shall be utilized.
- 1.16 All water main installed under this contract shall be buried with the appropriate marking tape to indicate the service designation. The tape shall be laid directly over the pipe at a depth of 24 inches below proposed finished ground elevation.
- 1.17 Limitations on the Engineer's Responsibilities
  - 1. Neither the Engineer's authority to act under this Paragraph nor any decision made by the Engineer in good faith either to exercise or not exercise such authority shall give rise to any duty or responsibility of the Engineer to the Contractor, any subcontractor, any of their agents or employees or any other person performing any of the work.
  - 2. The Engineer will <u>not</u> be responsible for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, and will <u>not</u> be responsible for the Contractor's failure to perform the work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
  - 3. The Engineer will <u>not</u> be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor, any subcontractors, or any of their agents or employees, or any other persons performing any of the work.
- 1.18 All PVC potable water pipe installed under this contract shall be extruded blue in color to differentiate this pipe from other service designations. Pipe shall be NSF approved AWWA C-900 Class 150.
- 1.19 Reasonable care shall be taken during construction to avoid damage to vegetation. Ornamental shrubbery and tree branches shall be temporarily tied back, where appropriate, to minimize damage. Trees which receive damage to branches shall be trimmed of those branches to improve

Section 01 30 00

the appearance of the tree. Tree trunks receiving damage from equipment shall be treated with a tree dressing.

- 1.20 Project completion is defined as pipe materials in place tested and certified for use, and paving and right-of-way restoration as well as fencing complete.
- 1.21 All existing improved areas disturbed by construction shall be sodded with the same type sod as the existing variety of sod encountered. Separate unit price payment or lump sum payment will be made for this work.
- 1.22 The Contractor shall utilize restrained joint for bends and required fittings for all pressure pipe shown on the project plans. The restrained PVC pipe lengths shall be in accordance with DIPRA Thrust Resistant Design for Ductile Iron Pipe utilizing laying condition 2 with polyethylene wrap with the type soils and soil depth encountered. Restrained joint pipe Specifications shall be strictly adhered to. Piping drawings indicating restraining lengths and calculations shall be submitted to the Engineer for record purposes prior to construction. Responsibility for the adequacy for the restrained joint calculations shall remain with the Contractor and the supplier.
- 1.23 The Contractor shall make their own provisions for materials security. Any Owner provided work areas shall be returned to its original or better condition upon the completion of the project. Sodding of any disturbed areas utilized by the Contractor for work area will be accomplished by the Contractor at no additional cost to the Owner. Separate payment for this work will not be made and shall be included in the appropriate contract work items by the Contractor in the bid proposal.
- Burning or burying of land clearing debris shall not be permitted. All organic matter and other debris shall be disposed of by the Contractor at an approved landfill.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 01 30 00

#### SECTION 01 31 19 – PROJECT MEETINGS

### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.1 DESCRIPTION

## A. Scope of Work:

- 1. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Engineer to schedule and administer the preconstruction meeting, resident meeting, utility coordination, periodic progress meetings, and specifically called meetings throughout the progress of the Work.
- 2. The Engineer shall:
  - a. Prepare agenda for meetings.
  - b. Make physical arrangements for meetings.
  - c. Preside at meetings.
  - d. Take and distribute meeting minutes.
- 3. The Contractor shall:
  - a. Attend all meetings along with pertinent subcontractors and suppliers.
  - b. Appoint attendees who are qualified and authorized to act on behalf of the entity each represents.
  - c. Provide requested information at meetings.
  - d. Provide revised CPM schedule and a three-week look-ahead schedule.
- 4. The Owner shall:
  - a. Attend meetings to ascertain that the Work is expedited consistent with Contract Documents and construction schedules.

# 1.2 PRECONSTRUCTION MEETING

- A. Purpose: To initiate coordination of contractual requirements prior to start of work.
- B. Scheduling: Engineer will schedule a preconstruction meeting after execution of the Contract. Invites shall be sent via electronic mail.
- C. Location: A local site, convenient for all parties, designated by the Engineer/Owner.
- D. Attendance:
  - 1. Owner's representative.
  - 2. Engineer
  - 3. Resident project representative.
  - 4. Contractor and their superintendent.

Section 01 31 19 PROJECT MEETINGS Page 1 of 5

- 5. Major subcontractors.
- 6. Representatives of major suppliers and manufacturers, as appropriate.
- 7. Governmental and franchised utility representatives, as appropriate.
- 8. Permit agency representatives, as appropriate.
- 9. Funding agency representatives, as appropriate.
- 10. Others as requested by the Contractor, Owner, and Engineer.

# E. Suggested Agenda:

- 1. Introductions and Roles
- 2. Contract Execution and Dates
  - a. Contracts
  - b. Contract Time/Dates
  - c. Copies of Conformed Documents
- 3. Communications
  - a. Lines of Communication
  - b. Coordination Meetings
  - c. Contact List
  - d. Requests for Information (RFIs)
- 4. Preconstruction Matters
  - a. Submittals
  - b. Material Acquisition
  - c. Mobilization
  - d. Permitting
- 5. Construction/Coordination
  - a. Working Days/Hours
  - b. Change Orders
  - c. Locating Existing Facilities
  - d. Demolition
  - e. Testing
  - f. Updated Schedules
- 6. Pay Requests
  - a. Process
  - b. Schedule of Values
  - c. Stored Materials
  - d. Preliminary As-Builts
- 7. Contract Closeout
  - a. Substantial Completion
  - b. Punch-list
  - c. Final Acceptance

- d. Warranty
- e. Final Payment

# 1.3 RESIDENT MEETING(S)

- A. Purpose: To present construction approach to affected residents and to allow residents to ask questions concerning such.
- B. Scheduling: Engineer/Owner will schedule resident meeting(s) after preconstruction meeting is held, but before construction begins. Invites shall be distributed via electronic mail and hard copy flyers. Contractor shall assist in the distribution of flyers.
- C. Location: A local site, convenient for all parties, designated by the Engineer/Owner.
- D. Attendance:
  - 1. Owner's representative.
  - 2. Engineer.
  - 3. Resident project representative.
  - 4. Contractor and their superintendent.
  - 5. Major subcontractors, as appropriate.
  - 6. Residents.
- E. Suggested Agenda: To be determined by Engineer/Owner

# 1.4 UTILITY COORDINATION MEETING(S)

- A. Purpose: To discuss the coordination of the construction with existing and proposed utilities.
- B. Scheduling: Engineer will schedule utility coordination meeting(s) as needed. These meetings may be held in conjunction with Progress Meetings. Invites shall be distributed via electronic mail.
- C. Location: A local site, convenient for all parties, designated by the Engineer/Owner.
- D. Attendance:
  - 1. Owner's representative.
  - 2. Engineer.
  - 3. Resident project representative.
  - 4. Contractor and their superintendent.

Section 01 31 19 PROJECT MEETINGS Page 3 of 5

- 5. Major subcontractors, as appropriate.
- 6. Utility representatives.
- E. Suggested Agenda: To be determined by Engineer.

### 1.5 PROGRESS MEETINGS

- A. Purpose: To discuss the progress of the construction and projected work activities.
- B. Scheduling: Engineer will schedule progress meetings on a regular basis at a maximum frequency of once per week or less frequently, i.e. once per month, depending on the level of communication required for the project. Invites shall be distributed via electronic mail.
- C. Location: A local site, convenient for all parties, designated by the Engineer/Owner.
- D. Attendance:
  - 1. Owner's representative.
  - 2. Engineer and sub-consultants, as appropriate.
  - 3. Resident project representative.
  - 4. Contractor and their superintendent.
  - 5. Major subcontractors, as appropriate.
  - 6. Utility representatives, as appropriate.
  - 7. Permit agency representatives, as appropriate.
  - 8. Funding agency representatives, as appropriate.

# E. Suggested Agenda:

- 1. Work progress since last meeting
- 2. Work scheduled this period
- 3. Field observations, problems and conflicts.
- 4. Construction schedule
  - a. Status of current schedule
  - b. Issues impacting schedule
  - c. Fabrication and delivery schedules
  - d. Corrective measures to regain projected schedule
- 5. Submittals
- 6. RFIs

- 7. Pending Changes and Substitutions
- 8. Quality Control
- 9. Pay Requests
- 10. Other Business

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 01 31 19

Section 01 31 19 PROJECT MEETINGS Page 5 of 5

#### SECTION 01 32 16 – CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDULES

### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.1 DESCRIPTION

## A. Scope of Work:

- 1. Promptly after award of the Contract, prepare and submit to the Engineer estimated construction progress schedules demonstrating complete fulfillment of all Contract requirements utilizing a Critical Path Method (hereinafter referred to as CPM) in planning, coordinating, and performing the Work under this Contract (including all activities of subcontractors, equipment vendors, and suppliers). The principles and definition of CPM terms used herein shall be as set forth in the Associated General Contractors of America (AGC) publication, The Use of CPM in Construction, A Manual for General Contractors and the Construction Industry, latest edition, but the provisions of this Specification shall govern the planning, coordinating, and performance of the Work.
- 2. Submit revised progress schedules on a monthly basis. No partial payments shall be approved until there is an approved construction progress schedule on hand.

# 1.2 QUALIFICATIONS

- A. A statement of computerized CPM capability shall be submitted in writing prior to the award of the Contract and shall verify that either Contractor's organization has in-house capability to use the CPM technique or that Contractor will employ a CPM consultant who is so qualified.
- B. In-house capability shall be verified by description of construction projects to which Contractor or Contractor's consultant has successfully applied computerized CPM and shall include at least two (2) projects valued at least half the expected value of this project.

### 1.3 FORM OF SCHEDULES

- A. Prepare schedules in the form of a horizontal bar chart.
  - 1. Provide a separate horizontal bar for each trade or operation within each structure or item.
  - 2. Horizontal time scale:
    - a. Show starting and completion dates for each activity in terms of the number of days after Notice to Proceed. All completion dates shown shall be within the period specified for contract completion.
    - b. Identify the first workday of each month.
  - 3. Scale and Spacing: Sufficient to allow space for notations and future revisions.

Section 01 32 16

- 4. Maximum Sheet Size: 22 inches by 34 inches.
- B. Format of Listings: The chronological order of the start of each item of work for each structure.
- C. Identification of Listings: By major Specification section numbers as applicable and by utility.
- D. Construction Progress Schedules shall be computer generated using software offered by Primavera or approved equal.

#### 1.4 CONTENT OF SCHEDULES

- A. Construction Progress Schedule:
  - 1. Show the complete sequence of construction by activity and by structure.
  - 2. Show the dates for the beginning and completion of each major element of construction in no more than a two (2) week increment scale. Specifically, list, but do not limit to:
    - a. Shop Drawing Schedule.
    - b. Installation of temporary facilities.
    - c. Clearing.
    - d. Demolition
    - e. Subcontractor work
    - f. Utility Installations
    - g. Paving
    - h. Start-Up
    - i. Project closeout
  - 3. Show projected percentage of completion for each item, as of the first day of each month.
  - 4. Show projected dollar cash flow requirements for each month of construction and for each activity as indicated by the approved Schedule of Values.

## B. Submittals.

- 1. Indicate on the schedule the following:
  - a. The dates for Contractor's submittals.
  - b. The date submittals will be required for Owner-furnished products, if applicable.
  - c. The date approved submittals will be required from the Engineer.
- C. A typewritten list of all long lead items (equipment, materials, etc.).
- D. To the extent that the progress schedule or any revised progress schedule shows anything not jointly agreed upon or fails to show anything jointly agreed upon, it shall not be deemed to have been approved by the Engineer. Failure to include any element of work required for the performance of this Contract shall not excuse the Contractor from completing all work required within any applicable completion date, notwithstanding the Engineer's approval of the progress schedule.
- E. Scheduling Constraints: The work within Owner's property must be completed within the maximum number of days start to finish, as indicated in the Contract. Additionally, work must

proceed on a continuous basis, without stoppages, except for nights and weekends. There shall be no lapses between phases of construction.

### 1.5 PROGRESS REVISIONS

- A. Indicate progress of each activity to date of submission.
- B. Show changes occurring since previous submission of schedule:
  - 1. Major changes in scope.
  - 2. Activities modified since previous submission.
  - 3. Revised projections of progress and completion.
  - 4. Other identifiable changes.
- C. Provide a narrative report as needed to define:
  - 1. Problem areas, anticipated delays, and the impact on the schedule.
  - 2. Corrective action recommended, and its effect.
  - 3. The effect of changes on schedules of other prime contractors.
- D. If the Work falls behind the critical path schedule by two (2) weeks or more, the Contractor shall prepare a recovery schedule.

## 1.6 SUBMISSIONS

- A. Submittal Requirements.
  - 1. Logic network and/or time-phased bar chart, computer generated.
  - 2. Computerized network analysis:
    - a. Sort by early start
    - b. Sort by float
    - c. Sort by predecessor/successor
  - 3. Narrative description of the logic and reasoning of the schedule.
- B. Time of Submittals.
  - 1. Within 10 working days after Notice to Proceed, Contractor shall submit a network diagram describing the activities to be accomplished in the project and their dependency relationships, (predecessor/successor) as well as a tabulated schedule as herein defined. The total length of time indicated on the initial CPM schedule shall equal the exact number of days in the Contract Time as defined in Agreement. The schedule produced and submitted shall also indicate calendar dates, including project starting and completion dates, based on the contract commencement and completion dates indicated in the Notice

Section 01 32 16

Page 3 of 7

- to Proceed. The Engineer will complete the review of the complete schedule within 15 working days after receipt. During the review process, the Engineer may meet with a representative of Contractor to review the proposed plan and schedule to discuss any clarifications that may be necessary.
- 2. Within 10 working days after the conclusion of the Engineer's review period, Contractor shall revise the network diagram as required and resubmit the network diagram and a tabulated schedule produced therefrom. The revised network diagram and tabulated schedule shall be reviewed and accepted or rejected by the Engineer within 15 working days after receipt. The network diagram and tabulated schedule, when accepted by the Engineer, shall constitute the project work schedule unless a revised schedule is required due to substantial changes in the Work, a change in Contract Time or a recovery schedule is required and requested.
- C. Acceptance. The finalized schedule will be acceptable to the Engineer when, in the opinion of the Engineer, it demonstrates an orderly progression of the Work to completion in accordance with the Contract Documents. Such acceptance will neither impose on the Engineer responsibility for the progress or scheduling of the Work nor relieve Contractor from full responsibility, therefore. The finalized schedule of shop drawing submittals will be acceptable to the Engineer when, in the opinion of the Engineer, it demonstrates a workable arrangement for processing the submittals in accordance with the requirements. The finalized Schedule of Values (lump sum price breakdown), as applicable, will be acceptable to the Engineer as to form and content when, in the opinion of the Engineer, it demonstrates a substantial basis for equitably distributing the Contract Price. When the network diagram and tabulated schedule have been accepted, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer six (6) copies of the time-scaled network diagram, six (6) copies of a computerized tabulated schedule in which the activities have been sequenced by numbers, six (6) copies of a computerized tabulated schedule in which the activities have been sequenced by early starting date, and six (6) copies of a computerized, tabulated schedule in which activities have been sequenced by total float, and six (6) copies sorted by predecessor/successor.
- D. Revised Work Schedules. Contractor, if requested by the Engineer, shall provide a revised work schedule if, at any time, the Engineer considers the completion date to be in jeopardy because of "activities behind schedule." The revised work schedule shall include a new diagram and tabulated schedule conforming to the requirements of Paragraph 1.9 herein, designed to show how Contractor intends to accomplish the Work to meet the completion date. The form and method employed by Contractor shall be the same as for the original work schedule. No payment will be made if activities fall more than two (2) weeks behind schedule and a revised work schedule is not furnished.
- E. Schedule Revisions. The Engineer may require Contractor to modify any portions of the work schedule that become infeasible because of "activities behind schedule" or for any other valid reason. An activity that cannot be completed by its original latest completion date shall be deemed to be behind schedule. No change may be made to the sequence, duration, or relationships of any activity without approval of the Engineer.

# 1.7 DISTRIBUTION

- A. Distribute copies of the reviewed schedules to:
  - 1. Engineer.

- 2. Jobsite file.
- 3. Subcontractors.
- 4. Other concerned parties.
- 5. Owner (two copies).
- B. Instruct recipients to report promptly to the Contractor, in writing, any problems anticipated by the projections shown in the schedules.

### 1.8 CHANGE ORDERS

A. Upon approval of a Change Order, the approved changes shall be reflected in the next scheduled revision or update submittal of the construction progress schedule by the Contractor.

### 1.9 CPM STANDARDS

- A. CPM, as required by this Section, shall be interpreted to be generally as outlined in the Associated General Contractors (AGC) publication, <u>The Use of CPM in Construction</u>, <u>A Manual for General Contractors and the Construction Industry</u>, Copyright 1976.
- B. Work schedules shall include a graphic network and computerized, tabulated schedules as described below. To be acceptable the schedule must demonstrate the following:
  - 1. A logical succession of work from start to finish.
  - 2. Definition of each activity. Activities shall be identified by major Specification section numbers, as applicable, and by major utility.
  - 3. A logical flow of work crews/equipment (crews are to be defined by manpower category and man-hours; equipment by type and hours).
  - 4. Show all work activities and interfaces including submittals as well as major material and equipment deliveries.

### C. Networks.

- 1. The CPM network, or diagram, shall be in the form of a time-scaled diagram of the customary activity-on-type and may be divided into a number of separate pages with suitable notation relating the interface points among the pages. Notation on each activity line shall include a brief work description and duration, as described in Paragraph 1.9, D. herein.
- 2. All construction activities and procurement shall be indicted in a time-scaled format, and a calendar shall be shown on all sheets along the entire sheet length. Each activity arrow shall be plotted so the beginning and completion dates of said activity can be determined graphically by comparison with the calendar scale. All activities shall be shown using the symbols that clearly distinguish between critical path activities, non-critical path activities,

Section 01 32 16

and float for each non-critical activity. All non-critical path activities shall show estimated performances time and float time in scaled form.

- D. The duration indicated for each activity shall be in calendar days and shall represent the single best time considering the scope of the work and resources planned for the activity including time for inclement weather. Except for certain non-labor activities, such as curing concrete or delivering materials, activity durations shall not exceed 14 days nor be less than one (1) day unless otherwise accepted by the Engineer.
- E. Tabulated Schedules. The initial schedule shall include the following minimum data for each activity:
  - 1. Activity Beginning and Ending Numbers (i-j numbers) (single activity numbers may be used).
  - 2. Duration.
  - 3. Activity Description.
  - 4. Early Start Date (Calendar Dated).
  - 5. Late Start Date (Calendar Dated).
  - 6. Early Finish Date (Calendar Dated).
  - 7. Late Finish Date (Calendar Dated).
  - 8. Identified Critical Path.
  - 9. Total Float (Note: No activity may show more than 20 days float).
  - 10. Cost of Activity.
  - 11. Equipment Hours, by type; Man-Power Hours, by crew or trade.
- F. Project Information. Each tabulation shall be prefaced with the following summary data:
  - 1. Project Name.
  - 2. Contractor.
  - 3. Type of Tabulation (Initial or Updated).
  - 4. Project Duration.
  - 5. Project Scheduled Completion Date.
  - 6. Effective or Starting Date of the Schedule.
  - 7. New Project Completion Date and Project Status (if an updated or revised schedule).
  - 8. Actual Start Date and Actual Finish Date (for all updated schedules.)

### 1.10 SCHEDULE MONITORING

- A. At not less than monthly intervals or when specifically requested by Engineer, Contractor shall submit to the Engineer a computer printout of an updated schedule for those activities that remain to be completed. Typically, the updated schedule will be submitted with the Application for Payment as specified below.
- B. The updated schedule shall be submitted in the form, sequence, and number of copies requested for the initial schedule.

# 1.11 PROGRESS MEETINGS

A. For the monthly progress meeting, Contractor shall submit a revised CPM schedule and a three-week look-ahead schedule, showing all activities completed, in progress, uncompleted, or scheduled to be worked during the weeks. The three weeks include the current week plus the next two weeks. All activities shall be from the approved CPM and must be as shown on the CPM unless behind or ahead of schedule. One copy of the revised CPM schedule shall be submitted with each copy of that month's Application for Payment, electronically in color.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 01 32 16

#### SECTION 01 32 33 – PHOTOGRAPHIC DOCUMENTATION

### PART 1 - GENERAL

# 1.1 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. Scope of Work: The Contractor shall employ a competent photographer to take construction record photographs and video recording prior to start of the Work, periodically during the course of the Work, and following the completion of the Work.
- B. Summary: This section includes administrative and procedural requirements for the following:
  - 1. Preconstruction photographs.
  - 2. Preconstruction video recordings.
  - 3. Periodic Construction ground and aerial photographs.
  - 4. Periodic Construction video recordings.
  - 5. Construction completion photographs.
  - 6. Web-based construction photographic documentation.
- C. Photographs and videos shall be taken in conformance with this Section and shall be furnished to the Engineer with each pay request. Failure to comply will result in rejection of pay request.

# 1.2 INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS

- A. Digital Photographs: Submit image files within three (3) days of taking photographs
  - 1. Digital Camera: Minimum sensor resolution of 8 megapixels.
  - 2. Format: Minimum 3200 by 2400 pixels, in unaltered original files, with same aspect ratio as the sensor, uncropped, date and time stamped, in folder named by date of photograph.
  - 3. Identification: Provide the following information with each image description in file metadata tag:
    - a. Name of Project.
    - b. Name and contact information for photographer.
    - c. Name of Engineer.
    - d. Name of Contractor.
    - e. Date photograph was taken.
    - f. Description of vantage point, indicating location, direction (by compass point), and elevation or story of construction.
- B. Construction Photographs: Submit two (2) prints of each photographic view within seven (7) days of taking photographs.

Section 01 32 33

Page 1 of 5

- 1. Format: Electronic submittal to Engineer.
- 2. Identification: With each submittal, provide the following information:
  - a. Name of Project.
  - b. Name and contact information for photographer.
  - c. Name of Engineer and Construction Manager.
  - d. Name of Contractor.
  - e. Date photograph was taken if not date stamped by camera.
  - f. Description of vantage point, indicating location, direction (by compass point), and elevation or story of construction.
- C. Video Recordings: Submit video recordings within seven (7) days of recording.
  - 1. Submit video recordings in digital video disc format acceptable to Engineer
  - 2. Identification: With each submittal, provide the following information:
    - a. Name of Project.
    - b. Name and address of photographer.
    - c. Name of Engineer and Construction Manager.
    - d. Name of Contractor.
    - e. Date video recording was recorded.
    - f. Description of vantage point, indicating location, direction (by compass point), and elevation or story of construction.
    - g. Weather conditions at time of recording.

### 1.3 COST OF PHOTOGRAPHY

A. The Contractor shall pay costs for specified ground and aerial photography and videography.

# 1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Photographer Qualifications: An individual who has been regularly engaged as a professional photographer of construction projects for not less than three (3) years.
- B. Digital photographs may be taken by the Contractor's personnel but must be of professional quality as herein specified. Photographs which are deemed unsatisfactory will be rejected and retakes will be required.

### 1.5 USAGE RIGHTS

A. Obtain and transfer copyright usage rights from the Photographer to the Owner for unlimited reproduction of photographic documentation.

### PART 2 - PRODUCTS

# 2.1 PHOTOGRAPHIC MEDIA

- A. Digital Images: Provide images in JPG format, produced by a digital camera with minimum sensor size of 8 megapixels, and at an image resolution of not less than 3200 by 2400 pixels.
- B. Digital Video Recordings: Provide high-resolution digital video disc in format acceptable to Engineer.
- C. Digital Images: Submit digital images exactly as originally recorded in the digital camera, without alteration, manipulation, editing, or modifications using image-editing software.
  - 1. Date and Time: Include date and time in file name for each image.
  - 2. Field Office Images: Maintain one (1) set of images accessible in the field office at the Project site, available always for reference. Identify images in the same manner as those submitted to Engineer and Construction Manager.
- D. Preconstruction Photographs: Before starting construction, take photographs of the Project site and surrounding properties, including existing items to remain during construction, from different vantage points, as directed by Engineer and Construction Manager.
  - 1. Flag excavation areas and construction limits before taking construction photographs.
  - 2. Take 20 photographs to show existing conditions adjacent to property before starting the Work.
  - 3. Take 20 photographs of existing buildings either on or adjoining property to accurately record physical conditions at start of construction.
  - 4. Take additional photographs as required to record settlement or cracking of adjacent structures, pavements, and improvements.
- E. Periodic Construction Photographs: Take 20 photographs weekly, with timing each month adjusted to coincide with the cutoff date associated with each Application for Payment. Select vantage points to show status of construction and progress since last photographs were taken.
- F. Engineer and Construction Manager Directed Construction Photographs: From time to time, Engineer and Construction Manager will instruct photographer about number and frequency of photographs and general directions on vantage points. Select actual vantage points and take photographs to show the status of construction and progress since last photographs were taken.
- G. Time-Lapse Sequence Construction Photographs: Take 20 photographs as indicated, to show status of construction and progress since last photographs were taken.
  - 1. Frequency: Take photographs weekly, with timing each month adjusted to coincide with the cutoff date associated with each Application for Payment.

- 2. Vantage Points: Following suggestions by Engineer and Construction Manager and Contractor, photographer to select vantage points. During each of the following construction phases, take not less than two of the required shots from same vantage point each time to create a time-lapse sequence as follows:
  - a. Commencement of the Work, through completion of subgrade construction.
  - b. Above-grade structural framing.
  - c. Exterior building enclosure.
  - d. Interior Work, through date of Substantial Completion.
- H. Final Completion Construction Photographs: Take 20 color photographs after date of Substantial Completion for submission as project record documents. Engineer and Construction Manager will inform photographer of desired vantage points.
  - 1. Do not include date stamp.
- I. Additional Photographs: Engineer or Construction Manager may request photographs in addition to periodic photographs specified.
  - 1. Three (3) days' notice will be given, where feasible.
  - 2. In emergency situations, take additional photographs within 24 hours of request.
  - 3. Circumstances that could require additional photographs include, but are not limited to, the following:
    - a. Special events planned at the Project site.
    - b. Immediate follow-up when on-site events result in construction damage or losses.
    - c. Photographs to be taken at fabrication locations away from the Project site. These photographs are not subject to unit prices or unit-cost allowances.
    - d. Substantial Completion of a major phase or component of the Work.
    - e. Extra record photographs at time of final acceptance.
    - f. Owner's request for special publicity photographs.

# 2.2 CONSTRUCTION VIDEO RECORDINGS

- A. Video Recording Photographer: Engage a qualified videographer to record construction video recordings. Time must be accurate and continuously generated.
- B. Recording: Mount camera on tripod before starting recording unless otherwise necessary to show area of construction. Display continuous running time and date. At start of each video recording, record weather conditions from local newspaper or television and the actual temperature reading at the Project site.
- C. Narration: Describe scenes on video recording by dubbing audio narration off-site after video recording is recorded. Include description of items being viewed, recent events, and planned activities. At each change in location, describe vantage point, location, direction (by compass point), and elevation or story of construction.
  - 1. Confirm date and time at beginning and end of recording.

- 2. Begin each video recording with name of the Project, Contractor's name, videographer's name, and Project location.
- D. Transcript: Provide a typewritten transcript of the narration. Display images and running time captured from video recording opposite the corresponding narration segment.
- E. Preconstruction Video Recording: Before starting construction, record video recording of the Project site and surrounding properties from different vantage points, as directed by Engineer and Construction Manager.
  - 1. Flag excavation areas and construction limits before recording construction video recordings.
  - 2. Show existing conditions adjacent to the Project site before starting the Work.
  - 3. Show existing buildings either on or adjoining the Project site to accurately record physical conditions at the start of construction.
  - 4. Show protection efforts by Contractor.

## 2.3 DELIVERY OF PHOTOGRAPHS AND VIDEOS

- A. Photographs and videos will be delivered electronically following Specifications above with a coordinating log, to the Engineer as attachment to Application for Payment.
- B. Distribution of construction photographs, as soon as processed, is anticipated to be as follows:
  - 1. Engineer one (1) set.
  - 2. Project record file one (1) set to be stored by Contractor until the end of the project which shall then be delivered with Project Record Documents.
  - 3. Contractor one (1) set.

### **END OF SECTION 01 32 33**

## SECTION 01 33 23 - SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES

### PART 1 - GENERAL

# 1.1 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer for review and approval, such working drawings, shop drawings, test reports and data on materials and equipment, and material samples materials list, certificates and affidavits as are required for the proper control of work, including but not limited to those working drawings, shop drawings, data and samples for materials and equipment specified elsewhere in the Specifications and in the Contract Drawings.
- B. Within 20 calendar days after the Effective Date of the Agreement, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer a complete materials list of preliminary data on items for which Shop Drawings are to be submitted. Included in this materials list shall be the names of all proposed manufacturers furnishing specified items. Review of this list by the Engineer shall in no way be expressed or implied relief to the Contractor from submitting complete Shop Drawings and providing material, equipment, etc., fully in accordance with the Specifications. This procedure is required in order to expedite final review of Shop Drawings.
- C. The Contractor shall maintain an accurate updated submittal log and will bring this log to each scheduled progress meeting with the Owner and the Engineer. This log shall include the following items:
  - 1. Submittal Description and Number assigned.
  - 2. Date submitted to Engineer
  - 3. Date returned to Contractor (from Engineer).
  - 4. Status of Submittal (Approved, Approved as Noted, Not Approved/Resubmit).
  - 5. Date of Resubmittal and Return (as applicable).
  - 6. Date of material release (for fabrication).
  - 7. Projected date of fabrication.
  - 8. Projected date of delivery to site.
  - 9. Status of O&M manuals submitted.
  - 10. Specification Section.
  - 11. Drawings Sheet Number.

# 1.2 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

- A. It is the duty of the Contractor to check all drawings, data and samples prepared by or for them before submitting them to the Engineer for review. Each and every copy of the drawings and data shall bear Contractor's stamp and signature showing that they have been so checked. Shop drawings submitted to the Engineer without the Contractor's stamp and signature will be returned to the Contractor for conformance with this requirement. Shop drawings shall indicate any deviations in the submittal from requirements of the Contract Documents. If the Contractor takes exception to the Specifications, the Contractor shall note the exception in the letter of transmittal to the Engineer. Shop drawings submittals shall not be used as a vehicle for requesting approval of substitute or alternative equipment and materials. Substitution requests will be considered only when submitted in accordance with the applicable provisions.
- B. Determine and Verify:
  - 1. Field measurements.
  - 2. Field construction criteria.
  - 3. Catalog numbers and similar data.
  - 4. Conformance with Specifications.
- C. The Contractor shall furnish the Engineer a schedule of Shop Drawings submittals fixing the respective dates for the submission of shop and working drawings, the beginning of manufacture, testing and installation of materials, supplies and equipment. This schedule shall indicate those that are critical to the progress schedule.
- D. The Contractor shall not begin any of the work covered by a drawing, data, or a sample returned for correction until a revision or correction thereof has been reviewed and returned to the Contractor, by the Engineer, with approval.
- E. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer all drawings and schedules sufficiently in advance of construction requirements to provide no less than 30 calendar days for checking and appropriate action from the time the Engineer receives them.
- F. All submittals shall be accompanied by a transmittal letter prepared in duplicate containing the following information:
  - 1. Date.
  - 2. Project Title and Number.
  - 3. Contractor's name and address.
  - 4. Notification of deviations from Contract Documents.
  - 5. Submittal Log Number conforming to Specification Section Numbers.
- G. The Contractor shall submit descriptive or product data submittals/drawings electronically to the Engineer. The Engineer will review the submittals/drawings and return marked-up submittals/drawings with appropriate review comments electronically to the Contractor.

Section 01 33 23

SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCFT DATA AND SAMPLES

Page 2 of 7

- H. Once submittals/drawings are approved, they are to be distributed electronically to the Owner, Engineer and Contractor.
- I. The Contractor shall be responsible for and bear all costs of damages which may result from the ordering of any material or from proceeding with any part of work prior to the completion of the review by Engineer of the necessary shop drawings.
- J. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for observing the need for and making any changes in the arrangement of piping, connections, wiring, manner of installation, etc., which may be required by the materials/equipment they proposed to supply both as pertaining to their own work and any work affected under other parts, headings, or divisions of Drawings and Specifications.

#### 1.3 ENGINEER'S REVIEW OF SHOP DRAWINGS

- A. The Engineer's review of drawings, data and samples submitted by the Contractor will cover only general conformity to the Specifications, external connections, and dimensions which affect the installation. The Engineer's review and exceptions, if any, will not constitute an approval of dimensions, quantities, and details of the material, equipment, device, or item shown.
- B. The review of drawings and schedules will be general, and shall not be construed:
  - 1. As permitting any departure from the Contract requirements;
  - 2. As relieving the Contractor of responsibility of any errors, including details, dimensions, and materials;
  - 3. As approving departures from details furnished by the Engineer, except as otherwise provided herein.
- C. If the drawings or schedules as submitted describe variations and show a departure from the Contract requirements which the Engineer finds to be in the interest of the Owner and to be so minor as not to involve a change in Contract Price or time for performance, the Engineer may return the reviewed drawings, without noting an exception.
- D. When reviewed by the Engineer, each of the Shop Drawings will be identified as having received such review, being so stamped and dated. Shop Drawings stamped "NOT APPROVED/RESUBMIT" and with required corrections shown will be returned to the Contractor for correction and re-submittal.
- E. Resubmittals will be handled in the same manner as first submittals. On Resubmittals the Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, to revisions other than the corrections requested by the Engineer on previous submissions. The Contractor shall make any corrections required by the Engineer.
- F. If the Contractor considers any correction indicated on the drawings to constitute a change to the Contract Drawings or Specifications, the Contractor shall give written notice thereof to the Engineer.

- G. Shop Drawings and submittal data shall be reviewed by the Engineer for each original submittal and first Resubmittal; thereafter review time for subsequent Resubmittals shall be charged to the Contractor in accordance with the terms of the Engineer's Agreement with the Owner.
- H. When the Shop Drawings have been completed to the satisfaction of the Engineer, the Contractor shall carry out the construction in accordance therewith and shall make no further changes therein except upon written instructions from the Engineer.
- I. No partial submittals will be reviewed. Submittals not complete will be returned to the Contractor for Resubmittal. Unless otherwise specifically permitted by the Engineer, make all submittals in groups containing all associated items for:
  - 1. Systems
  - 2. Processes
  - 3. As indicated in Specifications, all drawings, schematics, manufacturer's product data, certifications and other shop drawing submittals required by a system specification shall be submitted at one time as a package to facilitate interface checking.

#### 1.4 SHOP DRAWINGS

- A. When used in the Contract Documents, the term "Shop Drawings" shall be considered to mean Contractor's plans for materials and equipment which become an integral part of the Project. These drawings shall be completed and detailed. Shop Drawings shall consist of fabrication, erection and setting drawings and schedule drawings, manufacturer's scale drawing, and wiring and control diagrams. Cuts, catalogs, pamphlets, descriptive literature, and performance and test data shall be considered only as supportive to required shop drawings as defined above. As used herein, the term "manufactured" applied to standard units usually mass-produced; and "fabricate" means items specifically assembled or made out of selected materials to meet individual design requirements.
- B. Manufacturer's catalog sheets, brochures, diagrams, illustrations and other standard descriptive data shall be clearly marked to identify pertinent materials, product or models. Delete information which is not applicable to the Work by striking or cross-hatching.
- C. Drawings and schedules shall be checked and coordinated with the work of all trades involved, before they are submitted for review by the Engineer and shall bear the Contractor's stamp of approval as evidence of such checking and coordination. Drawings or schedules submitted without this stamp of approval shall be returned to the Contractor for resubmission.
- D. Each Shop Drawing shall have a transmittal sheet. The transmittal sheet shall display the following:
  - 1. Project title and number.
  - 2. Name of project building or structure.
  - 3. Number and title of the shop drawing.

- 4. Date of shop drawing or revision.
- 5. Name of Contractor and subcontractor submitting drawing.
- 6. Supplier/manufacturer.
- 7. Separate detailer when pertinent.
- 8. Specification number.
- 9. Drawing number.

A Letter of Transmittal Excel document shall be provided to the Contractor per request.

- E. If drawings show variations from Contract requirements because of standard shop practice or for other reasons, the Contractor shall describe such variations in their letter of transmittal. If acceptable, proper adjustment in the Contract shall be implemented where appropriate. If the Contractor fails to describe such variations, they shall not be relieved of the responsibility for executing the work in accordance with the Contract, even though such drawings have been reviewed.
- F. Data on materials and equipment include, without limitation, materials and equipment lists, catalog data sheets, cuts, performance curves, diagrams, materials of construction and similar descriptive material. Materials and equipment lists shall give, for each item thereon, the name and location of the supplier or manufacturer, trade name, catalog reference, size, finish and all other pertinent data.
- G. For all mechanical and electrical equipment furnished, the Contractor shall provide a list including the equipment name, address and telephone number of the manufacturer's representative and service company so that service and/or spare parts can be readily obtained.
- H. All manufacturers or equipment suppliers who are proposed to furnish equipment or products shall submit an installation list to the Engineer along with the required shop drawings. The installation list shall include at least five (5) installations where identical equipment has been installed and has been in operation for a period of at least one (1) year.
- I. Only the Engineer will utilize the color "red" in marking shop drawing submittals.

### 1.5 WORKING DRAWINGS

- A. When used in the Contract Documents, the term "working drawings" shall be considered to mean the Contractor's plan for temporary structures such as temporary bulkheads, support of open cut excavation, support of utilities, ground water control systems, forming and false work; for underpinning; and for such other work as may be required for construction but does not become an integral part of the project.
- B. Copies of working drawings as noted in paragraph 1.5A. above, shall be submitted to the Engineer where required by the Contract Documents or requested by the Engineer, and shall be submitted at least 30 calendar days (unless otherwise specified by the Engineer) in advance of their being required for work.

Section 01 33 23

SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCFT DATA AND SAMPLES

Page 5 of 7

C. Working drawings shall be signed by a registered Professional Engineer, currently licensed to practice in the State of Florida and shall convey, or be accompanied by, calculations or other sufficient information to completely explain the structure, machine, or system described and its intended manner of use. Review of working drawings by the Engineer will not relieve the Contractor in any way from their responsibility with regard to the fulfillment of the terms of the Contract. All risks of error are assumed by the Contractor; the Owner and Engineer shall have no responsibility therefore.

### 1.6 SAMPLES

- A. The Contractor shall furnish, for the approval of the Engineer, samples required by the Contract Documents or requested by the Engineer. Samples shall be delivered to the Engineer as specified or directed. The Contractor shall prepay all shipping charges on samples. Materials or equipment for which samples are required shall not be used in work until approved by the Engineer.
- B. Samples shall be of sufficient size and quantity to clearly illustrate:
  - 1. Functional characteristics of the product, with integrally related parts and attachment devices.
  - 2. Full range of color, texture and pattern.
  - 3. A minimum of two (2) samples of each item shall be submitted.
- C. Each sample shall have a label indicating:
  - 1. Name of project.
  - 2. Name of Contractor and subcontractor.
  - 3. Material or equipment represented.
  - 4. Place of origin.
  - 5. Name of producer and brand (if any).
  - 6. Location in project.
  - 7. Submittal Number.
  - 8. (Samples of finished materials shall have additional marking that will identify them under the finish schedules).
- D. The Contractor shall prepare a transmittal letter in triplicate for each shipment of samples containing the information required in paragraph 1.6B above. The Contractor shall enclose a copy of this letter with the shipment and send a copy of this letter to the Engineer. Approval of a sample shall be only for the characteristics or use names in such approval and shall not be construed to change or modify any Contract requirements.
- E. Approved samples not destroyed in testing shall be sent to the Engineer or stored at the site of work. Approved samples of the hardware in good condition will be marked for identification and

Section 01 33 23

may be used in the work. Materials and equipment incorporated in work shall match the approved samples. Samples which failed testing or were not approved will be returned to the Contractor at their expense, if so, requested at time of submission.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

**END OF SECTION 01 33 23** 

#### SECTION 01 35 13 – SPECIAL PROJECT PROCEDURES

### PART 1 - GENERAL

### 1.1 PUBLIC NUISANCE

- A. The Contractor shall not create a public nuisance including, but not limited to, encroachment on adjacent lands, flooding of adjacent lands, or excessive noise.
- B. Sound levels measured by the Engineer shall not exceed 50 dBA from 7 P.M. to 7 A.M. or 60 dBA 7 A.M. to 7 P.M. This sound level shall be measured at the exterior of the nearest exterior wall of the nearest residence. Levels at the equipment shall not exceed 85 dBA at any time. Sound levels in excess of these values are sufficient cause to have the Work halted until equipment can be quieted to these levels. Work stoppage by the Engineer or Owner for excessive noise shall not relieve the Contractor of the other portions of this Specification including, but not limited to, completion dates and bid amounts.
- C. No extra charge may be made for time lost due to work stoppage resulting from the creation of a public nuisance.

#### 1.2 JURISDICTIONAL DISPUTES

A. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to pay all costs that may be required to perform any of the Work shown on the Drawings or specified herein in order to avoid any work stoppages due to jurisdictional disputes. The basis for subletting Work in question, if any, shall conform to precedent agreements and decisions on record with the Building and Construction Trades Department, AFL-CIO, dated June, 1973, including any amendments thereto.

# 1.3 EXCAVATION AROUND AND CONNECTION TO EXISTING UTILITIES

- A. It is essential that the Contractor understand that the existing Owner's facilities must be kept in operation with minimal impact and shut-downs. To this end, the Contractor shall coordinate and consult with the Owner's operating personnel before excavating around or cutting into existing utilities on the site. Existing utilities of major concern are water, sanitary sewer, electrical power conduits, phone and television cables, instrumentation conduits, and cables.
- B. Some areas within the construction site may require hand excavation due to the congestion of underground piping systems and/or due to the criticality of piping systems that may be damaged unavoidably during machine excavation.
- C. Cover for underground piping shall not be less than that indicated on the Drawings, up to a minimum of 36 inches of cover where obtainable. In areas where other piping conflicts preclude the minimum cover desired, the piping shall be laid to provide the maximum cover obtainable.
- D. All connections to existing piping systems shall be made as shown or indicated on the Drawings after consultation, cooperation, and coordination with the Owner's management personnel. Some such connections may have to be made during off-peak hours (late night or early morning hours).

Section 01 35 13

The Contractor shall give a minimum of three (3) working days' notice to the Owner when tieins with the existing plant utilities are required.

E. For major utility pipeline tie-ins and relocations, the Contractor shall submit a detailed Plan of Action for review and approval by the Owner and the Engineer. No major utility relocation or tie-ins shall proceed until the Plan of Action for that Work is approved.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 01 35 13

#### **SECTION 01 45 29 – TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES**

### PART 1 - GENERAL

### 1.1 DESCRIPTION

# A. Scope of Work:

- 1. Contractor will employ and pay for services of an independent testing laboratory to perform testing specifically indicated on the Contract Documents or specified in the Specifications herein and may at any other time elect to have materials and equipment tested for conformity with the Contract Documents.
- 2. Contractor shall cooperate with the laboratory to facilitate the execution of its required services.
- 3. Contractor shall provide Engineer with all test results as indicated herein within five (5) days of receipt.
- B. The following schedule defines the responsibility for various tests.

<u>Test</u>	Notes Pipe Work: every 300 ft. at each lift of	Paid for By
Soil Compaction	compaction minimum. Beneath Structures: each 500 sq. ft. lift of compaction minimum and each lift around structures.	Contractor
Pressure	As specified	Contractor
Bacteriological	As required by local and state agencies.	Contractor
LBR	Each 1500 SF of pavement (minimum).	Contractor
Concrete	Slump test each delivery and compression test five cylinders every 50 C.Y. (minimum).	Contractor

C. Additional Tests: The Contractor shall pay for first tests as specified herein. In the event that first test samples do not meet the applicable material Specification, the Contractor shall take measures to conform the material and equipment to the Specifications. All subsequent tests shall be paid for by the Contractor at no additional cost to the Owner.

# 1.2 LABORATORY TESTS

A. The materials listed below shall require advance and periodic laboratory tests as indicated, and shall be sampled in accordance with the methods of the A.S.T.M. and as directed by the Engineer. With the exception of concrete test cylinders and mixing water, duplicate advance samples of all materials requiring laboratory tests shall be submitted to the Engineer, one of which will be

Section 01 45 29

**TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES** 

Page 1 of 5

certified by the Engineer for submission to the testing laboratory and the other retained on the job site in suitable storage provided by the Contractor. Except as noted below, preliminary samples of materials for advance laboratory tests shall be submitted at least two (2) weeks prior to starting delivery of such materials to the site of the project. The testing laboratory shall furnish both the Engineer and the Contractor with two (2) copies of the reports showing the results of such tests, and the reports shall be considered as sufficient evidence of the acceptance or rejection of the quality of the materials tested. The Specifications for, and the method of testing, will be found under the detailed Specifications for the particular material involved. All samples shall be properly packed and clearly marked as to source and intended use.

MATERIALS	TEST FREQUENCY	SAMPLE SIZE	SHIPPING CONTAINER
Fine Aggregate	Advance, first shipment then each 100 tons	100 lbs.	Canvas Sack
Coarse Aggregate	Advance, first shipment then each 200 tons	Stone or Gravel 200 lbs.	Strong Sack
Concrete	Advance test using approved materials	4 cylinders per mix, 2 broken at 7 days, 2 at 28 days	
Concrete (b) Air Entrainment	Advance test on trial mix air entraining agent is used. Test as specified under Article 405 (e)		

### 1.3 TESTS

A. The materials listed below shall be tested at the shop or plant of, and by, the producer. Each manufacturer of such materials shall be fully equipped to carry out the tests herein designated. Upon demand of the Engineer, the manufacturer shall perform such additional number of tests as the Engineer may deem necessary to establish the quality of the material offered for use. The Engineer shall be furnished with the certified records of reports of the results of all tests, such reports of records to contain a sworn statement that the tests have been made as specified.

MATERIAL	TEST METHOD
Cement	ASTM C114
Ductile Iron Pipe (Centrifugally Cast)	As required under ANSI A21.51-1176
Brick	ASTM C-32
Reinforcement	ASTM A-15 & A-305

#### 1.4 FIELD TESTS

A. All sewers, water lines, piping and equipment shall be tested in the field in the presence of the Engineer or their authorized representative, in the manner prescribed in the sections of these Specifications pertaining to such installations. The Engineer may also perform or have performed any other field tests necessary to determine compliance with the Contract requirements. The

Contractor shall furnish all necessary labor, equipment, and materials for such tests and, with the exception of the Engineer's expenses, shall bear all the cost thereof.

# 1.5 PAVING TESTS

A. The following tests will be made, unless otherwise stipulated by the Engineer, by a testing laboratory approved by the Engineer:

Material	Test or Test Method	Frequency
Subbase	1) AASHO T-180 (Modified Proctor Minimum 98% Density)	Every 300 LF
3422430	2) Lime rock Bearing Ratio 40	Every 300 LF
	(Soil Cement) (1) Mix Design 350 psi @ 28 days. Mix design required 7 days in advance.	Prior to Mixing Base
Base	(2) Optimum Moisture content and Maximum Density (AASHTO T-134)	Every 300 LF
	(3) LBR 100	Every 1500 sf
	(4) Depth (6-inch minimum)	Every 300 feet
	(1) Job Mix Formula. Required 7 days in advance and submit to Engineer	Each Job
Paving	(2) Bitumen Content of Mix	Every 2500 SY or fraction thereof
	(3) In Place Density	Every 300' (left, right & center)
	(4) Marshall Field Stability Index	Every 1500 SY or fraction thereof
	(5) Thickness Cores	Every 300' (left, right, & center)

# 1.6 Basis of Payment

A. All shop tests and mill inspection shall be included in the price of the manufactured article, and no separate or extra payment will be made for such tests and inspection.

B. All laboratory and field tests will be paid for by the Contractor. Contractor shall furnish all necessary labor, equipment and materials for such tests and, with the exception of the Engineer's expenses, shall bear all the costs thereof.

#### 1.7 LABORATORY DUTIES: LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY

- A. Cooperate with Engineer and Contractor; provide qualified personnel promptly on notice.
- B. Perform specified inspections, sampling and testing of materials and methods of construction:
  - 1. Comply with specific standards; ASTM, other recognized authorities, and as specified.
  - 2. Determine and report on compliance with requirements of Contract Documents.
- C. Promptly notify the Engineer and Contractor of material or operations which do not meet the Specifications.
- D. Promptly submit one (1) original and (1) electronic copy of reports of inspections and tests to the Engineer including:
  - 1. Date issued.
  - 2. Project title and Engineer's job number.
  - 3. Testing Laboratory name and address.
  - 4. Name and signature of inspector.
  - 5. Date of inspection of inspector.
  - 6. Date of inspection or sampling.
  - 7. Date of test.
  - 8. Identification of product and Specification section.
  - 9. Location in project.
  - 10. Type of inspection or test.
  - 11. Compliance with Contract Documents or not.
- E. Laboratory is not authorized to:
  - 1. Release, revoke, alter, or enlarge on requirements of Contract Documents.
  - 2. Approve or reject any portion of work.
  - 3. Perform any duties of the Contractor.

### 1.8 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. Cooperate with laboratory personnel; provide access to Work and manufacture's operations.
- B. Secure and deliver to the laboratory adequate representational samples of materials purposed to be used and which require testing.
- C. Provide to the laboratory the preliminary design mix proposed to be for concrete, and other materials mixes which require control by the testing laboratory.
- D. Materials and equipment used in the performance of work under this Contract are subject to inspection and testing at the point of manufacturer of fabrication. Standard Specifications for quality and workmanship are indicated in the Contract Documents. The Engineer may require the Contractor to provide statements or certificates from the manufacturers and fabricators that in full accordance with the standard Specifications for quality and workmanship indicated in the Contract Documents. All costs of this testing and providing statements and certificates shall be a subsidiary obligation of the Contractor, and no extra charge to the Owner shall be allowed on account of such testing and certification.
- E. Furnish incidental labor and facilities:
  - 1. To provide access to Work to be tested.
  - 2. To obtain and handle samples at the Project site or at the source of the product to be tested.
  - 3. To facilitate inspections and tests.
  - 4. For storage and curing of test samples.
  - 5. Notify laboratory sufficiently in advance of operations to allow for laboratory assignment of personnel and scheduling of tests.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 01 45 29

#### SECTION 01 50 00- TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS

### PART 1 - GENERAL

### 1.1 REFERENCES

- A. The following is a list of standards which may be referenced in this Section:
  - 1. American Association of Nurserymen: American Standards of Nursery Stock.
  - 2. U.S. Weather Bureau, "Rainfall-Frequency Atlas of the U.S. for Durations from 30 Minutes to 24 Hours and Return Periods from 1 to 100 years."
  - 3. U.S. Department of Agriculture, "Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds."
  - 4. Federal Emergency Management Agency
  - 5. NFPA, National Fire Prevention Standard for Safeguarding Building Construction Operations.

#### 1.2 SUBMITTALS

- A. Administrative Submittals: Copies of permits and approvals for construction as required by Laws and Regulations and governing agencies.
- B. Shop Drawings:
  - 1. Temporary Utility Submittals: Electric power supply and distribution plans, if applicable.
  - 2. Temporary Construction Submittals:
    - a. Parking area plans
    - b. Contractor's field office, storage yard, and storage building plans
    - c. Engineer's field office plans
    - d. Staging area location plan

### 1.3 MOBILIZATION

- A. Mobilization shall Include, Not be Limited to, these Principal Items:
  - 1. Obtaining required permits
  - 2. Moving Contractor's field office and equipment required for first month operations onto site.
  - 3. Installing temporary construction power, wiring, and lighting facilities

Section 01 50 00

**TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS** 

Page 1 of 7

- 4. Providing onsite communication facilities
- 5. Providing onsite sanitary facilities and potable water facilities as specified and as required by Laws and Regulations, and governing agencies.
- 6. Arranging for, and erection of, Contractor's work and storage yard.
- 7. Posting OSHA required notices and establishing safety programs and procedures.
- 8. Having Contractor's superintendent at site full time

### 1.4 PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY

- A. Comply with Owner's safety rules while on Owner's property.
- B. Keep Owner informed of serious accidents on the site and related claims.
- C. Use of Explosives: No blasting or use of explosives will be allowed on the Site

### PART 2 - PRODUCTS

### 2.1 ENGINEER'S FILED OFFICES

- A. Furnish equipment specified for exclusive use of Engineer and its representatives.
- B. Ownership of equipment furnished under this article will remain, unless otherwise specified, that of Contractor.
- C. Equipment furnished shall be new in appearance and function. Determination of acceptable condition will be made by the Engineer.
- D. Contractor may elect to rent/lease available commercial developed property within/adjacent to the project area for these requirements. Contractor is to abide by all applicable zoning regulations and pay all applicable fees.

# E. Minimum Features:

- 1. 110-volt lighting and wall plugs.
- 2. Fluorescent ceiling lights and exterior lighting at each entrance.
- 3. Electric heating and self-contained air conditioning unit properly sized for Project locale and conditions. Provide ample electric power to operate installed systems.
- 4. Railed stairways and landings at entrances.
- 5. Exterior Door(s):
  - a. Number: Two
  - b. Type: Solid Core

- c. Lock (s): Cylindrical; keyed alike
- 6. Number of Window: Four minimum
- 7. Minimum Interior Height: 8 feet
- 8. Vinyl Flooring
- 9. Trailer Type Mobile Structure: One (New)
- 10. Floor Space: Minimum 300 square feet
- 11. All-metal frame; all metal exterior, sides, and roof; and insulated double walls, floor and roof.
- 12. Security guard screens on all windows.
- 13. Number of Private Offices: One, 10 feet by 10 feet (minimum)
- 14. Blinds or drapes on all windows
- 15. Office Equipment-General:
  - a. Bottled Water Service: One, with cooler capable of producing hot water and cold water.
  - b. Paper cup dispenser with cups: one each
  - c. Pipe towel dispenser with towels: two each
  - d. Desk: one each, steel. 30 inches by 60 inches
  - e. Swivel chair: one each
  - f. Folding table: one each, 36 inches by 72 inches
  - g. Steel folding chairs: six each
  - h. Four drawer steel file cabinet with lock: one each, legal width
  - i. Handicap accessible restroom
  - j. Bookcase
  - k. Wastepaper Basket: 2 each
  - 1. Carbon Dioxide (10 pound) fire extinguisher: two each
  - m. Telephone: one each with conference speaker, and 12-foot coiled handset cord
  - n. Answering Machine: AT&T voice mail service
  - o. Drafting Table: One
  - p. Drafting Stool: One
  - q. One incoming/outgoing telephone line with Caller ID, one fax line
  - r. New "White Boards": one each, wall mount, 36 inches by 48 inches

# 2.2 PROJECT SIGN

A. Provide and maintain one, 8-foot-wide by 4-foot-high sign constructed of ¾ inch exterior high-density overlaid plywood. Sign shall bear name of Project, Owner, Owner Logo, Contractor, Engineer, and other participating agencies. Lettering shall be blue applied on a white background by an experienced sign painter. Paint shall be exterior type enamel. Information to be included will be provided by Owner. To be installed within 30 days of start of work.

### PART 3 - EXECUTION

### 3.1 ENGINEER'S FIELD OFFICE

- A. Make available for Engineer's use prior to the start of Work at site, to remain on the site for a minimum of 30 days after final acceptance of the Work.
- B. Locate where directed by Engineer; level, block, tie down, skirt, provide stairways, and relocate when necessary and approved. Construct on proper foundations, provide surface drainage and connections for utility services.
- C. Raise grade under field office, as necessary, to an elevation adequate to avoid flooding.
- D. Provide sanitary facilities in compliance with state and local health authorities
- E. Exterior Door Keys: Furnish three sets of keys.
- F. Telephone Services:
  - 1. Provide number of incoming lines equal to that specified for telephone type.
  - 2. Provide appropriate jacks; locate as directed by Engineer.
  - 3. Provide all wiring necessary for a completed telephone system.
  - 4. Provide separate fax line.
- G. Maintain in good repair and appearance and provide weekly cleaning service. Replenish as required: paper towels, paper cups, hand soap, toilet paper, bottled water, cleaning supplies Windex, cleaning spray, dishwashing liquid, mop head, broom.

### 3.2 TEMPORARY UTILITIES

### A. Power:

- 1. Electric power will be available at or near the site. Determine the type and amount available and make arrangements for obtaining temporary electric power service, metering equipment, and pay all costs for the electric power used during the contract period except for portions of the Work designated in writing by Engineer as substantially complete.
- 2. Cost of electric power used in performance and acceptance testing will be borne by Contractor.
- B. Lighting: Provide temporary lighting at least to meet all applicable safety requirements to allow erection, application or installation of materials and equipment, and observation or inspection of the work.
- C. Heating, Cooling and Ventilating:

- 1. Provide as required to maintain adequate environmental conditions to facilitate progress of the work, to meet specified minimum conditions for the installation of material, and to protect materials, equipment, and finished from damage due to temperature or humidity.
- 2. Provide adequate forced air ventilation of enclosed areas to cure installed materials, to dispense humidity, and to prevent hazardous accumulations of dust, fumes, vapors or gases.
- 3. Pay all costs of installation, maintenance, operation, removal, and fuel consumed.
- 4. Provide portable unit heaters, complete with controls, oil or gas fired and suitable vented to outside as required for protection of health and property.
- 5. If permanent natural gas piping is used for temporary heating units, do not modify or reroute gas piping without approval of utility company. Provide separate gas metering as required by utility.

#### D. Water:

- 1. Contractor to provide electric water cooler with cold and hot water
- 2. Provide a means to prevent water used for testing from flowing back into the source pipeline.
- E. Sanitary and Personnel Facilities: Provide and maintain facilities for Contractor's employed, Subcontractors, and all other onsite employer's employees. Service, clean and maintain facilities and enclosures.

### F. Telephone Service:

- 1. Arrange and provide onsite telephone service for Contractor's use during construction. Pay costs of installation and monthly bills.
- 2. Arrange and provide Engineer's telephone system. Pay for all installation and monthly billing charges.
- G. Fire Protection: Furnish and maintain on site adequate firefighting equipment capable of extinguishing incipient fires. Comply with applicable parts of the National Fire Prevention Standards for Safeguarding Building Construction Operations (NFPA No. 241).

### 3.3 PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY

### A. General:

- 1. Where completion of Work requires temporary or permanent removal and/or relocation of an existing utility, coordinate all activities with Owner of said utility and perform all work to their satisfaction.
- 2. Protect, shore, brace, support, and maintain underground pipes, conduits, drains, and other underground utility construction uncovered or otherwise affected by construction operations.

Section 01 50 00

- 3. Keep fire hydrants and water control valves free from obstruction and available for use at all times.
- 4. Do not impair operation of existing sewer systems. Prevent construction material, pavement, concrete, earth, volatile and corrosive wastes, and other debris from entering sewers, pump stations and other sewer structures.
- 5. Maintain original site drainage wherever possible
- B. Site Security: Provide and maintain additional temporary security fences as necessary to protect the Work and Contractor-furnished products not yet installed.
- C. Finished Construction: Protection finished floors and concrete floors exposed as well as those covered with composition tile or other applied surfacing.
- D. Waterways: Keep ditches, culverts, and natural drainages continuously free of construction materials and debris.

#### 3.4 TEMPORARY CONTROLS

- A. Air Pollution Control:
  - 1. Minimize air pollution form construction operations
  - 2. Burning: Of waste materials, rubbish, or other debris will not be permitted on or adjacent to site.
- B. Noise Control: Provide acoustical barriers or other measures as required so noise emanating from tools or equipment will not exceed legal noise levels.
- C. Water Pollution Control:
  - 1. Comply with procedures outlined in U.S. Environmental Protection Agency manuals entitled, "guidelines for Erosion and Sedimentation Control Planning" and "implementation, Processes, Procedures, and Methods to Control Pollution Resulting from All Construction Activity", and "erosion and Sediment Control-Surface Mining in Eastern United States."
  - 2. Do not dispose of volatile wastes such as mineral spirits, oil, chemicals, or paint thinner in storm or on the ground drains. Disposal of wastes into streams or waterways is prohibited. Provide acceptable containers for collection and disposal of waste materials, debris, and rubbish.
  - 3. Comply with all requirements for the NPDES Stormwater Construction Permit.
- D. Erosion, Sediment, and Flood Control: Provide, maintain, and operate temporary facilities to control erosion and sediment releases, and to protect Work and existing facilities from flooding during construction period.

### 3.5 STORAGE YARDS AND BUILDINGS

A. Temporary Storage Yards: Construct temporary storage yards for storage of products that are not subject to damage by weather conditions.

# B. Temporary Storage Buildings:

- 1. Provide environmental control systems that meet recommendations of manufacturers of equipment and materials stored.
- 2. Arrange or partition to provide security of contents and ready access for inspection and inventory.
- 3. Store combustible materials (paints, solvents, fuels, etc.) in a well ventilated and remote building meeting safety standards.

### 3.6 PARKING AREAS

- A. Control vehicular parking to preclude interference with public traffic or parking, access by emergency vehicles, Owner's operations, or construction operations.
- B. Provide parking facilities for personnel working on the Project. No employee or equipment parking will be permitted on Owner's existing paved areas.

### 3.7 CLEANING DURING CONSTRUCTION

- A. In accordance with General Conditions, as may be specified in Specification sections, and as required herein.
- B. Provide approved containers for collection of disposals of waste materials, debris, and rubbish. At least at weekly intervals, dispose of such waste materials, debris, and rubbish offsite.
- C. At least weekly, brush sweep the entry drive and roadways, and all other streets and walkways affected by Work and where adjacent to Work.

### END OF SECTION 01 50 00

### SECTION 01 57 13 - TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROLS

### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.1 DESCRIPTION

# A. Scope of Work:

- 1. The Work specified in this section consists of designing, providing, maintaining and removing temporary erosion and sedimentation controls for construction activities impacting **less** than one acre, as required by Rules and Regulations and permit conditions.
  - a. If activity impact should **exceed** one acre:
    - 1) The Contractor must apply for a NPDES permit with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), accessible through the provided link below.
      - a) https://floridadep.gov/sites/default/files/CGP%20NOI%2062-621.300\_4b\_0.pdf
    - 2) The Contractor must create a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and provide its location in the NPDES permit, requirements and guidelines are accessible through the provided links below.
      - a) <a href="http://www.swppps.org/requirements">http://www.swppps.org/requirements</a>
      - b) <a href="https://floridadep.gov/sites/default/files/ConstructionSWPPP">https://floridadep.gov/sites/default/files/ConstructionSWPPP</a> 0.pdf
    - 3) The Contractor must create a weekly inspection schedule.
      - a) Additional inspections are required after rainfall exceeding 0.5 inches.
    - 4) The Contractor must provide a Certified Person for contact.
      - a) Certified Person(s) must have Erosion and Sedimentation Control training.
  - b. All aforementioned requirements shall be provided to the Engineer.
    - 1) NPDES permit receipt given upon approval by the FDEP must be provided.
- 2. Temporary erosion controls include, but are not limited to, grassing, mulching, setting, watering and re-seeding on-site surfaces, soil and borrow area surfaces, providing interceptor ditches at ends of berms and at those locations which will ensure that erosion during construction will be either eliminated or maintained within acceptable limits as established by the Owner.
- 3. Temporary sedimentation controls include, but are not limited to silt dams, traps, barriers, and appurtenances at the foot of sloped surfaces which will ensure that sedimentation pollution will be either eliminated or maintained within acceptable limits as established by the Owner.
- 4. Temporary dust controls include, but are not limited to mulching, establishing temporary vegetation, water spraying, surface roughening through tilling, barriers, and spray on adhesives which will ensure minimal dust deposition into water bodies and reduce airborne dust that may cause low visibility or respiratory hazards.
- 5. Contractor is responsible for designing, providing, maintaining and removing effective temporary erosion, sediment and dust control measures during construction or until final controls become effective.

Section 01 57 13

### B. Reference Standards:

- 1. Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (FDACS).
- 2. Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP).
  - a. FDEP Florida Stormwater, Erosion and Sedimentation Control Inspector's Manual (SESCIM).
- 3. Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT):
  - a. FDOT Design Standards for Design, Construction, Maintenance and Utility Operations on the State Highway System.
    - 1) FDOT Index No. 102 -- Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control.
  - b. FDOT Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction.
    - 1) FDOT Section 104 -- Prevention, Control, and Abatement of Erosion and Water Pollution.
    - 2) FDOT Section 570 -- Performance Turf.
    - 3) FDOT Section 901 -- Coarse Aggregate.
    - 4) FDOT Section 981 -- Turf Materials.
    - 5) FDOT Section 985 -- Geotextile Fabrics.
    - 6) FDOT Section 987 -- Prepared Soil Layer Materials.
- 4. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA):
  - a. EPA (NPDES) -- National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System.

### PART 2 - PRODUCTS

## 2.1 EROSION CONTROL

- A. Sodding, mulching, grassing and seeding are detailed in Specification.
- B. Backfill as are detailed in Specification.
- C. Netting shall be fabricated of material acceptable to the Owner.

# 2.2 SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

- A. Netting shall be fabricated of material acceptable to the Owner.
- B. Filter stone shall be crushed stone which conforms to Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) specifications.
- C. Concrete block shall be hollow, non-load bearing type.
- D. Concrete shall be exterior grade not less than one-inch thick.
- E. Sediment Fence.

### 2.3 DUST CONTROL

A. Contractor shall control dust with sodding, mulching, grassing, seeding, and tilling.

Section 01 57 13

**TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROLS** 

# 2.4 BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES FOR EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL

NAME	APPLICATION	MAX DRAINAGE AREA	USEFUL LIFE	COMMENT
Block & Gravel	Inlet protection	<1 acre	3-6 Months	Routine Maintenance Required
Brush Barrier	Perimeter Control	Unspecified	3-6 Months	Routine Maintenance Required
Check Dam / Hay Bale	Control Water Velocity	10 Acres	< 3 Months	Replace as Needed
Check Dam / Rock (Gravel)	Control Water Velocity	10 Acres	18 Months	Max Height 2 feet
Check Dam / Silt Fence	Control Water Velocity	10 Acres	6 Months	Replace as Needed
Construction Road Stabilization	Road Stabilization	Unspecified	Project Life	Routine Maintenance Required
Curb and Gutter Sediment Barrier	Inlet Protection	< 1 Acre	> 6 Months	Routine Maintenance Required
Drain field Pipe Inlet Protection	Inlet Protection	< 1 Acre	> 6 Months	Routine Maintenance Required
Floating Turbidity Barrier	Silt/Sediment Containment	Unspecified	> 18 Months	Use in Low Flow Water Body
GeoHay Curb Inlet Protection	Inlet Protection	< 1 Acre	> 6 Months	Routine Maintenance Required
Gravel and Wire Mesh	Inlet Protection	<1 Acre	3-6 Months	Routine Maintenance Required
Silt Fence	Perimeter Control	< ¼ Acre per 100 ft of length	3 Months	Trench In & Compact
Silt Fence (Filter Fabric)	Inlet Protection	< 1 Acre	3 Months	Routine Maintenance Required
Sod	Inlet Protection	< 1 Acre	> 6 Months	Routine Maintenance Required
Temporary Diversion Dike	Slope Protection	5 Acres	> 18 Months	Compact / Stabilize Slopes
Temporary Fill Diversion	Slope Protection	5 Acres	1 Day – 1 Week	Rebuild as Needed
Temporary Gravel Construction	Entrance	Unspecified	Project Life	Routine Maintenance

Section 01 57 13

TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROLS

Entrance				Required
Temporary Sediment	Sediment	> 5 Acres	18 Months	Engineer Must
Basin	Removal			Design
Temporary Sediment Trap				Stabilize
	Sediment	5 Acres	18 Months	Interior/Exterior
	Removal			Slopes
Temporary Slope	Slope	5 Acres	3-6 Months	Stabilize Outfall
Drain	Protection			Stabilize Outrail
Temporary Right-Of-	Shorten Flow	< 5 Acres	3-6 Months	Inspect Weekly or
Way Diversion	Length			After Rain

### PART 3 - EXECUTION

### 3.1 PREPARATION AND INSTALLATION

- A. No clearing or rough cutting shall be permitted until temporary erosion, sediment and dust control systems are in place, unless permitted directly by the Engineer.
- B. Installation of erosion and sediment control materials shall be per manufacturer recommendations and in accordance with FDOT standards.
- C. Any damage caused by construction traffic to temporary erosion, sediment and dust controls systems shall be repaired immediately by the Contractor.
- D. The Contractor shall be responsible for collecting, storing, hauling and disposing of soil, silt, and waste materials as specified in this or other Specifications and in compliance with relevant federal, state, and local rules and regulations.
- E. Contractor shall make a visual inspection of all sedimentation and erosion control devices (including turbidity barriers) on a daily basis and promptly after every rainstorm. If such inspection reveals that additional measures are needed to prevent movement of sediment beyond the barrier limits, the Contractor shall promptly install additional devices as needed. Sediment controls shall be promptly repaired and maintained, as needed. The Contractor shall keep a log of all inspections indicating the following:
  - 1. Date and time of inspection.
  - 2. Inspector.
  - 3. Amount of rainfall.
  - 4. Erosion and sediment control devices inspected.
  - 5. Condition of sediment and erosion control devices.
  - 6. Repairs or maintenance needed.
  - 7. Date repair or maintenance is completed.

### 3.2 EROSION CONTROL

- A. Minimum procedures for grassing are:
  - 1. Scarify slopes to a depth of not less than six inches and remove large clods, rock, stumps, roots larger than 1/2-inch in diameter and debris.
  - 2. Sow seed within twenty-four (24) hours after the ground is scarified with either mechanical seed drills or rotary hand seeders.
  - 3. Apply mulch loosely and to a thickness of between 3/4 inch and 1-1/2 inches.
  - 4. Apply netting over mulched areas on sloped surfaces.
  - 5. Roll and water seeded areas in a manner which will encourage sprouting of seeds and growing of grass. Reseed areas which exhibit unsatisfactory growth. Backfill and seed eroded areas.

### 3.3 SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

A. Install and maintain silt dams, traps, barriers, and appurtenances as shown on the approved descriptions and working drawings. Hay bales which deteriorate and filter stone which is dislodged shall be replaced.

### 3.4 DUST CONTROL

- A. The dust control product chosen shall be appropriate for to the site conditions (topography and soils).
- B. Grade and/or smooth the surfaces to be treated as needed and prescribed by the product guidance before the dust control product is applied.

#### 3.5 PERFORMANCE

A. Should any of the temporary erosion and sediment control measures employed by the Contractor fail to produce results which comply with the requirements of the State of Florida, the Owner or Engineer, the Contractor shall immediately take whatever steps are necessary to correct the deficiency at their own expense.

### END OF SECTION 01 57 13

#### **SECTION 017113 – MOBILIZATION**

### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.1 DEFINITION AND SCOPE

- A. Mobilization shall include the obtaining of all permits, insurance, and bonds; moving onto the site of all plant and equipment; furnishing and erecting plants, temporary buildings, and other construction facilities; all as required for the proper performance and completion of the Work. Mobilization shall include, but not be limited to, the following principal items.
  - 1. Move onto the site all Contractors' material and equipment required for first month operations.
  - 2. Install temporary construction power, wiring, and lighting facilities.
  - 3. Establish fire protection plan and safety program.
  - 4. Secure construction water supply.
  - 5. Provide field office trailers for Contractor and as may be specified for Owner and Engineer.
  - 6. Provide on-site sanitary facilities and potable water facilities as specified.
  - 7. Arrange for and erect Contractor's work and storage yard and employee's parking facilities.
  - 8. Submit all required insurance certificates and bonds.
  - 9. Obtain all required permits.
  - 10. Post all OSHA, EPA, Department of Labor, and all other required notices.
  - 11. Have Contractor's superintendent at the job site full time.
  - 12. Submit a detailed construction CPM schedule acceptable to the Engineer as specified.
  - 13. Submit a schedule of values of the Work.
  - 14. Submit a schedule of submittals.

# 1.2 DEMOBILIZATION

A. Demobilization is the timely and proper removal of all Contractor-owned material, equipment or plant, from the job site and the proper restoration or completion of work necessary to bring the site into full compliance with the contract documents.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

# **END OF SECTION 01 71 13**

### SECTION 01 77 00 – CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES

### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.1 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work: Comply with requirement stated in Conditions of the Contract and in Specifications for administrative procedures in closing out the Work.

### 1.2 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

- A. The Work will not be substantially complete, and Contractor may not request Substantial Completion inspection unless the following submittals and work is completed:
  - 1. All Operation and Maintenance manuals have been submitted and approved according to the applicable Specification.
  - 2. All equipment has been checked-out by the equipment manufacturer and Certificates of Manufacturer's Check-Out has been submitted as required by the Specifications.
  - 3. All start-up and demonstration testing completed, and Certificates of Completed Demonstration submitted to the requirements of the Specifications.
  - 4. Project Record Documents are complete and have been submitted and reviewed according to the applicable Specification.
  - 5. All training of Owner's personnel completed.
  - 6. All areas to be used and occupied are safe, operable in automatic and complete.
  - 7. All building occupancy certificates have been issued by the appropriate building permitting agency.
  - 8. All painting, finishes, fencing, cleanup, final grading, grassing, planting, sidewalk construction, and paving shall have been completed and ready for inspection.
  - 9. All deficiencies noted on inspection reports or nonconformances are corrected or the correction plan approved.
- B. When the conditions of paragraph 1.2A. are met the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer:
  - 1. A written notice that the Contractor considers the Work, or portion thereof, is substantially complete, and requests an inspection.
  - 2. A punch list of items to be corrected. (Uncompleted work which is not related to the safe, effective, efficient use of the Project may be allowed on the punch list with the Engineer's approval.)
- C. Within 10 working days after receipt of such notice, the Engineer will make an inspection to determine the status of completion.

- D. Should the Engineer determine that the Work is not substantially complete:
  - 1. The Engineer will promptly notify the Contractor in writing, giving the reasons therefore.
  - 2. Contractor shall remedy the deficiencies in the Work and send another written notice of Substantial Completion to the Engineer.
  - 3. The Engineer will, within 10 working days, reinspect the Work. The Contractor will be liable for reinspection fees as described in paragraph 1.4, herein.
- E. When the Engineer finds that the Work is substantially complete, they will:
  - 1. Schedule a walk-through of the facility to include the Owner. Engineer shall determine the completeness of the punch list and readiness of the facility for occupancy by the Owner.
  - 2. Prepare and deliver to Owner a tentative Certificate of Substantial Completion with the tentative punch list of items to be completed or corrected before final inspection.
  - 3. After consideration of any objections made by the Owner as provided in conditions of the Contract, and when the Engineer considers the Work substantially complete, they will execute and deliver to the Owner and the Contractor a definite Certificate of Substantial Completion with a revised tentative list of items to be completed or corrected. Any incomplete work allowed on a punch list must be reinspected upon completion and any deficiencies found will be added to the punch list.

### 1.3 FINAL INSPECTION

- A. Prior to Contractor's request for a final inspection the following submittals and work must be complete:
  - 1. Project Record Documents must be approved.
  - 2. All spare parts and maintenance materials must be suitably delivered to the Owner per the requirements of the Specifications.
  - 3. Contractor to submit evidence of compliance with requirements of governing authorities.
- B. After satisfying the requirements of paragraph 1.3A. and when Contractor considers the Work complete, they shall submit written certification that:
  - 1. Contract Document requirements have been met.
  - 2. Work has been inspected for compliance with Contract Documents.
  - 3. Work has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents.
  - 4. Equipment and systems have been tested in the presence of the Owner's representative and are operational.
  - 5. All punch list items have been corrected or completed and the Work is ready for final inspection.

- C. The Engineer will, within 10 working days, make an inspection to verify the status of completion after receipt of such certification.
- D. Should the Engineer consider that the Work is incomplete or defective:
  - 1. The Engineer will promptly notify the Contractor in writing, listing the incomplete or defective work.
  - 2. Contractor shall take immediate steps to remedy the stated deficiencies and send another written certification to the Engineer that the Work is complete.
  - 3. The Engineer will, within 10 working days, reinspect the Work and the Contractor shall be liable for reinspection fees as described in paragraph 1.4, herein.
- E. When the Engineer finds that the Work is acceptable under the Contract Documents, the Contractor may make closeout submittals.

#### 1.4 REINSPECTION FEES

- A. Should the Engineer perform reinspection's due to failure of the Work to comply with the claims of status of completion made by the Contractor:
  - 1. Contractor will compensate the Owner for such additional services.
  - 2. Owner will deduct the amount of such compensation from the final payment to the Contractor.

#### 1.5 CONTRACTOR'S CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Warranties and Bonds: To requirements of the Specifications
- B. Evidence of Payment and Release of Liens: To requirements of the Specifications
- C. Certificate of Insurance for Products and Completed Operations.

### 1.6 FINAL ADJUSTMENT OF ACCOUNTS

- A. Submit a final statement of accounting to the Engineer.
- B. Statement shall reflect all adjustments to the Contract Sum:
  - 1. The original Contract Sum.
  - 2. Additions and deductions resulting from:
    - a. Previous Change Orders or written amendment.
    - b. Allowances.
    - c. Unit prices.
    - d. Deductions for uncorrected work.
    - e. Penalties and bonuses.
    - f. Deductions for liquidated damages.
    - g. Deductions for reinspection payments

- h. Other adjustments.
- 3. Total Contract Sum, as adjusted.
- 4. Previous payments.
- 5. Sum remaining due.
- C. Engineer will prepare a final Change Order, reflecting approved adjustments to the Contract Sum which were not previously made by Change Orders.

# 1.7 FINAL APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

A. Contractor shall submit the final Application for Payment in accordance with procedures and requirements stated in the Conditions of the Contract.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 01 77 00

### **SECTION 01 78 33 - BONDS**

### PART 1 - GENERAL

### 1.1 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work:
  - 1. Compile specified bonds as specified in these Specifications.
  - 2. Co-execute submittals when so specified.
  - 3. Review submittals to verify compliance with Contract Documents.
  - 4. Submit to Engineer for review and transmittal to Owner.

# 1.2 SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Assemble bonds and service and maintenance contracts, executed by each of the respective manufacturers, suppliers, and subcontractors.
- B. Number of original signed copies required: Two (2) each.
- C. Table of Contents: Neatly typed, in orderly sequence. Provide complete information for each item.
  - 1. Product of work item.
  - 2. Firm, with name of principal, address and telephone number.
  - 3. Scope.
  - 4. Date of beginning of bond or service and maintenance contract.
  - 5. Duration of bond or service maintenance contract.
  - 6. Provide information for Owner's personnel:
    - a. Proper procedure in case of failure.
    - b. Instances which might affect the validity of warranty or bond.
  - 7. Contractor, name of responsible principal, address and telephone numbers.
- D. Bonds are required to be recorded with the applicable County Clerk of Court.

### 1.3 FORM OF SUBMITTALS

- A. Prepare in duplicate packets.
- B. Format:

- 1. Size 8 1/2 -inches x 11 inches, punch sheets for standard three-post binder.
  - a. Fold larger sheets to fit into binders.
- 2. Cover: Identify each packet with typed or printed title "BONDS". List:
  - a. Title of Project.
  - b. Name of Contractor.
- C. Binders: Commercial quality, three-post binder, with durable and cleanable plastic covers and maximum post width of two inches.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

**END OF SECTION 01 78 33** 

### **SECTION 01 78 36 - WARRANTIES**

### PART 1 - GENERAL

### 1.1 DESCRIPTION

## A. Scope of Work:

- 1. Compile specified warranties as specified in these Specifications.
- 2. Co-execute submittals when so specified.
- 3. Review submittals to verify compliance with Contract Documents.
- 4. Submit to Engineer for review and transmittal to Owner.
- 5. Resubmittals to Engineer for review and transmittal to Owner when required.

# 1.2 SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Assembly warranties and service and maintenance contracts, executed and certified by each of the respective manufacturers, suppliers, and subcontractors. Organize by Specification section number and the name of the product, work item, or subcontractor.
- B. Table of Contents: Neatly typed, in orderly sequence. Provide complete information for each item.
  - 1. Product of work item.
  - 2. Supplier and manufacturer firm, point of contact, address and telephone number.
  - 3. Scope.
  - 4. Date of beginning of warranty or service and maintenance contract.
  - 5. Duration of warranty or service maintenance contract.
  - 6. Provide information for Owner's personnel:
    - a. Proper procedure in case of failure.
    - b. Instances which might affect the validity of warranty.
  - 7. Contractor, name of responsible principal, email address, mailing address and telephone numbers.

### 1.3 FORM OF SUBMITTALS

- A. Electronic copy in PDF format.
- B. Final warranty shall be provided as required by the Specifications.

### 1.4 WARRANTY SUBMITTALS REQUIREMENTS

- A. For all major pieces of equipment, submit a warranty issued from the equipment manufacturer. Manufacturer's warranty period shall be concurrent with Contractor's for one (1) year, unless otherwise specified, commencing at the time of final acceptance by Owner.
- B. Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining certificates for equipment warranty for all major equipment which has at least a 1 hp motor or which lists for more than \$2,500. Engineer reserves the right to request warranties for equipment not classified as major. Contractor shall still warrant equipment not considered to be "major" in the Contractor's warranty period even though certificates of warranty may not be required.
- C. In the event that the equipment manufacturer or supplier is unwilling to provide a one-year warranty commencing at the time of Owner final acceptance, the Contractor shall obtain from the manufacturer a two (2) year warranty commencing at the time of equipment delivery to the job site. This two (2) year warranty from the manufacturer shall not relieve the Contractor of the one-year warranty starting at the time of Owner acceptance of the equipment.
- D. Owner shall incur no labor or equipment cost during the guarantee period.
- E. Guarantee shall cover all necessary labor, equipment and replacement parts resulting from faulty or inadequate design, improper assembly or erection, defective workmanship and materials, leakage, breakage or other failure of all equipment and components furnished by manufacturer.
- F. Warranties specified for materials and equipment shall be in addition to, and run concurrent with, both Contractor's general warranty and the correction period requirements.
- G. Disclaimers and limitations in specific materials and equipment warranties do not limit Contractor's general warranty, nor does such affect or limit Contractor's performance obligations under the correction period.

### 1.5 WARRANTY WORK

#### A. Reinstatement of warranty

- 1. When work covered by a warranty has failed and has been corrected by replacement or rebuilding, the Contractor shall reinstate the warranty by written endorsement.
  - a. The reinstated warranty shall be equal to the original warranty with an equitable adjustment for depreciation.

### 1.6 IMPLIED WARRANTIES

- A. Warranty of title and intellectual rights:
  - 1. Except as may be otherwise indicated in the Contract Documents, implied warranty of title required by Laws and Regulations is applicable to the Work and to materials and equipment incorporated therein.
  - 2. Provisions on intellectual rights, including patent fees and royalties, are in the General Conditions, as may be modified by the Supplementary Conditions.

B. Implied warranties: Duration in accordance with Laws and Regulations.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 01 78 36

#### SECTION 01 78 39 – PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS

### PART 1 - GENERAL

# 1.1 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. Maintain at the site for the Owner one record copy of:
  - 1. Drawings.
  - 2. Specifications.
  - 3. Addenda.
  - 4. Change Orders and other modifications of the contract.
  - 5. Engineer's Field Orders or written instructions.
  - 6. Approved Shop Drawings.
  - 7. Field Test records.
  - 8. Construction photographs, preconstruction videos, and pipeline videos.
  - 9. Preliminary as-built drawings.

### 1.2 MAINTENANCE OF DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES

- A. Store documents and samples in Contractor's field office apart from documents used for construction.
  - 1. Provide files and racks for storage of documents.
  - 2. Provide locked cabinet or secure storage space for storage of samples.
- B. File documents and samples in accordance with CSI format with section numbers as provided herein.
- C. Maintain documents in a clean, dry, legible, condition and in good order. Do not use record documents for construction purposes.
- D. Make documents and samples available at all times for inspection by the Engineer.
- E. As a prerequisite for monthly progress payments, the Contractor shall provide the currently updated "Record Documents" for review by the Engineer and Owner.

### 1.3 MARKING DEVICES

A. Provide felt tip marking pens for recording information in the color code designated by the Engineer.

### 1.4 RECORDING

- A. Label each document. "PROJECT RECORD" in neat large printed letters.
- B. Record information concurrently with construction progress. Do not conceal any work until required information is recorded.
- C. Drawings: Legibly mark to record actual construction:
  - 1. Depths of various elements of foundation in relation to finish first floor datum.
  - 2. All underground piping with elevations and dimensions. Change to piping location. Horizontal and vertical locations of underground utilities and appurtenances referenced to permanent surface improvements. Actual installed pipe materials, class, etc.
  - 3. Location of internal utilities and appurtenances concealed in the construction, referenced to visible and accessible features of the structure.
  - 4. Field changes of dimensional and detail.
  - 5. Changes made by Field Order or by Change Order.
  - 6. Details not on original contract drawings.
  - 7. Equipment and piping relocations.
  - 8. Major architectural and structural changes including relocation of doors, windows, etc.
  - 9. Architectural schedule changes according to Contractor's records or shop drawings.
    - a. Contractor shall provide copies of all such recordings to the Contractor's surveyor for incorporation into the preliminary and final as-builts drawings.
- D. Specifications and Addenda: Legibly mark each section to record:
  - 1. Manufacturer, trade name, catalog number and supplier of each product and item of equipment actually installed.
  - 2. Changes made by Field Order or by Change Order.
- E. Shop Drawings (after final review and approval): Provide four (4) sets of record drawings for each process equipment, piping, electrical system and instrumentation system.

# 1.5 SUBMITTAL

- A. Accompany <u>each</u> submittal with transmittal letter in duplicate, containing:
  - 1. Date.

- 2. Project title and number.
- 3. Contractor's name and address.
- 4. Title and number of each Record Document.
- 5. Signature of Contractor of their authorized representative.
- B. Preliminary As-built Drawings: The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer two (2) paper copies of preliminary as-built drawings prepared and signed/sealed by the Contractor's surveyor with each monthly progress payment request. Preliminary as-built drawings shall conform to the requirements of final as-built drawings and shall represent the completed work to date. Preliminary as-built drawings shall include all work which the Contractor is requesting to be paid for.
- C. Final As-built Drawings: Upon project closeout and as a prerequisite to the final pay request, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer final as-built drawings Administrative Code, pursuant to Section 472.027 of the Florida Statutes. The Engineer shall supply the Contractor copies of AutoCAD files for the Contractor's use in the as-built drawing preparation. Final as-built drawings shall include all work which the Contractor is requesting to be paid for. The final as-built drawing submittal shall include:
  - 1. Two (2) sets of paper plans signed and sealed by a professional land surveyor licensed in the State of Florida and CD(s) or other media containing AutoCAD, version 2015 or higher, drawing files.
  - 2. AutoCAD drawing files shall include as-built information on layers separate from the original drawing layers and shall be named descriptively to represent the as-built features. (i.e. Layer "wat ab" and "wat ab txt" for water as-built line work and text, respectively.) Drawing entities are to be shown on the correct layer. All as-built entities shall have color and line type set "by-layer". Text sizes shall be relative to the plotted scale. Additional details or exploded views shall be include to accurately and fully represent the as-built conditions.
  - 3. Certification by surveyor that the as-built information shown is accurate and that all improvements shown were constructed within or on public rights-of-way, easements or property specifically owned by the Owner. Certification shall be to the Owner, Engineer and applicable Water Management District (if applicable.)
  - 4. No line work and text shall be erased from the original design (construction) drawings during the as-built drawing preparation. Original line work or text shall be circled if accurate or stricken (not erased) if not with the accurate information noted/shown. New line work and text shall be provided to accurately show the as-built information for the constructed improvements. Revisions to design dimensions alone will not be permitted.
  - 5. Pressure Pipeline and Utility Conduit Improvements: For utility improvement projects, horizontal locations of the constructed pipelines with respect to the right-of-way lines or other readily visible, permanent features at 100-foot minimum intervals and at critical locations such as road intersections shall be shown. For treatment plant and pump station improvements, horizontal locations shall be provided at 20-foot intervals. Vertical locations of the constructed pipelines by elevation of centerline of pipe for above ground/exposed pipe or with respect to finished grade over buried pipe shall be shown at 100 feet minimum intervals. (i.e. final cover) For underground piping, all valves, blow-

offs, stub-outs, pigging stations, fire hydrants, backflow preventers and services shall be located horizontally in relation to readily visible, permanent features with three-way horizontal dimensions less than 100 feet, each. Three-way dimensions to all buried fittings on treatment plant and pump station improvement projects shall be provided. If adequate features are not available, a station and offset dimensioning system can be used if prior approval is obtained from the Engineer. For above ground/exposed pipe, as-built dimensions between fittings or flanges shall be provided. Separations between "sanitary hazards" to potable water and reclaimed water mains per FDEP shall be shown.

- 6. Gravity Pipeline Improvements: Show elevations for all inverts, manhole tops, inlet throats/weirs, grate tops, etc. Show size and type of each structure. As-built length, size and type of pipes between the structures shall be shown. All service laterals and cleanouts shall be located horizontally to readily visible, permanent features with three-way horizontal dimensions less than 100 feet, each. If adequate features are not available, a station and offset dimensioning system can be used if prior approval is obtained from the Engineer. A labeling and dimension table scheme is recommended for the three way or station/offset dimensioning. (i.e. constructed feature labeled as "A", permanent feature labeled as "B", "A"- "B" dimension shown in table for distance measured between the two. Use continuous labeling and complete single table per plan sheet.) Separations between gravity "sanitary hazards" to potable water and reclaimed water mains per FDEP shall be shown.
- 7. Roadway Improvements: Elevation, size and location of swales, ditches, gutter flowlines, edge of pavement, and road crown on both sides of the road if applicable shall be provided at 100-foot minimum intervals and at critical areas such as intersections and inlets/flumes. As-built points of curvature, tangent and vertical intersection, along with radii of road alignment, intersecting streets and driveways and other alignment information shall be provided.
- 8. Stormwater Improvements: The limits, slopes and bottom depths of stormwater ponds, swales and other retention areas shall be provided. All stormwater piping information shall conform to the Gravity Pipeline Improvement requirements. Size, type, material, and elevations of all stormwater structures, including appurtenances such as weirs, orifices, skimmer plates, etc. shall be shown. As-built information shall conform to applicable Water Management District requirements.
- 9. Treatment Facility Improvements: Location, size, number, and type of treatment equipment and structures shall be shown. Applicable requirements of as-built information listed herein for similar improvements shall be required.
- 10. Building Improvements: Finished floor elevations, ceiling heights, building locations, wall opening dimensions, equipment (electrical, mechanical, plumbing) locations, etc. shall be provided. Change of material shall be specifically noted as such.
- 11. Landscaping Improvements: Number, type, size, and general location of installed plant material shall be provided. Change of material shall be specifically noted as such. Location of irrigation meters, services, manual valves, automatic valves, controllers, rain shut off switches, etc. shall be shown. Changes to the designed irrigation system shall be shown.
- 12. Other Improvements: Changes from the original design of other improvements such as electrical, mechanical and structural improvements shall be noted as such on the as-built

- drawings with the size, number, type and location of the constructed/installed improvements noted.
- 13. Contractor may be required to reimburse the Owner for services rendered by the Engineer for review of multiple resubmittals.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

**END OF SECTION 01 78 39** 

#### **SECTION 02 41 13.23 - UTILITY LINE REMOVAL**

### PART 1 - GENERAL

### 1.1 DESCRIPTION

A. Work addressed under this Section includes pipe removal and grouting (in filling) sections of existing potable water, reclaimed water, sanitary force main, and gravity sewer pipe for placing out of service. The limits of pipe to be removed or grouted shall be as shown on the Drawings or as directed in the field by the Owner.

### 1.2 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform all the work associated with the complete removal and disposal, or placement out of service by injection of cementitious grout, of existing water and wastewater piping, within the limits shown on the Drawings or as directed in the field by the Owner.
- B. Unless specifically shown to be salvaged, or at the request of the Owner, all pipe, valves, fittings, and appurtenances associated with the portions of the existing water and wastewater utilities which are to be removed shall be disposed of off-site by the Contractor. Disposal shall be in accordance with all applicable local, State and Federal regulations. The cost of disposal shall be borne by the Contractor.
- C. This project contains pipe that is to be abandoned and grouted in place by the Contractor. The Contractor shall perform pipe removal as required by governing agencies.
- D. The Contractor shall be responsible for removing and disposing of all water and wastewater from utilities to be removed or abandoned under this Contract in accordance with all regulatory agency requirements and federal, state and local laws.

### 1.3 ASBESTOS PIPE REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL PROCEDURES

- A. General The Contractor will be responsible for permitting, removal and disposal of asbestos-cement (A-C) pipe. The following paragraphs briefly summarize permitting, field procedures and disposal activities related to the A-C pipe. In these discussions, certain local, state and federal laws have been referenced. The Contractor must comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws/regulations whether or not such laws/regulations are referenced in these specifications.
- B. The Contractor shall provide evidence of experience of proper procedures in removal, handling and disposal of asbestos-cement pipe materials within the past five (5) years. References from at least three completed projects shall be provided at the Preconstruction Conference. If the Contractor proposes to utilize the services of a duly qualified subcontractor for this portion of the work, these same requirements shall be met.
- C. Permitting The Contractor shall apply for and obtain all permits related to removal of the A-C pipe. In accordance with Rule 17-257.30 I of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection

Section 02 41 13 UTILITY LINE REMOVAL Page 1 of 4

(FDEP), the Contractor must submit a "Notice of Asbestos Removal Project" form with a copy to the Engineer. The Contractor will submit the form to FDEP in a timely manner in accordance with the schedule contained in Rule 17-257. The agencies that may require permits for this project are not necessarily limited to the FDEP.

- D. Field Procedures The Contractor is responsible for all procedures, including safety and health procedures, which will be used when handling A-C pipe. The Contractor's handling of A-C pipe shall be in conformance with 29 CFR 1926.58 (OSHA Safety and Health Standards).
- E. Cutting of A-C pipe shall be done in conformance with the recommended practices contained in the American Water Works Association's (AWWA) Manual No. M-16. Cutting methods should be used which minimize the production of airborne dust.
- F. Preparation of Transport of Materials The Contractor will remove the pipe from the ground in whole pieces without fracturing, breaking or otherwise damaging pipe. The A-C pipe shall be carefully loaded onto the transport vehicle without damaging the pipe. The transport vehicle shall totally enclose the A-C pipe so that wind and rain cannot disperse dust from the pipe material. Transport of the A-C pipe shall also meet the requirements of the waste disposal agency.
- G. Waste Disposal As stated in Rule 17-701.520(4), the FDEP indicates that asbestos containing waste materials can be accepted at a permitted Class I, II or III landfill. The regulations also indicate that the waste generator (the Contractor) shall make arrangements with the landfill operator before disposal of the asbestos containing waste materials and inform the operator of the quantity of the waste and the scheduled date the shipment will arrive at the landfill. The Contractor shall provide the Engineer and the City a manifest immediately following disposal.

### 1.4 SUBMITALLS

A. The Contractor shall submit grout mixture data and the results from grout mixture tests to the Owner for approval prior to performing grouting operations.

### PART 2 - PRODUCTS

### 2.1 MATERIALS

A. The following is a suggested trial grout mixture for a one (1) cubic yard yield, however, the actual grout mixture to be used shall meet all of the requirements specified below:

Cement: 500 pounds Fly Ash: 500 pounds

Water: 350 pounds (42 gallons)

Sand: 2,248 pounds

Darex (W.R. Grace): 3 ounces (Air Entrainment Additive or

equivalent)

Bentonite: 6 pounds (to be mixed with sufficient water in

colloidal mixture and added at the job site)

Section 02 41 13 UTILITY LINE REMOVAL Page 2 of 4

- B. The mixture used for grouting shall be of a creamy consistency. Samples of the grout mixture when set aside in a standard concrete test mold shall show less than one percent of the mixture height of free water on the surface after standing not less than twelve (12) hours.
- C. One set of three (3) 3" X 6" sample test cylinders shall be made for each mix preparation. The minimum 28-day strength shall be no less than 1000 psi. The required slump is 5 inches. The maximum allowable slump is 9 inches. Slump should be as low as practical to maintain viscosity, proper "flow", and still retain ability to pump

### PART 3 - EXECUTION

### 3.1 PIPE REMOVAL

- A. Where existing utilities pipes are designated for removal on the Drawings, the Contractor shall remove and dispose of such utilities and all related pipe, valves, fittings, manholes, and appurtenances with the limits shown. After removal of the facilities all trenches shall be backfilled in accordance with Section 31 23 00. The cost of disposal of the removed materials shall be borne by the Contractor.
- B. Utilities shown to be salvaged and/or if salvaging is requested by the Owner, shall be carefully disassembled, removed and delivered to the Owner on-site. The Owner may direct the pipes to be reinstalled elsewhere on this project or they may be removed and stockpiled at a location to be determined.
- C. The Contractor shall exercise care not to damage utilities to be removed and salvaged.

### 3.2 IN-PLACE GROUTING OF EXISTING PIPE

- A. Where water and wastewater utility pipes are to be abandoned in place they shall be filled with a sand/cement grout as specified herein.
- B. Grout shall be injected within the pipe sections indicated on the Drawings. The ends of these sections shall be capped and/or plugged. The grouting program shall consist of pumping sand-cement grout with suitable chemical additives at pressures necessary to fill the pipe sections shown on the Drawings to prevent the potential for future collapse.
- C. The pump used for grouting should be a continuous flow, positive displacement model with a pugmill type mixing vat having a minimum shaft speed of 60 rpm and incorporated as an integral part of the equipment. Alternate equipment may be used subject to the approval of the Owner. The rate of pumping shall not exceed six (6) cubic feet per minute. The pumping pressures shall be in the range of 100 to 150 psi.
- D. The Contractor shall provide standpipes and/or additional means of visual inspections as required by the Owner to determine if adequate grout material has filled the entire pipe section(s). The Contractor shall make necessary provisions for the Owner's representative to monitor all grouting operations.

E. All pipe to be abandoned shall be capped or plugged with a fitting or material that will prevent soil or other material from entering the pipe. All caps and plugs shall be subject to approval by the Owner.

### 3.3 MONITORING

- A. The Owner's representative may stop the removal and/or grouting operations at any time, if in his judgment, the operation does not comply with these Specifications or if the work is not to his satisfaction.
- B. The Owner's representative shall make all measurements of pipe length removed and grout quantity pumped and maintain records of each day's operations. The quantities recorded by the Owner's representative shall be considered final.

**END OF SECTION 02 41 13.23** 

Section 02 41 13 UTILITY LINE REMOVAL Page 4 of 4

### **SECTION 03 33 00 - CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE**

### PART 1 - GENERAL

### 1.1 WORK INCLUDED

- A. The work included under this section consists of furnishing all materials, forms, transportation, and equipment, and performing all necessary labor to do all the plain and reinforced concrete work shown on the Drawings, or incidental to the proper execution of the work, or as herein specified.
- B. Composition: Concrete shall be composed of cement, fine aggregate, coarse aggregate, and water so proportioned and mixed as to produce a plastic workable mixture in accordance with all requirements under this section suitable to the specific conditions of placement.

### 1.2 SUBMITTALS

A. All materials specified shall be certified by the producer or manufacturer that the furnished material meets the specific requirements of the specifications. Concrete mix designs shall be submitted for approval prior to placement.

### 1.3 CODES AND STANDARDS

A. ACI 301 "Specifications for Structural Concrete for Buildings", ACI 318" Building Code Requirements for Structural Concrete", ACI 347 "Recommended Practice for Concrete Formwork"; ACI 304 "Recommended Practice for Measuring, Mixing, Transporting, and Placing Concrete"; comply with applicable provisions except as otherwise indicated.

#### 1.4 TESTING

- A. Air content shall be in accordance with American Society for Testing Materials Standard Methods C 173, one for each set of compressive strength specimens.
- B. Sampling of freshly mixed concrete shall be in accordance with ASTM C172.
- C. Slump: ASTM C-143
- D. Test results will be reported in writing to Engineer, Contractor, Owner and Concrete producer on same day tests are made.
- E. Laboratory Reports: Submit two (2) copies of laboratory test or evaluation reports for concrete materials and mix designs.

### 2.1 PORTLAND CEMENT

A. Shall comply with the standard specifications for Portland Cement, A.S.T.M. designation C-150, Type II, or Type III (high-early), where indicated on drawings.

### 2.2 CONCRETE AGGREGATE

- A. Shall conform to standard specifications for concrete aggregate, A.S.T.M. Designation C-33 or to ASTM C-330. Maximum size of aggregate shall not exceed one-fifth of the narrowest dimension between reinforcing bars.
- B. Fine Aggregate Fine aggregate shall be clean, hard, strong, durable, uncoated particles of natural sand known as Lake Wales, Interlachen, or approved equal. The source, composition, quality and gradation of the fine aggregate shall be subject aid the approval of the Engineer. Samples of the sand shall be furnished, together with certified copies of the gradation and analysis from the recognized testing laboratory.
  - 1. The weight of extraneous or deleterious substances shall not exceed the following percentages:

Loss by Decantation	3%
Shale	1%
Clay Lumps	1%
Coal and Lignite	1%

Percent Retained

2. The fine aggregate shall be reasonable well graded from coarse to fine and when tested by means of laboratory sieves shall meet the following requirements in percent of total weight:

Total Retained On

No. 4 Sieve	0 - 5
No. 10 Sieve	3 - 30
No. 30 Sieve	30 - 70
No. 50 Sieve	65 - 95
No. 100 Sieve	95 - 100

C. Deficiencies in the percentages of the fine aggregates passing the No. 50 and No. 100 Sieves may be remedied by the addition of pozzolanic or cementitious materials excepting Portland cement. Such materials must meet the approval of the Engineer.

# D. Coarse Aggregate

1. Coarse aggregate shall consist of hard, tough, durable components free from adherent coatings and vegetable matter, and shall not contain soft, friable, thin or elongated particles in quantities considered deleterious by the Engineer. Coarse aggregate shall be properly graded from fine to coarse to produce concrete of desired strength, density, and workability. The source, composition, quality and gradation of the coarse aggregate shall

Section 03 30 00

**CAST -IN-PLACE CONCRETE** 

Page 2 of 18

be subject to the approval of the Engineers. Samples of the coarse aggregate shall be furnished together with certified copies of the gradation and analysis from a recognized testing laboratory.

2. All coarse aggregate shall be washed and shall be free from disintegrated pieces, salt, alkali, vegetable matter and adherent coatings. The total percentage of all deleterious substances shall not exceed five percent (5%) by weight. The substances designated shall not be present in excess of the following amounts.

Loss by Decantation	1%
Clay Lumps or Other Soluble Materials	3%
Soft Fragments	5%

3. Where the cover over reinforcing is 2 inches or more, the maximum size of aggregate shall be 12 inches. Where the cover over reinforcing is less than 2 inches, the maximum size of aggregate shall be 3/4 inch. The maximum size of aggregate shall not exceed one-fifth of the narrowest dimension between forms nor three-fourths of the minimum clear spacing between reinforcing bars. The grading of the coarse aggregate in the concrete shall be within the following limits.

# Percent Passing:

Maximum Size Square Mesh Screen	97 - 100%
2 Maximum Size Square Mesh Screen	40 - 70%
No. 4 Sieve	0 - 6%

#### 2.3 WATER

A. Water shall be clean and free from oil, acids, alkalis, organic materials or other injurious substances

### 2.4 REINFORCEMENT

- A. Reinforcing Bars: ASTM A615, Grade 60, deformed bars of USA manufacture.
- B. Welded Wire Fabric: ASTM A185, gauges, spacing and dimensions as indicated.
- C. Metal Bar Supports: CRSI MSP-1, Chapter 3, Class 2, Type B, Stainless Steel Protected Bar Supports, or otherwise approved by the Engineer. Use concrete supports for reinforcement in concrete placed on grade.
- D. Tie Wire: 16 gauge minimum, black, soft annealed.
- E. Coupler Splice Devices: Cadweld tensions couplers, capable of developing the ultimate strength of the bar as manufactured by Erico Products, Incorporated, Solon, Ohio, or equal.
- F. Epoxy coated or FRP rebar shall be used for all marine applications.

### 2.5 FORM WORK

- A. Lumber: Douglas Fir or Larch, No. 2 grade, seasoned and surfaced on four sides.
- B. Plywood: Plyform, Class 1, BB-Exterior type, mill oiled, and edge sealed, with thickness not less than 3/4 inch.
- C. Medium Density Overlay (MDO) Plywood Forms: PS-1, B-B High Density Concrete Form Overlay, Class I, unoiled.
  - 1. Butt form panels, make contact surface fully flush and seal butting holes with sponge form tape. Chamfer edges of beams and ceilings.
  - 2. Where MDO plywood is used to form beams, do not use MDO plywood that has been patched or damaged.
- D. Drip Forms: Varnished ponderosa pine or equally rigid non-staining plastic, 2-inch-wide on each leg.
- E. Steel Forms. Uncoated steel, 3/16-inch minimum thickness, fabricated to close tolerances, protected only by the specified release agent, braced so as not to bend, dent, or dimple under wet concrete load, vibrator impact, and tool impact. Maintain steel form in rust-free condition by use of steel wood and light grinding, followed by coats of specified release agent. Use forms that can be adjusted into true alignment without stops or ridges.
- F. Glass Fiber Reinforced Plastic (FRP) Forms: Smooth coated forms, braced so as not to bend, dent or dimple under wet concrete loads, vibrator impact and tool impact, and at least 0.11 inch thick. Design forms for external bracing at piers and columns, without use of form ties.
- G. Plugged Cone Form Ties: Rod type, with ends or end fasteners which can be removed without spalling the concrete and which leave a hole equal in depth to the required reinforcement clearance. Form ties shall be of a design in which the hole left by the removed end or end fastener is easily filled to match the surface of the hardened concrete. Provide removable cones 13 inches in diameter by 12 inches deep. Provide preformed mortar plugs to match the color of the concrete, recessed 3 inches, adhered with an approved two-part epoxy.
- H. Weep Hole Forms: PVC polyethylene, or ABS pipe, matching color of the concrete, 4 inch inside diameter, with outlet projecting 12 inches form wall and cutoff in a plane parallel to it.
- I. Circular and Elliptical Column Forms: Fabricate of two (2) pieces, clamped watertight using gaskets and without horizontal joints. Install horizontal construction joints only where indicated or as directed by the Engineer.
- J. Beam Forms: Provide in one length without form joints and suitable for cambering up to 1/160 of span without distortion of profile or opening of seams.
- K. Forms of Hammerhead Pier Caps: Provide in one length with adjustable soffits, bulkheads and screens as necessary to accommodate different hammerhead beam configurations. Provide no construction joints in hammerhead pier caps. Where three or fewer identical hammerhead pier caps occur within a line section, steel braced HDO plywood forms may be substituted for steel forms if:

Section 03 30 00

**CAST -IN-PLACE CONCRETE** 

Page 4 of 18

- 1. Working drawings of formwork are submitted.
- 2. Internal form ties are regularly spaced no less than 48 inches each way and are made watertight.
- 3. Form ties have removable cones, which are filled to match concrete.
- 4. Joints in panels are fully watertight.
- 5. The resulting surface matches the appearance of steel formed hammerhead caps, with no visible discoloration due to form leakage.
- L. Styrofoam Board: Expanded polystyrene extruded into board form, closed cell, moisture resistant, capable of maintaining indicated clear space between concrete structures.
- M. Control Joint Filler: Use epoxy joint filler equal to BurkEpoxy Joint Filler to fill voids left by saw cuts and to resist against spalling caused by vehicle traffic in concrete slabs.
- N. Inserts: Galvanized cast steel or galvanized welded steel, complete with anchors to concrete and fittings such as bolts, wedges and straps. Provide hanger inserts spaced to match grid of suspended ceilings.
- O. Shoring: As designed and executed by Contractor to support all loads.
- P. Chamfer Strips: Polyvinyl strips designed to be nailed in the forms to provide a 3/4-inch chamfer at exposed edges of concrete members.
- Q. Form Release Agent: A blend of natural and synthetic chemicals that employs a chemical reaction to provide quick, easy and clean release of concrete from forms, and equal to Eucoslip, by the Euclid Chemical Company, or Release #1, by The Burke Company. Use a non-staining release agent that leaves the concrete with a paintable surface.

### 2.6 ADMIXTURES

- A. Air Entraining Admixture: ASTM C260.
- B. Water Reducing and Retarding Admixture:
  - 1. Concrete Without Superplasticizer:
    - a. Water Reducing Admixtures: ASTM C494, Type A, equal to Eucon WR-75 by the Euclid Company, Pozzolith 200N by Master Builders, Plastocrete 161 by Sika Chemical Corporation, and containing no calcium chloride.
    - b. Water Reducing and Retarding Admixtures: ASTM C494, Type D, equal to Eucon Retarder-75 by the Euclid Company, Pozzolith 100 XR by Master Builders, Plastiment by Sika Chemical Corporation, and containing no calcium chloride.
    - c. Accelerating Admixtures: ASTM C494, Type C or E, equal to Accelguard 80 by the Euclid Company, Darex Set Accelerator by W.R. Grace, and containing no calcium chloride.
  - 2. Concrete with Superplasticizer:

Section 03 30 00

**CAST -IN-PLACE CONCRETE** 

Page 5 of 18

- a. Water Reducing, High Range Admixtures: ASTM C494, Type F or G, equal to Eucon 37 by the Euclid Company, Rheobild 716 by Master Builders, Daracem 100 by W.R. Grace, Sikament by Sika Chemical Corporation, and consisting of a second generation admixture, free of chlorides and alkalis (except for those attributable to water) composed of a synthesized sulfonated complex polymer, enabling the concrete to maintain its rheoplastic state in excess of two (2) hours if necessary.
- b. Manufacturer's Job Site Representation: Provide the services of a competent field service representative from the manufacturer of each of the admixtures selected for use to provide at the job site advice and consultation on the use of the admixture materials, including the effect on the concrete in place, including recommending maximum discharge time for superplasticizer method and procedure to induce superplasticizer into mixer, quantities of admixtures to be used if variations are required because of temperature/humidity, wind or other environmental considerations, and to be available on short call at any time requested by the Owner, Contractor, or concrete producer.

# 3. Concrete used in Marine Applications:

Micro Silica admixtures shall be used for concrete installed in marine and coastal applications. Concrete designs shall meet the appropriate requirements of EN206-1, BS 8500 and BS 5075. Contractor shall provide plant certification for all mix designs used in marine and coastal applications.

#### 2.7 GROUT

- A. Nonshrink, Nonmetallic Grout: The Burke Company's Non-Ferrous, Non-Shrink Grout, Sauereisen F-100 Level Fill, Master Builders Masterflow 713, Euclid NS Grout, or equal premixed type.
- B. Nonshrink Metallic Grout: The Burke Company's Metallic Spec Grout, Master Builders Embeco 636 Grout pre-mixed type, or equal.
- C. Epoxy Grout: Sikadur 42 Grout-Pak, or equal, for grouting sleeves for anchor bolts, etc.
- D. Clarifier Basin Grout: Class B concrete of coarse aggregate shall pass the 3/4 inch sieve.

## 2.8 MEMBRANE CURING COMPOUND

A. A.Membrane curing compound shall be wax-free, pigmented, 100 percent resin base compound such as A.C. Horn's "Horncure 30 C", Hunt Process Corporation; Southern's "All-Resin", or equal.

# 2.9 BONDING AGENT

A. A.Bonding agent shall be Colma Fix, as manufactured by Sika Chemical Corporation, of Passaic, New Jersey or equal. To be considered equal, the material must be a two-component epoxypolysulphide resin system, and it must have a demonstrated record of strong adhesion to both wet and dry concrete in either the hardened or the plastic state. It must also be of equal strength.

Section 03 30 00

**CAST -IN-PLACE CONCRETE** 

Page 6 of 18

# 2.10 ACCESSORIES

- A. Precast Concrete Block Supports for Reinforcing Bars: Comply with ACI 315. Provide blocks with No. 4 dowels bent 90° to support top bars.
- B. Membrane: 6 mil polyethylene film.
- C. Water Stops: Polyvinyl chloride meeting all requirements of U.S. Army Corps of Engineer's Specification CRD-C-572 and equal to Burke Water Stops as manufactured by The Burke Company. Provide flat dumbbell type and center bulb type, 9 inches x 3/8 inch at wall thickness of 12 inches or greater, and 6 inches x 3/8 inches at wall thickness less than 12 inches. Provide 6-inch split-ribbed with center bulb type at connections of new concrete structures with existing concrete. Provide water stops as indicated on the Drawings.
- D. Preformed Expansion Joint Filler:
  - 1. Bituminous type conforming to the requirements of ASTM D994.
  - 2. Nonextruding type, self-expanding cork, ¾-inch thick or as otherwise shown on the Drawings, conforming to the requirements of ASTM D1752, Type III, and compatible with the specified joint sealant compound.
- E. Joint Sealant: A multipart gray polyurethane sealant, meeting U.S. Federal Specification TT-S-00227E (3) Type 1, Class A self-leveling for horizontal joints, and Type II, Class A, non-sag for vertical joints, and recommended by the manufacturer for continuous immersion in water. Provide sealants as manufactured by Products Research and Chemical Corporation, Mameco International, The Burke Company, W.R. Meadows, or equal.
- F. Tongue and Groove Joint Forms: 24-gauge steel forms complete with steel stakes and splice plates, designed for joints not to receive a poured seal, and equal to Burke Keyed Kold Joint as manufactured by The Burke Company.
- G. Inserts: Galvanized steel to fit the proposed hanger or support.
- H. Mortar for Repair of Concrete: Same materials as used for concrete, except omit coarse aggregate and use not more than one-part cement to two and one-half parts sand by damp loose volume. Use no more mixing water than is necessary for handling and placing.
- I. Burlap Mats: Conform to AASHTO Specification M182.
- J. Epoxy Bonding Agent: Euco #452, BurkEpoxy MV, Sikadur Hi Mod, Concresive 1001-LPL, or equal.
- K. Powered Epoxy Coating for Anchor Bolts: Powdered epoxy resin as manufactured by the 3M Company, Scotchkote No. 213, Armstrong No. R349.

#### 2.11 CONDUITS AND PIPES EMBEDDED IN CONCRETE

D. Conduits, pipes and sleeves of any material not harmful to concrete shall be permitted to be

Section 03 30 00

**CAST -IN-PLACE CONCRETE** 

Page 7 of 18

- embedded in concrete with approval of the Engineer, provided they are not considered to replace structurally the displaced concrete.
- E. Conduits and pipes of aluminum shall not be embedded in structural concrete unless effectively coated or covered to prevent electrolytic action between aluminum and steel.
- F. Conduits and pipes, with their fittings, embedded within a column shall not displace more than four percent (4%) of the area of cross section on which strength is calculated or which is required for fire protections.
- G. Conduits, pipes, sleeves passing through a slab, wall or beam shall not impair significantly the strength of the construction.
- H. Except when plans for conduits and pipes are approved by the Engineer, conduits and pipes embedded within a slab, wall, or beam shall satisfy the following:
  - 1. They shall not be larger in outside dimension than one-third overall thickness of slab, wall, or beam in which they are embedded.
  - 2. They shall not be spaced closer than three diameters or widths on center.

# 2.12 PIPES CONTAINING LIQUID, GAS OR VAPOR

- D. Pipes that will contain liquid, gas or vapor may be embedded in structural concrete under the following conditions:
  - 1. Pipes and fittings shall be designed to resist effects of the material, pressure, and temperature to which they will be subjected.
  - 2. No liquid, gas, or vapor, except water not exceeding 90°F (32C) nor 50 psi (345 kPa) pressure, shall be placed in the pipes until the concrete has attained its design strength.
  - 3. Concrete cover for pipes, conduits and fittings shall be not less than 12 inches (38 mm) for concrete exposed to earth or weather or in contact with ground.
  - 4. Reinforcement with an area of not less than 0.002 times area of concrete section shall be provided normal to piping.
  - 5. Piping and conduit shall be so fabricated and installed that cutting, bending or displacement of reinforced from its proper location will not be required.

# PART 3 - EXECUTION

### 3.1 PROPORTIONING

A. The proportions of aggregate to cement shall be such as to produce a thoroughly plastic mixture which will work readily into the corners and angles of the forms and around the reinforcement but without permitting the materials to segregate or excess free water to collect on the surface.

Section 03 30 00

**CAST -IN-PLACE CONCRETE** 

Page 8 of 18

- B. The percentage of sand shall not be less than thirty percent (30%) nor more than fifty percent (50%) of the total weight of the aggregate. The total content, including the surface water contained in the aggregate, shall not exceed 5.7 gallons per sack of cement. The slump shall not exceed 4 inches. Air entraining admixture shall be Darex AEA as manufactured by the Dewey and Almy Chemical Company.
- C. The amount of air entrained in the freshly mixed concrete shall not be less than three percent (3%) nor more than six percent (6%). The minimum cement content in sacks per cubic yard of concrete shall not be less than 6 sacks per cubic yard for Class "A" concrete.
- D. Concrete materials shall be accurately measured by weight. Measurement of materials for ready mixed concrete shall conform to the "Standard Specifications for Ready Mixed Concrete", (A.S.T.M. designation C 94).
  - 1. Class "A" concrete for all structures shall have minimum compressive strength of 4000 psi at 28 days.
  - 2. Class "B" concrete for sidewalks shall have minimum compressive strength of 3000 psi at 28 days.
  - 3. All concrete shall be Class "A" unless otherwise shown on the drawings.

#### 3.2 MIXING AND PLACING

- A. Concrete shall be mixed, conveyed and deposited in accordance with the "A.C.I. Building Code" (A.C.I. 318).
- B. Prior to placing any concrete, the Contractor shall submit for the Engineer's approval a design mix, calculated by a recognized testing laboratory, and using the approved aggregates to produce a workable mix of the desired strength, together with certified copies of 7 days and 28 day tests of cylinders taken from concrete made according to the design mix. The mixes shall be designed to secure concrete having a minimum compressive strength at age 28 days.
- C. Ready mixed concrete delivered shall be accompanied by delivery tickets showing the following:
  - 1. Date and time leaving plant Additives (if any)
  - 2. Type of cement and weight Site arrival time
  - 3. Quantity of water and time added Site leaving time

## D. Concrete

- 1. Ready mixed concrete shall be used. All mixing requirements specified herein shall be enforced, and the Owner's laboratory representative and the Engineer shall have free access to the mixing plant at all times.
- 2. Except for materials and/or procedures otherwise specified herein, ready mixed concrete shall be mixed and delivered in accordance with the requirements of ASTM C 94.

Section 03 30 00

**CAST -IN-PLACE CONCRETE** 

Page 9 of 18

3. No water shall be added to the concrete after it leaves the plant except where part of the design water was purposely omitted at the plant, and then only as approved by the Engineer.

## E. Mixer Speed

- 1. Neither the speed of any mixer nor the quantity of material loaded into any mixer shall exceed the recommendations of the manufacturer.
- 2. Excessive over mixing, required additions of water to preserve the required consistency, shall be cause for rejection of the batch.
- 3. Concrete shall not remain in a transit mixer or agitator truck more than ninety (90) minutes after the water has been introduced, and not for more than forty-five (45) minutes if any approved retarding agent is not used.
- 4. Minimum mixing time shall be fifty (50) revolutions of drum at rated speed.

#### F. Measurement

- 1. Equipment necessary to determine and control the actual amounts of all materials entering the concrete shall be provided by the concrete manufacturer.
- 2. All materials shall be measured by weight, except that water may be measured by volume calculated at 8 1/3 pounds per gallon. One bag of cement will be considered as 94 pounds in weight.

#### G. Mixes

- 1. Mix Design: Conform to ACI 318, Section 4.3. Submit data on consecutive tests and standard deviation.
- 2. Maximum Water-Cement Ratio:
  - .37 (lbs/lb) Concrete with superplasticizer
  - .38 (lbs/lb) Concrete in Marine Environments
  - .45 (lbs/lb) Class A concrete without superplasticizer
  - .55 (lbs/lb) Class B concrete without superplasticizer
  - .65 (lbs/lb) Class C concrete without superplasticizer
- 3. Air Content: 5 percent plus or minus 1.5 percent (Class A and B).
- 4. Slump: 4 inches plus or minus 1 inch for Class A and B without superplasticizer.
  - Seven (7) inches plus or minus 1 inch for Class A and B with superplasticizer.
  - Seven (7) inches plus or minus 1 inch for tremie concrete or as specified by details.

Section 03 30 00

# H. Placing Concrete.

- 1. All concrete shall be placed in clean, damp forms that are not hot to the touch.
- 2. To prevent segregation, concrete shall be deposited as nearly as practicable in final position and not allowed to drop freely more than necessary and in no case more than five feet, except in an approved funnel or tremie. All concrete shall be placed during daylight unless otherwise authorized at least four (4) hours in advance. Where the reinforcing steel above the top of the concrete being placed becomes coated with laitance or partially set up concrete, all such concrete shall be removed from the reinforcing steel prior to placing concrete around the bars.
- 3. Concrete shall be packed carefully and tightly around pipe and other items to secure maximum adhesion.
- 4. Concrete shall be placed in layers not over 12 inches deep before compacting. Concrete shall be compacted by internal vibrating equipment supplemented by spading and hand rodding between reinforcing steel and form to eliminate air bubbles and honeycomb. Vibrators shall not be used to move the concrete laterally inside the forms. Duration of vibration shall be limited to the time necessary to provide satisfactory consolidation without causing segregation, not less than five and not more than 15 seconds per square foot of exposed top surface. The vibrator shall be constantly relocated and shall be placed in each specific spot only once for each layer. The Contractor shall take steps to assure that sufficient personnel are available to devote full time to operating vibrator, spading and rodding.
- 5. Wall concrete shall be placed in layers as indicated above, with the first lift preceded by a 1 inch minimum layer of 1:2 1/2 cement sand grout, with a 6 inch to 8 inch slump, placed on existing concrete not more than twenty (20) minutes before concrete placement. The surface of previously placed hardened concrete shall be clean and wet before grouting or shall be treated with a bonding agent as required. Puddles of water in horizontal recessed keys shall be avoided by the use of drain recesses to outside edge of concrete. Concrete in walls and deep beams shall be placed in lifts not to exceed three layers at 12 inches each for the full length of the pour before proceeding higher. The placing of concrete shall not be delayed more than twenty (20) minutes between layers or lifts.
- 6. Slab forms shall be thoroughly cleaned after placing wall concrete below. Concrete in beams or walls shall be placed to bottom of floor slab. After concrete in walls below floor slab has been in place for approximately thirty (30) minutes, the concrete for the floor slab and upper portion of the beam shall be placed and vibrated.
- 7. When concrete is conveyed by chutes, the equipment shall be of proper size and design to ensure a continuous flow in the chute. The chutes shall be metal or metal lined, and the different portions shall have approximately the same slope. The slope shall not be less than one vertical to three horizontal or more than one vertical to two horizontals, and there shall be provision for a baffle at the discharge end of the chute to prevent segregation. If the vertical distance between the discharge end of the chute and the surface of the concrete is more than five feet, a spout shall be used. The lower end of the spout shall be kept as near the surface of the deposit as is practicable. All chutes and spouts shall be thoroughly cleaned before and after each run. All debris and water shall be discharged outside the forms.

### 3.3 CURING AND PROTECTION

# A. Curing:

- 1. Immediately after surface defects have been repaired, apply a spray coat of curing compound to all exposed surfaces, including slabs, walls, beams and columns in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations. Protect exposed steel keyways and other embedded items from the curing compound. Water cure, as specified in paragraph B hereunder, all concrete surfaces that are to be exposed to wastewater, surfaces that are to be coated with a coal tar epoxy system, and concrete floors requiring a bond for special finishes.
- 2. Do not apply compound during periods of rainfall. Should the film become damaged from any cause within the required curing period, immediately repair the damaged portions with additional compound. Upon removal of forms, immediately coat the newly exposed surfaces to provide a curing treatment equal to that provided for the surface.
- 3. Curing and Sealing Compound: Use clear compound conforming to Federal Specification TT-C-800A, thirty percent (30%) solids content minimum, having test data from an independent laboratory indicating a maximum moisture loss of 0.030 grams per sq. cm. when applied at a coverage rate of 300 sq. ft per gallon, and equal to Super Floor Coat or Super Pliocure by The Euclid Chemical Company or Masterseal 66 by Master Builders. Furnish manufacturer's certification as required.
- 4. Apply specified clear curing and sealing compound to all horizontal areas so noted on the Drawings or in the Specifications. Apply immediately after final finishing. Apply this compound to non-structural construction joints of slabs on grade to act as a bond breaker prior to placement of adjacent concrete.
- B. Water Curing Method: Cure all concrete that is to be water cured by either the wet burlap method, by continuous fogging or by covering with waterproof sheet.
  - 1. Wet Burlap Method: Cover concrete surface with a double thickness of burlap, cotton mats, or other approved material, kept thoroughly saturated with water. Keep the forms wet until removed and upon removal, start the curing specified herein immediately. Cure the concrete for a period of seven (7) days for normal Portland cement or four (4) days for high early strength cement. Do not submerge concrete poured in the dry until it has attained sufficient strength to adequately sustain the stress involved and do not subject it to flowing water across its surface until it has cured four (4) days.
  - 2. Continuous Fogging: Perform continuous fogging by fogging with a nozzle which so atomizes the flow of water that a mist, and not a spray, is formed. Fog the concrete surface regularly without allowing any part of the surface to become dry. Take all necessary precautions to prevent erosion of the concrete surface by the water.
  - 3. Covering with Waterproof Sheets: Keep the entire area to be cured continuously wet by fogging, as specified in the fogging paragraph above, for at least eighteen (18) hours and then immediately cover with waterproof curing sheet conforming to ASTM C171, waterproof paper and polyethylene film, free of holes or tears. Keep sheet fully flat,

Section 03 30 00

CAST -IN-PLACE CONCRETE

Page 12 of 18

without wrinkles or air bubbles, held down tautly at all edges. Do not use this method on slabs which will be exposed to view.

### 3.4 PLACING REINFORCEMENT

- A. All reinforcement shall be detailed, fabricated and erected in accordance with the A.C.I. "Manual of Standard Practice for Detailing Reinforced Concrete Structure", (A.C.I. 315), including bar supports and spacers. At splices all reinforcing bars shall be lapped a minimum of 24 bar diameters but not less than 12 inches.
- B. The reinforcing shall be fabricated to the shapes and dimensions shown and shall be placed where indicated on the drawing. Before placing, all reinforced steel shall be thoroughly cleaned of rust, mill scale or coatings, which would reduce or destroy the bond. Reinforcing bars shall conform to the requirements of the latest editions of the A.C.I. Code and the CRSI Manuals.
- C. Wire mesh, unless otherwise shown on the drawings or specified, shall be 6" x 6" No. 10 woven or electrically welded wire fabric conforming to the requirements of ASTM Designation A185, latest revision.
- D. Space chairs and bolsters in accordance with ACI 315 and 318 using height to furnish cover over reinforcing required. Chairs with plastic feet or stainless steel shall be used in all beams and elevated slabs. Chairs for other concrete adjacent to or on the ground may be pieces of concrete block or concrete brick compressed into subgrade with the rebars bearing directly on the pointed edge of the masonry supports, or chairs set on precast concrete pads compressed into the subgrade.
- E. When placed in the forms, reinforcement shall be clean and free of all loose rust, scale, dust, dirt, paint, oil or other foreign material, and shall be accurately and securely positioned both laterally and vertically before placing concrete. Minimum clearances between the steel and face of concrete shall be maintained as shown.
- F. The rebars shall be fastened together at every intersection or at intervals not greater than 24 bar diameters by wire ties or by some alternate method acceptable to the Engineer. In areas where large bars are closer together, the wire ties may be spaced not more than 30 bar diameters apart, rather than as specified above.

## 3.5 FORMS

- A. Installation and erection shall be in accordance with ACI 347 and as specified hereinafter.
- B. Forms shall conform to shape, lines and dimensions of numbers indicated, and shall be sufficiently tight to prevent leakage of mortar. They shall not deflect under dead load weight of construction as a liquid or of construction load. Forms shall be properly braced or tied together so as to maintain position and shape within specified tolerances. Construct forms so that they can be removed steadily without hammering or prying against the concrete. Forms for exposed concrete shall be carefully made and accurately placed to obtain correct shape and line.
- C. Forms shall be of wood, metal, or other approved materials. Metal forms shall be of a type and manufacture acceptable to the Engineer. Plywood, fiberboard, or absorptive type form linings may be used where appropriate. Sectional forms shall produce a uniform surface and shall be assembled in a modular pattern. Pours will not be scheduled until all erection and bracing is

Section 03 30 00

**CAST -IN-PLACE CONCRETE** 

Page 13 of 18

- complete. Walers, ties and braces shall be required for all forms.
- D. Chamfer strips made from nominal dimensional 1" x 1" lumber cut on the diagonal shall be installed at the top of the forms on all exposed edges of walls, slabs, beams and other structures above grade.
- E. Drip edge shall be made from wood quarter round and installed where shown. Extruded plastic fillets shall be used where detailed. Circular structures shall be formed with special care, and attention to the appearance of the finished structure. Random location of fillers, non modular sections, and excessive deviations from true circular segments shall be cause for rejection of the forms.
- F. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for the adequacy of formwork in its entirety. Forms shall support required loads and shall maintain their dimensional and surface correctness to produce members required by drawings.
- G. Slots, chases, recesses, or other openings as shown on the drawings or as needed for the work of any other trades shall be boxed out.
- H. Box out for all temporary openings and build forms to seal them up when and as required.
- I. After sealing and immediately before the placing of reinforcing, faces of all forms in contact with the concrete shall receive a thorough coating of the liquid form releasing agent, applied in compliance with the manufacturer's instructions.
- J. Reused forms shall be thoroughly cleaned out of dirt, debris, concrete and foreign matter. Forms shall not be reused if they have developed defects which would affect their tightness and strength or desired surface finish. Used forms shall not be used for architectural concrete.
- K. Forms shall be removed in a manner that will prevent injury to concrete. Supporting forms or shoring shall not be removed until the members have acquired sufficient strength to support their weight and any load thereon.
- L. Removal shall be in sequence as approved by the Engineer. Unless test cylinders warrant another procedure, the forms shall not be removed from members prior to the time listed in the schedule hereinafter unless otherwise directed.
- M. Bonding to Existing Surfaces: Clean existing concrete surfaces that are to have new concrete bonded thereto of all grease, oil, dust, dirt and loose particles and coat with an epoxy bonding agent just prior to placing of the new concrete. Apply the bonding agent as recommended by the manufacturer and allow the agent to become tacky before the new concrete is placed. Do not allow the bonding agent to overlap or be spilled on the surfaces to be exposed after the work is completed

### 3.6 FORM REMOVAL

A. Maintain formwork in place for the following structural conditions until the concrete has attained the minimum percentage of indicated design compressive strength or for the period of time specified in the following table.

Note: Time periods in the table include all days except those in which the temperature falls below 40°F.

Section 03 30 00

**CAST -IN-PLACE CONCRETE** 

Page 14 of 18

Structural Member or Condition	Normal Strength Concrete	Normal High- Early Strength Concrete	Minimum Compressive Strength for Form Removal (% Design Strength)
Cantilevers Over 20 feet between supports	12 days 12 days	7 days 7 days	90 90
Stairway Floor Slabs Free standing walls,	10 days 5 days	5 days 3 days	80 70
columns, and piers Walls, piers columns, sides of beams, footings slabs on grade,	5 days 24-48 hours	3 days	70 70
and vertical surfaces Front face form of curbs	6-24 hours	6 hours	70

### 3.7 CONCERTE FINISHINGS

# A. Repair of surface Defects:

- 1. General: Repair surface defects, including tie holes immediately after form removal. Dampen the area to be patched and an area at least six inches wide surrounding it to prevent absorption of water from the patching mortar. Notify the Engineer prior to commencing operations.
- 2. Removal of Defective Concrete: Remove all honeycombed and other defective concrete down to sound concrete. Cut edges perpendicular to the surface or slightly under cut. Sand blast surfaces to receive repair.
- 3. Bonding Grout: Thoroughly dampen surfaces to be patched and apply a coat of bonding grout consisting of one-part cement to one part fine sand passing a No. 30 sieve and having the consistency of thick cream.
- 4. Placing Patching Mortar: After the bonding grout begins to lose its water sheen, apply a premixed patching mortar, thoroughly consolidating it into place and striking it off so as to leave the patch slightly higher than the surrounding surface. Leave mortar undisturbed for one hour to permit initial shrinkage and then finally finish.
- 5. Tie Holes: After being cleaned and thoroughly dampened, fill the tie holes solid with patching mortar.

# B. Concrete Finishes:

1. Formed Surfaces: After removal of forms, chip off all irregular projections, grind flush with adjacent surfaces and finish concrete surfaces in accordance with the following schedule:

Section 03 30 00

**CAST -IN-PLACE CONCRETE** 

Page 15 of 18

Finish Designation	Area Applied
F-1 F-2	Exterior walls below grade not exposed to water: Repair defective concrete, fill depressions deeper than two inches, and fill tie holes.  Exterior and interior walls exposed to water: Repair defective concrete, remove fins, fill depressions 3 inches or deeper, and fill tie holes.
F-3	Walls of structures of buildings exposed to view and underside of formed floors or slabs: In addition to Finish F-2, fill depressions and airholes in mortar. Dampen surfaces and then spread a slurry consisting of one-part cement and one and one-half parts sand by damp loose volume on the surface with clean burlap pads or sponge rubber floats. Remove any surplus by scraping and then rubbing with clean burlap.
F-4	Tops of walls, beams and similar unformed surfaces occurring adjacent to formed surfaces: Strike smooth after concrete is placed and float to a texture reasonably consistent with that of formed surfaces.
2. Slab a.	Surfaces: General: After concrete has been consolidated, finish all concrete slabs with a floated finish. After floating, trowel finish all concrete slabs, except for areas to receive roofing, insulation, tile or topping, and immediately light broom finish. Where a finish is not indicated, provide a troweled finish.
Finish Designation	Area Applied
S-1	Slabs and floors not water bearing: Smooth steel trowel finish.
S-2	Slabs and floors which are water bearing and slab surfaces on which mechanical equipment moves: Steel trowel finish free from trowel marks and
S-3	all irregularities.  Slabs, floors and stair treads of structures or buildings exposed to view: Steel trowel finish without local depressions or high points and apply a light hair-broom finish. Do not use stiff bristle brooms or brushes. Leave hair-broom lines parallel to the direction of slab drainage.
S-4	Slabs and floors at slopes greater than ten percent (10%): Steel trowel finish without local depressions or high points. Apply a stiff bristle broom finish. Leave broom lines parallel to the direction of slope drainage.
S-5	Exposed edges of slabs, floors and tops of walls: Finish with a 3-inch radius edge if a chamfer is not indicated.

- C. Floated Finish: After concrete has been placed, consolidated, struck off and leveled, do not work the surface further until water sheen has disappeared and the surface has hardened sufficiently to permit floating. During the first floating, check the planeness of the slab with a 10-foot straightedge applied at no less than two angles. Cut down all high spots and fill all low spots to produce a surface having the required tolerance. Then refloat the slab to a uniform sandy texture.
- D. Light Broomed Finish: After floating, power trowel slabs to receive a light broomed finish to produce a smooth surface, relatively free of defects. Before the surface sets, pass a soft broom drag over the surface to produce a surface uniform in texture and appearance.
- E. Troweled Finish: After floating, power trowel slabs to receive a troweled finish to produce a smooth surface, relatively free of defects. Hand trowel after the surface has hardened sufficiently. When a ringing sound is produced as the trowel is moved over the surfaces, perform final troweling by hand to produce a surface which is thoroughly consolidated, free from trowel marks, uniform in texture and appearance and plane to a tolerance of 1/8 inch in 10 feet as determined by a 10-foot straightedge placed anywhere on the slab in any direction.
- F. Hardener Finish: Where indicated to receive a troweled hardener finish, water cure slabs without application of curing and sealing agent. When slab is at least twenty (20) days old and thoroughly dry, apply the hardener in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations. Where dryshake hardener or slip resistant finish is required, apply the hardener or slip-resistant product prior to complete curing and finishing, in accordance with the requirements and recommendations of the product manufacturer.
- G. Saw Cut Joints: Cut joints that are to be saw cut not sooner than two (2) hours after the concrete is poured and not later than eight (8) hours after the pour.

# 3.8 TESTS

- A. Compressive strength tests shall be made by breaking standard 6 inch diameter by 12 inch high test specimens prepared, cured and broken in accordance with the American Society for Testing Materials Standard Methods C 31 and C 39, latest revision. Four (4) specimen test cylinders shall be taken from each pour of five cubic yards or more. One additional test shall be taken from each 30 cubic yards or fraction thereof in each pour in excess of 30 cubic yards.
- B. Test specimens shall be taken from manhole bottom pours of less than five cubic yards as directed by the Engineer. Test specimens shall be taken in the presence of the Engineer. One cylinder from each pour shall be broken at seven (7) days, the remainder at twenty-eight (28) days. Additional test cylinders may be ordered for determining the characteristics of a new design mix or changes in equipment or methods, and under adverse weather or curing conditions.
- C. Slump test shall be made in accordance with ASTM C143, latest revision, and shall be made with each load and at time of cylinders.
- D. The Contractor shall supply all cylinder molds, slump cones, tools and labor for preparing specimen, and shall provide clean, moist sand or burlap for curing. Cylinder shall not be shipped to the testing laboratory until the third day following preparation and shall be protected from accidental damage at all times.

Section 03 30 00

**CAST -IN-PLACE CONCRETE** 

Page 17 of 18

E. The test cylinders shall be tested in a recognized commercial testing laboratory at the expense of the Contractor.

# 3.9 EXPANSION JOINTS, CONSTRUCTION JOINTS AND WATER STOPS

- A. Expansion Joints shall be places as indicated on the drawings. Joint materials for surfaces exposed to water and sewage shall conform to ASTM D175, Preformed Joint Filler, non extruding and resilient (bituminous type), thickness as shown on the drawings. Joint materials for isolation joints, slab on grade joints and wall joints not exposed to water and sewage shall conform to ASTM D994, preformed expansion joint filler for concrete (bituminous type), thickness as shown on the drawings
- B. Construction Joints shall be located in accordance with a schedule of pours which shall be prepared and submitted by the Contractor. Vertical construction joints shall be held to the minimum number consistent with good standard practice.
- C. Water Stops. Material for water stops shall be 9 inch PVC multi rib center bulb type for expansion joints, and 1/4" x 4" and 1/8" x 4" structural steel sheets for construction joints. PVC joint material shall be as manufactured by The Burke Company, or approved equal.

END OF SECTION 03 30 00

#### SECTION 31 23 19 – DEWATERING

### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.1 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

- A. Scope: In general, the work specified in this section of the specifications shall consist of supplying labor, materials, and plant, and performing all work necessary to lower and control the groundwater levels and hydrostatic pressures to permit all excavations and construction specified under this Contract to be performed in the dry.
- B. Examination of Site: The Contractor shall take all steps that they consider necessary to familiarize themself with the site conditions, the ground conditions, and the groundwater conditions. It is expressly understood that neither the Owner nor the Engineer will be held responsible for any interpretations or conclusions drawn by the Contractor.

#### PART 2 - PRODUCTS

# 2.1 METHOD AND EQUIPMENT

A. The Contractor may use any dewatering method they deem feasible so long as it results in working in the dry and in stable soil conditions. It is the intent of these specifications that an adequate dewatering system be installed to lower and control the groundwater in order to permit excavation, construction of the structures, construction of pipelines, and the placement of the fill materials, all to be performed under dry conditions. The dewatering system shall be adequate to pre-drain the water-bearing strata above and below the bottom of the foundations, the drains, the sewers, and all other excavations. An adequate weight of fill material shall be in place prior to discontinuing operation of dewatering to prevent buoyancy of the structure.

# PART 3 - EXECUTION

### 3.1 GENERAL

- A. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the arrangement, location, and depths of the dewatering system necessary to accomplish the work described under this section of the specifications. The dewatering shall be accomplished in a manner that will reduce the hydrostatic head below any excavation to the extent that the water level and piezometric water levels in the construction area are below the prevailing excavation surface; will prevent the loss of fines, seepage, boils, quick conditions, or softening of the foundation strata; will maintain stability of the sides and bottom of the excavation; and will result in all construction operations being performed in the dry.
- B. Disposal of Water: The Contractor shall promptly dispose of all water removed from the excavations in such a manner as will not endanger public health, damage public or private

property, or affect adversely any portion of the work under construction or completed by them or any other Contractor. Contractor shall obtain written permission from the Owner of any property involved before digging ditches or constructing water courses for the removal of water.

### C. Siltation and Erosion:

- 1. The Contractor shall take steps and make suitable provisions to minimize siltation and erosion which may result from, or as a result of, their operations during the course of construction of this project.
- 2. The methods and provisions utilized by the Contractor to minimize siltation and erosion shall be approved by the Engineer and shall be in conformance with current Florida Department of Environmental Protection and the applicable Water Management District practices and regulations.
- D. Inadequate System: If the dewatering requirements are not satisfied due to inadequacy or failure of the dewatering system, then loosening of the foundation strata, or instability of the slopes, or damage to the foundations or structures may occur. The supply of all labor, materials, equipment, and the performance of all work necessary to carry out additional work for reinstatement of the structures of foundation soil resulting from such inadequacy or failure shall be undertaken by the Contractor to the approval of the Engineer, and at no additional expense to the Owner.

**END OF SECTION 31 23 19** 

# SECTION 31 23 33 – TRENCHING, BACKFILLING, AND COMPACTING

### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.1 DESCRIPTION OF WORK

- A. The extent of trenching, backfilling, and compacting is shown on the drawings.
- B. This section includes furnishing equipment, labor, and materials, and performing all operations necessary and incidental to perform the required work.

### PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

#### PART 3 - EXECUTION

### 3.1 CLEARING OF THE SITE

A. The site of the work shall be cleared of all trees, shrubs, paving and objectionable material, which interfere with the prosecution of the proposed work. Trees and shrubs which will not interfere with construction shall be protected from damage. Clearing shall be considered as an incidental item of excavation.

# 3.2 EXCAVATION

### A. General:

1. Perform excavation described of whatever substance encountered to the dimensions and depths specified or shown on the drawings. Undercutting will not be permitted, except when ordered by the Engineer. Material suitable for backfill shall be stockpiled near the site. Rock or other material undesirable for backfill shall be spoiled outside the area in a neat manner, as directed by the Engineer. Where it is necessary to cut roots projecting into an excavation or where it is necessary to trim branches for equipment clearance, all severed root ends, or cuts to branches over a half inch (1/2") diameter shall be treated with an asphalt base pruning paint. Backfill over exposed roots as soon as possible.

#### B. Rock:

1. Where encountered in the trench bed, rock shall be excavated to a depth of one-quarter (1/4) of the pipe diameter below the bottom of the pipe but in no case less than four inches. All undercut trench excavation shall be backfilled and tamped with materials as specified in the following paragraphs under Unstable Subgrade.

# C. Unstable Subgrade:

Section 31 23 33 TRENCHING, BACKFILLING, AND COMPACTING

Page 1 of 5

- 1. In the event that unsuitable material is encountered at or below the excavation depth specified or shown on the drawings, the Engineer shall be notified. Such material shall be removed and replaced with suitable material. Methods and materials used for replacement shall be one of the following as directed by the Engineer in writing.
  - a. Suitable earth or sand compacted in the trench. Materials shall be furnished as a part of the Bid Proposal item covering excavation and backfill.
  - b. Gravel or crushed limerock, compacted in the trench and paid for under the appropriate item.
  - c. Existing materials stabilized after removal and then replaced and compacted in the trench at no additional cost to the Owner.
- 2. The Engineer shall determine the methods and materials to be used, based upon the condition of the excavation, the pipe structure to be supported, and the availability and character of stabilizing materials.

#### D. Trenches:

- 1. Trenches shall be backfilled immediately after the pipe is laid unless other protection for the pipe line is provided. Clean earth, sand, crushed limerock, or other material approved by the Engineer shall be used for backfill. Backfill material shall be selected, deposited and compacted (simultaneously on both sides of the pipe) so as to eliminate the possibility of lateral displacement of the pipe. Backfill material shall be solidly tamped around the pipes in layers to a level at least one foot above the top of the pipe. Each layer shall be compacted to a maximum thickness of six inches.
- 2. In unpaved areas, the remainder of the backfill shall be deposited and then compacted by puddling, water flooding or mechanical tampers. Mechanical tamping of layers in unpaved areas shall be to a maximum thickness of 12 inches. In areas to be paved or repaved, the entire depth of backfill shall be deposited in layers and compacted by hand or mechanical tampers to a maximum thickness of six inches. Compaction shall be carried out to achieve a density of at least 98 percent (98%) of the maximum density as determined by AASHTO, Method T-180. Under areas to be paved, puddling may be used for backfill consolidation after tamping to one foot over the pipe, as specified, provided the method is first approved by the Engineer and the density requirements are met.
- 3. In areas to be paved, density tests for determination of the specified compaction shall be made by a testing laboratory and spaced one in every 300 feet of trench cut. It is the intent of this specification to secure a condition where no further settlement of trenches will occur. When backfilling is completed, the roadway base for pavement replacement may be placed immediately. It will be the responsibility of the Contractor to restore the surface to the original grade wherever settlement occurs.
- E. Structural (For inlets, manholes, and similar structures):
  - 1. Remove sufficient material to allow proper space for erecting and removing forms. The elevations of the bottoms of footings, if shown on the drawings, shall be considered as approximate only, and the Engineer may order, in writing, such changes in dimensions or elevations of footings as may be deemed necessary to secure a satisfactory foundation. Excavation for structures shall be sufficient to leave at least 12 inches in the clear between their outer surfaces and the embankment or timber that may be used to protect them.

Section 31 23 33

TRENCHING, BACKFILLING, AND COMPACTING

Page 2 of 5

Backfill of earth under structures will not be permitted. Excess excavation for structures shall be filled with thoroughly compacted sand, gravel, or concrete at the expense of the Contractor.

2. After excavation for a structure is completed, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer to that effect. No concrete or reinforcing steel shall be placed until the Engineer has approved the depth of the excavation and the character of the foundation material.

# F. Sheeting and Shoring:

1. The Contractor shall provide all trench and structural bracing, sheeting or shoring necessary to construct and protect the excavation, existing utilities, structures, and private property of all types and as required for the safety of the employees. Sheeting shall be removed or cut off by the Contractor during backfilling operations as directed by the Engineer. Removal of shoring for structures shall be done in such a manner as not to disturb or mar finished masonry or concrete surfaces.

### 3.3 DRAINAGE

- A. Grading shall be controlled in the vicinity of excavations so that the surface of the ground will be properly sloped to prevent water from running into trenches or other excavated areas. Any water which accumulates in the excavations shall be removed promptly by well point or by other means satisfactory to the Engineer in such a manner as to not create a nuisance to adjacent property or public thoroughfare. Trenches shall be kept dry while pipe is being laid. Bridging of dewatering pipe shall be provided where necessary. Pumps and engines for well point systems shall be operated with mufflers, and at a minimum noise level suitable to a residential area. The Contractor will not be allowed to discharge water into the Owner's storm drainage system without the written approval of the Engineer. Approval will be subject to the condition that the storm sewer be returned to its original condition.
- B. The Contractor is responsible for carrying the water to the nearest ditch or body of water and for obtaining the necessary permission to use same. The Contractor shall be financially responsible for any nuisance created due to carrying off water from his drainage system.

### 3.4 BACKFILL

### A. Trenches:

- 1. Trenches shall be backfilled immediately after the pipe is laid unless other protection for the pipe line is provided. Clean earth, sand, crushed limerock, or other material approved by the Engineer shall be used for backfill. Backfill material shall be selected, deposited and compacted (simultaneously on both sides of the pipe) so as to eliminate the possibility of lateral displacement of the pipe. Backfill material shall be solidly tamped around the pipes in layers to a level at least one foot above the top of the pipe. Each layer shall be compacted to a maximum thickness of six inches.
- 2. In unpaved areas, the remainder of the backfill shall be deposited and then compacted by puddling, water flooding or mechanical tampers. Mechanical tamping of layers in unpaved

Section 31 23 33

TRENCHING, BACKFILLING, AND COMPACTING

Page 3 of 5

areas shall be to a maximum thickness of 12 inches. In areas to be paved or repaved, the entire depth of backfill shall be deposited in layers and compacted by hand or mechanical tampers to a maximum thickness of six inches. Compaction shall be carried out to achieve a density of at least 98 percent (98%) of the maximum density as determined by AASHTO, Method T-180. Under areas to be paved, puddling may be used for backfill consolidation after tamping to one foot over the pipe, as specified, provided the method is first approved by the Engineer and the density requirements are met.

3. In areas to be paved, density tests for determination of the specified compaction shall be made by a testing laboratory and spaced one in every 300 feet of trench cut. It is the intent of this specification to secure a condition where no further settlement of trenches will occur. When backfilling is completed, the roadway base for pavement replacement may be placed immediately. It will be the responsibility of the Contractor to restore the surface to the original grade wherever settlement occurs.

#### B. Structural:

1. After completion of foundation footings and walls and other construction below the elevation of the final grades, and prior to backfilling, forms shall be removed and the excavation shall be cleared of all trash and debris. Material for backfilling shall consist of the excavation, borrow sand or other approved materials, and shall be free of trash, lumber, or other debris. Backfill shall be placed in horizontal layers not in excess of nine inches in thickness, and have moisture content such that a density may be obtained to prevent excessive settlement or shrinkage. Each layer shall be compacted by hand or approved machine tampers with extreme care being exerted not to damage pipe or structures. Backfill shall be placed and compacted evenly against the exposed surfaces to prevent undue stress on any surface.

## 3.5 RESTORATION OF SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS

- A. Roadways, including shoulders, alleys, and driveways of shell, limerock, stabilized soil or gravel, grass plots, sod, shrubbery, ornamental trees, signs, fences, or other surface improvements on public or private property which have been damaged or removed in excavating, shall be restored to conditions equal to or better than conditions existing prior to beginning work. Restoration of shoulders shall consist of sodding, seeding and mulching, or stabilizing with limerock as selected by the Engineer. The cost of doing this work shall be included in the cost of the various applicable items.
- B. Materials for unpaved roadways, road shoulders, alleys, or drive-ways, shall be compacted to a minimum of 98 percent (98%) of the maximum density as determined by AASHTO, Method T-180. The cost of this work and furnishing new materials shall be included in the cost of the applicable items of work as no separate payment will be made, unless a separate bid item is provided.

# 3.6 FINE GRADING

A. Finished areas around structures shall be graded smooth and hand raked and shall meet the elevations and contours shown on the drawings. Lumber, earth clods, rocks, and other undesirable materials shall be removed from the site.

# 3.7 DISPOSAL OF MATERIAL

A. Such portions of the excavated materials as needed and as suitable shall be used for backfilling and grading about the completed work to the elevations as shown on the drawings or as directed. Excavated material in excess of the quantity required for this purpose shall be disposed of by the Contractor. The Contractor shall leave the earth over the trenches or other excavations in a neat and uniform condition acceptable to the Owner.

#### 3.8 TESTS

A. The Contractor shall furnish facilities for making all density tests and make such restorations as may be necessary due to test operations. All density tests on backfill or base replacement will be made by a commercial testing laboratory employed by the Owner and at such locations as may be recommended by the Engineer. The Contractor shall pay for all tests where the densities, as determined by the specified tests, fall below the required minimums (failed tests).

**END OF SECTION 31 23 33** 

### SECTION 32 10 00 - BASES, BALLASTS AND PAVING

### PART 1 - GENERAL

# 1.1 WORK INCLUDED

- A. The work covered and described in this section includes the furnishing and construction of paved surfaces, including roadways, driveways, bicycle paths, shoulders, and other paved surfaces, or paving work as shown or indicated on the Drawings, specified herein, and as listed in this Contract.
- B. All work shall conform to the applicable Technical Specifications of Florida Department of Transportation "Standard Specifications for Road Bridge Construction" latest Edition (Divisions II and III) and Design Standards", latest Edition, including any amendments thereto. The Contractor shall acquire their own copies of the Department of Transportation Standards. In the event of conflict between the Department of Transportation Standards and the Specifications listed in these documents, the Owner/Engineer shall determine which shall govern. Reference to the Department of Transportation Standards, to the Department or its representatives shall be interpreted for this Contract to be the Owner/Engineer or their authorized representative.

#### PART 2 - PRODUCTS

#### 2.1 SUBBASE

A. The materials used should be high bearing value soil, sand-clay, ground limestone, crushed lime rock, coquina, or any other material suitable for stabilization. Muck shall not be used.

#### 2.2 BASE COURSE

- A. The base course material used shall be that specified in the Drawings or Contract Documents. If no base material is specified, limerock shall be used, unless otherwise indicated. All base material shall be approved by the Owner/Engineer and supplied by the Contractor.
- B. The lime rock base material shall have a minimum of seventy percent (70%) carbonates, calcium and magnesium and no more than three percent (3%) water sensitive clay. The liquid limit shall not exceed 35 and the plastic index shall not exceed 10. The average LBR value of the material shall be no less than 100, nor be large amounts of extremely hard pieces of clay pockets.
- C. Soil-cement base shall be composed of a combination of soil and Portland cement uniformly mixed, moistened, compacted, finished, and cured. The soil shall be either existing in-place material or that brought from borrow locations. All soil must meet the requirements set forth in FDOT Standards and Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction Latest Edition. The cement used shall be Portland cement Type I or I-P and water shall be free from any substances deleterious to hardening of the soils-cement mixture.

Section 32 10 00

BASES, BALLASTS, AND PAVING

Page 1 of 7

- 1. The soil-cement mixture shall be proportioned in accordance with a design mix prepared by a testing laboratory and approved by the Owner/Engineer. The design mix shall be submitted for approval at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to beginning of soil-cement construction. The cement content shall be expressed in percentage of dry weight of the soil. Rate of application shall be based on the maximum density of the soil, determined in accordance with AASHTO T 99 and a thickness one (1) inch greater than the base course thickness shown on the plans.
- D. Asphalt base courses shall have a bituminous material content of asphalt cement, viscosity Grade AC-20 or AC-30, meeting the requirements of FDOT Standards and Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Latest Edition. The bituminous mixture shall be composed of a combination of aggregate, bituminous material. The job mix formula, as established by the Contractor, must be approved by the Owner/Engineer. The asphalt base mix shall be within the design ranges specified for mix Type ABC-3 or S-II, (Use of any other mix is subject to the approval of the Owner/Engineer.). The constituents of the mixture shall be combined to produce a mixture having Marshal properties within the limits of Appropriate Table of the FDOT Standards and Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, latest Edition.
- E. Coquina shell used in the base course shall have an organic material of not greater than one-half percent (0.5%) or contain significant quantities of sand or other impurities which would prevent bonding. At least ninety-seven percent (97%) of the coquina used shall pass through a three and one-half (3.5) inch ring.
- F. Recycled concrete aggregate used in the base course shall conform to Appropriate Section, graded aggregate base, of the latest revision of the Florida Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction.

# 2.3 PRIME AND TACK COATS

- A. Bituminous prime coats shall be applied to previously prepared bases. Bituminous tack coats shall be placed on existing paved surfaces and between successive lifts of asphalt material.
- B. The prime coat shall be Cut-back asphalt Grade RC-70 or RC-250; Emulsified Asphalt Grades SS-I, CSS-I, SS-1H or CSS-1H diluted in equal proportion with water or other types and grades of bituminous material specified or approved by the Owner/Engineer.
- C. The tack coat shall be RA-500 heated to a temperature of 250°F to 300°F. For undiluted Emulsified Asphalt, Grades RS-1 or RS-2 heated to a temperature of 140°F to 180°F.
- D. A cover material must be placed on the prime coat to ensure that the prime coat remains intact until the surface course is placed.

# 2.4 ASPHALT WEARING SURFACE

A. The bituminous wearing surface applied shall be that specified in the Drawings or Contract Documents. If no asphalt mix is specified, Type SP-9.5 Super Pave asphaltic concrete shall be used as the paving material, unless otherwise indicated.

Section 32 10 00

- B. The asphaltic mixture shall be transported to the site at a temperature of 300°F to 350°F. Mixtures that have cooled below 270°F will be rejected. The mix temperature will be taken on the first five loads each day and on an average of once every five (5) loads thereafter.
- C. The Contractor is entirely responsible for producing a homogenous mixture, free from moisture and with no segregated materials, and meeting all requirements of the Specifications for the mixture. Prior to the production of any asphalt paving mixture, the Contractor shall submit, in writing, a proposed job mix formula, at least two (2) weeks prior to the beginning of any paving activities. All requests for design mix adjustments, redesigns and new design mixes will be submitted, in writing, to the Owner/Engineer.

### PART 3 - EXECUTION

### 3.1 SUBBASE

- A. Prior to installation of base material, the area shall be graded to within two tenth (0.2) feet, and soft, spongy or mucky material removed. Sufficient stabilizing material shall be cut in to achieve a Florida Bearing Value (FBV) in excess of 75 psi or lime rock bearing ratio (LBR) greater than 40 pounds at a minimum density of ninety-eight percent (98%) of a maximum density as defined and measured in AASHTO T 180 (Modified Proctor), to a six-inch minimum depth.
- B. Density test for subbase materials shall be taken at 300-foot intervals and around structures as required. If compaction procedures allow testing requirements may be reduced at the Owner/Engineer's discretion.

# 3.2 BASE COURSE

A. The base course shall be constructed on the prepared subgrade, in accordance with the Specifications and Drawings. All base material shall be placed in accordance with the lines, grades, notes, and typical cross sections shown on the plans. Any deviation from the Drawings is subject to the approval of the Owner/Engineer. Any deviations not approved by the Owner/Engineer shall be repaired to the satisfaction of the Owner/Engineer at no expense to the Owner.

### B. Lime Rock Base

- 1. Lime rock base shall be spread by mechanical spreaders, equipped to produce an even distribution with a uniform thickness. When the specified compacted thickness of the base is greater than six inches, the base shall be constructed in two (2) courses. The thickness of the first course shall be one-half the total thickness of the finished base. After spreading is completed, the entire surface shall be scarified and shaped so as to produce the required grade and cross section after compaction. If two (2) courses are required, each lift shall be prepared as previously described. Prior to spreading of the upper course, density tests will have been taken for the lower and determined to be satisfactory.
- 2. All materials shall be compacted to a density of not less than ninety-eight percent (98%) of maximum density as determined by AASHTO T 180. Density tests shall be taken in at

Section 32 10 00

BASES, BALLASTS, AND PAVING

Page 3 of 7

least three locations on each day's final compaction of each course. Density determinations shall be made at more frequent intervals, at no extra cost, if deemed necessary by the Owner/Engineer.

- 3. The finished surface of the base course shall be checked with a template cut to the required crown and a 15-foot straight edge laid parallel to the center line of the road. All irregularities greater than one-quarter (1/4) inch shall be corrected to the satisfaction of the Owner/Engineer.
- 4. The base material shall extend at least 12 inches outside the edge of the finished paved surface, unless otherwise indicated. Thickness of the base shall be measured at 200-foot intervals at various points in the cross section. Where the compacted thickness is deficient by one-half (1/2) inch or more, the Contractor shall correct the deficiency by scarifying and adding rock for a distance of 100 feet in each direction from the edge of the deficient area. The required thickness, compaction and cross section will then be achieved.
- 5. Prime coat shall be applied only when the base meets the specified density and the moisture content in the top half of the base does not exceed ninety percent (90%) of the optimum moisture of the base material.

### C. Soil Cement Base

- 1. Soil-cement mixing shall be either mixed-in-place or a central plant mix.
- 2. If mixed-in-place, the entire width of the base shall be processed in a single operation, where possible. The specified quantity of cement shall be applied at the required rate by means of an approved method. Mixing will begin within sixty (60) minutes after the cement has been applied. Processing may be to full depth in one (1) course, provided that the satisfactory distribution of cement, water, soil and the specified density can be obtained. If not, construction shall be in courses of such thickness to obtain satisfactory results. Adequate bonding between courses must be achieved. After mixing soil and cement, additional water shall be added, if necessary. After all mixing water has been applied, mixing shall continue until a uniform mixture has been obtained. Excessive concentrations of water shall be avoided.
- 3. Central plant mixtures shall have been mixed for at least thirty (30) seconds. The mixture shall be placed on the moistened subgrade in a uniform layer by an approved spreader. The layer of soil-cement shall be of uniform thickness and surface contour. The completed base will conform to the required grade and cross section.
- 4. Compaction of the soil-cement mixture shall begin immediately after mixing is complete. The optimum moisture content and maximum density shall be determined in the field by the methods described in AASHTO T 143. The base shall be compacted to not less than ninety-five percent (95%) of the maximum density. The soil-cement mix design shall be 350 psi at 28 days, unless otherwise indicated, and moisture content and density tests shall be taken every 300 lineal feet to a minimum depth of six inches.
- 5. After compaction, the surface shall be shaped to the required lines, grades and cross section. The moisture content of the surface material shall not be more than two percent (2%) less than the specified optimum moisture content during finishing operations. The

Section 32 10 00

BASES, BALLASTS, AND PAVING

Page 4 of 7

- finished surface shall be smooth, dense, and free of compaction planes, cracks, ridges and loose material.
- 6. Construction joints shall be formed by cutting back in the completed work to form a true vertical face. The vertical face shall be a straight transverse line perpendicular to the centerline of the roadway.
- 7. The finished surface of the base shall be tested with a template and a 15-foot straight edge. All irregularities greater than one-quarter (1/4) inch shall be corrected to the satisfaction of the Owner/Engineer.
- 8. The finished surface shall be kept continuously moist until the surface is treated with either cut-back asphalt, Grade RC-70 applied at 0.15 to 0.20 gallons per square yard; or a mixture of emulsified asphalt and water applied at a rate of 0.20 of 0.25 gallons per square yard. If the Owner/Engineer deems it necessary, the surface shall be sanded using 10 pounds of clean sand per yard.

# D. Asphalt Base Course

- 1. Asphalt base courses shall be applied in accordance with FDOT Standards and Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Appropriate Section. The job mix formula approved for the project shall be used. Any deviation from the approved mix must be submitted to the Owner/Engineer and approved before being implemented.
- 2. The base course material shall be placed with an approved paving machine. A motor grader may be required if a leveling course is needed. The base mix may be placed when the air temperature is at least 40°F and rising, provided that the sub-grade is not frozen or affected by frost.
- 3. A paver, equipped with automatic screed control, shall be used for all machine-laid courses. The automatic joint matcher shall be used on the top course of the base after the first pass with a paving machine. All mixtures shall be laid by the string line method, with the exception of areas adjacent to curb and gutter or other true edges. The temperature of the mix shall be between 300°F and 350°F. Any mixture caught by rain in transit may be laid at the Contractor's own risk; if removal and replacement is required, it shall be at the expense of the Contractor. In no case shall the mixture be spread when rain is falling or when there is water on the surface to be covered. The layer thickness for asphalt concrete structure courses shall match those listed in the table below.

# E. Recycled Concrete Base Course

- 1. Recycled concrete base course shall be transported, spread compacted and finished per Appropriate Section, of the latest revision of the Florida Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction.
- 2. The depth of all layers shall be checked every 50 feet. A tack coat, as specified, will be required on existing pavements to be overlaid with an asphalt mix and between successive layers of all asphalt mixes.

# F. Compaction

Section 32 10 00

- 1. After the asphalt mixture has been spread to the proper lines, grades, and cross sections, compaction operations may begin. The Contractor shall establish rolling procedures and submit their sequence of compaction operations to the Owner/Engineer for approval. The equipment used may include, but is not committed to steel-wheeled rollers, pneumatic tired rollers, and vibratory rollers. Areas which are inaccessible to a roller shall be compacted by the use of hand tamps or other satisfactory means. An entire sequence of compaction operations shall be performed for each layer of applied material, density determinations shall also be made.
- 2. The in-place density of each course shall be determined through core samples and the nuclear backscatter method. A core sample of a representative paving section shall be taken for each day's production of paved surface; backscatters shall be taken every 30 feet at various locations in the cross section. Additional testing around manholes or other structures may be required.
- 3. Testing and density requirements shall not apply to the following construction activities: Asphalt patching courses, leveling and intermediate course less than one (1) inch thick, overbuild courses less than one (1) inch thick and open graded friction courses.

#### G. Shell Base Material

- 1. Shell base material shall be constructed on the prepared subgrade in accordance with these Specifications and in conformity with the lines, grades and cross sections shown on the plans. The shell base shall be spread uniformly and evenly; during spreading operations the shell shall be thoroughly saturated with water.
- 2. After spreading the shell shall be compacted, with water being added as required, until the required density is obtained. Compaction and density shall be as required for lime rock base, except that the testing methods shall be modified in the laboratory and in the field. At least three (3) density determinations shall be made on each day's final compaction operations.
- 3. Upon completion of initial compaction, the entire surface shall be scarified and shaped to exact crown and cross section. The base shall then be re-watered and compacted to the required density. The finished surface shall be tested with a template and 15-foot straight edge. All irregularities greater than one-quarter (1/4) inch shall be corrected to the satisfaction of the Owner/Engineer. The prime coat shall be applied after the base meets all density and finish requirements.

### 3.3 ASPHALT WEARING SURFACE

A. The asphalt wearing surface shall be constructed on the prepared base in accordance with the Drawings and Specifications and in conformity with the indicated lines, grades, and cross sections. If no asphalt mixture is indicated, the specified mixture shall be Type SP-9.5 Super Pave Asphaltic Concrete. A job mix formula shall be submitted to the Owner/Engineer for approval at least two (2) weeks prior to the application of paved surfaces.

- B. The mixture shall be spread only when the base is clean, dry, properly cured, and approved by the Owner/Engineer. The temperature shall be at least 40°F and rising. No paving operations will be permitted if it is raining or rain is imminent. The mix shall be between 270°F and 350°F.
- C. The asphalt mixture shall be spread with an approved paving machine to the required width and depth. All mixes, except those adjacent to curb and gutter, shall be laid according to the string line method. The depth of each layer shall be checked every 50 feet.
- D. The mixture shall be compacted to its final depth, no less than one and one-quarter (1-1/4) inch and thicker if so indicated. Compaction and layering procedures specified for asphalt base courses shall apply to surface courses. All testing and density requirements will also apply.
- E. When laying operations are interrupted, a transverse joint shall be constructed by cutting back on the previous run to expose the full depth of material. Longitudinal joints are to be sloped or rolled over and sealed. When the adjacent strip is constructed, the edge shall be trimmed back to expose the unsealed face. All longitudinal construction joints shall be offset six (6) inches to 12 inches laterally between layers.
- F. When fresh mixture is laid against transverse or longitudinal joints, it shall be placed in contact to produce an even, well compacted joint after rolling.
- G. The finished surface shall be tested with a template and 15-foot rolling straight edge. Any irregularities shall be repaired to the satisfaction of the Owner/Engineer. The surface shall be of uniform texture and compaction. No sand spots, ripples, or loosened portions shall be evident. No traffic shall be allowed onto the finished surface until it is deemed acceptable by the Owner/Engineer.

### 3.4 CURING COAT

- A. During the period when finishing and surface corrosion of the soil-cement base are being accomplished, the surface of the base shall be kept continuously moist by sprinkling as necessary. As soon as deemed practicable, the curing seal shall be applied to the soil-cement base. The curing seal shall consist of Emulsified Asphalt Grade SS-I or SS-1H, diluted in equal proportion with water, and be applied at the rate of 0.15 to 0.30 gallons per square yard.
- B. The actual rate of application shall be as directed and shall provide complete coverage without excessive runoff. At the time the bituminous material is applied, the soil-cement surface shall be dense and free of all loose and extraneous material and shall contain sufficient moisture to prevent excessive penetration to the bituminous materials.
- C. Should it be necessary to allow construction equipment or other traffic to use the completed base before the bituminous material has cured sufficiently to prevent pickup or displacement; the bituminous material shall be sanded, using approximately 10 pounds of clean sand per yard.

### **END OF SECTION 32 10 00**

#### SECTION 33 01 00 – OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES

### PART 1 - GENERAL

# 1.1 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work: The work included in this Section consists of furnishing all labor, equipment, and materials and in performing all operations necessary for the construction or installation of all process and utility piping, valves, valve boxes and all castings and appurtenances within, complete and ready for operation as shown on the Drawings and specified herein.

# 1.2 QUALITY ASSURANCE

# A. Construction Requirements:

- 1. All underground lines shall be installed with at least 36 inches of cover or as detailed on the Drawings.
- 2. For underground utilities changes in pipe alignment and use of fittings may be allowed, subject to approval of the Engineer as to layout. Deflection shall not exceed eighty percent (80%) of the maximum allowable deflection as stated in the pipe manufacturer's installation instructions.

# B. Pipe Inspection:

- 1. The Contractor shall obtain from the pipe manufacturers a certificate of inspection to the effect that the pipe and fittings supplied for this Contract have been inspected at the plant and that they meet the requirements of these Specifications. Certification shall be stamped with corporate seal.
- 2. All pipe and fitting shall be subject to visual inspection at time of delivery by rail or truck and also just before they are lowered into the trench to be laid. Joints or fittings that do not conform to these Specifications will be rejected and must be removed immediately by the Contractor.
- 3. The entire product of any plant may be rejected when, in the opinion of the Engineer, the methods of manufacture fail to secure uniform results, or where the materials used are such as to produce inferior pipe or fittings.

## 1.3 SUBMITTALS

# A. Shop Drawings:

1. In general, electronic copies of the following, but not limited to, shop drawings shall be submitted to the Engineer for approval prior to construction. Shop drawings to be

Section 33 01 00

**OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES** 

Page 1 of 30

numbered sequentially. Cover transmittal sheets to include project name, shop drawing number, shop drawing description, and Specification section(s).

- a. Mill test certificates or certified test reports on pipe and fittings.
- b. Details of restrained and flexible joints.
- c. Valve vaults.
- d. Valve boxes.
- e. All gate, plug, ball, solenoid, check valves, and automatic air release valves.
- f. Couplings.
- g. Service saddles, curb, & corp stops.
- h. Flexible expansion joints.
- i. Pressure gauges.
- j. Identification tape.
- k. Joint lubricant.
- 1. Detailed piping layout drawings and pipe laying schedule.
- m. Temporary plug and anchorage system for hydrostatic pressure test.
- n. Tie rods.
- o. Reduced pressure backflow preventers.
- 2. A separate shop drawing submittal will be required for each major item listed above and for each different type of an item within a major item. For example, separate submittals will be required for gate, plug, ball, solenoid, check and automatic air release valves. All submittals shall be in accordance with the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions.

# B. Acceptance of Material:

- 1. The Contractor shall furnish an Affidavit of Compliance certified by the pipe manufacturer that items furnished under this Contract comply with all applicable provisions of current AWWA and ASTM Standards and these Specifications. No pipe or fittings will be accepted for use in the work on this project until the Affidavit has been submitted and approved by the Engineer.
- 2. The Owner reserves the right to sample and test any pipe or fitting after delivery and to reject all pipe and fittings represented by any sample which fails to comply with the specified requirements.

# C. Operation and Maintenance Manuals:

1. Submit copies of operation and maintenance manuals for all the items requiring routine maintenance.

### 1.4 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. During shipping, delivering, and installing pipe, fittings, valves, backflow preventers, and accessories, they shall be handled in such manner as to ensure a sound undamaged condition.
- B. Particular care shall be taken not to damage coatings.
- C. Insides of valves and backflow preventers shall be kept free of dirt and debris.

Section 33 01 00

**OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES** 

Page 2 of 30

# 1.5 JOB CONDITIONS

#### A. Water in Excavation:

- 1. Water shall not be allowed in the trenches while underground pipes are being laid and/or tested. The Contractor shall not open more than 100 feet of trench than the available pumping facilities are able to dewater to the satisfaction of the Engineer. The Contractor shall assume responsibility for disposing of all water so as not to interfere with the normal drainage of the territory in which they are working.
- 2. In no case shall the pipelines being installed be used as drains for such water, and the ends of the pipe shall be kept properly and adequately plugged during construction by the use of approved stoppers and not by improvised equipment. All necessary precautions shall be taken to prevent the entrance of mud, sand, or other obstructing matter into the pipelines. If on completion of the work any such materials have entered the pipelines, it must be cleaned as directed by the Engineer so that the entire system will be left clean and unobstructed.

### PART 2 - PRODUCTS

# 2.1 DUCTILE IRON PIPE AND FITTINGS

A. Ductile Iron Pipe: Ductile iron pipe shall conform to the requirements of ANSI/AWWA C150/A21.50, latest revision. The minimum thickness class for all pipe greater than 12-inch diameter shall be pressure Class 250, and all pipe 12-inch or less in diameter shall be pressure Class 350.

Pipe shall have a minimum rated water working pressure of 250 psi and shall be furnished in laying lengths of 20 feet or less, unless specifically shown otherwise on the Drawings. The pipe shall be lined and coated as specified below.

- 1. Interior Lining for Raw Activated Sludge (RAS), Sludge Lines, and Force Mains: Ductile iron fittings and specials shall be coated with 40 mils nominal dry film thickness of Protecto 401 or approved equal in accordance with the manufacturers recommended actions.
- 2. Interior Lining for Potable and Reclaimed Water Piping: Ductile iron pipe, fittings and specials shall be cement lined in accordance with ASNI/AWWA C104, current revision, "Cement-Mortar Lining for Ductile Iron and Gray Iron Pipe and Fittings for Water". The cement lining shall have a standard thickness and after curing the lining shall have a seal coat of bituminous material in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C104, current revision.
- 3. Exterior Coatings: The exterior of ductile iron pipe fittings and specials to be installed underground shall be coated at the factory with standard bitumastic coating.
- 4. Polyethylene Encasement: Where indicated, the Contractor shall utilize polyethylene encasement in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C105-T1. The polyethylene shall conform with ASTMD-1248-68 and be color coded to the service application.

Section 33 01 00

**OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES** 

Page 3 of 30

- 5. Ductile iron pipe, fittings, and specials to be installed aboveground shall be furnished with a shop applied primer on the exterior. The shop primer shall be as specified in accordance with manufacturers recommendations.
- B. Fittings: Fittings for ductile iron pipe shall be either mechanical joint, restrained joint, or flanged joint as indicated on the Drawings and shall have a minimum working pressure of 250 psi. Fittings shall be ductile iron and shall conform to ANSI/AWWA C110, ANSI/AWWA C111 and ANSI/AWWA C153, latest revisions for flanged and mechanical joint pipe. Fittings shall be coated and lined as specified above for ductile iron pipe. The rubber gaskets for flanged, mechanical, and push on joints shall be as described below.
- C. Push-On Joints: Pipe using push-on joints shall be in strict accordance with ANSI/AWWA C111, latest revision and shall be as manufactured by American Cast Iron Pipe Company (Fastite Joint), United States Pipe Company (Tyton Joint), or Clow Corporation (Super Bell Tite Joint). Jointing materials shall be provided by the pipe manufacturer and installation shall be in strict accordance with the manufacturer's recommended practice.
- D. Mechanical Joints: Jointing materials for mechanical joints shall be provided by the pipe and fitting manufacturer. Materials assembly and bolting shall be in strict accordance with ANSI/AWWA C111 and ANSI/AWWA C153, latest revisions. Tee head bolts and nuts for mechanical joints shall be manufactured of CORTEN, high strength, low alloy, corrosion resistant steel as manufactured by NSS Industries, Plymouth, Michigan or an equal approved by the Engineer.
- E. Flanged Joints: Flanges shall be American Standard for 125-pound steam pressure with any special drilling and tapping as required to ensure correct alignment and bolting. Gaskets shall be rubber full face type, minimum thickness of 1/8-inch. Flanged joints shall be made with bolts and nuts, studs with a nut on each end, or studs with nuts where the flange is tapped.
- F. The number and size of bolts shall conform to the same American National Standard as the flanges. Unless noted otherwise, bolts and nuts shall be Grade B conforming to the ASTM Specifications for Steel Machine Bolts and Nuts and Tap Bolts, Designation A 307. Bolts and studs shall be of the same quality as machine bolts. Bolts and nuts shall have hexagonal heads. Where noted on the Drawings or where flanges are underground, stainless-steel nuts and bolts shall be used for flanges. Stainless steel shall be Type 316 in accordance with ASTM A320, Class 2.
  - 1. Machined Surfaces: Machined surfaces shall be cleaned and coated with a suitable rust preventative coating at the shop immediately after being machined.
- G. Restrained Joints: Restrained joints shall be provided for all buried piping systems at the location required to restrain the system thrust. Pipe joints and fitting shall be restrained as specified below.
  - 1. Manufactured Restrained Joints: Manufactured restrained joints shall be Flex-Ring, Lok-Ring or Lok-Fast manufactured by the American Cast Iron Pipe Company, Lok-Tyte or Tr-Flex Type manufactured by the United States Pipe Company, and TR-Flex as manufactured by McWane, or an equal approved by the Engineer. Joints shall be manufacturer's standard specifically modified push-on type joints with joint restraint provided by ductile iron retainer rings joined together by corrosion resistant, high strength

Section 33 01 00

steel tee head bolts and nuts or with joint restraint provided by a welded on retainer ring and a split flexible ring assembled behind the retainer ring.

Restrained joint pipe and fittings shall be ductile iron only and shall comply with applicable portions of this Specification. Manufactured restrained joints shall be capable of deflection during assembly. Deflection shall not exceed that shown in ANSI/AWWA C500 and shall not exceed 80 percent (80%) of the manufacturer's recommendations.

Tee head bolts and nuts for restrained joints shall be manufactured of CORTEN, high strength, low alloy, corrosion resistant steel as manufactured by NSS Industries, Plymouth, Michigan, or an equal approved by the Engineer.

### 2. Alternate Restrained Joints:

a. When prior approval is obtained from the Engineer, ductile iron pipe and fittings with mechanical joints may be restrained using a follower gland which includes a restraining mechanism. When actuated during installation, the restraining device shall impart multiple wedging action against the pipe wall which increases resistance as internal pressure in the pipeline increases. The pipe must be suitable for use with the proposed device.

The joint shall maintain flexibility after installation. Glands shall be manufactured of ductile iron conforming to ASTM A536 and restraining devices shall be of heat treated ductile iron with a minimum hardness of 370 BHN. The gland shall have standard dimension and bolting patterns for mechanical joints conforming to ASNI/AWWA C111 and C153, latest revisions.

Tee head bolts and nuts shall be manufactured of corrosion resistant, high strength, low alloy CORTEN steel in accordance with ASTM A242.

The restraining wedges shall have twist off nuts to ensure proper torquing. The mechanical joint restraint device shall have a minimum working pressure rating of 250 psi with a minimum safety factor of 2 to 1 and shall be MEGALUG<sup>R</sup> as manufactured by EBBA Iron, Inc. No other retainer gland type device will be acceptable. After installation prior to backfilling, all parts of the joint restraint system shall be coated with coal tar epoxy equal to Kop-Coat Bitumastic No. 300-M.

b. When prior approval is obtained from the Engineer, ductile iron pipe and fittings with push on joints may be restrained using a restraining gasket similar to the "Field Lok" gasket manufactured by U.S. Pipe & Foundry. The device must be suitable for the pipe and pressure rating intended and is subject to approval by the Engineer. The required length of restrained joint pipe shall be provided on either side of all valves and fittings employing restraining devices. Restrained lengths shall be calculated per DIPRA standards based on Type II laying conditions and an operating pressure of 150 psi, unless otherwise indicated.

# 2.2 POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) PIPE AND FITTINGS

- A. Gravity Drainage Piping: PVC pipe used for gravity drainage piping installed underground shall be SDR 26 pipe.
- B. Small PVC Pressure Piping: Unless otherwise specified, all PVC pressure pipe smaller than 4 inches nominal diameter shall be Schedule 80 PVC or Endot Endpure HDPE, (as shown). Schedule 80 pipe shall have either solvent welded or threaded joints. PVC pressure pipe shall bear the approved seal of the National Sanitation Foundation (NSF). PVC pipe that is exposed to sunlight shall be manufactured with additives to provide resistance to ultraviolet deterioration. No glued joint pipe shall be installed below ground, unless other specified. All water pipe to be Class 200 (DR 21) gasketed bell and spigot pipe blue in color.
- C. Fittings: Socket type, solvent welded fittings for Schedule 80 PVC pipe shall be in conformance with ASTM D2467. Threaded type fittings for Schedule 80 PVC pipe shall be in conformance with ASTM D2464. All solvent welded or threaded joints shall be watertight.
- D. Flanges: Flanges for Schedule 80 PVC pipe shall be rated for a 150 psi working pressure with ANSI B16.1 dimensions and bolting pattern. Flanges shall be connected to PVC piping with either solvent welded or threaded joints in accordance with ASTM D2467 or ASTM 2464, respectively. Gaskets shall be neoprene, full faced type with a minimum thickness of 1/8 inch. Nuts and bolts shall be hexagonal with machine threads, manufactured of Type 316 stainless steel in accordance with ASTM A320, Class 2. Type 316 stainless steel flat washers with lock washers shall be used against PVC flanges.
- E. Solvent Cement: PVC solvent cement shall be in compliance with ASTM D2564 and in accordance with the pipe manufacturer's recommendations.
- F. Thread Lubricant: Lubricant for Schedule 80 threaded joints shall be Teflon tape only.
- G. Polyvinyl Chloride Pipe 4 Inches and Larger in Size for Pressure Service: Polyvinyl chloride pipe for nominal diameters 4 inches to 12 inches in size shall conform to the requirements of AWWA C900 with a dimension ratio of DR 18, pressure class 150, and gasketed integral bell ends. For PVC pipe larger than 12 inches for pressure service, the pipe shall conform to the requirements of AWWA C900 with a minimum DR of 18, pressure rating of 235 psi, with gasketed integral bell ends. Pipe shall be designed for maximum working pressure of not less than 235 psi and with not less than a 4 to 1 sustained hydrostatic pressure safety factor. Fittings for C-900 PVC pipe shall be ductile iron fittings with restrained joint ends for potable water or reclaimed water lines, and restrained PVC fittings for sanitary force mains.
- H. All PVC pipe installed shall be color coded for the service intended. Potable water piping shall be extruded blue, reclaimed water shall be lavender, force main green, and gravity sewer green. Care shall be taken to avoid exposure to sunlight. Pipe should be marked for its use in three places on the pipe barrel.
- I. Joints (4 Inches and Larger PVC Pipe):
  - 1. Bell and Spigot:

Pipe joints shall be made with integral bell and spigot pipe ends. The bell shall consist of an integral thickened wall section designed to be at least as strong as the pipe wall. The bell shall be supplied with factory glued rubber ring gasket with conforms to the manufacturer's standard dimensions and tolerances. The gasket shall meet the requirements of ASTM F477 "Elastomeric Seals (Gaskets) for Joining Plastic Pipe". PVC joints shall be "Ring-Tite" as manufactured by J-M Manufacturing Company, Inc. or an equal approved by the Engineer.

## 2. Restrained Joints:

Where indicated on Drawings, to prevent pipe joints and fittings from separating under pressure, pipe joints and fittings shall be restrained as follows:

- a. PVC pipe bell and spigot joints shall be restrained with EBBA Iron MEGALUG<sup>R</sup> Series 1500 Restrainer or an equal approved by the Engineer. The restraining device and Tee head bolts shall be manufactured of high strength ductile iron meeting ASTM A536, Grade 65-42-10. Clamping bolts and nuts shall be manufactured of corrosion resistant high strength, low alloy CORTEN steel meeting the requirements of ASTM A242.
- b. Cast iron mechanical joint fittings used with PVC pipe shall be restrained with the EBBA Iron MEGALUG<sup>R</sup> Series 2000 PV Restrainer or an equal approved by the Engineer. The restraining device and Tee head bolts shall be manufactured of high strength ductile iron meeting ASTM A536, Grade 65-42-10. Clamping bolts and nuts shall be manufactured of corrosion resistant high strength, low alloy CORTEN steel meeting the requirements of ASTM A242.
- c. Thrust Blocking. Provided concrete reaction or thrust backing on all pressure pipe lines four inches in diameter or larger (except those having flanged joints or restrained joints) at all tees, plugs, caps, and at bends defecting 222° or more, or movement shall be prevented by attaching suitable metal rods or straps as directed by the Engineer. Concrete used for this purpose shall be Class "C". Reference reaction blocking table shown on construction plan details.
- d. Joint restraint. Push on joints on either side of valves and fittings restrained by mechanical restraining devices shall be restrained with "Uni-Flange" mechanisms. The number of restrained joints shall be determined by DIPRA methods and a laying schedule shall be provided for approval by the Engineer prior to installation of joint restraint.

# 2.3 PVC FITTINGS (4 INCHES AND LARGER PVC PIPE)

A. Fittings shall be PVC and manufactured of the same design as the PVC pipe. PVC fittings 4 inches through 36 inches shall be PVC injection molded made of materials meeting or exceeding the requirements of cell class 12454-B material as defined in ASTM D1784. Fittings shall be manufactured with pipe that meets or exceeds AWWA C-905 standard. All PVC fittings must comply with or exceed ANSI/AWWA C907, Uni-B-12, Uni-B-14 standards. All PVC fittings must be certified by CSA to the CSA B137.3 standard as third party certification. The fittings must be of the same design as the PVC pipe with an HDB of 4000 psi and minimum SDR 25 wall thickness design. All fittings must have UL-FM approval, and shall comply with or exceed all ASTM Standards for fittings. Fittings must have NSF-61 certification for contact with potable water. PVC fittings shall be pressure rated to 165 psi or greater.

B. All restrained joint systems shall be pressure rated the same as the PVC pipe and fittings. All components of the restraint system shall meet or exceed all requirements of ANSI/AWWA C-111/A21.11 latest revision. Restraints shall provide a full 360 degree contact on the pipe with sufficient gripping action to secure the clamp to the pipe and be designed so that the restraint action is increased as a result of increases in the line pressure. Restraint devices for PVC pipe and fittings shall consist of split restraint ring installed on the spigot, connected to a split ring which seats behind the gasket race of the fitting. The split restraint ring shall incorporate a series of machined serrations (not "as cast") on the inside diameter to provide positive restraint, exact fit and 360 degree contact and support of the pipe wall. The two halves of the split backup ring shall interlock without the need for additional bolts and shall form a beveled leading edge to assure exact fit behind the fitting gasket race. Restraint devices shall be of ductile iron, ASTM A536, Grade 65-45-12 and connecting bolts shall be of high strength, low alloy material in accordance with ASNI/AWWA C111/A21.11. Restraint devices shall be Uni-Flange 1300 series or other approved restrained joint devices.

# 2.4 WALL SLEEVES, SEALS, PIPES AND NON-STANDARD CASTINGS

- A. Wall Sleeves: Wall sleeves shall be of cast iron, ductile iron, or carbon steel. The sleeve shall be hot dipped galvanized after fabrication and shall have a waterstop located in the center of the wall. Sleeves shall be provided with seals and shall be sized as required for the installation of seals. Sleeves shall terminate flush with finished surfaces of walls and ceilings, and shall extend 2 inches above the finished floor unless otherwise shown on the Drawings.
  - 1. Wall sleeves shall be installed for all piping passing through building walls and floors, except where noted on the Drawings. Sleeves shall be of sufficient size to pass the pipe without binding. Escutcheons shall be provided at walls and floor to completely conceal the sleeves smaller than 3 inches. Escutcheons shall be 304 SS split-type.
- B. Wall Sleeve Seals: Wall sleeve seals shall be modular mechanical type consisting of interlocking synthetic rubber links shaped to continuously fill the annular space between the pipe and wall sleeve. Links shall be loosely assembled with bolts to form a continuous rubber belt around the pipe with a pressure plate under each bolt head and nut. After the seal assembly is positioned in the sleeve, tightening of the bolts shall cease the rubber sealing elements to expand and provide an absolutely water-tight seal between the pipe and wall sleeve. The synthetic rubber shall be suitable for exposure to sludge and groundwater. Bolts, nuts and hardware shall be 18-8 stainless steel. The seals shall be Link Seal as manufactured by Thunderline Corporation or equal, and the wall sleeve and seal shall be sized as recommended by the seal manufacturer.
- C. Wall Pipes: Wall pipes shall be of the size and types indicated on the Drawings. All wall pipes shall be of ductile iron and shall have a central fin not less than two inch thick and the same diameter as the bolting flange cast midway of the length to form a waterstop. Each wall pipe shall be of the same grade, thickness and interior coating as the piping to which it is joined. Those portions of the wall pipes that are buried shall have a coal tar epoxy outside coating.
- D. Non-Standard Fittings and Castings: Fittings having non-standard dimensions and cast especially for this project shall be of an approved design. Fittings shall be manufactured to meet the requirements of the same Specifications and shall have the same diameter and thickness as standard fittings but laying lengths and types of ends shall be determined by positions in the pipelines and by the particular piping to which it is connected. Flange facing and drilling shall

conform to the 125 pound American National Standards Institute. Where require, flanges shall be drilled and tapped for studs. Other dimensions shall be substantially equal to corresponding parts of standard bell and spigot fittings.

#### 2.5 PIPE COUPLINGS

# A. Couplings:

- 1. Pipe couplings used to joint two pieces of plain end pipe shall be sized to suit the outside diameter of the pipe ends to be jointed. Transition couplings shall be used to join pipes of different outside diameters. Pipe couplings shall be bolted type with steel middle ring and end followers. The couplings shall be restrained for the test pressure of line using approved retaining system.
- 2. All carbon steel parts of the coupling shall be coated on the interior and exterior with a fusion bonded thermosetting epoxy coating with a 12 mil nominal coating thickness. The coating shall be equal to AL-CLAD as manufactured by Dresser Industries, Inc.
- 3. Gaskets for the coupling shall be wedge type manufactured of Buna-N resilient rubber.
- 4. Bolts shall be manufactured of high strength Type 304 stainless steel with Type 316 stainless steel hexagonal nuts. Bolts and nuts shall conform dimensionally to ANSI/AWWA C111, latest revision.
- 5. Couplings shall be Style 38 as manufactured by Dresser Industries, Inc. or an equal approved by the Engineer.

# 2.6 PVC BALL AND BALL CHECK VALVES

- A. PVC Ball Valves: All PVC ball valves 2 inch through 4 inch in size shall be of a one piece capsule type manufactured of Type 1, Grade 1 PVC. Ball valves shall be true union design with two-way blocking capability and shall have solvent welded socket or NPT threaded ends. Ball valves shall have Teflon seats with Viton backing cushions and Viton O-ring seals, and shall be designed for a 150 psi water working pressure at 120° F. Valves shall be supplied with ABS lever operating handles. PVC ball valves shall be manufactured by Asahi/America, or equal approved by the Engineer.
- B. PVC Ball Check Valves: All PVC ball check valves 1 inch through 2-1/2 inch in size shall be of a solid thermoplastic construction manufactured of Type 1, Grade 1 PVC. Ball check valves shall be true union design with solvent welded socket or NPT threaded ends. Ball check valves shall be furnished with a solid thermoplastic ball. Ball seat shall be Teflon coated Viton. The same seal shall function as both the ball seat and the union seal. PVC ball check valves shall be designed for a 150 psi water working pressure at 120° F. Valves shall be manufactured by Asahi/America, or an equal approved by the Engineer.

# 2.7 GATE VALVES

A. Bronze Gate Valves: Gate valves installed aboveground, less than 2 inches in size and smaller, shall be Class 150 all bronze valves conforming to Fed. Spec. WW-V-54d, Type I, Class B designed for a non-shock water pressure of 300 psi. Bronze for valve body and internals shall be in accordance with ASTM B16.18. Valves shall be furnished with screwed ends, handwheel operator, non-rising stem, one-piece solid wedge disc and screwed bonnet. Valves shall be as manufactured by Crane, Powell or an approved equal.

## B. Ductile Iron Gate Valves:

- 1. Ductile iron gate valves shall open by turning to the left (counter-clockwise), when viewed from the stem. When fully open, gate valves shall have a clear waterway equal to the nominal diameter of the pipe. Operating nut or hand wheel shall have an arrow cast in the metal indicating the direction of opening. Each valve shall have the manufacturer's distinctive marking, pressure rating, and year of manufacture cast in the body. Prior to shipment from the factory, each valve shall be tested by applying to it a hydrostatic pressure equal to twice the specified working pressure. Hydrostatic and leakage tests shall be conducted in strict accordance with ANSI/AWWA C509, latest revisions.
- 2. Gate valves with nominal sizes from 2 to 24 inches shall conform to ASNI/AWWA C509, latest revision, and shall be designed for a minimum working pressure of 250 psi. Valves shall be ductile iron body resilient seat type with O-ring stem seals. The valve stem, stem nut, glands, and bushings shall be manufactured of zinc free bronze. Valve disc shall be constructed to assure uniform seating pressure between disc seat ring and body seating surface. Resilient seat of valve shall be formed by a special corrosion and chloramine resistant, synthetic elastomer which is permanently bonded to and completely encapsulates a ductile iron valve disc.

Interior of valve body shall be coated with a fusion bonded, thermosetting epoxy coating in accordance with AWWA C550, latest revision. Coating shall be holiday free with a minimum thickness of 12 mils. Surfaces shall be clean, dry, and free from rust and grease before coating. Exterior surfaces shall be coated as specified hereinafter. Resilient seated type gate valves shall be as manufactured by U.S. Pipe or equal.

- 3. Valve Joints: All gate valves shall have either mechanical joint, restrained joint, or flanged ends to fit the pipe run in which they are to be used. Gate valves installed on push on joint pipe shall have mechanical joint ends unless otherwise specified.
- 4. Valve Operators: Gate valves shall open left (counter-clockwise) when viewed from the stem. Unless otherwise shown on the Drawings or specified herein, gate valves shall have non-rising stems. Buried gate valves shall be furnished with a 2 inch square AWWA standard nut operator with a valve box and cover. Gate valves located aboveground or inside structures shall be furnished with a handwheel operator which shall have an arrow cast in the metal indicating the direction of opening. Gate valves used as isolation valves for reduced pressure backflow preventers shall be of the open screw and yoke (OS&Y) design with a handwheel operator.
- 5. Exterior Valve Coatings: All exterior surfaces of iron body gate valves shall be clean, dry, and free from rust and grease before coating. For buried service, the exterior ferrous parts

Section 33 01 00

**OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES** 

Page 10 of 30

of all valves shall be coated at the factory with coal tar epoxy with a minimum total finish dry film thickness of 20 mils. Prior to backfilling, all uncoated units, bolts, glands, rods, and other parts of joints shall be coated in the field with coal tar epoxy equal to Kop-Coat Bitumastic No. 300-M. For valves installed aboveground, the exterior ferrous parts of all valves shall be shop primed at the factory with one coat, minimum dry film thickness 1.5 mils, of a primer with rust-inhibitive pigments and synthetic resins. Following installation, aboveground valves shall be finish painted in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.

## 2.8 PINCH CHECK VALVES

- A. Valves are to be of the flow operated check type with flanged joint ends on both check sleeve and metal body. Port areas shall be one hundred percent (100%) of the mating pipe port area. The port area shall contour down to a duckbill which shall allow passage of flow in one direction and prevent reverse flow in the other direction. The flexible duckbill sleeve shall be one piece rubber construction with fabric reinforcement. The flange shall be drilled to ASNI B16.1, Class 125/ANSI B16.5 Class 150 standard. Valve body shall be drilled and tapped for flushing connection on top and bottom of the housing. Valve body shall be two piece split body construction. The two halves shall be sealed by diamond shaped cross section rubber gaskets permanently locked by a groove cast in the valve body. Company name and location shall be cast onto the valve body. The valve shall be designed for a maximum back pressure of 100 psi. The valve shall be red valve series 33 or equal.
- B. Interior Valve Coating: Prior to shipment from the factory, the interior ferrous surfaces of the valve, except for finished, non-ferrous, or bearing surfaces, shall be coated with a fusion bonded, thermosetting epoxy coating in accordance with AWWA C550, latest revision. Coating shall be holiday free with a minimum thickness of 12 mils. Surfaces shall be clean, dry, and free from rust and grease before coating.
- C. Exterior Valve Coating: All exterior surface of swing check valves shall be clean, dry and free from rust and grease before coating. For valves installed in below ground valve vaults, the exterior ferrous parts of all valves shall be coated at the factory with coal tar epoxy with a minimum total finish dry film thickness of 20 mils. Following installation, all uncoated nuts, bolts, glands, rods and other parts of joints shall be coated in the field with coal tar epoxy equal to Kop-Coat Bitumastic No. 300-M. For valves installed aboveground, the exterior ferrous parts of all valves shall be shop primed at the factory with one coat, minimum dry film thickness 1.5 mils, of a primer with rust-inhibitive pigments and synthetic resins. Following installation aboveground valves shall be finish painted in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.

#### 2.9 PLUG VALVES

A. General: Plug valves shall be non-lubricated eccentric type with flanged or mechanical joint ends as specified below. Valves shall open by turning to the left (counter-clockwise), when viewed from the stem. Port area of valves shall be a minimum of 80 percent of full pipe area. Valve pressure ratings, body flanges, and wall thicknesses shall be in full conformance with ASNI B16.1, latest revision. Valves shall seal leak-tight against full rated pressure in both directions. Prior to shipment from the factory, each valve shall be hydrostatically tested as follows: Valve seats shall be tested to provide leak tight shut off to 175 psi for valves through 12 inch and 150

Section 33 01 00

**OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES** 

Page 11 of 30

- psi for valves 14 inches and larger, with pressure in either direction. In addition, a hydrostatic shell test shall be performed with a plug open to a pressure twice that of rating specified above to demonstrate overall pressure integrity of the valve body. Plug valves shall be eccentric plug valves as manufactured by DeZurik, Milliken, or approved equal.
- B. Eccentric Plug Valves: Eccentric plug valves shall be Series 100 as manufactured by DeZurick or equal. Valve bodies shall be constructed of high strength cast iron conforming to ASTM A126, Class B and AWWA C504, latest revisions. Valve bodies shall be cast with raised eccentric seats which have a corrosion resistant welded in overlay of not less than 90 percent pure nickel on all surfaces contacting the plug face. Valve seats shall be in accordance with AWWA C504 and AWWA C507, latest revisions. Valves shall be furnished with resilient faced plugs with Neoprene facing, suitable for use with sludge. Valves shall be furnished with replaceable, permanently lubricated, stainless steel, sleeve-type bearings in the upper and lower plug stem journals. Plug stem bearings shall comply with AWWA C504 and C507, latest revisions. Valves shall be bolted bonnet design. Valves shaft seals shall be designed so that they can be repacked without removing the bonnet and the packing shall be adjustable. Packing material shall be Buna-Vee type packing. Valve shaft seals shall be in accordance with AWWA C504 and AWWA C507, latest revisions. All exposed valve nuts, bolts, springs, washers, and the like shall be Type 304 stainless steel.
- C. Interior Valve Lining: All interior ferrous surfaces of the valve that will have contact with the leachate except the valve seating surfaces shall be coated with a factory applied, fusion bonded, thermosetting epoxy coating in accordance with AWWA C550, latest revisions. Coating shall be holiday free with a minimum thickness of 12 mils. Surfaces shall be clean, dry and free from rust, oil and grease before coating.
- D. Exterior Valve Coating: All exterior surfaces of plug valves shall be clean, dry, and free from rust and grease before coating. For buried service, the exterior ferrous parts of all valves shall be coated at the factory with coal tar epoxy with a minimum total finish dry film thickness of 20 mils. Prior to backfilling, all uncoated nuts, bolts, glands, rods and other parts of joints shall be coated in the field with coal tar epoxy equal to Kop-Coat Bitumastic No. 300-M. For valves installed above ground, the exterior ferrous parts of all valves shall be shop primed at the factory with one coat, minimum dry film thickness 1.5 mils, of a primer with rust inhibitive pigments and synthetic resins. Following installation aboveground valves shall be finish painted in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.
- E. Valve Joints: All plug valves installed aboveground, in valve vaults or on flanged piping shall have flanged ends. Flanges shall comply with facing, drilling and thickness of ANSI Standards for Class 125 dimension. Nuts and bolts for flanged connections in valve vaults or corrosive atmospheres shall be Type 316 stainless steel in accordance with ASTM A320, Class 2. Nuts and bolts for aboveground installations or non-corrosive atmospheres shall be carbon steel in accordance with ASTM A307, Grade B. All buried plug valves shall have mechanical joint ends with dimensions, bolting patterns and assembly in strict accordance with ANSI/AWWA C111, latest revision. Tee head bolts and nuts for mechanical joints shall be manufactured of CORTEN-A, high strength, low alloy, corrosion resistant steel as manufactured by NSS Industries, Plymouth, Michigan or an equal approved by the Engineer.
- F. Mechanical Valve Actuators:

- All plug valves installed in valve vaults or buried underground shall have actuators
  designed for buried and submerged service. Valves shall have seals on all shafts and
  gaskets on valve and actuator covers to prevent entry of water and dirt. Actuator mounting
  brackets for buried and submerged service shall be totally enclosed and shall have gasket
  seals. All exposed valve nuts, bolts, springs, washers, and the like shall be Type 304
  stainless steel.
- 2. All plug valves 6-inch in size and larger shall be furnished with mechanical gear actuators. Gear actuators shall be furnished with AWWA Standard 2-inch square operating nuts for buried valves, or handwheel, chainwheel or 2-inch square nut operators for aboveground or valve vault installation, as shown on the Drawings. Gear actuator shall be sized for the maximum pressure differential across the valve, equal to the pressure rating of the valve. All gearing shall be enclosed in a high strength cast iron housing, suitable for running in a lubricant. Housing shall be provided with seals on all shafts to prevent the entry of dirt and water into the actuator. Actuator shaft and quadrant shall be supported on permanently lubricated bronze bearings. Actuator shall clearly indicate valve position for aboveground and valve vault installations and an adjustable stop shall be provided to set closing torque. Actuator shall be capable of withstanding an over-torque without damage up to 450 foot pounds for 2-inch square nut operators and to 300 foot pounds for handwheel or chainwheel operators.
- 3. Four inch and smaller aboveground valves shall be furnished with manual actuators, one-quarter turn to open. Actuator shall be supplied with an AWWA Standard 2-inch operating nut with a standard valve operating lever.

## 2.10 BUTTERFLY VALVES

- A. General: All butterfly valves shall be of the tight closing, rubber seat type with rubber seats that are securely fastened to the valve body or disc. No metal to metal seating surfaces will be permitted. Valves shall be bubble tight at rated pressures with flow in either direction, and shall be satisfactory for applications involving throttling service and/or frequent operation and for applications involving valve operation after long periods of inactivity and for buried installation. Valve discs shall rotate 90 degrees from the full open position to the tight shut position. Valves shall meet the full requirements of AWWA Standard C 504 for Class 150B, short body, flanged or mechanical joint as required. Wafer design valves are not acceptable, except when indicated on the Drawings. The manufacturer shall have manufactured tight closing, rubber seat butterfly valves for a period of at least five years. All valves shall be Henry Pratt Company, DeZurik, Mueller, or equal.
- B. Valve Body: Valve bodies shall be constructed of cast iron ASTM A126 Class B or ASTM A48 Class 40. Ends shall be mechanical joint for buried service and flanged for aboveground use. Flange drilling shall be 125 pound in accordance with ANSI B16.1. Two trunnions for shaft bearings shall be integral with each valve body. When disc has the rubber seat, the valve body shall have a 18-8 Type 304 stainless steel body seat. The port diameter shall be no smaller than one inch less than the nominal valve size.
- C. Valve Shaft: The valve shaft may consist of a one piece unit extending completely through the valve unit or may be the "stub shaft" type. Materials to be stainless steel 18-8 Type 304.

- D. Valve Discs: Valve discs shall be constructed either of cast iron ASTM A126 Class B, ductile iron ASTM A536 or cast iron ASTM A48 each with Type 316 stainless steel seating edge or the entire disc may be constructed of cast 316 stainless steel. The stainless steel seating edge is not applicable to rubber seat disc type valves.
- E. Valve Seats: Valve seats shall be of a synthetic or natural rubber compound and any be mounted on the valve body.
- F. Valve Bearings: Valves shall be fitted with sleeve type bearings. Bearings shall be corrosion resistant and self-lubricating.
- G. Valve Packings: Packing shall be self-adjusting Chevron type or of the O-ring type.
- H. Interior and Exterior Valve Coatings: The valve shall be coated similarly as described in Section 2.07 B(2) and B(5).

#### 2.11 SWING CHECK VALVES

- A. Swing check valves 2-inch through 12-inch in size shall conform to AWWA C-508, latest revision, and shall be designed for a minimum water working pressure of 150 psi. Check valves shall have cast iron body, swing type and ends shall be flanged, Class 125 in accordance with ANSI B16.1 When open, the valve shall have a straight way passage with a minimum flow area equal to the full pipe area. Swing check valves shall be completely bronze fitted with renewable bronze seat ring and a rubber faced disc; valve hinge pin shall be stainless steel. Check valves shall be supplied with an outside lever and weight.
- B. Swing check valves shall absolutely prevent the return of water back through the valve when the inlet pressure decreases below the downstream pressure. The check valve shall be constructed such that the disc and body seat ring may be easily removed and replaced without removing the valve from the line. Each valve shall by hydrostatically tested at the factory, at a test pressure of 300 psi.
- C. Interior Valve Coating: Prior to shipment from the factory, the interior ferrous surfaces of the valve, except for finished, non-ferrous, or bearing surfaces, shall be coated with a fusion bonded, thermosetting epoxy coating in accordance with AWWA C-550, latest revision. Coating shall be holiday-free with a minimum thickness of 12 mils. Surfaces shall be clean, dry, and free from rust and grease before coating.
- D. Exterior Valve Coating: All exterior surface of swing check valves shall be clean, dry, and free from rust and grease before coating. For valves installed in below ground valve vaults, the exterior ferrous parts of all valves shall be coated at the factory with coal tar epoxy with a minimum total finish dry film thickness of 20 mils. Following installation, all uncoated nuts, bolts, glands, rods and other parts of joints shall be coated in the field with coal tar epoxy equal to Kop-Coat Bitumastic No. 300-M. For valves installed aboveground, the exterior ferrous parts of all valves shall be shop primed at the factory with one coat, minimum dry film thickness 1.5 mils, of a primer with rust-inhibitive pigments and synthetic resins. Following installation aboveground valves shall be finish painted in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.

E. All swing check valves shall be provided with a limit switch to indicate valve close position to pump starter, VFD, or control panel.

# 2.12 SERVICE SADDLES AND CORPORATION STOPS

A. Service Saddles: Service saddles shall have ductile iron bodies in accordance with ASTM A536, latest revision, with double stainless steel straps. Bodies shall be brass or ductile iron, body shall have a fusion bonded nylon coating with a minimum thickness of 12 mils. Straps shall be Type 304 stainless steel with premium grade Type 304 L stainless steel bolts and Type 304 stainless steel washers and nuts. The nuts shall be Teflon coated.

The gasket material shall be an elastomeric compound resistant to degradation by oil, natural gas, acids, alkalies, most aliphatic fluids and leachate. The outlet of the saddle shall have NPT threads. Service saddles shall be Rockwell No. 317, Ford or an equal approved by the Engineer.

- B. Corporation Stops: Corporation stops shall be all bronze construction in accordance with AWWA C80, latest revision. Inlet threads shall be NPT iron pipe threads and the outlet connections shall be of the packed joint type suitable for use with Schedule 80 PVC pipe. Corporation stops shall be Ford Ball Corp Type FB 1102, McDonald or an equal approved by the Engineer.
- C. Polyethylene Tubing. Service tubing shall be nominal wall polyethylene tubing conforming to the requirements of ASTM D-2737 and AWWA C-901. Tubing shall be manufactured from prime virgin PE-3408 high density polyethylene (HDPE) resin. Each coil of tubing shall be spiral wrapped with four (4) inch wide black .004 polyethylene film with minimum two percent (2%) carbon black content to shield the tubing from ultraviolet and violet light. Reclaimed water service tubing shall be lavender in color.
- D. Tubing shall be DR 9.0 CTS OD and supplied in 100 foot rolls. Tubing shall conform to all requirements set forth in AWWA C901. Tubing shall be marked with the following information at not more than 5 foot intervals: nominal size, material code designation, dimension ration and diameter base, AWWA pressure class, AWWA designation and manufacturer's name or trademark and product record code.
- E. Fittings for use with polyethylene (PE) tubing shall be brass containing a pressure sealing O-ring and undirectional grip ring and shall be designed for "press-on" or "stab-on" installation, and manufactured by Ford Meter Box Company.

## 2.13 SOLENOID VALVES

A. Solenoid valves shall be 2 way type for normally closed operation designed for not less than a 150 psi water working pressure. The valves shall have forged stainless steel Series 300 bodies for 3/4-inch and smaller and brass bodies for 1-inch and larger with NPT threaded ends, Buna N seals/disks and NEMA 4X Red hat II solenoid enclosures. The valves shall operate on 120 VAC power, shall have threaded conduit hubs, standby manual operators and shall not require a minimum operating pressure differential for standby operation. The valves shall be provided with a manual override. The valves shall be Series 8210G for 3/4-inch and smaller and Series 8221G for one inch and larger as manufactured by Automatic Switch Company or approved equal.

Section 33 01 00

**OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES** 

Page 15 of 30

# 2.14 FLEXIBLE EXPANSION JOINTS

- A. Flexible expansion joints shall be of the molded wide arch design manufactured of chloroprene (neoprene) rubber with polyester reinforcement. Chloroprene (neoprene) body shall be supplied with a hypalon coating. Joints shall be flanged suitable for 150 psi water working pressure and in accordance with ANSI B16.1 dimensions and bolting patterns. Flanged ends shall be furnished and galvanized, split ductile iron retaining rings.
- B. Provide limit restraint bolts on all pump suction and discharge lines. Expansion joints six inches and larger in size shall have a minimum of four limit restraint bolts. Restraint bolts and nuts shall be Type 304 stainless steel.
- C. Minimum performance for flexible expansion joints shall be as follows:

Axial Size (in.)	Axial Compression (inches)	Lateral Elongation (inches)	Angular Deflection (inches)	Deflection (degrees)
2	1 3/4	3/4	3/4	30
3	d.o.	d.o.	d.o.	30
4	d.o.	d.o.	d.o.	25
5	d.o.	d.o.	3/4	25
6	d.o.	d.o.	1	20
8	d.o.	d.o.	d.o.	20

D. Flexible expansion joints shall be Style 1015 Maxi-Joint as manufactured by General Rubber Corporation, Style 100 Metrasphere as manufactured by the Metraflex Company or an equal approved by the Engineer. Flexible joints for pump suction and discharge piping shall be designed for leachate service at 250°F.

# 2.15 PRESSURE GAUGE ASSEMBLIES

- A. Pressure gauges shall have the following design features: glycerin filled, 2-inch dial, aluminum dial with black numerals on white background, Type 316 stainless steel bourdon tube and movement, 300 series stainless steel case and ring, safety glass lens, threaded lens retaining ring, adjustable pointer with over-pressure stop and zero pointer stop, blowout protection, 2-inch Type 316 stainless steel stem mounting and 1.0 percent accuracy based on full scale. Provide Type 316 stainless steel pressure snubbers on all gauges not protected by seals. Pressure gauges shall be as manufactured by U.S. Gauge, Ashcroft, Marshalltown, Marsh, or approved equal.
- B. Pressure Gauge Service and Ranges: Pressure gauges shall be furnished for the following services with the indicated ranges. Diaphragm seals shall be furnished for gauges as indicated.

# 2.16 VALVE BOXES

- A. Furnish, assemble, and place a valve box over the operating nut for each buried valve. The valve box shall be designed so as to prevent the transmission of surface loads directly to the valve or piping.
- B. Valve boxes shall be of the adjustable slide type of suitable length with an interior diameter of not less than five inches. The valve boxes shall be manufactured of cast iron and shall be of the two piece design including a bottom section and top section with cover. The cast iron cover shall be shaped and labeled for the appropriate service designation. The top section shall be adjustable for elevation and shall be set to allow equal movement above and below finished grade.
- C. The castings shall be manufactured of clean, even grain, gray cast iron conforming to ASTM A48, Class 30B for Gray Iron Castings; and shall be smooth, true to pattern, free from blow holes, sand holes, projections and other harmful defects. The seating surfaces of both the cover and the top section shall be machined so that the cover will not rock after it has been seated.
- D. The valve boxes shall be coated inside and outside with an asphaltic coating prior to machining, so that the machined seating surfaces will be free of any coating. Cast iron valve box assemblies shall be Clow Corp. No F2452, Tyler Corp. Series 6855 or 6865 or an approved equal.
- E. Valve extension stems shall be provided for all buried valves when operating nut is deeper than three feet below final grade.

## 2.17 PIPE AND VALVE IDENTIFICATION SYSTEMS

A. Not Included

# 2.18 GLOBE VALVES AND ANGLE VALVES

- A. Globe valves and angle valves shall be suitable for throttling flows of liquid, oil, gas, and air lines. Valves shall have end connections as indicated on the Drawings and shall be suitable for a working pressure of not less than 150 psi.
- B. Each valve shall have self-lubricating TFE-impregnated asbestos packing to provide a tight stem steel. Valves shall have a removable bonnet in order to facilitate dismantling and reassembly of the valves.
- C. Globe valves shall be Crane Model No. 1, Stockham Valves Figures B-16, or equal. Angle valves shall be Crane Model No. 2, Stockham Valves Figure B-216, or equal.

#### 2.19 PRESSURE REGULATING VALVE

A. Pressure regulating valves shall be of bronze body construction, seat shall be of stainless steel, diaphragm shall be Buna N.

Section 33 01 00

**OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES** 

Page 17 of 30

- B. Regulator shall have a maximum pressure limit of 100 psi and the pressure reduction range shall be to 5 psi for all the services except for belt washwater. The maximum and minimum pressure variation range for the belt washwater shall be per gravity belt supplier's recommendations. The regulator shall be a direct acting, spring loaded, diaphragm type for hydraulic operation, and shall be capable of delivering a constant pressure. An adjusting screw shall be easily accessible for changing the outlet pressure.
- C. Valves shall be installed in strict accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations. The manufacturer shall be Watts, or equal.

# 2.20 TIE RODS

- A. When prior approval is obtained from the Engineer, ductile iron pipe, fittings, and valves may be restrained using tie bolt joint restraint. Joint restraint materials for this method of restraint shall be the Super-Star SST Series Joint Restraint Joint System as manufactured by Star National Products, a Division of Star Industries, Inc., Columbus, Ohio, or an equal approved by the Engineer.
- B. All bolts, nuts, washers, tie rods, and other fasteners for the joint restraint system shall be manufactured of CORTEN high strength, low alloy, corrosion resistant steel in conformance with ASTM A242. Tie bolts shall be manufactured of heat treated CORTEN steel. Tie rods and all fasteners for the system shall be galvanized in conformance with the requirements of ASTM A123. Tie rods shall have a minimum diameter of 3/4-inch. The number of tie rods required per joint shall be as recommended by the manufacturer.
- C. Prior to backfilling after installation, all parts of the joint restraint system shall be coated with coal tar epoxy equal to Kop-Coat Bitumastic No. 300-M, for a minimum dry film thickness of 20 mils.

## 2.21 REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW PREVENTERS

- A. Standards of Construction: Backflow prevention devices shall be manufactured in accordance with AWWA C506, latest revision, American Society of Sanitary Engineering Standards, and the University of Southern California Foundation for Cross Connection Control and Hydraulic Research "Manual of Cross Connection Control", latest edition.
- B. Product Handling: Exercise care in transporting and handling backflow preventers to avoid damage. Inside of backflow preventers shall be kept free of dirt and debris.
- C. Reduced pressure principle backflow preventers shall include an integral sensing system that will automatically open a relief valve whenever the differential pressure between the inlet supply and the reduced pressure zone drops to 2 psi. The relief valve shall remain open until a positive pressure differential of 2 psi is re-established. If pressure upstream of the first check valve drops to atmospheric or below, the relief valve shall remain fully open providing an internal air gap between the first check valve and the water level in the reduced pressure zone. The unit shall also be constructed such that any minor leakage of the second check valve will result in visible flow from the relief valve, event if the first check valve is totally disabled.

- D. Reduced pressure principle backflow preventers shall have all bronze bodies for sizes 22 inches and smaller and all ductile iron bodies for sizes 3 inches and larger. Ductile iron bodies shall be coated with a fusion bonded thermosetting epoxy coating in accordance with AWWA C550 with a minimum, holiday free, coating thickness of 12 mils. The reduced pressure backflow preventer shall consist of two independently operated, spring loaded, wye pattern, poppet type check valves designed for installation in a normal horizontal flow attitude. An independent spring loaded relief valve shall be located between the two check valves. Check valve assemblies, springs, and seats and all other internal parts shall be constructed of Type 316 stainless steel. Relief valve body and trim shall be constructed of bronze. Check valve and relief valve seats shall be field replaceable without removing the device from the service line. Backflow preventers shall be designed for a working pressure of 200 psi and a temperature range of 32°F to 140°F. The backflow preventer shall be manufactured as a complete unit including test cocks, and upstream and downstream isolation valves. The test cocks shall be manufactured of bronze and shall be arranged such that the unit can be tested without removing the unit from the line.
- E. Isolation Valves: Reduced pressure backflow preventers shall be furnished complete with isolation valves, For sizes 2 inches and smaller, the isolation valves shall be all bronze ball valves with Buna N O-rings and valve seats, and a lever operating handle. Ball valves shall be in accordance with AWWA C80, latest revision. For sizes 3 inches and larger, the isolation valves shall be resilient seated gate valves with flanged ends and OS&Y handwheel operators. Gate valves shall be as specified and described hereinbefore.
- F. Exterior Coating: The exterior ferrous surfaces of the reduced pressure backflow preventer and the isolation valves shall be shop primed at the factory with one coat, minimum dry film thickness 1.5 mils, of a primer with rust inhibitive pigments and synthetic resins compatible with the finish coats. Following installation, the backflow preventer unit and aboveground piping shall be finish painted in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations. All surfaces to be coated shall be clean, dry, and free of rust, oil and grease.
- G. Acceptable Manufacturers: Reduced pressure principle backflow preventers shall Model 825 as manufactured by Febco, or an equal approved by the Engineer.

## 2.22 TAPPING SLEEVES AND VALVES

- A. Tapping sleeves shall be designed for a water working pressure of 150 psi and shall be mechanical joint end type. Tap shall be done under pressure and without interruptions of service. Taps shall be tested at factory to 175 psi.
- B. Tapping valves shall be as specified herein under Gate Valves.
- C. The manufacturer shall furnish the services of a supervisor who will direct all operations for the installation of material, attachment of tapping machine, and operation of the machine in making the connection. The Contractors shall bear all such rental and supervision costs, and all other related costs.
- D. Tapping sleeves and valves shall be the product of one of the following manufacturers, or equal: Mueller, Clow, M&H.

# 2.23 FLANGED ADAPTERS (WHEN APPLICABLE)

- A. For joining plain end or grooved end pipe to flanged pipes and fittings.
- B. Adapters shall conform in size and bolt hole placement to ANSI standards for steel and/or cast iron flanges 125 or 150 pound standard unless otherwise required for connections.
- C. Exposed Sleeve Type:
  - 1. Constructed from steel.
  - 2. Coating: In accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.
  - 3. Bolts: Carbon steel.
  - 4. Acceptable Manufacturers: Dresser Manufacturing Company Style 128 for cast iron ductile iron and steel pipes with diameters of two (2) inches through 96 inches or equal.

## 2.24 FIRE HYDRANTS

A. Hydrants shall comply with AWWA Standard C402 "Fire Hydrants for Ordinary Water Works Service", and shall be equipped with a minimum of one (1) pump outlet nozzle 4 inches in diameter and two (2) hose nozzles 2 inches in diameter. Threads, nozzle caps, operating nuts and color shall conform to Owner standards. Units shall be traffic types with breakable safety clips, or flange, and stem, with safety coupling located below barrel break line to preclude valve opening. Hydrants shall be dry top. Outlet nozzles shall be on the same place, with minimum distance of 18 inches from center of nozzles to ground line. Valve shall be compressive type with 52 inches minimum opening and hose inlet connection to be 6 inches minimum. Hydrants shall open left by Mueller A-423 or Clow Medallion Hydrant (AWWA C-502). Hydrants must drain.

#### 2.25 INSERT VALVE

- A. General: The Ductile Iron Insert Valve shall be a rated for 250 psig and shall be a Resilient Wedge Gate Valve as specified in this section. The valve shall be able to be installed into an existing pressurized pipeline while maintaining constant pressure and service as usual. After closing the wedge and adequately restraining the valve body the downstream pipe can be completely removed and replaced (allowing for upsizing of the pipe if necessary). The host pipe shall not be a permanent component of the Insert Valve. The Insert Valve shall be UL listed and approved to NSF / ANSI Standard 61- Drinking Water System Components. The insert valve must be installed by a qualified installer per the manufacturer's requirements.
- B. Construction: Sizes 12-inch and smaller must be capable of working on Cast/Grey Iron or Ductile Iron Class A, B, C and D, IPS PVC, C900 and C909 PVC, Steel, AC pipe diameters without changing either top or bottom portion of split valve body. The 250 psig maximum working rating

Section 33 01 00

**OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES** 

Page 20 of 30

markings must be cast into the body of the valve. After the installation of the Insert valve body on to the existing pipe a pressure test of 1.1 times that of the contents shall sustained for 15 minutes. Once the pressure test is affectively achieved the Insert valve body must not be moved in accordance with AWWA Standards. If the Insert valve is moved the pressure test must be completed again. The Insert valve must not be moved or repositioned once the pressure test is achieved.

- Resilient Wedge Gate Assembly: The construction of the Resilient Wedge shall comply with C. AWWA C509 requirements. The ductile iron wedge shall be fully encapsulated with EPDM rubber by a high pressure and high temperature compression or injection mold process. This will assure the ductile gate is fully coated with molded rubber – no exposed iron. The resilient wedge shall seat on the valve body and not the pipe to obtain the optimum seating and flow control results. The resilient wedge shall be totally independent of the carrier pipe. The resilient wedge shall not come into contact with the carrier pipe or depend on the carrier pipe to create a seal. Abrasion results thus shorting the life and quality of the shut down if the wedge contacts the pipe. Pressure equalization on the down or upstream side of the closed wedge shall not be necessary to open the valve. The wedge shall be symmetrical and seal equally well with flow in either direction. The Resilient wedge must ride inside the body channels to maintain wedge alignment throughout its travel to achieve maximum fluid control regardless of high or low flow pressure or velocity. An oversized flow way shall be unobstructed to provide optimum flow. The valve shall be fully epoxy coated on the interior and the exterior a minimum of 10 mils epoxy in compliance with AWWA C550 and certified to ANSI/NSF-61. The fusion-bonded coating shall be applied prior to assembly so that even the bolt holes and body-to-bonnet flange surfaces are fully epoxy coated.
- D. The valve shall have triple O-Ring stem seals, two O-Rings above, and one below the thrust collar. The lower two O-Rings provide a permanently sealed lubrication chamber that will make the valve easier to operate over a longer period of time. The upper O-Ring ensures that sand, dirt or grit cannot enter the valve to cause damage to the lower O-Rings. This is especially important for buried and sewage service applications. Side flange seals shall be of the O-Ring type of either round, oval, or rectangular cross-sectional shape.
- E. American Made Quality: All primary parts and components to be exclusively and completely assembled, manufactured, machined and coated in the USA. The purchaser shall, with reasonable notice, have the right to plant visitation at their expense. Bolting materials shall develop the physical strength requirements of ASTM A307 with dimensions conforming to ANSI B18.2.1.
- F. Split Restraint Devices: Shall consist of multiple gripping wedges incorporated into a follower gland meeting the applicable requirements of ANSI/AWWA C110/A21.10. The devices shall have a working pressure rating of 350 psi for 4-12 inch. Ratings are for water pressure and must include a minimum safety factor of 2 to 1 in all sizes. Chemical and modularity tests shall be performed as recommended by the Ductile iron Society, on a per ladle basis. Three test bars shall be incrementally poured per production shift as per U.L. specifications and ASTM A536. Testing for tensile, yield and elongation shall be done in accordance with ASTM E8.Gland body wedges and wedge actuating components shall be cast from grade 65-45-12 ductile iron material in accordance with ASTM A536. Mechanical joint restraint shall require conventional tools and installation procedures per AWWA C600, while retaining full mechanical joint deflection during assembly as well as allowing joint deflection after assembly. Proper actuation of the gripping

- wedges shall be ensured with torque limiting twist off nuts. Set screw pressure point type hardware shall not be used.
- G. The Insert valve shall be as manufactured by Team Industrial Services 13131 Dairy Ashford Rd Sugar land, TX 77478 1-800-662-8326 281-331-6154, Team InsertValve Patent number 6,776,187 and 7,225,827 or approved equal.

## PART 3 - EXECUTION

## 3.1 INSPECTION

A. All pipe, fittings, valves and other material shall be subject to inspection and approval by the Engineer after delivery, and no broken, cracked, imperfectly coated, or otherwise damaged or unsatisfactory material shall be used. When a defect or crack is discovered, the injured portion shall not be installed. Cracked pipe shall have the defect cut off at least 12 inches from the break in the sound section of the barrel.

# 3.2 GENERAL INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS

- A. Excavation, backfill, and compaction shall conform to the provisions the applicable Specification.
  - 1. Pipe Cradle: Upon satisfactory installation of the pipe bedding material as specified, a continuous trough for the pipe barrel and recesses for the pipe bells or couplings shall be excavated by hand digging. When the pipe is laid in the prepared trench, true to line and grade, the pipe barrel shall receive continuous, uniform support and no pressure will be exerted on the pipe joints from the trench bottom.
- B. Cover for underground piping shall not be less than that indicated on the Drawings. The minimum cover for pipe shall be 36 inches. In areas where other piping conflicts preclude the maximum cover desired, the piping shall be laid to provide the maximum cover obtainable.
- C. Pipe, fittings, valves, and accessories shall be installed as shown or indicated on the Drawings.
- D. All connections to existing piping systems shall be made as shown or indicated on the Drawings after consultation and cooperation with authorities of the Owner.
- E. Pipe Joint Deflection: Whenever it is desirable, and approved by the Engineer, to deflect pipe joints to avoid obstructions or to maintain required alignment, the amount of the joint deflection shall not exceed eighty percent (80%) of the maximum limits allowed by the pipe manufacturer.
- F. In preparation for pipe installation, placement (stringing) of pipe should be as close to the trench as practical on the opposite side of the trench from the excavated material. The bell ends of the pipe should point in the direction of the work progress.
- G. Pipe and fittings shall be laid accurately to the lines and grades indicated on Drawings or required. Where grades for the pipeline are not indicated on the Drawings, maintain a uniform depth of cover with respect to finish grade. Care shall be taken to ensure a good alignment both

- horizontally and vertically and to give the pipe a firm bearing along its entire length. Any pipe which has its grade or joint disturbed after laying shall be taken up and re-laid.
- H. All pipe and fittings shall be cleared of sand, dirt, and debris before laying. All precautions shall be taken to prevent sand, dirt or other foreign material from entering the pipe during installation. If necessary, a heavy, tightly woven canvas bag of suitable size shall be placed over each end of the pipe before lowering into the trench and left there until the connection is made to the adjacent pipe. Any sand, dirt, or other foreign material that enters the pipe shall be removed from the pipe immediately. Interior of all pipe and fittings shall be kept clean after installation until acceptable in the complete work.
- I. Any time that pipe installation is not in progress, the open ends of pipe shall be closed by a watertight plug or other method approved by the Engineer. Plugs shall remain in pipe ends until all water is removed from the trench. No pipe shall be installed when trench conditions are unsuitable for such work, including standing water, excess mud, or rain.
- J. After pipe has been laid, inspected, and found satisfactory, sufficient backfill shall be placed along the pipe barrel to hold the pipe securely in place while conducting the preliminary hydrostatic test. No backfill shall be placed over the joints until the preliminary test is satisfactorily completed, leaving them exposed to view for the detection of visible leaks.
- K. Upon satisfactory completion of the hydrostatic test, backfilling of the trench shall be completed.
- L. Aboveground and Exposed Piping: Piping shall be cut accurately to measurements established at the job site and shall be worked into place without springing or forcing, properly clearing all equipment access areas and openings. Changes in sizes shall be made with appropriate reducing fittings. Pipe connections shall be made in accordance with the details shown and manufacturer's recommendations. Open ends of pipe lines shall be properly capped or plugged during installation to keep dirt and other foreign material out of the system. Pipe supports and hangers shall be provided where indicated or as required to ensure adequate support of the piping.

# 3.3 INSTALLATION OF DUCTILE IRON PIPE

- A. Handling and Cutting Pipe:
  - 1. Care shall be taken in handling, cutting, and laying ductile iron pipe and fittings to avoid damaging the pipe and interior coal tar epoxy or cement mortar lining, scratching or marring machined surfaces, and abrasion of the pipe coating. All cracked pipe and fittings shall be removed at once from the work at no additional cost to the Owner.
  - 2. Pipe cutting shall be done in a neat workmanlike manner without creating damage to the pipe and interior coal tar epoxy or cement mortar lining. Ductile iron pipe may be cut using an abrasive pipe saw, rotary wheel cutter, guillotine pipe saw, milling wheel saw or oxyacetylene torch. Cut ends and rough edges of ductile iron pipe shall be ground smooth. For push-on joint connections, the cut end shall be beveled to prevent gasket damage during joint assembly. Interior lining shall be repaired at cut ends per the manufacturer's instructions prior to joint assembly.
- B. Laying Pipe and Fittings:

- 1. Bedding for Ductile Iron Pipe: Minimum bedding requirements shall be Type 2 as defined in ANSI/AWWA C600, latest revision. Provide proper bedding required, in accordance with thickness class of pipe being laid and depth of cover. Proper pipe laying conditions shall be in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C150 and C151, latest revision, and ANSI/AWWA C600, latest revision.
- 2. All ductile iron pipe and fittings shall be laid in accordance with American Water Works Association Standard ANSI/AWWA C600, latest revision, entitled "Standard for Installation of Ductile Iron Water Mains and Their Appurtenances", with the following sections specifically applying:
  - a. Section 3.3 Pipe Installation
  - b. Section 3.4 Joint Assembly

# C. Ductile Iron Pipe Joints:

- 1. Type: The joints of all pipelines shall be made absolutely tight. The particular joint used shall be approved by the Engineer prior to installation. Where shown on the Drawings or where, in the opinion of the Engineer, settlement or vibration is likely to occur, all pipe joints shall be bolted mechanical type or restrained type as specified above, or as indicated on the Drawings.
- 2. Push-on Joints: Push-on joints shall be made in strict accordance with the the manufacturer's recommendations. Lubricant, if required, shall be an inert, non-toxic, water soluble compound incapable of harboring, supporting, or culturing bacterial life. Manufacturer's installation recommendations shall be submitted to the Engineer for review and approval before commencing work. The bell of the pipe shall be cleaned of excess tar or other obstructions and wiped out before the cleaned and prepared spigot of the next pipe is inserted. The new pipe shall be shoved firmly into place until properly seated and held securely until the joint has been completed.
- 3. Mechanical Joint: All types of mechanical joint pipes shall be laid and jointed in full conformance with manufacturer's recommendations, which shall be submitted to the Engineer for review and approval before work is begun. Only skilled workmen shall be permitted to makeup mechanical joints. Torque wrenches, set as specified ion AWWA Standard C111, shall be used; or spanner type wrenches not longer than specified therein may be used without the permission of the Engineer.
- 4. Flanged Joints: Flanged joints shall be made up by inserting the gasket between the flanges. The threads of the bolts and the faces of the gaskets shall be coated with suitable lubricant immediately before installation.
- 5. Restrained Joints: Restrained joints shall be provided where indicated on the Drawings and specified. Joint assembly shall be made in strict accordance with the manufacturer's instructions, which shall be submitted to the Engineer for review and approval before commencing work.

## 3.4 INSTALLATION OF PVC PIPE

A. Storage and Handling:

Section 33 01 00

**OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES** 

Page 24 of 30

- 1. PVC pipe shall be delivered to the site in unbroken bundles packaged in such manner as to provide protection against damage. When possible, pipe should be stored at the job site in the unit packages until ready for use. Packaged units shall be handled using a forklift or a spreader bar with fabric straps. Packaged units shall not be stacked at the job site higher than two units high.
- When it is necessary to store PVC pipe for long periods of time, exposure to direct sunlight shall be prevented by covering the pipe with an opaque material. Adequate air circulation above and around the pipe shall be provided as required to prevent excessive heat accumulation. PVC pipe shall not be stored close to heat sources of hot objects such as heaters, fires, boiler, or engine exhaust. Pipe gaskets shall be protected from excessive exposure to heat, direct sunlight, ozone, oil and grease. The interior and all sealing surfaces of pipe, fittings, and other appurtenances shall be kept clean and free of dirt and foreign matter.
- 3. Care shall be taken in handling and laying pipe and fittings to avoid severe impact blows, crushing, abrasion damage, gouging, or cutting. Pipe shall be lowered, not dropped, from trucks or into trenches. All cracked, damaged, or defective pipe and fittings, or any length of PVC pipe having a gouge, scratch or other permanent indentation of more than ten percent (10%) of the wall thickness in depth, shall be rejected and removed at once from the work and replaced with new acceptable pipe at no additional cost to the Owner.
- B. Field Cutting PVC Pipe: Field cutting of pipe shall be done in a neat workmanlike manner without creating damage to the pipe. The pipe shall be cut square with a fine-toothed hand or power saw or other cutter or knife designed for use with plastic pipe. Prior to cutting, the pipe shall be marked around its entire circumference or a square in vise shall be used to ensure the pipe end is cut square. Remove burrs by smoothing edges with a knife, file, or sandpaper.
  - 1. Field Cutting Bell and Spigot PVC Pipe: Bevel the cut end of the pipe using a pipe beveling tool, wood rasp, or portable sander to prevent damage to the gasket during joint assembly. A factory finished beveled end should be used as a guide to ensure proper beveling angle and correct depth of bevel. Round off any sharp edges on the leading edge of the bevel with a knife or file.

# C. Laying PVC Pipe:

- 1. Pipe Bedding: Bedding for PVC pipe shall be as specified using granular pipe bedding material.
- 2. All PVC pipe shall be laid in accordance with the pipe manufacturer's published installation guide, the AWWA Manual of Practice No. M23 "PVC Pipe-Design and Installation" and the Uni-Bell Plastic Pipe Association installation recommendations.
- D. PVC Pipe Joint Assembly for Rubber Gasketed Bell and Spigot Pipe:
  - 1. The PVC bell and spigot joint shall be assembled in accordance with the pipe manufacturer's installation instructions. Clean the interior of the bell, the gasket, and the spigot of the pipe to be jointed with a rag to remove any dirt or foreign material before assembling. Inspect the gasket, pipe spigot bevel, gasket groove and sealing surfaces for damage or deformation.

- 2. Lubricate the spigot end of the pipe with a lubricant supplied or specified by the pipe manufacturer for use with gasketed PVC pipe in potable water systems. The lubricant should be supplied as specified by the pipe manufacturer. After then spigot end is lubricated, it must be kept clean and free of dirt and sand. If dirt and sand adhere to the lubricated end, the spigot must be wiped clean and relubricated.
- 3. Insert the spigot into the bell so that it contacts the gasket uniformly. Align the pipe sections and push the spigot end into the bell until the manufacturer's reference mark on the spigot is flush with the end of the bell. The pipe should be pushed into the bell using a bar and wood block. The joint shall not be assembled by "stabbing" or swinging the pipe into the bell, nor shall construction machinery be used to push the pipe into the bell.
- 4. If undue resistance to insertion of the spigot end is encountered or if the reference mark does not reach the flush position, disassemble the joint and check the position of the gasket. If the gasket is twisted or pushed out of its seat, inspect the components, repair or replace damaged items, clean the components and repeat the assembly steps. Be sure the pipe is in proper alignment during assembly. If the gasket was not out of position, check the distance between the spigot end and the reference mark and relocate the mark if it is out of position.
- E. PVC Pipe Joint Assembly for Threaded and Solvent Welded Pipe
  - 1. All threaded and solvent welded joints shall be made watertight. All pipe cutting, threading and jointing procedures for threaded and solvent welded PVC pipe joints shall be in strict accordance with the pipe and fitting manufacturer's printed installation instructions. Thread lubricant for threaded joints shall be Teflon tape only.
  - 2. At threaded joints between PVC and metal pipes, the metal side shall contain the socket end and the PVC side the spigot. A metal spigot shall not, under any circumstances, be screwed into a PVC socket.
- F. PVC forcemains underground shall be strapped every 10 feet or spiral wrapped with an insulated green No. 14 gauge copper ground wire for future location. The wire shall be stubbed out at each valve box or manhole.

# 3.5 FITTING INSTALLATION FOR UNDERGROUND PIPING

- A. The weight of ductile iron fittings shall not be carried by the pipe on which they are installed. The fitting shall be supported by a concrete cradle as shown on the standard details. Concrete used for supports shall have a minimum compressive strength of 3000 psi at 28 days. Concrete for support cradle shall be poured against undisturbed soil.
- B. All glands, clamps, bolts, nuts, studs and other uncoated parts of fitting joints for underground installation shall be coated with two coats, 10 mils DFT per coat, of coal tar epoxy equal to Kop-Coat Bitumastic No. 300-M.

# 3.6 CONCRETE PIPE ENCASEMENT

- A. Concrete for concrete pipe encasement shall have a minimum strength of 3000 psi at 28 days and encasement shall be constructed in accordance with details shown on the Drawings. Encasement shall be constructed where:
  - 1. Indicated on the Drawings
  - 2. The Engineer shall order the pipeline encased.
- B. The points of beginning and ending of concrete pipe encasement shall be not more than six inches from a pipe joint to protect the pipe from cracking due to uneven settlement of its foundation or the effects of superimposed live loads. Pipe shall be wrapped in visqueen.
- C. Pipe encasement shall provide a minimum coverage of 6 inches all around the pipe including pipe bells.

## 3.7 INSTALLATION OF PIPE SLEEVES, WALL CASTINGS AND COUPLINGS

- A. Pipe sleeves and wall castings shall be provided at the locations called for on the Drawings. These units shall be as detailed and of the material as noted on the Drawings. They shall be accurately set in the concrete or masonry to the elevations shown. All wall sleeves and castings required in the walls shall be in place when the walls are poured. Ends of all wall castings and wall sleeves shall be of a type consistent with the piping to be connected to them.
- B. Link seals for wall sleeves shall be installed in strict accordance with the manufacturer's printed installation instructions. For watertight applications in tanks or treatment units, the link seal installation shall be tested hydrostatically for leaks at the same time as the tank or treatment unit. Any leaks that occur during the test period shall be repaired by checking the link seals for proper installation and replacement of unit(s) found to be defective at no additional cost to the Owner.
- C. Pipe couplings shall be installed in strict accordance with the manufacturer's published instructions and recommendations.

## 3.8 INSTALLATION OF VALVES

- A. Valves of the size and type shown on the Drawings shall be set plumb and installed at the locations indicated on the Drawings. Valves shall be installed in accordance with manufacturer's installation instructions and with the Details shown on the Drawings.
- B. Valves shall be installed such that they are supported properly in their respective positions, free from distortion and strain. Valves shall be installed such that their weight is not borne by pumps and equipment that are not designed to support the weight of the valve.
- C. Valves shall be carefully inspected during installation; they shall be opened wide and then tightly closed and the various nuts and bolts shall be tested for tightness. Special care shall be taken to prevent any foreign matter from becoming lodged in the valve seat. Check and adjust all valves for smooth operation.

Section 33 01 00

**OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES** 

Page 27 of 30

- D. Install valves with the operating stem in either horizontal or vertical position.
- E. Allow sufficient clearance around the valve operator for proper operation.
- F. Clean iron flanges by wire brushing before installing flanged valves. Clean carbon steel flange bolts and nuts by wire brushing, lubricate threads with oil or graphite, and tighten nuts uniformly and progressively. Clean threaded joints by wire brushing or swabbing. Apply Teflon joint compound or Teflon tape to pipe threads before installing threaded valves. Joints shall be watertight.
- G. For buried valves, a valve box shall be centered accurately over the operating nut and the entire assembly shall be plumb. The tops of valve boxes shall be adjusted to the proper elevation as specified below and as shown on the Drawings.
  - 1. In paved areas, tops of valve box covers shall be set flush with pavement. Following paving operations, a 16-inch square shall be neatly cut in the pavement around the box and the paving removed. The top of the box shall then be adjusted to the proper elevation and a 30-inch square by 6-inch thick concrete pad poured around the box cover. Concrete pads in traffic areas shall be reinforced with No. 4 reinforcement bars as shown on the Drawings. Concrete for the pad shall be 3000 psi compressive strength.
  - 2. In unpaved areas, tops of valve box covers shall be set 2 inches above finished grade. After the top of the box is set to the proper elevation, a 16-inch square by 6 inch thick concrete pad shall be poured around the box cover. Concrete for the pad shall be 3000 psi compressive strength.
- H. Valves shall be tested hydrostatically, concurrently with the pipeline in which they are installed. Protect or isolate any parts of valves, operators, or control and instrumentation system whose pressure rating is less than the pressure test(s). If valve joints leak during pressure testing, loosen or remove the nuts and bolts, reseat or replace the gasket, reinstall or retighten the bolts and nuts and hydrostatically retest the joints.
- I. Following installation, all aboveground valves shall be painted in accordance with the painting system specified in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations. Following installation of buried valves or valves installed in valve vaults, repair any scratches, marks and other types of surface damage, etc., with a coating equal to the original coating supplied by the manufacturer. Prior to backfilling, all nuts, bolts and other parts of the valve joints shall be coated with two coats, 10 mils DFT per coat, of coal tar epoxy equal to Kop-Coat Bitumastic No. 300-M.

# 3.9 SEPARATION OF NON-POTABLE WATER MAINS AND POTABLE WATER MAINS

A. Reclaimed water mains shall be installed with at least a 3 foot horizontal separation from any potable water main. Force mains and gravity sewers shall have a 6 foot separation from potable mains. At crossings the installation shall provide of a minimum vertical separation distance of 12 inches between the outside of the crossing non-potable and potable water mains. This separation shall be provided where the potable water main is either below or above the non-potable water main. When the 12 inch minimum vertical separation distance cannot be maintained, the potable water main shall be encased in concrete. Concrete encasement shall be as specified above. The potable water main shall be encased for 10 feet each way of the crossing.

Section 33 01 00

**OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES** 

Page 28 of 30

## 3.10 MAIN CLEANING AND FLUSHING

- A. Following the hydrostatic and leakage tests, all the mains constructed under this Contract shall be cleaned and flushed to remove sand, loose dirt and other debris. Flushing velocity shall be a minimum of 2.5 fps. Flushing shall continue until clean water flows from the main. However, the Contractor shall endeavor to use the minimum amount of flushing water required to complete the work. To increase the efficiency of the cleaning and flushing operation, the Contractor shall use a pipeline pigging device of the proper size and designed to clean the intended pipeline. The pigging device shall be capable of turning through a standard 90 degree MJ bend. The type of pipeline pigging device and the method of operation shall be approved by the Engineer.
- B. Upon completion of testing for the gravity drain line system, drain lines shall be flushed to remove dirt, sand, stones and other debris which may have entered the lines during construction and settled out in the lines and manholes. Materials and debris flushed from the drain lines shall be removed from a downstream manhole or basin and disposed of at an approved disposal area.
- C. Water for flushing shall be clean water provided by the Contractor from a source approved by the Engineer and the Owner prior to beginning connections for flushing operations. Flushing shall only be completed upon approval by the Owner.
- D. Temporary blow offs may be required for the purpose of flushing mains. Temporary blow offs shall be installed as close as possible to the ends of the main being flushed. Blow offs installed on the main shall be the same diameter as the main. Temporary blow offs shall be removed and plugged after the main is flushed. All costs for installing and removing temporary blow offs shall be at no additional cost to the Owner.
- E. The Owner shall be notified at least three (3) working days prior to flushing mains.
- F. Blow offs and temporary drainage piping used for flushing shall not be discharged into any gravity sewer or pumping station wetwell. The Contractor shall obtain prior approvals from the Engineer and the Owner as to the methods and locations of flushing water discharge.

# 3.11 INSTALLATION OF TIE RODS

- A. Tie rods shall be installed in strict accordance with the manufacturer's written installation requirements. Unless otherwise indicated on the Drawings, the size and number of tie rods for a joint or installation shall be as recommended by the manufacturer's design chart for a working pressure of 150 psi.
- B. Following installation and prior to backfilling, all parts of the tie rod joint restraint system, including tie rods, tie bolts, nuts, washers, and other fasteners, shall be coated with two (2) coats, 10 mils DFT per coat, of coal tar epoxy equal to Kop-Coat Bitumastic No. 300-M.

# 3.12 INSTALLATION OF REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW PREVENTERS

A. Backflow preventers shall be installed at the locations shown on the Drawings. Backflow preventers shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer's written installation instructions and as shown on the Drawings.

Section 33 01 00

**OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF UTILITIES** 

Page 29 of 30

- B. Reduced pressure principle backflow preventers shall be installed horizontally with an 18-inch minimum clearance between the finished grade and the lowest point on the bottom of the unit. Reduced pressure backflow preventers shall be installed with provisions for a suitable drain arrangement to drain off discharges from the relief valve, so that discharges are not objectionable. Backflow preventers shall be installed such that they are easily accessible for testing, maintenance and repair.
- C. Piping and fittings for units three inches and larger in size shall have flanged joints. Piping, fittings and valves shall be properly supported with pipe support stands as shown on the Drawings.
- D. Following installation of the reduced pressure backflow preventer, piping, fittings and valves, the entire aboveground assembly shall be finished painted in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.

**END OF SECTION 33 01 00** 

#### SECTION 33 01 12 – INSPECTION AND TESTING OF WATER UTILITIES

## PART 1 - GENERAL

## 1.1 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work: This section specifies the pneumatic, hydrostatic, and leakage testing of piping and acceptable piping materials for each application. The piping designations (mark) are also indicated.

# B. Testing Records:

- 1. Provide a record of each piping installation during the testing. These records shall include:
  - a. Date of test.
  - b. Identification of pipeline tested or retested including designation.
  - c. Identification of pipeline material.
  - d. Identification of pipe specifications.
  - e. Test fluid.
  - f. Test pressure.
  - g. Remarks: Leaks identified (type and location), types of repairs, or corrections made.
  - h. Certification by Contractor that the leakage rate measured conformed to the Specifications.
  - i. Signature of Engineer's representative witnessing pipe test.
- 2. Submit the test records to the Engineer's representative upon completion of the testing.

# PART 2 - PRODUCTS

# 2.1 GENERAL

A. Testing fluid shall be water unless a pneumatic test for air or chemical systems is indicated on the Piping Pressure Test Schedule.

# 2.2 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

A. Provide pressure gauges, pipes, bulkheads, pumps, and meters to perform the hydrostatic and pneumatic testing.

## PART 3 - EXECUTION

## 3.1 TESTING PREPARATION

A. Pipes shall be in place and anchored before commencing pressure testing.

Page 1 of 8

- B. Conduct hydrostatic and pneumatic tests on exposed and above ground piping after the piping has been installed and attached to the pipe supports, hangers, anchors, expansion joints, valves, and meters.
- C. Before conducting hydrostatic tests, flush pipes with water to remove dirt and debris. For pneumatic tests, blow air through the pipes.
- D. Test new pipelines which are to be connected to existing pipelines by isolating the new line from the existing line by means of pipe caps, special flanges, or blind flanges. After the new line has been successfully tested, remove caps or flanges and connect to the existing piping.
- E. Conduct hydrostatic tests on buried pipe after the trench has been completely backfilled. The pipe may be partially backfilled and the joints left exposed for inspection for an initial leakage test. Perform the final test, however, after completely backfilling and compacting the trench.
- F. Testing of piping under structures shall be completed prior to beginning construction of the structure. In the case of concrete encased piping, the pressure test shall be conducted after the concrete encasement has been placed and cured, but prior to beginning construction of any structure above the piping.

## 3.2 INSPECTION AND TESTING

- A. Hydrostatic Testing of Aboveground or Exposed Piping: Open vents at high points of the piping system to purge air while the pipe is being filled. Subject the piping system to the test pressure indicated. Maintain the test pressure for a minimum of two (2) hours. Examine joints, fittings, valves, and connections for leaks. The piping system shall show no leakage or weeping. Correct leaks and retest until no leakage is obtained. Test pressure shall be 150 psi for water unless otherwise specified.
- B. Hydrostatic Testing of Buried Piping:
  - 1. Where any section of the piping contains concrete thrust blocks or encasement, do not make the pressure test until at least ten (10) days after the concrete has been poured. When testing mortar lined or PCCP piping, fill the pipe to be tested with water and allow it to soak for at least forty-eight (48) hours to absorb water before conducting the pressure test.
  - 2. Apply and maintain the test pressure by means of a hydraulic force pump. Maintain the test pressure for a minimum duration of two (2) hours. After the test pressure is reached, use a meter to measure the additional water added to maintain the pressure. This amount of water is the loss due to leakage in the piping system. The allowable leakage rate is defined by the formula.

$$L = \frac{ND\sqrt{P}}{7,400}$$

in which:

L = allowable leakage (gallons/hours) during the test period.

N = number of rubber gasketed joints in the pipe tested (zero for flanged

Section 33 01 12

# **INSPECTION AND TESTING OF WATER UTILITIES**

or welded pipe).

D = diameter of the pipe (inches).

P = specified test pressure (psig).

3. Repair and retest any pipes showing leakage rates greater than that allowed in the above formula.

# C. Pneumatic Testing:

- 1. Test Pressure: As shown in the Specifications, or 150 psi.
- 2. Perform pneumatic testing using dry air. Perform tests only after the piping has been completely installed including supports, hangers, and anchors. Protect test personnel and Owner's operating personnel. Secure piping to be tested to prevent the pipe from moving and to prevent damage to adjacent piping and equipment. Remove or isolate from the pipe any appurtenant instruments or devices that could be damaged by the test, prior to applying the test.
- 3. Apply an initial pneumatic leakage test of 25 psig to the piping system prior to final leak testing. Examine for leakage, detected by soap bubbles, at joints and connections. After correcting visible leaks, gradually increase the pressure in the system to not more than one-half of the test pressure. Then increase the pressure in steps of approximately one-tenth of the test pressure until the required test pressure has been reached. Continuously maintain the pneumatic test pressure for a minimum time of four (4) hours and for such additional time as may be necessary to conduct a soap bubble examination for leakage. The piping system shall show no leakage. Correct any visible leakage and retest.

# D. Testing of Non-Pressure Piping:

- 1. Testing of non-pressure gravity flow pipe shall be accomplished by infiltration or exfiltration testing. Non-pressure piping which has a crown elevation below the groundwater table shall be tested by measuring the infiltration. Non-pressure piping which has a crown elevation above the groundwater table shall be tested by measuring the exfiltration.
  - a. Infiltration Testing: The Contractor shall identify and prepare each section of piping to be tested. The designated piping shall be monitored for a minimum of four (4) hours. All buried leaks shall be located and repaired immediately and retested. All visible leaks must be repaired regardless of the measured leakage. No visible leakage will be allowed.
  - b. Exfiltration Testing: The Contractor shall close all openings in the section of pipe to be tested. The hydrostatic water level of the pipe system shall be raised to a height equal to the maximum design submergence, but in no case less than three feet above the highest point in the line. The closed system shall be maintained for a minimum duration of four (4) hours. Any loss of volume shall be noted. The line will not be accepted until this measured quantity is less than 25 gallons per inch of diameter of pipe per mile of pipe per twenty-four (24) hours. All buried leaks shall be located and repaired as soon as possible. All visible leaks must be repaired regardless of the measured leakage.

Section 33 01 12

**INSPECTION AND TESTING OF WATER UTILITIES** 

Page 3 of 8

- 2. If impractical to conduct the infiltration or exfiltration tests as specified, the line can be pressurized for low pressure air testing. The air test shall be made by attaching an air compressor or testing apparatus to a suitable opening. After closing all other inlets and outlets to the system, force air into the system until there is a uniform gauge pressure of 5 psi. This pressure shall be held constant without introduction of additional air for a period of at least thirty (30) minutes.
- 3. The allowable limits of infiltration or exfiltration of manholes shall not exceed a rate of 0.165 gallons per manhole per hour.
- 4. Testing shall proceed for a continuous period of at least four (4) hours, with exfiltration or infiltration amounts measured by approved methods. Upon application of internal hydrostatic pressure for exfiltration testing, care shall be taken to preclude unseating the joint gaskets for a specific type of pipe by exceeding the pressure capability thereof.
- 5. Should any test fail, necessary repairs shall be accomplished by the Contractor and the test repeated until within the established limits. The Contractor shall furnish the necessary labor, water and all other items required to conduct the required testing and shall perform the necessary system repairs required to comply with the specified test.

#### 3.3 DISINFECTION

- A. Following pressure testing, the Contractor shall disinfect all sections of the water or reclaimed water distribution system, and receive approval thereof from the appropriate agencies, prior to placing in service. Advance notice shall be provided to the Engineer before disinfection procedures start. The disinfection shall be accomplished in accordance with the applicable provisions of AWWA Standard C651, "Disinfecting Water Mains", and all appropriate approval agencies. Testing shall be performed by approved, professional laboratory.
- B. The disinfecting agent shall be liquid chlorine or sodium hypochlorite solution conforming to Federal Specification O-S-602b Sodium Hypochlorite, Grade D. Dry hypochlorite, similar or equal to "HTH" may also be used as the disinfecting agent.
- C. The piping shall be disinfected by introducing the disinfecting agent into the water, which is being pumped into the system, in such manner that the entire system will be filled with water containing a minimum chlorine concentration of 50 ppm at any point. This water shall be allowed to remain in the system for a minimum contact period of eight (8) hours before the system is flushed out.
- D. After the disinfecting agents have been permitted to remain for the specified contact periods, the structures, pipelines, pumps and valves shall be thoroughly flushed with water until the residual chlorine tests are less than 0.2 ppm in each instance. The determination of the amount of residual chlorine in the system shall be made at such points and in accord with standard tests by means of a standard orthotolodine test set.
- E. After any units or portions of the system have been disinfected and flushed as specified, samples of water shall be taken from several points as applicable in suitable sterilized containers and the samples forwarded to an independent, approved testing laboratory for bacterial examination. If repeated tests of such samples show the presence of coliform organisms, the disinfection shall be repeated or continued until tests indicate the absence of pollution. Two (2) consecutive daily

Section 33 01 12

**INSPECTION AND TESTING OF WATER UTILITIES** 

Page 4 of 8

samples of two (2) samples per day per sampling point shall be satisfactorily tested, sent to the Florida Department of Environmental Regulation for their approval, and approved before the system is placed in service.

F. The Contractor shall furnish all equipment and materials and perform the work necessary for the disinfecting procedures, including additional disinfection as required and testing lab services.

## 3.4 CONNECTION TO EXISTING SYSTEM

- A. All connections to existing mains shall be made after complete disinfection of the proposed system and shall be made under the direction of the Owners of the existing system. Valves separating the mains being installed from existing mains shall be operated by or under the direction of said Owner's representative. The cost of the work in making the connections shall be paid for by the Contractor.
- B. In the event the proposed main is to be connected to a main which has one or more active services between the point of connection and the first existing line valve, a temporary plug or cap shall be installed on the new main until the pressure tests and disinfecting are completed. Upon satisfactory completion, the cap or plug shall be removed from both mains and the connection made with pipe which has been swabbed out with a solution of chlorine and water. The connection shall be made as swiftly as possible and any water in the ditch shall be kept below the level of the pipe. The pipeline shall then be placed in service by the Owner's personnel.
- C. In the event any existing users will be without water while a connection is being made, the Contractor shall give the Owner forty-eight (48) hours' notice. The Owner will notify residents when the water will be turned off and when service will be resumed. In some instances, these connections may have to be made at night. No user shall be without water service for more than two (2) hours.
- D. Cut overs from existing water service lines at the meter box shall be accomplished by Contractor personnel after the new water mains have been "cleared" for use and the Contractor has installed the required new water line corporation stops, service lines and curb stops as shown on the Drawings.

# TABLE 33 01 12

# TREATMENT PLANT PIPING PRESSURE TEST SCHEDULE AND MATERIAL LISTING

SERVICE	MARK	TEST PRESSURE IN PSIG	MATERIAL
Air	А	See Note 1	DIP OR SS
Alum	ALW(SO4) <sup>3</sup>	See Note 2	SCH. 80 PVC
Backwash Air	BWA	See Note 1	DIP
Backwash Water	BWW	100	DIP
Chlorinated Effluent	CLE	100	DIP
Chlorine Gas Pressure	CGP	300, See Note 3	BLK. STEEL
Chlorine Gas Vacuum	CGV	See Note 4	SCH. 80 PVC
Chlorine Solution	CS	100	SCH. 80 PVC
Clarifier Effluent	CE	See Note 5	DIP
Compressed Air	CA	200	GS
Dechlorinated Effluent	DCLE	See Note 5	DIP
Dirty Backwash Water	DBWW	See Note 5	DIP
Drain	D	See Note 5	SEE NOTE 6
Filter Effluent	FE	See Note 5	DIP
Filter Influent	FI	See Note 5	DIP
Filtrate	F	100	DIP
Grit	GR	50	DIP
Internal Recirculation	IR	50	DIP

Methanol	М	See Note 2	SCH. 80 PVC
Mixed Liquor	ML	See Note 5	DIP
Non-Potable Water	NPW	150	SEE NOTE 7
Odor Control Duct	OCD	See Note 1	SEE NOTE 8
Potable Water	PW	150	SEE NOTE 7
Plant Recycle	PR	50	DIP
Plant Recycle Drain	PRD	See Note 5	SEE NOTE 6
Polymer Liquid	PYL	See Note 2	SCH 80 PVC
Polymer Solution	PYS	See Note 2	SCH 80 PVC
Raw Sewage	RS	50	DIP
Return Activated Sludge	RAS	50	DIP
Reuse Water (Pressure)	RW	150	DIP, HDPE or PVC
Reuse Water (Gravity)	RW	50	DIP
Sanitary Sewer	S	See Note 5	SEE NOTE 6
Scum	SC	50	DIP
Seal Water	SW	See Note 9	SCH. 80 PVC
Sodium Hydroxide	NaOH	See Note 2	SCH. 80 PVC
Sodium Hypochlorite	NaOC1	See Note 2	SCH. 80 PVC
Sulfur Dioxide Gas Pressure	SDGP	300, See Note 3	BLK. STEEL
Sulfur Dioxide Gas Vacuum	SDGV	See Note 4	SCH. 80 PVC
Sulfur Dioxide Solution	SDS	100	SCH. 80 PVC
Sulfuric Acid	H2SO4	See Note 2	BLK. STEEL
Sump Pump Discharge	SPD	50	SCH. 80 PVC
Thickened Waste Activated Sludge	TWAS	100	DIP
Waste Activated Sludge	WAS	50	DIP

NOTES:

- 1. Discharge pipes shall be tested at 1.5 times the maximum output pressure of the blowers but shall not be less than 50 psig. In addition, suction pipes, duct work or other vacuum conduits shall be vacuum tested at 1.5 times the maximum vacuum produced by blower operation.
- 2. Chemical feed piping shall be tested at 75 psig using compressed air.
- 3. Pneumatic test. Pressure test the system with nitrogen. Do not test through equipment.
- 4. Vacuum test. Perform pneumatic test to 100 psig using nitrogen. Do not perform pneumatic test through equipment. Afterward, perform vacuum test at 10 inch Hg VAC between vacuum regulator and chlorinator or sulphonator, and at 25 inch Hg VAC between chlorinator or sulphonator and injectors.
- 5. See paragraph 3.2D for testing of non-pressure piping. Calculations for restraint of non-pressure piping shall use a valve of 15 psig.
- 6. Drains pipes/sanitary sewers shall be DR 18 PVC meeting AWWA C900 or C905 or Class 52 DIP. All drain pipes under structures shall be DIP and shall be concrete encased in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 7. Piping for sizes less than 4 inches shall be Schedule 80 PVC or HDPE, (as indicated). All other sizes of pipe shall be DIP of Class 250 or (DR 18) PVC. All above ground piping outside of structure 3 inches and less shall be Schedule 80 PVC while piping above 3 inches in diameter shall be DIP.
- 8. Odor control duct work shall be vacuum tested at 1.5 times the maximum vacuum produced by blower operation, but shall not be tested at less than 10 inches water VAC.
- 9. Test pressure requirements for seal water piping shall be 1.5 times the maximum working pressure, but test pressure shall not be less than 100 psig.

# END OF SECTION 33 01 12

#### SECTION 33 14 00 – WATER UTILITY TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION

## PART 1 - GENERAL

# 1.1 DESCRIPTION

## A. Scope of Work:

1. The work under this section includes providing a complete system of water and reclaimed water distribution pressure piping and appurtenant items.

# 1.2 QUALITY ASSURANCE

# A. Design Requirements:

- 1. Water and reclaimed water mains shall be laid with a minimum cover of 36 inches below finished grade, unless otherwise indicated.
- 2. Water and reclaimed water (typical this section) mains shall be constructed of the materials indicated on the Drawings. Ductile iron pipe may be substituted for polyvinyl chloride pipe.
- 3. Changes in horizontal alignment of 113 degrees or less may be achieved through use of allowable pipe deflection in lieu of fittings shown on the Drawings at the Contractor's option, but subject to approval of the Engineer as to layout. Said deflection shall not exceed limits set forth in applicable AWWA Standards.
- B. Pipe Inspection: The Contractor shall obtain from the pipe manufacturers a certificate of inspection to the effect that the pipe and fittings supplied for this Contract have been inspected at the plant and that they meet the requirements of these Specifications. All pipe and fittings shall be subjected to visual inspection at time of delivery by rail or truck, also just before they are lowered into the trench to be laid, and joints or fittings that do not conform to these Specifications will be rejected and must be remove immediately by the Contractor. The entire product of any plant may be rejected when, in the opinion of the Owner, the methods of manufacture fail to secure uniform results, or where the materials used are such as to produce inferior pipe or fittings.
- C. Prevention of Electrolysis: Where deemed necessary, electrolytic action through the contact of dissimilar metals, shall be prevented by either:
  - 1. The separation of one material from the other by means of an insulating or dielectric coupling, or
  - 2. The use of alternative materials, as approved by the Engineer.

## 1.3 SUBMITTALS

Section 33 14 00 WATER UTILITY TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION

Page 1 of 6

- A. A. Shop Drawings: The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer shop drawings in accordance with the applicable Specification. At minimum the shop drawings shall include:
  - 1. Mill test certificates or certified test reports on pipe.
  - 2. Details of restrained and flexible joints.
  - 3. Meter vault and boxes
  - 4. Valves and valve boxes
  - 5. Service connection assemblies
  - 6. Disinfection method
- B. Acceptance of Material: The Owner reserves the right to sample and test any pipe or fitting after delivery and to reject all pipe and fittings represented by any sample which fails to comply with the specified requirements.

## 1.4 JOB CONDITIONS

A. Water in Excavation: Water shall not be allowed in the trenches while the pipes are being laid and/or tested. The Contractor shall not open more trench than the available pumping facilities are able to dewater to the satisfaction of the Engineer. The Contractor shall assume responsibility for disposing of all water so as not to injure or interfere with the normal drainage of the territory in which they are working. In no case shall the pipelines being installed be used as drains for such water, and the ends of the pipe shall be kept properly and adequately blocked during construction by the use of approved stoppers and not by improvised equipment. All necessary precautions shall be taken to prevent to entrance of mud, sand, or other obstructing matter into the pipelines. If on completion of the work any such material has entered the pipelines, it must be cleaned as directed by the Engineer so that the entire system will be left clean and obstructed.

# PART 2 - PRODUCTS

# 2.1 MATERIAL

A. Materials shall conform to Division 33

# PART 3 - EXECUTION

## 3.1 PREPARATION

- A. Bedding:
  - 1. Pipe Cradle: Upon satisfactory installation of the pipe bedding material

Section 33 14 00

WATER UTILITY TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION

- a. Excavating, backfilling, and compacting, a continuous trough for the pipe barrel and recesses for the pipe bells or couplings shall be excavated by hand digging. When the pipe is laid in the prepared trench, true to line and grade, the pipe barrel shall receive continuous, uniform support and no pressure will be exerted on the pipe joints from the trench bottom.
- 2. Cleanliness: The interior of the pipes shall be thoroughly cleaned of all foreign matter before being gently lowered into the trench and shall be kept clean during laying operations by means of plugs or other approved methods. During suspension of work for any reason at any time, a suitable stopper shall be placed in the end of the pipe last laid to prevent mud or other foreign material from entering the pipe.

## 3.2 INSTALLATION

# A. Pipe:

- 1. Gradient: Lines shall be laid straight, and depth of cover shall vary to provide uniform gradient or slope to pipe whether grading is completed or proposed at time of pipe installation. When a grade or slope is shown on the Drawings, batter boards with string line paralleling design grade, or other previously approved means, shall be used by the Contractor to assure conformance to require grade.
- 2. Pipe Joint Deflection: Whenever it is desirable to deflect pipe, the amount of deflection shall not exceed the maximum limits as shown in AWWA Standard C600 for ductile iron pipe and the maximum limits as established by the manufacturer of PVC pipe.
- 3. Rejects: Any pipe found defective shall be immediately removed and replaced with sound pipe at the Contractor's expense.
- 4. Joint Compounds: No sulphur base joint compound shall be used.
- 5. Anchors: Concrete thrust blocks shall be placed at all bends, tees, plugs and other fittings to provide lateral support, except when restrained joints are specified. Thrust blocks shall conform to the details shown on the Drawings and shall be of Class "B" concrete.
- 6. "Grip Ring", Special MJ Gland and Grip Ring: as manufactured by Romac Industries, Inc., Seattle, WA 98114 or approved restraining devices shall be used instead of thrust blocks for all pressure rated pipe sizes 4 inch through 24 inch diameter.

# B. Installing Valves and Boxes:

1. Valves: Valves shall be carefully inspected, opened wide and then tightly closed and the various nuts and bolts shall be tested for tightness. Special care shall be taken to prevent any foreign matter from becoming lodged in the valve seat. Gate valves, unless shown otherwise, shall be set with their stems vertically above the centerline of the pipe. Butterfly valves shall have the disc shaft installed horizontally. Any valve that does not operate correctly shall be removed and replaced by the Contractor at no expense to the Owner.

- 2. Valve Boxes: Valve boxes shall be carefully centered over the operating nuts of the valves so as to permit a valve key to be fitted easily to the operating nut. In areas to be paved, valve boxes shall be set to conform to the level of the finished surface and held in position by a ring of concrete placed under the support flange as shown on the Drawings. The valve box shall not transmit surface loads to the pipe or valve. Care shall be taken to prevent earth and other material from entering the valve box. Any valve box which is out of alignment or whose top does not conform to the finished ground surface shall be dug out and reset. Before final acceptance of the work all valve boxes shall be adjusted to finish grade.
- C. Installing Hydrants: Hydrants shall be set plumb and in true alignment with mains. They shall be securely braced against the end of the trench with concrete thrust blocks as shown on the Drawings. Backfilling around hydrants shall be carefully done so as not to disturb the hydrant and shall be thoroughly compacted so as to support the hydrant securely.

#### D. Concrete Encasement:

- 1. Concrete encasement shall be constructed in accordance with the details shown on the Drawings and shall be constructed of Class "B" concrete. Encasement shall be constructed as indicated on the Drawings. Any fittings to be encased shall first be poly-wrapped and tied to facilitate repairs if needed at a later date.
- 2. The points of beginning and ending of pipe encasement shall be not more than six inches from a pipe joint to protect the pipe from cracking due to uneven settlement of its foundation or the effects of superimposed live loads.
- E. Blow Off Connections: Blow off connections shall be installed at the locations and in accordance with the details shown on the Drawings.
- F. Service Connections: Service connections shall be installed at the locations and in accordance with the details shown on the Drawings.

# G. Backfilling:

- 1. After pipe has been laid, inspected, and found satisfactory, sufficient backfill shall be placed along the pipe barrel to hold the pipe securely in place during the conduction of the preliminary hydrostatic test. No backfill shall be placed over joints until the preliminary test is satisfactorily completed, leaving them exposed to view for the detection of visible leaks.
- 2. Upon satisfaction completion of the preliminary hydrostatic test, backfilling and compacting of the trench shall be completed.

# H. Separation from Various Non-Potable Lines:

1. Potable water mains should be laid at least ten feet horizontally from wastewater/sludge/chemical piping and at least three feet horizontally from reclaimed water piping, or if a potable water main is laid less than ten feet horizontally from reclaimed water piping, the potable water main should be laid so that the bottom of the potable water main is at least 12 inches above the top of the wastewater/sludge/chemical/reclaimed water

piping. Where a potable water main crosses wastewater/sludge/chemical/reclaimed water piping, the potable water main should be laid so that the bottom of the potable water main is at least 12 inches above the top of the wastewater/sludge/chemical/reclaimed water piping; or the crossing should be arranged so that all potable water main joints and wastewater/sludge/chemical/reclaimed water piping joints are equidistant from the point of crossing with no less than ten feet between any two (2) joints.

# 3.3 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

A. Flushing: All water mains shall be flushed to remove all sand and other foreign matter. The velocity of the flushing water shall be at least four feet per second. Flushing shall be terminated at the direction of the Engineer. The Contractor shall dispose of the flushing water without causing a nuisance or property damage.

# B. Hydrostatic Tests:

- 1. Hydrostatic tests shall be conducted in accordance with the applicable Specification.
- 2. Water for testing and flushing shall be potable water provided by the Contractor from a source approved by the Engineer.

# C. Disinfection:

- 1. Before any portion of water distribution system is to be placed in service it shall be disinfected in accordance with the requirements of AWWA Standard C651; and its disinfection shall be demonstrated by bacteriological tests conducted in accordance with "Standard Methods for Examination of Water and Wastewater" for the coli aerogenes group, by an approved laboratory, acceptable to the Engineer and the County Health Department having jurisdiction and the State of Florida.
- 2. The disinfecting agent shall be free chlorine in aqueous solution, with sustained concentration for 12 hours or more of not less than 50 parts per million (ppm). Chlorine may be derived from chlorine gas, or 70 percent (high test) calcium hypochlorite (HTH or Perchloron, or equal). Administration may be by any of the several methods described in AWWA Standard C651 as proposed by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer. Proposals as to method must be made prior to commencement of the disinfection process.
- 3. Following contact with chlorine solution, the system shall be thoroughly flushed out. Samples shall then be taken using sterile containers. Samples shall be taken by the Contractor and delivered to an approved laboratory for analysis.
- 4. If samples do not demonstrate satisfactory results, the disinfection procedure shall be repeated until two (2) series of satisfactory samples are obtained, the period between such series of samples to be a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours.
- 5. For reclaimed water mains, all lines shall be backflushed and cleared until chlorine residual is maintained.

# 3.4 SCHEDULE

# A. Connection to Existing System:

- All connections to existing mains shall be made after complete disinfection of the proposed system and shall be made under the direction of the Owner of the existing system. Valves separating the mains being installed from existing mains shall be operated by or under the direction of the Engineer. The cost of the work in making the connection shall be paid for by the Contractor.
- 2. In the event the proposed main is to be connected to a main which has one or more active services between the point of connection and the first existing line valve, a temporary plug or cap shall be installed on the new main until the pressure tests and disinfecting are completed. Upon satisfactory completion, the cap or plug shall be removed from both mains and the connection made with pipe which has been swabbed out with a solution of chlorine and water. The connection shall be made as swiftly as possible and any water in the ditch shall be kept below the level of the pipe. The pipeline shall then be placed in service by the Owner's personnel.
- 3. In the event any existing users will be without water while a connection is being made, the Contractor shall notify them when the water will be turned off and when they estimate service will be resumed. In some instances, these connections may have to be made at night. No user shall be without water service for more than two (2) hours.

**END OF SECTION 33 14 00** 

END OF DOCUMENT